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Important: The board of directors (“Board of Directors”) and the supervisory committee (“Supervisory Committee”) and each
of the directors (“Directors”), the supervisors (“Supervisors”) and the senior officers (“Senior Officers®) of Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Company Limited (the “Company”) hereby confirm that there are no false representations, material omissions

or misleading statements contained in this report, and they, severally and jointly, accept full responsibility for the truthfulness,
accuracy and completeness of the contents of this report.

The chairman (Ms. Guo Qin), financial controller (Mr. Zhao Songguo) and the chief of the finance department
(Mr. Wang Jianxin) of the Company hereby declare that the financial report of the Company for 2008 is true and complete.

This report has been prepared in both Chinese and English. In the event of any discrepancy between the two versions, the
Chinese version shall prevail.
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Website designated by China
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Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Company”)
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Ms. Guo Qin
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Mr. Cao Changgqiu, Ms. Guo Lei

86-533-219 6024

86-533-228 7508

cqcao@xhzy.com; guolei@xhzy.com
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Zibo City, Shandong Province, The People’s Republic of China (the
K(PRCH)

PEILREEET ST RMEXMAERLETIRE

Chemical Industry Area of Zibo Hi-tech Industry Development Zone,
Zibo City, Shandong Province, PRC

255005

http://www.xhzy.com

xhzy @xhzy.com
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Securities Times

http://www.cninfo.com.cn
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The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”)
LI SR S

Shandong Xinhua

0719

RINEH XS
Shenzhen Stock Exchange
AEGL A

Xinhua Pharm

000756

2001 12H19H
19 December 2001

IWREEETIHTHERD
Zibo Municipal Administration of Industry and Commerce of Shandong
Province

1B I B E 42 7 5 0014895%
Qiguluzizongzi No.001489

370303164103727

16410372-7
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MESEED
BEREREEBHEA—P L1612
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited

16/F., United Centre

95 Queensway, Hong Kong

SRR AR BN E TSP

G-

AL R R E RS P K8 S R EARIE
4R - 100027

ShineWing

Certified Public Accountants

9/F., Block A, Fu Hua Mansion,

8 Chaoyangmen Beidajie,

Dongcheng District,

Beijing 100027, PRC
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Jingtian Gongcheng Associates

15th Floor, The Union Plaza,

20 Chaoyangmenwai Dajie,

Beijing 100020, PRC
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The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Zibo Branch

2 Renmin Dong Road,

Zibo City, Shandong Province, PRC
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Hong Kong Registrars Limited
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East,

Hong Kong
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ENRBNERBERE

Summary of Financial and Operating Results

BEHhEEHENRHN -2

Key financial data for the year ended 31

NEEXTESHE December 2008 prepared in accordance with
€3 1)) PRC accounting standards (Audited)

HA ltems —EEN

2008

AR#T

RMB

=D Operating profit 36,392,359.60

T E 458 Profit before taxation 46,040,186.22

BN LA R BERAF

BER ETARBRENMER
FEFEMHBRRROFNE (H:E)

RETHELNRSREFHE

Profit attributable to the equity
shareholders of company

Profit attributable to the equity
shareholders of company
after extraordinary (Note)

Net cash flow from operating activities

33,965,477.41

43,449,423.86
103,479,359.78

Brat c SEEEEIERANMBRIRE REFWOT ¢

Note:  Extraordinary items include:

EH Items AR
RMB

FRBEEREER Profit or loss from disposal of non-current assets (5,688,285.33)

FFAEBESNBUTEE - Government subsidies recognise in current profit and loss,

EERFIEREEERFZ AR -
HAERBRRT  RE-ERETEX
EEREZZOBMABBRI

BREREESCEELAMEN
BRERREXEB)  BEXHULREE -
ReHUERABEENDABREEZHES -

UREEZXHUEREE RPUESHEEMN

A HESREERENRE K

BR bl 5 T 2 SN B B B MRS
HMA Rt AR E BN ERER
PBBRRESETER

FEBLER
att

(excluding those closely related to the Company’s

normal operations and granted on an ongoing basis

under the State’s policies according to certain

quota of amount or volume) 15,761,701.78
Gains/losses from fair value changes of trading

financial assets and trading financial liabilities, and

investment income from disposal of trading financial assets,

trading financial liabilities and available-for-sale

financial assets, except effective hedging activities

related to the Company’s normal operations (19,436,117.29)
Non-operating income or cost except items above (425,589.83)
Other extraordinary items 478,719.00
Minority interests (1,859,410.69)
Income tax 1,685,035.91
Total s9,483,946.452
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ENBENREBERE (@)

Summary of Financial and Operating Results (continued)

BEHhEEHENRHN -2 1.

Key financial data for the year ended 31

NEEXTESHE December 2008 prepared in accordance with
(BEwst) @ PRC accounting standards (Audited)
(continued)
BRAARBENENHTEAE Items by fair value
FHLR  HARRNRM
Hned MESDHEE OARESD FHNROEE BReH
Amount as at Total Amount as at
1 January Change of change of Provision 31 December
HE Items 2008 fair value fair value impairment 2008
(AR®T) (ARH%7) (AR®T) (ARH%T) (AR®T)
(RVB) (RUB) (RVB) (RUB) (RUB)
SREE: Financial assets:
Ed 1 NRAEESEE  Inlude: 1. Financial assets
EEHHAEH by fair value and its
ErheRiE change is included
into profit and loss 15,896,732.85  (15,896,732.85) - - -
B fitemEE Include: Derivative
financial
assets 15,896,732.85  (15,896,732.85) - — -
2 TELESRAE 2. Available-for-sale
financial assets 367,162,640.00 —  69,309,177.00 —  94,766,950.00
SREEN Total of financial assets 383,059,372.85  (15,896,732.85)  69,309,177.00 —  94,766,950.00
SRAE Financial liabilities —  (7,591,083.73) - —  7591,083.73
ait Total 383,059,372.85  (23,487,816.58)  69,309,177.00 — 102,358,033.73
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BB ERE (@)

Summary of Financial and Operating Results (continued)

2. HMERE 2.  Financial Summary
(i) REBLBRMN G RAE (i) In accordance with Hong Kong Generally Accepted
il (ke Eat) Accounting Principles (‘HKGAAP”) (Audited)
HeERa% Consolidated income statement
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
ARBFTL ARETTT ARETFTT ARETTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(Z3))*
(restated)*
e+ Turnover 2,077,753 1,865,568 1,685,367 1,712,102 1,524,409
BRRAER Profit before taxation 41,447 37,364 29,733 13,194 (52,352)
MERESL,/ (F%)  Income tax credit/(expense) (5,677) 400 (7,784) (13,696) (1,119)
RERER/ (B8) © Profit/(Loss) for the year: 35,770 37,764 21,949 (502) (53,471)
DERFEER Minority interests 5,706 5,946 (812) (1,731) (986)
RRFRREERERN  Profit attributable 30,064 31,818 22,761 1,229 (52,485)
to the equity holders
of the Company
HAEERRE Consolidated balance sheet
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
ARBFTL ARETTT ARETFT ARETTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(Z3))*
(restated)*
BEE Total assets 2,159,424 2,260,100 1,881,575 2,211,328 2,315,440
BEE Total liabilities (659,144) (526,061) (509,088) (841,191) (941,834)
LERERER Minority interests (33,746) (50,793) (3,343) (1,02) (4,284)
EEFHE Net assets 1,466,534 1,683,246 1,369,144 1,369,045 1,369,322
* BR2005F 12 4318 1% * Prior periods have been adjusted to reflect the change in
EACTEBRE 2588 accounting policy to the consolidated financial statements
FESRRPTI 2 SR 2 & prepared under HKGAAP for the year ended 31 December
B BEELATHEE - 2005.
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ENBENREBERE (@)

Summary of Financial and Operating Results (continued)

2. MBHE® 2.  Financial Summary (continued)
(i)  IRPEETERR S (EEFE) (i) In accordance with PRC accounting standards (Audited)
REL PR (%)
L 2008 2007 Change as 2006
Item AR®T ARET compared to the ARET
RMB RMB last year (%) RMB
RER BB BB RER BER
Before adjusted After adjusted After adjusted Before adjusted After adjusted
EEMA 2,096,963,709.91  1,886,978,951.19  1,886,978,951.19 1113 1,722,899,961.83  1,722,899,961.83
Operating income
MEZE 46,040,186.22 46,510,493.48 46,510,493.48 (1.01) 29,306,790.76 29,357,300.80
Profit before taxation
GEXEHAAREAENE  33,965,477.41 32,723,034.60 32,723,034.60 3.80 22,705,557.86 23,567,389.39

Profit attributable to the equity

shareholders of company
BER EARAREHNG

FHERERRRHEE 43,449,423.86 9,959,541.29 9,793,035.79 343.68 16,760,873.31 17,701,666.54
Profit attributable to the equity

shareholders of company

after extraordinary items

BEE 2,161,734,318.69  2,270,714,981.14  2,263,193,375.71 (4.48)  1,880,020,275.73  1,887,769,371.36
Total assets
SRR AR AREER 1,453,252,991.36  1,665,960,952.04  1,665,960,952.04 (12.77)  1,343,336,960.31  1,351,117,628.22

Total equity attributable to

holders of company
BEFHELORLNEEE  103,479,350.78 120,591,043.84  120,591,043.84 (14.19)  133,303,506.08 133,303,506.08
Net cash flow from

operating activities
SRELEDEENRLRETE 0.23 0.26 0.26 (11.54) 029 0.29
Net cash flow from operating

activities per share

B 0.07 0.07 0.07 - 0.05 0.05
Eaming per share
RERETRAARESRIEE 3.18 3.64 3.64 (12.64) 2.94 2.95

Net assets per

share attributable

to holders of company
FEENEE(%) 2.34 1.96 196 FFH03BEERE 1,69 174
Return on equity (%) Increase 0.38 points

©
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2. HMEE®E @ 2.

(i)

(iii)

BB ERE (@)

Summary of Financial and Operating Results (continued)

Financial Summary (continued)

R BRI R H (KEET) (ii) In accordance with PRC accounting standards
(&) (Audited) (continued)
71, BBE(ARBITELFNHA Note: 1. Comparative information of the extraordinary profit and
AEERERELELNES loss is retrospectively adjusted as required by new
15 —FERFHER provisions in “Explanatory Announcement on Information
(2008)) W) MEREH E - ¥ Disclosures of Public Companies No.1 — Extraordinary
FEBHEBRRENERER profit and Loss (2008)”.
RBHA T ERHEITE
2. BB EETERER 2. According to the requirements on presentation of income
2008) F FAFT15 5151 R &9 tax as set out in Basis for Conclusions of Accounting
HEEk [—RER Standards for Enterprises 2008, “Generally, current
T AR IS ®mER T income tax assets and liabilities, and deferred income
EHMGEHAENEER tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities can be
RIEFTIS & E RREFT stated in net terms after elimination in individual financial
BRAETANIKHEERD statements.” The parent company’s deferred income tax
FHSITR] o ARREHE assets and deferred income tax liabilities are stated in
RAWRLEMEHEEM net terms after elimination. For comparability on the
RIEFTSH A EAEER same basis, deferred income tax assets as at 31
BFEESITR o RIRFERO December 2007 have been restated, leading to a change
ERT L - ¥720074 12 in total assets as at 31 December 2007.
AS1RIEIEASHAE R
TEHEL - EMEET
2007 12AB31HEER
3. BEHREHEHEBLR 3. There has been no change in the share capital of the
NARAREEE L - Company from the end of the financial year 2008 to the
publication date of the results announcement of 2008.
g ER R GIM A B xR (i)  Appendix to the profit and loss account prepared in
iz (&) accordance with PRC accounting standards (Audited)
PEERRE (%) BRER (AR%T)
Return on equity (%) Earnings per share (RMB)
BERNE 2EHA mEFEY EFBREE pEshEa
Reported Profit Fully Weighted Basic earnings Diluted earnings
diluted average per share per share
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
SENLTARRRNFNE 234 1.96 2.03 2.40 0.07 0.07 0.07 0.07
Profit attributable to the equity
shareholders of company
BERETARRESN
BRIECTHBRENFR A 2.99 0.59 2.59 0.72 0.10 0.02 0.10 0.02

Profit attributable to the equity
shareholders of company
after extraordinary items

R ERE R 5 H PR 2 7 Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited




ENBENREBERE (@)

Summary of Financial and Operating Results (continued)

3. RBREMESHENMEFEE 3.

Reconciliation of accounts prepared in

ERMzERAEHERER accordance with PRC accounting standards
=8 and HKGAAP
ERERREMET
Profit attributable to equity BEE
holders of the Company Net assets
(AR#T) (AE#®T)
RMB RMB
3 LHK Haw B
As at As at
1 January 31 December
2008 2007 2008 2008
BENGEER 30,064,000.00 31,818,000.00  1,683,246,000.00  1,466,534,000.00
Prepared under HKGAAP
- ] 33,966,000.00 32,723,000.00  1,665,961,000.00  1,453,253,000.00
Prepared under PRC accounting standards
RER g EARENSBEREE
HKGAAP adjustments:
BERE 692,000.00 8,766,000.00 (3,036,000.00) (2,344,000.00)
Deferred taxation
AASEERMEECNEERR (409,000.00) (449,000.00) (19,459,000.00) (19,868,000.00)
Depreciation charges due to revaluation
in previous years
HEEED 786,000.00 950,000.00 13,407,000.00 14,193,000.00
Provision for education fund
BHEES (4,993,000.00) (10,304,000.00) 4,993,000.00 0.00
Provision for welfare expenses
RHR ESER 2 EMEE 0.00 0.00 21,300,000.00 21,300,000.00
Surplus from revaluation for listing of
H Shares
Hth 22,000.00 132,000.00 80,000.00 0.00
Others
RER LR (3,902,000.00) (905,000.00) 17,285,000.00 13,281,000.00

HKGAAP adjustments total

IR E R %R /2 B PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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ERAEEFENNEFRYE
EBRMzE s FAEHRE

=R ®)

Bfa : BRSNERTEAZRNBN

REFBRDBNHBREREERZ
B BT RABEME - B
B K& el v B AR A (E R
LR EAEIEBRTEE
BERARRELREIEGE - AR
ARBME - BFERERE
H — 98 7 (B RD- = 48Rt
TAERATIRAFMESH
fE - BEHEER/SARE
21,300,000 7T ° HREZE
ZR8 - EINEE20084F12
AR FENNERM
BARM19,868,0007T -
EPFAEERARS
409,0007T :

RREBGHENHERE
BEHY - mERTE KR
BEAG AR AR - &
Z2008F 12431 B A
KEHRBEAARE
14,193,0007T * M AR
786,0007T BAFEHE LKL
BILINEE

N E G ER BT
Bl IR TEBEN14%:t
RBIEN  mMBEBEE
AAIAEES S - ENEIT
XS ENE  ©TH
FHERIER - AHARE
4,993,000 B AR FEE
TR M AR N TR AR
% o HLE20084F 12 A 31
H WMECEESR-

R EER - HAREH
BIEFSRMERTEZR
REHBEEAERERAAR
#2,344,0007T + & HIEIE
FMEMEEAARE
692,0007T *

EHEMEREARY
22,000t X E AN HGE D
HRRAINERRITE Z5
% B ZE20084 1231
B E=EEHR -

3.

BB ERE (@)

Summary of Financial and Operating Results (continued)

Reconciliation of accounts prepared in
accordance with PRC accounting standards
and HKGAAP (continued)

Note:  Explanation on the difference between the PRC accounting standards
and HKGAAP:

1.

R ERE R 5 H PR 2 7 Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

To prepare for the listing of Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange, the Company’s property, plant and equipment
were valued by Shandong CPA Firm (LW &&= FT), a
registered PRC valuer, based on depreciated replacement
cost. Subsequently, such property, plant and equipment
were revalued by Chesterton Petty Ltd., an independent
valuer, as per the public market value, with the revaluation
appreciation of RMB21,300,000. Due to such difference, the
increase in depreciation expenses as at the year ended 31
December 2008 was RMB19,868,000, including
RMB409,000 as at the year;

Education fees are set out as per the actual circumstances,
without need of provision under HKGAAP and provisions
can be made under the PRC accounting standards. As at
31 December 2008, the balance of education fees was
RMB14,193,000 with the increase in education fees of
RMB786,000 for the year.

Before execution of the new PRC accounting standards,
provisions for employee welfare were made as per 14% of
total salaries and those were set out as per the actual
circumstances under HKGAAP. After execution of the new
PRC accounting standards, no provision for employee welfare
was made. RMB4,993,000 for the period was the outstanding
balance of the provision for previous years. As at 31
December 2008, the two items above made no difference.

Aforesaid difference also led to the difference in the
Company’s deferred income tax, with the difference in
accumulated deferred income tax of RMB2,344,000 and
that in deferred income tax of the current period of
RMB692,000;

Other current difference of RMB22,000 was mainly difference
from translation of foreign currency statements amortised to
minority shareholders. As at 31 December 2008, the
difference was eliminated.
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Changes In Share Capital and Shareholders

| 12

BirEHERE Share capital structure
BRin %R 2008E1A1H 2008%F12A31H
Class of shares 1 January 2008 31 December 2008
By E 13 1% 3:4] Bip®=E 1312 3:4]
Number of % of the total Number of % of the total
Shares share capital Shares share capital
(share) (%) (share) (%)
1. EREGHORBAE T 187,816,881 41.07 187,809,202 41.07
Total number of shares
subject to conditions of trading
B R FF IR 163,258,735 35.70 163,258,735 35.70
Stated-owned shares
BREAFR 0 0 0 0
Domestic legal person shares
AREREFET=E R 30,546 0.01 22,867 0.01
Senior management A shares
subject to conditions of trading
Hit 24,527,600 5.36 24,527,600 5.36
Others
2. ERERENTARS 269,495,949 58.93 269,503,628 58.93
Total number of unconditional
tradable shares
ARE LR (AR) 119,495,949 26.13 119,503,628 26.13
Renminbi ordinary shares
(A shares)
BN ETANE R (HAR) 150,000,000 32.80 150,000,000 32.80
Overseas listed foreign shares
(H shares)
3. BhaH 457,312,830 100.00 457,312,830 100.00
Total number of shares
Kzt - B E2008E12 A31 AFEEERE Note: As at 31 December 2008, a total of 26,200,000 shares held

7N A 7]26,200,000 % A% 17 1 2 #7R
OSBRI RRRERD AR
AR AR F1948,6890% X 15 7)
TERES -

by SXPGC in the Company have been mortgaged and a
total of 948,689 shares held by Zibo High-Tech Venture
Capital Company Limited in the Company have been frozen
by judicature.

IR E R %R /2 B PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited




RSB R IRRER (&)

Changes In Share Capital and Shareholders (continued)

1. KBRMEHERX & 1. Share capital structure (continued)
RERPEEMITAE Change of conditional tradable shares
By i’
Share
KERR XERM
Lt FORERY RERY BEkEE FRRERB RERE BRREAH
Number of
shares
subject to
Number of Increase conditions
shares subject Number of in shares of trading
to conditions  unconditional subject to as at
of trading as at tradable conditions 31 December Date of removing
Name of shareholders 1 January 2008 shares in 2008 of trading 2008 Conditions the conditions
WRHEEEEEERELANA 163,258,735 0 0 163,258,735 BRIRGE 20095067 06H
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Special undertaking 6 June 2009
Group Company Limited
EERARAERERLA 15,000,000 0 0 15,000,000  ETHEEELIAGE 200050658065
Qingdao Haowei Investment Compliance with the 6 June 2009
Development Company Limited special undertaking
of SXPGC
HEBMRTRERERAERAT 7,632,600 0 0 7632600  ETHEEELIAG 20005068065
Zibo High-Tech Venture Compliance with the 6 June 2009
Capital Company Limited special undertaking
of SXPGC
BEE/\RTREARELLA 1,550,000 0 0 1550000  ETHEZERGAG 2000406506
Huludao Bajiazi Mining Compliance with the 6 June 2009
Industry Company Limited special undertaking
of SXPGC
IETRAEZRERAR 345,000 0 0 345000  ETHEEEEIAG 20005068065
Shangrao Daiwu Industrial Compliance with the 6 June 2009
Company Limited special undertaking
of SXPGC
At 187,786,335 0 0  187,786335  — -
Total
it ELBIFRIEG - BTRERRE Note: SXPGC has undertaken that between the 36th month and 48th
Mm@ Bess@AN - T month since the listing of the non-tradable shares of the Company,
BEHFZHEHNEHE © 200946 A it shall not sell any of its shares of the Company on the SZSE at
6HE2010F6 761 « @iBFRIIFEH a price less than RMB4.8 per share, (such price will be on an ex-
RGPS E TR TR AR rights basis if there is any declaration of dividends, bonus issues or
BIRARH5% - IARFEEERBR capitalization of capital reserve during the period between the day
YEFZSFEER 5 HENERILE of implementation of the revised share reform of the Company and
Al HHEBRTMER4.8TT - ADFTE sale of the shares by SXPGC) being 150% of the average of the
BEARMIZEERE SR BAED closing prices of the listed A Shares as quoted on the SZSE in the
AT30E [FTEERIZE | ARR BT F AR thirty (30) trading days prior to the issuance date of the relevant
Er150% CEEREDBREFRE notice of the shareholders’ meeting. Should SXPGC breach any of
Mz BEEHERMBBERE - & the provisions of this undertaking in the sale of its shares, the
g BARARNEEERNERES proceeds resulting from such sale shall be owned by the Company.

B BHZERETHRERE) o 5
FERENRAEERZEEN TR
5 BHASHKERHEUENRE -

R ERE R 5 H PR 2 7 Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited 1 3 |




BRESERRRIFR (&)

Changes In Share Capital and Shareholders (continued)

2. BERWEAMNE 2. Substantial shareholders
(i) RZZFEZTNFE+ A (i) As at 31 December 2008, the Company had on record

=t+—8  KRARKRERAH A
46,4677 - BIEHMA ES57
F o AR 46,4107 °

a total of 46,467 shareholders, including 57 holders of H
Shares and 46,410 holders of A Shares.

(ii) RZZFEZTNFE+ A (ii) As at 31 December 2008, the ten largest shareholders
=t+—BRHEBEARARAKRY of the Company were as follows:
AT ZBREBERAT
P BRRER BiEE FRY B AELLE (%)
Number of % of the total
No Name of Shareholder Class of shares shares held share capital
1 LRAEEEEBAREALT BEAR 163,258,735 35.70
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical A Shares subject to
Group Company Limited conditions of trading
2 ERRALE (RBA)ERAF mEHR 148,729,998 32.52
HKSCC (Nominees) Limited Listed H Shares
3 BERARABRERLA BEAR 15,000,000 3.28
Qingdao Haowei Investment Development A Shares subject to
Company Limited conditions of trading
4 EERTRTERRERD BRAF BEAR 7,632,600 1.67
Zibo High-Tech Venture Capital A Shares subject to
Company Limited conditions of trading
5 PRE\RTREBREALT REAR 1,550,000 0.34
Huludao Bajiazi Mining Industry Company Limited A Shares subject to
conditions of trading
6 B TBAR 1,464,373 0.32
Wei Xiaohua Listed A Shares
7 BRER TBAR 636,301 0.14
Chen Zhengxu Listed A Shares
8 LRAREZRHNBRAR AR 500,000 0.1
Shandong Dacheng Pesticide Company Limited Listed A Shares
9 [ $:3 nBAR 496,800 0.11
Lou Qiankun Listed A Shares
10 Elup AR 458,900 0.10
Liu Shida Listed A Shares
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2.

BRRI\ERNEB (@

(i)

(%)

R-FTN\F+-F=+—A
HARR ARG A & MRS
EHREERMT -

BRRER

Name of Shareholder

2.

(i)

BRASE R RRER (&)

Changes In Share Capital and Shareholders (continued)

Substantial shareholders (continued)

(continued)

As at 31 December 2008, the ten largest shareholders
holding the unconditional tradable shares of the Company
were as follows:

BAEREGHERMBE B ER

Number of unconditional

listed shares Class of shares

EEPREH (REAN)ARAR

HKSCC (Nominees) Limited

B/

Wei Xiaohua

BRIESB

Chen Zhengxu
SRR B R B2 R B IR A A
Shandong Dacheng Pesticide Company Limited

ey

Lou Qiankun

£

Liu Shida

=

Yin Zhong

O

Xu Shaofei

gREE

Su Baiquan
Kay and Company Ltd

148,729,998 HA%
H Shares

1,464,373 AR%
A Shares

636,301 A%
A Shares

500,000 AR%
A Shares

496,800 AR%
A Shares

458,900 A%
A Shares

445,000 AR%
A Shares

423,551 AR%
A Shares

411,900 AR
A Shares

400,000 HA%
H Shares

iz

ARFEERM - B+ X
R ER 2 HR AT
BEREKPEEREEEE
ZRg ([TEEESR])RAMH
ZCETRRBRRFEREE)
ERBBEEEIE)REN
—BITBA - thRAINE R
Rz EREFERBRAERRK
(ETRARBRRIFREDE
SRBEEEMAREN—
HITBA -

ARFEERM EMBERE
PRARR 2~ iR E
ABER B AR R 2 B2
BREMBREE TR
BEECET R RBRRFFR
BEESREEEMER
EH—BITBA -

FHARRBRAD5%A LH
BARR R ER S
BEARAEMERT -

Note:

R ERE R 5 H PR 2 7 Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

The Directors are not aware as to whether there is any
association amongst the ten largest shareholders of the
Company, nor the persons acting in concert as defined in
the “Rules for the information Disclosure of Changes in the
Shareholding of Listed Companies” issued by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission (the “CSRC”). In addition,
the Directors do not know whether there is any association
amongst the shareholders of H Shares of the Company or
persons acting in concert as referred to above.

The Directors do not know whether there is any association
amongst the ten largest shareholders of unconditional
tradable shares of the Company, any association between
the ten largest shareholders of the Company and the ten
largest shareholders of the Company or the persons acting
in concert as defined in the Rules for the information
Disclosure of Changes in the Shareholding of Listed
Companies.

The only domestic shareholder with more than 5% of the

total issued shares of the Company is Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited (SXPGC).
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Changes In Share Capital and Shareholders (continued)

2. BEWBHRNB @

(iii)

| 16

ZRAR B

ARRERBRABILRAER
BEBBERAETAR ([HEE
E]) - FEKERIN NN
EFANATER  REHBE
NAEEMERABARE
29,8508 7T  AANRKRE
. HELEER  RENE
LTER - FHEME &
R BREE L THEME
B fRes  BERWBUE
& ETEM GrEEEkam)
HE  KMEELNEB(BE
FHEALE)

MEEENIERBERAERSE
AR AT ([FEEER]) - KR
7220051 H28H & =&
RNARMSEL  AREBE
RNAE EARKRBEZRE - &
EHEEA  HEE - ALEZE
8 HM3ERR (i) 2
IEHEITEMERELE  BEE
I e

2. Substantial shareholders (continued)

(iii)

Information about the controlling shareholders

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group Company
Limited (the “SXPGC”), being the controlling shareholder
of the Company, was established as a wholly state-
owned company on 15 June 1995. The registered capital
of SXPGC is RMB298,500,000 and its legal representative
is Ms Guo Qin. SXPGC is mainly engaged in the
engineering design, real estate and restaurants;
packaging, manufacturing of chemical equipment;
production and sale of chemical engineering apparatus
and instrument; sales of chemical product (except for
hazardous chemicals) and import and export business
(within the scope approved).

Hualu Holdings Company Limited (“HHC”), a wholly state-
owned company, the controlling shareholder of SXPGC,
was established on 28 January 2005. The registered
capital of HHC is RMB800,000,000 and its legal
representative is Mr. Li Tongdao. HHC is mainly engaged
in the investment of fertilisers, petrochemical industries
and investment in sectors which are not prohibited by the
state (or the local community). HHC is also engaged in
asset management.

LWRERFEEEEERRER
Shandong Provincial State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission

| 100%

ERER
HHC

| 100%

MEEE
SXPGC

| 35.70%

ENN|
The Company
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers

Directors

Ms. Guo Qin, aged 50, is a senior engineer and practising pharmacist,
she graduated from Shandong Medical University, specialising in
pharmacy. Ms. Guo joined the Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Factory
(the “Factory”) in 1982, and previously held the positions of the deputy
director of the preparation workshop and the preparation sales
department, the deputy director and the director of the quality control
department, as well as the deputy director and the director of the
Inspection Center for the Quality of Drugs, a subsidiary of Shandong
Pharmaceutical Administration. She was also the director of the
enterprise management department, the assistant to the general
manager, the deputy general manager of the Company and the general
manager of the Company. Ms. Guo is currently a member of the Standing
Committee of Zibo People’s Congress. Ms. Guo is the Chairman of the
Company, the deputy general manager of Hualu Holdings Company
Limited, the Chairman of Zibo Xinhua-Eastwest Pharmaceutical
Company Limited, the Chairman of Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo Pharmaceutical
Company Limited and the Chairman of Xinhua Pharmaceutical
(Shouguang) Company Limited.

Mr. Liu Zhenwen, aged 56, is a senior economist, he graduated from
Shangdong University of Technology, specialising in management. He
joined the Factory in 1966 and was transferred to Shandong Jining
Antibiotics Factory in 1968 where he has served as the group leader,
the workshop section head, the deputy head and the head of the
workshop and the head of the Department of Production and Technology.
He has also served as the manager, deputy general manager, director,
vice-chairman, deputy secretary to the Company’s Communist Party
Committee and general manager of the Production and Planning
Department of Shandong Lukang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. He is currently
the deputy secretary to the Company’s Communist Party Committee
and the director and the general manager of SXPGC. Mr. Liu is the
director of the Company, the chairman of Shandong Xinhua Industry
& Trade Company Limited and the Chairman of Shandong Zibo XinCat
Pharmaceutical Company Limited.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (continued)

Directors (continued)

Mr. Ren Fulong, aged 46, is a senior engineer and practising pharmacist.
He graduated from Shandong Changwei Medicine College in 1985.
From 1985 to 1988, Mr. Ren was a resident physician. In 1991, Mr. Ren
obtained his master of medicine from Beijing Medical University and
joined the Factory in the same year. He previously held the positions
of the deputy director and the director of the Company’s research
institute, the assistant to the general manager and the deputy general
manager of the Company, the deputy general manager of SXPGC. Mr.
Ren is the director and the general manager of the Company, the
Chairman of Shandong Xinhua Medical Trade Company Limited, the
Chairman of Zibo Xinhua Drug Store Chain Company Limited, the
director and general manager of Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Shouguang)
Company Limited, the director of Zibo XinCat Pharmaceutical Company
Limited and the director of Shandong Xinhua Longxin Chemical &
Industrial Company Limited.

Mr. Zhao Songguo, aged 45, is a senior accountant. He graduated from
Shandong Television and Broadcasting University, specialising in
enterprise management, in 1986. He also completed a refresher course
in Qingdao Ocean University in 2004. Mr. Zhao joined the Factory in
1980 and previously held the positions of the head and the director of
the finance department and the assistant to the general manager of the
Company. Mr. Zhao is the director, and the deputy general manager and
the financial controller of the Company, the director of Zibo Xinhua-
Eastwest Pharmaceutical Company Limited, the director of Shandong
Xinhua Pharmaceutical Export & Import Company Limited, the director
of Shandong Xinhua Medical Trade Company Limited, the director of
Zibo Xinhua Drug Store Chain Company Limited, the director of
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Europe) GmbH, the director of
Shandong Xinhua Longxin Chemical & Industrial Company Limited, the
director of Shandong Xinhua Changxing Chemical Equipment Company
Limited and the director of Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Shouguang)
Company Limited.

IR E R %R /2 B PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (continued)

Directors (continued)

Mr. Li Tianzhong, aged 46, is a senior engineer. He graduated from
Shandong Institute of Technology, specialising in industry automation
and joined the Factory in 1983. Mr. Li previously held the positions of
engineer and director of the electricity workshop, manager of the trade
department, supply and marketing department and drug department of
the Company, assistant to the general manager, director and deputy
general manager of Xinhua Lukang Pharmaceutical Group Corporation,
director and deputy general manager of SXPGC. Mr. Li is currently a
director of the Company, a director and the chairman of the labour union
of SXPGC and the chairman of the labour union of the Company.

Mr. Zhu Baoquan, aged 62, is a researcher and a tutor of the students
in a doctorate class. He was the vice president of Shanghai
Pharmaceutical Industry Research Institute from September 1993 to
January 2002, and he was the president of Shanghai Pharmaceutical
Industry Research Institute from February 2002 to June 2008. Since
July 2008, Mr. Zhu has been an adviser and the Academic Committee
Dean of Shanghai Pharmaceutical Industry Research Institute, the
President of Shanghai Jiao Tong University Pharmacy College and an
independent director of Zhejiang Pharmaceutical Company Limited. Mr.
Zhu is currently an independent non-executive director of the Company.

Mr. Xu Guojun, aged 46, has a doctorate degree in accounting from
Renmin University in the PRC. He is a professor, non-practising Chinese
certified public accountant, tutor of the students in a doctorate class
and an assistant to the president and the deputy chief accountant of
Ocean University of China. Mr. Xu is also a council member of the China
Accounting Association, the vice chairman of Qingdao Social Academy,
and a member of Qingdao Economic Development Committee. With
many years' experience in teaching accounting and financial
management courses, engaging in scientific research and practical
research as well as publishing many written works in accounting and
financial management theories, he has been given the award of the
leader of Qingdao Youth Science and Engineering and has been named
as the Excellent Teacher in Shandong Province and one of Ten Excellent
Teachers of Provincial Colleges and has been granted the State
Department special government allowances. Mr. Xu is currently an
independent non-executive director of the Company, an independent
director of Shandong Xinhua Medical Instrument Company Limited, an
independent director of Qingdao Yellow Sea Rubber Company Limited
and an independent director of Qingdao Haier Company Limited.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (continued)

Directors (continued)

Mr. Sun Minggao, aged 44, has a doctorate degree in management from
Tianjin University and he is a tutor of the students in a doctorate class
and a senior economist. Mr. Sun founded Shenzhen Tactician Investment
(Group) Co., Ltd. in 2001, where he is the chairman and president. He
is also a researcher of Public Economics Academy of Peking University,
deputy director of Southern Institute of Economic Research, honourable
chairman of Neimenggu Baotou Youth Federation, financial adviser of
Shiyan Municipal People's Government of Hubei Province, senior
economics consultant of the People's Government of Linyi County of
Shandong Province, deputy director of the Pearl River Delta Service
Center of China Association of Small and Medium Enterprises, standing
member of Shenzhen Venture Capital Association, vice chairman of
Shandong Production Committee, and vice chairman of Shandong
Logistics & Procurement Committee. Mr. Sun is currently an independent
non-executive director of the Company.

Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor, aged 41, is a financial controller of Anwell
Technologies Limited, a company whose shares are listed on Singapore
Exchange Limited. Mr. Kwong has more than 16 years' experience
covering auditing, accounting and financial management in commercial,
manufacturing and public accounting sectors. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Get Nice Holdings Limited, a company whose
shares are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. He is a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
(United Kingdom) and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He has a bachelor's degree in commerce
from Curtin University of Technology, Australia. Mr. Kwong is currently
an independent non-executive director of the Company.

Mr. Dai Qingjun, aged 66, graduated from Tsinghua University
specialising in macromolecule chemistry and joined the Factory in
1967. Mr. Dai previously held the positions of technician, the vice
engineer-general and the deputy general manager of the Factory. Mr.
Dai was the former general manager of Shandong Provincial
Pharmaceutical Company, the director-general of Shandong
Pharmaceutical Administration, the director of the science and education
department and the vice director general of the State Pharmaceutical
Administration of China and the vice director general of the State Drug
Administration of the PRC. Mr. Dai retired on 22 December 2008 because
the term had expired.

IR E R %R /2 B PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (continued)

Directors (continued)

Mr. Mok Chung Kwan, Stephen, aged 44, is a partner of a law firm in
Hong Kong, Huen Wong & Co in association with Fried Frank Harris
Shriver & Jacobson LLP. Mr. Mok was admitted as a solicitor of the
Supreme Court of New South Wales, Australia in 1989, and of England
and Wales and Hong Kong in 1992. Mr. Mok resigned as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect from 16 April 2008
due to personal reasons.

Supervisors

Mr. Yu Gongfu, aged 58, is a senior engineer. He graduated from
Shandong Engineering College in 1974, specialising in industrial
automation. He joined the Factory in 1968. Mr. Yu had previously held
the positions of vice-chairman of the labour union and deputy manager
of the Factory, deputy general manager of the Company and was also
a director of the Company. He was also a director, deputy general
manager, deputy secretary to the Communist Party Committee and the
secretary to the Disciplinary Committee of the Communist Party of
SXPGC. Mr. Yu is the chairman of the Supervisory Committee of the
Company.

Mr. Gao Qinggang, aged 59, senior accountant, graduated from
Shandong Television and Broadcasting University, specialising in finance
and accounting. Mr. Gao joined the Factory in 1978 and was previously
deputy director and director of the finance department of the Factory,
as well as the chief of the Shareholding System Reform Office, and
director, deputy general manager and financial controller of the Company.
Mr. Gao is a director, the deputy general manager and the financial
controller of SXPGC. Mr. Gao is currently a supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Liu Qiang, aged 54, has been employed to work in the Factory since
1970. He has filled the positions of secretary of the Party branch of the
Production Workshop, secretary of the principal branch of the Party of
the Factory Branch and supervisor to the Party Committee Office. Mr.
Liu was appointed as an employee supervisor of the Company by the
employee’s representatives meeting held on 2 February 2007.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (continued)

Supervisors (continued)

Mr. Zhang Yueshun, aged 59, senior accountant, certified public
accountant and certified public assessor of the PRC. Mr. Zhang was the
controller of an enterprise, the deputy chief of Zibo Office affiliated to
the Enterprise Department of the Ministry of Finance of the PRC, the
vice director of the Zibo Municipal State-owned Assets Administration
and the chief accountant of Shandong Zibo Accountant Firm. Mr. Zhang
was appointed as an independent supervisor in 2002. Mr. Zhang is
currently a senior consultant of Zibo Puhua Accountant Firm and an
independent supervisor of the Company.

Mr. Tao Zhichao, aged 39, graduated from East China University of
Politics and Laws and obtained a bachelor’s degree in law. Mr. Tao was
also awarded a master’s degree in law from Shandong University. Mr.
Tao was appointed as an independent supervisor of the Company in
2002. Mr. Tao is a partner of Shandong Zhigong Associates, the legal
consultant for the People’s Government of Zibo, Shandong and an
independent supervisor of the Company.

Senior Officers

Mr. Zhang Daiming, aged 46, is a senior economist. He graduated from
Qingdao Science and Technology University, specialising in organic
chemical engineering and obtained a master’s degree in economics
from Shanghai Financial and Economic University. Mr. Zhang joined the
Factory in 1987 and was previously the deputy manager and manager
of international trade department of the Company. Mr. Zhang is a deputy
general manager of the Company, the chairman of Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical (Europe) GmbH, the chairman of Shandong Xinhua
Import and Export Company Limited, a director of Shandong Xinhua
Medical Trade Company Limited, a director of Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo
Pharmaceutical Company Limited and a director of Zibo Xinhua Eastwest
Pharmaceutical Company Limited.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (continued)

Directors (continued)

Mr. Dou Xuejie, aged 49, is a senior engineer. He graduated from
Shandong Medicine College, specialising in pharmacy and obtained a
master's degree in medicinal chemistry from Shandong University. He
joined the Factory in 1982. He was previously deputy director and the
director of the quality control department, the deputy chief engineer and
quality director of the Company. Mr. Dou is currently deputy general
manager of the Company.

Mr. Du Degqing, aged 44, is a senior engineer. He graduated from
Qingdao Science and Technology University, specialising in organic
chemical engineering and obtained a master's degree in business
administration from Wuhan University of Technology and obtained a
master's degree in chemical engineering from Qingdao Science and
Technology University. He joined the Factory in 1986. He was previously
deputy director and director of the dispatch department, the director of
the purchasing department and assistant to the general manager of the
Company. Mr. Du is currently deputy general manager of the Company.

Mr. Du Deping, aged 39, is a senior engineer. He graduated from the
Ocean University of China, specialising in chemistry and obtained a
master's degree in medicinal chemistry from Shandong University. He
joined the Factory in 1991. He was previously deputy head and head
of the workshop, and assistant to the general manager of the Company.
Mr. Du is currently deputy general manager of the Company.

Mr. Cao Changgiu, aged 39, is a senior economist. He graduated from
Ocean University of China, specialising in economic management and
joined the Factory in 1991. Mr. Cao is one of the company secretaries
for the Company.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)
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Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers (continued)

Senior Officers (continued)

Ms. Guo Lei, aged 40, is an economist. She graduated from Guangzhou
Foreign Trade College, specialising in accounting and obtained a master's
degree in economics from Beijing University. She joined the Factory in
1992. Ms. Guo is one of the company secretaries for the Company.

Mr. Fu Henggian, aged 59, is a senior economist. He joined the Factory
in 1970. Mr. Fu previously held the position of workshop engineer,
director of the workshop, director of the dispatch department and
director of the planning and statistics department of the Factory, director
of the planning department of SXPGC, director of the planning
department, assistant to the general manager and deputy general
manager of Xinhua Lukang Pharmaceutical Group Corporation. Mr. Fu
retired as deputy general manager of the Company with effect from 22
December 2008 because the term had expired.

Mr. Gao Xiangyou, aged 40, is a senior engineer. He graduated from
Tianjin University, specialising in organic chemistry and joined the
Factory in 1990. Mr. Gao had previously held the position of deputy
director of the workshop and director of the workshop and was the
general manager of Xinhua-Perrigo Pharmaceutical Company Limited
and was the assistant to the general manager of the Company and the
deputy general manager of the Company. As a result of job allocation,
Mr. Gao resigned as deputy general manager of the Company with
effect from 19 May 2008.

The Director, Supervisors and Senior Officers of the Company were
appointed for a term of 3 years commencing from 22 December 2008.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)

EFX EFREAMERETEAR

Directors’ and Supervisors’ and Senior Officers’

HEFLTRMER Interests in Shares of the Company
#2008%12A31H #20085%F1A1H
As at As at
31 December 2008 1 January 2008
£ B %5 3 | [::3 .4
Name Duty Number of shares Number of shares
EE
Directors
B = Bk 12,639 12,639
Ms. Guo Qin Chairman
2R EMTES A A
Mr. Liu Zhenwen Non-executive director Nil Nil
(EXEYH WITES - K8 ] AEFE
Mr. Ren Fulong Executive director, General manager Nil Nil
=k /NE WITEF  BIRLE  UBEEA A A
Mr. Zhao Songguo Executive director, Nil Nil
deputy general manager,
financial controller
FRE FEHITEE (R2008F6 26 A EZE ) AEFE ]
Mr. Li Tianzhong Non-executive director Nil Nil
(appointed on 26 June 2008)
KRER B IEHITE S (2008F 12 A22H Z 1) A A
Mr. Zhu Baoquan Independent Non-executive director Nil Nil
(appointed on 22 December 2008)
REZE B FRITES AEFE ]
Mr. Xu Guojun Independent Non-executive director Nil Nil
%A= BIAFHTES A A
Mr. Sun Minggao Independent Non-executive director Nil Nil
BE B IEMITEF (20085F 12 H22B £ 1) A A
Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor Independent Non-executive director Nil Nil
(appointed on 22 December 2008)
BB B IEHITE = (20085F 12 A 22 B BEE) AEFE AEFE
Mr. Dai Qingjun Independent Non-executive director Nil Nil
(retired on 22 December 2008)
Eihz B IEMITE F (200854 A 16 H & (E) A A
Mr. Mok Chung Kwan, Stephen Independent Non-executive director Nil Nil
(resigned on 16 April 2008)
E=x
Supervisors
ToE BEFEEIR 6,075 6,075
Mr. Yu Gongfu Chairman of the Supervisory Committee
= B = 4,370 4,370
Mr. Gao Qinggang Supervisor
2 = EE 4,370 4,370
Mr. Liu Qiang Supervisor
3= A A BUEF ] o]
Mr. Zhang Yueshun Independent supervisor Nil Nil
izl B S A A
Mr. Tao Zhichao Independent supervisor Nil Nil

R ERE R 5 H PR 2 7 Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)

EF EFREMEREEAR Directors’ and Supervisors’ and Senior Officers’

BEXLFERGBIER @ Interests in Shares of the Company (continued)
#2008%12A31H #2008E1A1H
As at As at
31 December 2008 1 January 2008
] L E B8 B8
Name Duty Number of shares Number of shares
HttSREEAR
Senior Officers
R ElEE R AFFHE A
Mr. Zhang Daiming Deputy general manager Nil Nil
(EAEE B4R T2 (2008F12 H22H BE (E) AFFE A
Mr. Fu Henggian Deputy general manager Nil Nil
(retired on 22 December 2008)
B B4/ 1% (200845 5 19 H B¥(E) N REFH
Mr. Gao Xiangyou Deputy general manager Nil Nil
(resigned on 19 May 2008)
R B4 532 (20085 12 S22 H G {E) KA ABE
Mr. Dou Xuejie Deputy general manager Nil Nil
(appointed on 22 December 2008)
H1EE B 424418 (20084F 12 A 22 H B T) N REFH
Mr. Du Deqing Deputy general manager Nil Nil
(appointed on 22 December 2008)
¥ Bl4AEIE (200812 H22H B2 (E) A¥FHE A
Mr. Du Deping Deputy general manager Nil Nil
(appointed on 22 December 2008)
BRXK EEgMNE 2,278 3,038
Mr. Cao Changqiu Company secretary
B = EFenmE AFFHE ABE
Ms. Guo Lei Company secretary Nil Nil
CEl 29,732 30,492
Total

RATEE  BEERaREEAEBMBER All shares held by the Director, Supervisors and Senior Officers are A
NAIRGD I RAR - shares.

KOS EFRAR - REBEEBEETE  Rfm The changes in the number of shares held by the Directors, Supervisors

HEW e and Senior Officers were due to the shares sold on the secondary
market according to relevant provisions.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)
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Directors’ and Supervisors’ and Senior Officers’
Interests in Shares of the Company (continued)

Save as disclosed above, so far as the Directors, the Senior Officers and
the Supervisors of the Company are aware, as at 31 December 2008, none
of the Directors, the Senior Officers or the Supervisors of the Company
had any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares and/
or debentures (as the case may be) of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (as defined in Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) which was required notification to the Company and The SEHK
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interest
and short position which any such Director, Senior Officer or Supervisor
is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) of which
was required to be entered in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which was otherwise
required notification to the Company and SEHK pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained
in Appendix 10 to the Rules Governing The Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).

Remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Officers

The remuneration policy of the Directors, the Supervisors and the
Senior Officers are based on State policies, the Company’s profit realised
in the corresponding period, individual achievement and the average
income of local residents determined in accordance with State policies.
During the year, the remuneration and examination committee of the
Company has passed The Proposal of 2008 Annual Remuneration of
Directors and Supervisors and The Proposal of 2008 Annual
Remuneration of Senior Officers, and submitted the above proposals
to the Board of Directors for approval. The Directors’ and the Supervisors’
remuneration must be approved in a shareholders’ meeting of the
Company, whereas the remuneration of the Senior Officers must be
approved by the Board of Directors.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)

EF EENHASREEREAR Remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and Senior

M 2 Officers (continued)
EF EFREMSHRETEARHS Remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors and Senior Officers
2008 E
2008
AR%ET
RMBO0’000
Y Directors
= Ms. Guo Qin 49.76
2R Mr. Liu Zhenwen 18.58
Tiase Mr. Ren Fulong 48.09
iz EyNEl Mr. Zhao Songguo 38.04
FRAE Mr. Li Tianzhong 23.58
BER Mr. Dai Qingjun 6.00
Bz Mr. Mok Chung Kwan, Stephen 1.75
REZE Mr. Xu Guojun 6.00
HHE Mr. Sun Minggao 6.00
KER Mr. Zhu Baoquan —
BB A Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor —
EE Supervisors
TR Mr. Yu Gongfu 28.78
= B A Mr. Gao Qinggang 14.58
2 =8 Mr. Liu Qiang 8.18
a& A I Mr. Zhang Yueshun 2.40
ba A Mr. Tao Zhichao 2.40
HttSHREEAR Senior Officers
R Mr. Zhang Daiming 37.04
[FEEES Mr. Fu Henggian 32.94
=R Mr. Gao Xiangyou 10.02
EEs Mr. Dou Xueiie —
HiEE Mr. Du Deging —
HiEF Mr. Du Deping —
BRK Mr. Cao Changgiu 8.99
5 = Ms. Guo Lei 8.98
T N\FEEF EEVaREEAEN The aggregate remuneration of the Directors and the Supervisors for the
FEHRMBEAARKEI2AETT financial year ended 31 December 2008 was approximately RMB3,521,100.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)
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Change of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Officers

Mr. Mok Chung Kwan, Stephen resigned as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 16 April 2008 due
to the fact that the internal policy of his law firm does not allow a partner
to be a director of a listed company.

Mr. Gao Xiangyou resigned as a deputy general manager of the Company
with effect from 19 May 2008 due to change of job.

Mr. Li Tianzhong was appointed as a non-executive director of the
Company in the annual general meeting held on 26 June 2008.

The terms of the fifth Board of the Company and the fifth Supervisory
Committee of the Company expired on 22 December 2008. At the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company was held on 22 December
2008, Ms. Guo Qin, Mr. Ren Fulong and Mr. Zhao Songguo were elected
as executive directors of the sixth Board, Mr. Liu Zhenwen and Mr. Li
Tianzhong were elected as non-executive directors of the sixth Board,
Mr. Zhu Baoquan, Mr. Xu Guojun, Mr. Sun Minggao and Mr. Kwong Chi
Kit, Victor were elected as independent non-executive directors of the
sixth Board by cumulative voting, Mr. Yu Gongfu, Mr. Gao Qinggang, Mr.
Zhang Yueshun and Mr. Tao Zhichao were elected as Supervisors of
the sixth Supervisory Committee. Mr. Zhang Yueshun and Mr. Tao
Zhichao are independent Supervisors.

Mr. Liu Qiang was appointed as employee Supervisor of the Company
by the employee's representatives meeting held on 2 February 2007.
Pursuant to the Article 113 of the Articles of Association, an employee
Supervisor need not be elected by the Shareholders. He will automatically
be appointed as Supervisor of the sixth Supervisory Committee of the
Company.

Ms. Guo Qin was elected as the chairman of the Company in the first
meeting of the sixth Board of Directors held on 22 December 2008. At
the same time, Mr. Ren Fulong was appointed as the general manager
of the Company, Mr. Zhao Songguo was appointed as the deputy
general manager and financial controller of the Company, Mr. Zhang
Daiming, Mr. Dou Xuejie, Mr. Du Deqing and Mr. Du Deping were
appointed as the deputy general manager of the Company, Mr. Cao
Changgqiu and Ms. Guo Lei were appointed as the company secretaries.

Due to his age, Mr. Fu Henggian has not been appointed as the deputy
general manager of the Company.

Mr. Yu Gongfu was elected as the Chairman of the Supervisory

Committee in the first meeting of the sixth Supervisory Committee held
on 22 December 2008.
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Directors, Supervisors, Senior Officers and Staff (continued)

BRIREHS Staff and Remuneration
AEEFZEERBERREE - 2 BEREB The Group’s staff remuneration was determined in accordance with
o WBRERERMKT - HEETHM - State policies, the Company’s profit in the corresponding period and the

average income of local residents.

HE-_ZZNF+-_A=1+—HILEALEE As at 31 December 2008, the number of staff employed by the Group
T7R4,992N  ZFEEEFEETITEEE was 4,992, and the total amount of their salaries and wages for the year

B AREE125,320F T ° 2008 was approximately RMB125,320,000.
REBETRBERAEEEESNAT : The Group’s staff can be categorised by their area of work and
educational level as follows:
ETIMee ETA®
Area of Work Number of
Employees
EEANE Staff in production 3,935
ITRERMAE Staff in engineering and technology 134
THERAE Staff in administration 143
MBAE Staff in finance 83
EmRAEAR Staff in research and development 131
HREBAB Staff in procurement of raw materials 25
HEAER Staff in sales 241
EELEEBRAAE Staff in quality control and inspection 300
A& Total 4,992
EI#HFEE EITA®
Academic Qualification Attained Number of
Employees
REREEFE University or above 582
RHELZF Tertiary Institutions 902
FEER Intermediate Institutions 1,005
=R EREE Senior high schools and technical schools 1,758
R R AT 2 Junior high schools or below 745
EEn Total 4,992

HEZZZNFTZA=+—HILEAEEREE As at 31 December 2008, the number of retired staff of the Group was
REE T A #72,333A © 2,333.
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Corporate Governance Report

(—) RETEEEEEREESR 1. Information disclosed under the requirement

# of CSRC
REEEE Self-examination for Standardisation
HERPREAE LT ATAEAMRE T The corporate governance practice implemented by the Company
X RRREARAFERHEK - has complied with the rules and requirements of corporate
governance required to be observed by listed companies in the
PRC.
BUERATEERITREGENR How independent non-executive directors performed their
duties
ERFERN ARREFEHEHBX During the year, the Board convened eight Board meetings. The
BF  BBUFNTEFHREEZRE independent non-executive directors’ attendance at the eight
WA meetings are set out below:
RAMHE/
Em&3R
Personally
BAERT E&mRE attended/ iR
EERS The number of written  Commissioned RE il i
Name participants resolution to attend Absent Remarks
RER 1 1 0 0
Mr. Zhu Baoquan
BR 54 1 1 0 0
Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor
BBk 7 7 0 0
Mr. Dai Qingjun
Rip2E 1 1 0 0
Mr. Mok Chung Kwan, Stephen
rEAE 8 8 0 0
Mr. Xu Guojun
BHAR 8 7 1 0

Mr. Sun Minggao
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

(—) RETEEESEREESR 1. Information disclosed under the requirement

o @ of CSRC (continued)
BAFPTEERITHESA (&) How independent non-executive directors performed their
duties (continued)

EAFERN  AATIEZSEEZEE During the year, the Audit Committee convened three meetings.

eHERINGE  SBUIIFRITES The independent non-executive directors’ attendance at the three

EREGEHRBERLET meetings are set out below:

BUERT EE2mR# HEHE ZiEHE

EEn4 The number of  Personally Commissioned BE R

Name participants attended to attend Absent Remarks

HER® 3 3 0 0

Mr. Dai Qingjun

giibl 0 0 0 0 ARARBRAREEE-REE
ZEER  RIFRN2008F
4R16REHT -

Mr. Mok Chung Kwan, Stephen Resigned on 16 April, 2008,

before the first Audit
Committee of 2008 convened.

HREE 3 3 0 0
Mr. Xu Guojun
%R 3 2 1 0

Mr. Sun Minggao

EAFERN  AABEFEHHMEE During the year, the Remuneration and Examination Committee
ZZEg BRI - BEHDHR of the Company convened one meeting. Mr. Dai Qingjun, Mr. Xu
EREZEGKRENEER  REE Guojun and Mr. Sun Minggao all attended the meeting.
FHSHLEFEEE -

ERFERN ARREFGREZEE During the year, the Nomination Committee of the Company
SHAM2REE  EEREZESNK convened two meetings. Mr. Dai Qingjun, Mr. Xu Guojun and Mr.
EMEEE  REE  FHARHEHERE Sun Minggao all attended the two meetings.

g e

EARFENRN @ BUIERTESHRY During the year, the independent non-executive directors did not
NEBAERRLEE - have any disputes on the matters raised by the Company.
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Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Information disclosed under the requirement
of CSRC (continued)

Auditing of the 2008 annual report by the Audit
Committee

(1

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors issued a
written opinion in respect of the financial and accounting
statements issued by the financial department of the
Company in 2008:

The financial and accounting statement of the Company
was prepared with reference to the accounting policy of
the Company. The application of the accounting policy is
appropriate and the accounting estimates are reasonable
and in compliance with the new accounting standards for
business enterprises, the Accounting Regulations for
Business Enterprises as well as the regulations
promulgated by the Ministry of Finance. Each financial
statement consolidated in the financial statements of the
Company is complete in contents and the basis of
consolidation of the statements is accurate. The
Company’s financial statements are objective, truthful
and accurate, without any material misrepresentations or
omissions.

The Audit Committee considered that the financial

statements can be submitted to the certified accountants
engaged in annual auditing for auditing.
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Information disclosed under the requirement
of CSRC (continued)

Auditing of the 2008 annual report by the Audit
Committee (continued)

()

The Audit Committee reviewed the financial and
accounting statements for year 2008 of the Company
again after the issue of a preliminary audit opinion by
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited in respect of the financial
statements for year 2008 of the Company, and expressed
opinions as follows:

The Company was in compliance with the new accounting
standards for business enterprises and regulations in
relation to the financial system of the Company. The
preparation process of the financial statements was
reasonable and standardised and fairly reflected the
assets, liabilities, shareholders’ equity and operating
results as at 31 December 2008. The content is truthful,
accurate and complete.

The Audit Committee considered that the financial
statements for the year 2008 of the Company which was
preliminarily audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
can be submitted for consideration and approval by the
board of directors.
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Information disclosed under the requirement
of CSRC (continued)

Auditing of the 2008 annual report by the Audit
Committee (continued)

©)

4)

Conclusive report of SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited in
respect of the auditing of the financial report of the
Company for 2008

On 9 February 2009, the Audit Committee of the Board
of Directors approved the overall auditing plan for the
financial report of 2008 of the company as negotiated
and confirmed by the Company together with SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited was of the opinion that
the Company issued a standard auditing report without
any reserved opinions or conclusions. The Company
considered that SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited had
audited in accordance with the regulations under
“Independent auditing code of certified accountants of
the PRC (FEIFM &tRIEZHZLEA]) . There was
ample time for auditing and reasonable allocation of
auditing staff who had attained the corresponding
qualification. The audited financial statements fully
reflected the financial condition of the Company as at 31
December 2008 and the operating results and cash flow
in 2008. The conclusion upon auditing was in line with
the actual circumstances of the Company.

In 19 March 2009, the Audit Committee of the board of
directors convened a meeting to review the audited
accounts and results announcement of 2008 and
recommended to appoint the financial auditing institution
for year 2009 with a term of one year.
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Information disclosed under the requirement
of CSRC (continued)

Status of Independence

The Company is independent of its controlling shareholder in
respect of its business, assets, management, institutions and
finance. The Company’s production and operation are also
independent.

(i) The Company is mainly engaged in the business
of development, manufacture and sale of bulk
pharmaceuticals, preparations and chemical products.
SXPGC undertook that for so long as SXPGC is regarded
as a controlling shareholder of the Company, it will not
engage in any business directly or indirectly in competition
with the business of the Company.

(ii) The Company has its own independent production and
supplementary production system and facilities. Apart
from certain patent technologies and the trademark
“Xinhua”, which are owned by the controlling shareholder,
the Company owns all of the other intangible assets such
as industrial property rights and know-how technologies
used by the Company. The Company also has an
independent procurement and sales network.

(iii) The Company is independent of its controlling shareholder
in respect of the management of its workforce and their
salaries. The Senior Officers of the Company including
the general manager and the deputy general managers
are paid by the Company. Except for the general manager
being a director of SXPGC, deputy general managers do
not hold any position in the controlling shareholder of the
Company.

(iv) The Company holds its own shareholders’ general
meetings, and has its own board of directors, supervisory
committee, company secretaries and management, which
are responsible for the different areas and functions of
the Company. The office and the production area of the
Company are separate from that of its controlling
shareholder.
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Information disclosed under the requirement
of CSRC (continued)

Status of Independence (continued)

(v) The Company has an independent finance department
with an independent accounting and financial
management system. The Company also maintains its
own independent accounts with banks.

Corporate Governance

The Company strictly complied with various laws and regulations
such as the “Company Law”, “Securities Law”, “Standard of
corporate governance for PRC listed companies”, “rules of
shareholders’ meeting of listed companies” ({ E TR B RAE
#£81)), “Securities Listing Rules” as well as the requirements
of relevant documents to establish a better corporate governance
structure and to standardise the operation of the Company. The
Articles of Association clearly define the functions of the
shareholders’ general meetings of the Company with clear rules
and procedures that were effectively carried out. There is a clear
division between the duties of the Board of Directors and the
Supervisory Committee of the Company, with clear rules of
procedures that can be effectively implemented. All members of
the Board of Directors and supervisors diligently perform their
duties. The management of the Company is responsible for the
production and operation of the Company, the organisation and
implementation of resolutions of the board of directors, and
reported to the board of directors and was supervised by the
Supervisory Committee pursuant to the regulations of the Articles
of Association and Rules for the General Manager. The Company
has established a more comprehensive internal control system
without material deficiencies.

The Company has established a “Management Guidelines for
the Provision of Guarantee to External Parties” (C4f4MERE IR
#/E)), “Management Guidelines for Subsidiaries”
(FRARIEERMRE)), “Management Guidelines for Connected
Transactions”, “Management Guidelines for Raised Proceeds”
(EEBELEEHIE)), “Working System of Independent
Directors” (CEIEEIT{EHIE)) and Management Guidelines
for Investor Relations (% & EFEEIEGZE)). The Company
has formulated the code of work for the Nomination Committee,
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and Strategic
and Development Committee under the Board of Directors of the
Company, which procured the systematisation and
standardisation of corporate governance of the Company.
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Information disclosed under the requirement
of CSRC (continued)

Corporate Governance (continued)

During the reporting period, the Company amended certain
parts of the Management Guidelines for Information Disclosure
in accordance with relevant regulations so as to ensure that
corporate governance documents were in compliance with
relevant laws and regulations.

During the reporting period, the Company conducted a self-
inspection of the corporate governance of the Company, prepared
a self-inspection report and reform plan with reference to the
requirements of the instruction to “Strengthen corporate
governance of listed companies” stipulated by the CSRC, thereby
compiling the reform report for the corporate governance of the
Company. The report was reviewed by the Board of Directors of
the Company and was published on the website for information
disclosure designated by the CSRC.

The explanation of the corporate governance rectification was
approved at the extraordinary Board meeting of the Fifth Board
of the Company convened On 18 July 2008, the announcement
was published in the domestic Securities Times, HKExnews and
the Company’s website.

The establishment and implementation of assessment
and appraisal mechanisms as well as the incentive
mechanisms for senior officers

The Company selects its senior officers from its staff on the
basis of talent and ability. Prior to selecting and appointing the
senior officers, the Board of Directors follows a strict set of
selection criteria, which include the assessment of each of the
candidates’ individual character, moral standard, coordination
ability, working ability and sense of responsibility. Once appointed,
the Board of Directors will evaluate the senior officers periodically,
particularly in respect of achievements and their execution of
resolutions passed by the Board of Directors.

By analysing the duties of each of the Senior Officers, the
Company clearly sets out their job nature and scope of
responsibilities and has established a corresponding incentive
and penalty scheme to reward and sanction Senior Officers.
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Information disclosed under the requirement
of CSRC (continued)

Effect of execution of internal control system

Through formulation and effective implementation of the internal
control system, the Company’s scale of operation has gradually
been expanded, followed by consecutive annual increases in
sales volume, representing a sound development trend. The
Company’s management level has been raised and its internal
control system has been improved. Therefore, the quality of the
Company’s products has been improved. In addition, the
technology of the Company has been innovated and the
competitiveness of the Company has been increased. As a
result, the Company has a strong foundation for its future
development.

The management of the Company considers that the Company
has established and refined a comprehensive and reasonable
internal control system with reference to laws and regulations
as well as the requirements of relevant departments. Overall, the
normal operation of the Company’s production has been
guaranteed which, to a certain extent, has mitigated the
management risk. The Company also conformed to the standards
of the control system as at 31 December 2008 and the material
aspects of the accounting statements.
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Information disclosed under the requirement
of CSRC (continued)

Self-evaluation of the Company’s internal control by the
Supervisory Committee of the Company

After auditing, the Company’s Supervisory Committee considered
that the internal control of the Company was in compliance with
the Rules Governing the Listing of Shares on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange. The format of the self-evaluation of internal
control was in compliance with “Completion of 2008 annual
report of listed companies” (ShenZhengShang [2008] No.168)
(R7E _£[2008]1685% KB 4T LA B120085F F E S TR R
A1)) . The contents truthfully, objectively and fully reflected the
performance and effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
system.

Self-evaluation of the Company’s internal control by the
independent directors of the Company

After auditing, Xu Guojun, Zhu Baoquan, Sun Minggao and
Kwong Chi Kit, Victor; independent directors of the Company,
considered that the internal control of the Company was in
compliance with the “Guidelines of the internal control of listed
companies on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange” ((RIIEHRZ 5
Fr b A RIAERIEH|IFE35])) . The evaluation process of the
Company’s internal control conformed to the “Guidelines of the
internal control of listed companies on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange” (CRINFEHZ Z T LM A RAERIEHIFES)) . The self-
evaluation report of the internal control system truthfully,
objectively and fully reflected the performance and effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control system.
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Information disclosed under the requirement
of Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors (including the Independent Non-Executive
Directors), are of the opinion that for the year ended 31 December
2008, the Company has complied with all requirements set out
in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”)
including provisions contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

The Company has always strived to comply with the best practices
of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE Directors

The Group has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of a sufficient number
of independent non-executive directors and at least one
independent non-executive director with appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The Company has appointed four independent non-
executive directors including one with financial management
expertise.

The four independent non-executive directors of the Company
have submitted confirmation of independence to confirm that he
/ she has strictly complied with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules to the Stock Exchange
during the reporting period. The Company considers each
independent non-executive director to be independent from the
Company.
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Information disclosed under the requirement
of Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.
(continued)

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS (“MODEL CODE”)

During the year, the Company has adopted a code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors and Supervisors
on terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in
the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
Following specific enquiries made with the Directors, the
Company has confirmed that each Director and Supervisor has
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
regarding securities transactions by directors.

The Board of Directors
(1) The Board consists of

Directors

Ms. Guo Qin (Chairman)

Mr. Liu Zhenwen (Non-executive director)

Mr. Ren Fulong (Executive director)

Mr. Zhao Songguo (Executive director)

Mr. Li Tianzhong (Non-executive director,
appointed on 26 June 2008)

Mr. Zhu Baoquan (Independent non-executive director,
appointed on 22 December 2008)

Mr. Xu Guojun (Independent non-executive director)

Mr. Sun Minggao (Independent non-executive director)

Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor (Independent non-executive
director, appointed on 22 December 2008)

Mr. Dai Qingjun (Independent non-executive director,
retired on 22 December 2008)

Mr. Mok Chung Kwan, Stephen (Independent
non-executive director, resigned on
16 April 2008)

Brief Introduction of the Board members are set out in

the “DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR OFFICERS
AND STAFF”.
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(Z) RETEMESXTZFRERL 2. Information disclosed under the requirement

BIAMBES LHHRAEE of Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(#&) on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.
(continued)

EEE (&) The Board of Directors (continued)

(2 HEAFER G ARTESEH (2)  During the year, the Board convened eight Board
BRBAEFG SR SEFH meetings. The details of Directors’ attendance at the
fE biEEEERMT eight Board meetings are set out below:

BEHE/
EERR
Commissioned
ESmRH HEHE to attend /
BEERS The number of Personally written BE @WE
Name participants attended resolution Absent  Remarks
$ = 8 8 0 0
Ms. Guo Qin
2R 8 8 0 0
Mr. Liu Zhenwen
EiERE 8 8 0 0
Mr. Ren Fulong
AR 8 8 0 0
Mr. Zhao Songguo
FRB 5 5 0 0
Mr. Li Tianzhong
RER 1 1 0 0
Mr. Zhu Baoqugn
B 1 1 0 0
Mr. Kwong Chi Kit,
Victor
BEH® 7 7 0 0
Mr. Dai Qingjun
B 1 1 0 0
Mr. Mok Chung Kwan,
Stephen
REE 8 8 0 0
Mr. Xu Guojun
G 8 7 1 0

Mr. Sun Minggao
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Information disclosed under the requirement
of Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.
(continued)

The Board of Directors (continued)

3

Operation of Board

The duties of the Board are to create value for
shareholders of the Company, to confirm the strategies,
targets and planning of the Company, and to supervise
staff in order to ensure that the planned targets can be
met. The members of the Board work in accordance with
principles of honesty and diligence and comply with all
relevant laws, regulations, the Articles of Association of
the Company and relevant requirements to maximise the
shareholders’ interests. With various measures of internal
controls and mechanisms for checks and balances, the
duties of the Board and the management of the Company
are clearly defined.

The Board’s role is clearly defined as directing and
supervising the affairs of the Company, establishing its
strategic direction and setting objectives and business
development plans. The management of the Company is
responsible for the implementation of strategies, and
achieving the objectives and carrying out the plans
determined by the Board. The Board has formulated the
Rules for the Operation of the Board and the Rules for
the General Manager according to the relevant PRC laws
and regulations and the listing rules of stock exchanges
both in the PRC and overseas, in which the duties and
powers of the Board are further defined and the internal
operation procedures of the Board are standardised.
Therefore, the Board can fully perform its function as the
decision-maker of the Company. The procedures for the
appointment of the General Manger have been laid down.
The power, scope of work, working procedures and
responsibilities of the General Manager have been
specifically defined.
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Information disclosed under the requirement
of Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.
(continued)

Chairman and General Manager

The Chairman is responsible for providing convocation to the
Board meeting and ensuring that the Board acts in the best
interests of the Company. The Chairman ensures that the Board
effectively functions and discharges its responsibilities. The
Chairman is also responsible for approving the agenda for each
Board meeting, taking into account any matters proposed by
other Directors for inclusion in the agenda.

The General Manager is responsible for the day-to-day
management and the business performance of the Company.

During the reporting period, Guo Qin was the Chairman of the
Company while Ren Fulong was the general manager of the
Company.

Term of independent non-executive directors

The independent non-executive directors of the sixth Board
were appointed for a term of 3 years commencing from
22 December 2008.

Remuneration and Examination Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration and Examination
Committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), which is a special
committee responsible to the Board. The Remuneration
Committee comprises of Mr. Zhu Baoquan, Ms. Guo Qin, Mr. Liu
Zhenwen, Mr. Xu Guojun and Mr. Sun Minggao. The Remuneration
Committee is chaired by Mr. Zhu Baoquan.

The Company has formulated the “Rules for Operation of the
Remuneration and Examination Committee”. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for formulating the remuneration policy
of Directors and Senior Officers of the Company, determining
the standard of examination of Directors and Senior Officers,
assessing the performance of Directors and Senior Officers
during the year and approving the terms of their service contracts
and remuneration packages and submitting the same to the
Board for approval. The terms of reference for the Remuneration
Committee are available upon request.
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Information disclosed under the requirement
of Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.
(continued)

Remuneration and Examination Committee (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Remuneration
Committee convened one meeting for the purpose of passing
the “Proposal of 2008 Annual Remuneration of Directors and
Supervisors” and the “Proposal of 2008 Annual Remuneration
of Senior Officers”, which were submitted to the Board for
approval.

The remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Officers
of the Company is determined with reference to State policies,
the Company’s profit realised in the corresponding period,
individual achievement and the average income of local residents.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination Committee, which
is a special committee responsible to the Board. The Nomination
Committee comprises of Mr. Zhu Baoquan, Ms. Guo Qin, Mr.
Ren Fulong, Mr. Xu Guojun and Mr. Sun Minggao. The Nomination
Committee is chaired by Mr. Zhu Baoquan.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for the following:

(a) formulating the policy for the nomination of Directors or
Senior Officers and the standard for selection of such
individuals;

(b) preliminary selection of Directors and Senior Officers
and submission of nomination proposals to the Board;

(c) selecting Directors and Senior Officers based on their
education qualifications, industry background and
experience in the relevant field;

(d) reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of members of the
Board on a regular basis and making recommendations
to the Board regarding any proposed changes;
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Information disclosed under the requirement
of Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.
(continued)

Nomination Committee (continued)

(e) assessing the independence of independent non-
executive directors; and

(f) making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors
or Senior Officers.

The terms of reference for the Nomination Committee are made
available upon request.

During the year ended 31 December 2008, the Nomination
Committee convened two meetings. Mr. Li Tianzhong was
nominated as the non-executive director candidate of the
Company on 17 April 2008. Ms. Guo Qin, Mr. Ren Fulong and
Mr. Zhao Songguo were nominated as the executive director
candidates of the Company, Mr. Liu Zhenwen and Mr. Li Tianzhong
were nominated as the non-executive director candidates of the
Company, Mr. Zhu Baoquan, Mr. Xu Guojun, Mr. Sun Minggao
and Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor were nominated as the independent
non-executive director candidates of the Company on 22 October
2008. These nominations were then submitted to the Board for
approval.

Auditors’ remuneration
SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited was appointed as the International

Auditor and ShineWing was re-appointed as the Domestic Auditor
in the 2007 annual general meeting held on 26 June 2008.

In 2008, the auditors’ remuneration for audit services provided
was as follows:

SR (EE) BRI EBHMERA A

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited

SR AR B E AT
ShineWing

2008 B 2007 K
RMB420,000 USD75,000
RMB420,000 USD45,000
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Information disclosed under the requirement
of Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.
(continued)

Audit Committee

Pursuant to Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Company set up
an Audit Committee (the “Audit Committee”) comprising of four
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Zhu Baoquan,
Mr. Xu Guojun, Mr. Sun Minggao and Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor.
The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Xu Guojun.

With reference to “A Guide for the Formation of An Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants,
the Board has set out terms of reference for the Audit Committee,
which define the authority and duties of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has to make sure that the Company’s
financial report reflects a fair view of the Company. In addition
to reviewing the financial information and statements of the
Company, the Audit Committee is also responsible for liaising
with the Company’s external auditor and overseeing the
Company’s financial reporting system, internal control system
and risk management procedures. A copy of the terms of
reference for the Audit Committee is available upon request.

The Audit Committee has, together with the management,
reviewed the accounting principles, practices and methods
adopted by the Group and has discussed the auditing, internal
controls and financing reporting of the Company. The Audit
Committee has convened three meetings to review the audited
financial statements for 2007, the unaudited 1st quarterly financial
statements for 2008, the unaudited interim statements for 2008
and the unaudited 3rd quarterly financial statements for 2008.

The Audit Committee convened a meeting on 19 March 2009 to
review the 2008 audited accounts and annual results
announcement.

For the record of individual attendance of members of the Audit
Committee, please refer to the attendance table set out under
the section headed “Information disclosed under the requirement
of CSRC” of the Corporate Governance Report.
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Information disclosed under the requirement
of Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.
(continued)

Investor Relations

The Company actively and earnestly carried out work in respect
of the disclosure of information and investor relations and
nominated an individual to deal with the Company’s investor
relations. Meanwhile, the Company strictly complied with the
principles of truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness
in the disclosure of information. The Company also enhanced
communication with investors and made efforts in the
improvement of the transparency of the Company by way of
issuing results announcements, publishing announcements,
launching the company’s website, meeting investors and analysts
and answering investors’ inquiries, etc..

Directors’, Supervisors’ and Senior Officers’ Interests in
Shares

So far as the Directors, the Senior Officers and the Supervisors
of the Company are aware, the interests or short position in
shares of the Directors, the Supervisors and the Senior Officers,
according to the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or which was otherwise
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies as contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, are stated in the above
subsection headed “Directors’ and Supervisors’ and Senior
Officers’ Interests in Shares of the Company” under the section
“DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR OFFICERS AND
STAFF”.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for the Company’s system of internal
controls and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Board requires
the management to establish and maintain sound and effective
internal controls. Evaluation of the Company’s internal controls
is independently conducted by the Supervisory Committee on
an on-going basis.

The Board confirms that it has reviewed the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Company and its subsidiaries. The
review covered all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management
functions.
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Information disclosed under the requirement
of Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd.
(continued)

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares

Save as disclosed above in “Changes in Share Capital and
Shareholders” and so far as the Directors, the Senior Officers
and the Supervisors of the Company are aware, as at 31
December 2008, no other person (other than a Director, Senior
Officer or Supervisor of the Company) had an interest or short
position in the Company’s shares or underlying shares (as the
case may be), which are required to be disclosed to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

Directors’, Supervisors’ and Senior Officers’ Interest and
Short Positions

Save as disclosed in “Directors’ and Supervisors’ and Senior
Officers’ Interests in Shares of the Company” under the section
headed “DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR OFFICERS
AND STAFF”, so far as the Directors, the Senior Officers and
the Supervisors of the Company are aware, as at 31 December
2008, none of the Directors, the Senior Officers or the Supervisors
of the Company had any interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares and/or debentures (as the case may be) of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (as defined
in Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance ("SFO"))
which was required to be notified to the Company and The
SEHK pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interest and short position which any such Director,
Senior Officer or Supervisor is taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO) of which was required to be entered
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO or which was otherwise required to be
notified to the Company and SEHK pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies as
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
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Summarised Report of the General Meeting

On 8 May 2008, the notice of 2007 Annual General Meeting
(“AGM”) was published in newspapers, HKExnews and the
Company’s website and served on the shareholders of H Shares
by prepaid post. The AGM was convened by the Board of Directors
and held at the Company’s registered office on 26 June 2008.
Three shareholders (including those represented by their proxies)
attended the AGM, representing a total number of 166,358,735
shares and accounting for 36.38% of the Company’s total share
capital. The AGM was convened in compliance with the provisions
of the Company Law of the PRC, the Notice for Matters Concerned
in respect of 1995 Annual General Meeting and Amendments
to the Articles of Association of the Overseas Listed Companies
as well as the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”). The AGM was chaired by Ms. Guo Qin,
the Chairman. The following ordinary resolutions were passed
at the AGM:

1. To approve the report of the Directors for the year 2007;

2. To approve the report of the Supervisory Committee for
the year 2007;

3. To approve the audited financial statements of the
Company for the year 2007;

4. To approve the profit distribution of the Company for the
year 2007;

5. To approve the appointment of SHINGWING (HK) CPA
Limited (Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong) and
Shine Wing (Certified Public Accountants in the PRC) as
the international and domestic auditors respectively for
the year 2008 and authorise the Board to fix their
remuneration;

6. To approve the remuneration of the Directors and the
Supervisors for the year 2008;

7. To approve the remuneration of election Mr. Li Tianzhong
as the non-executive director of the Company.

An announcement of the above resolutions was published
in the domestic newspaper, Securities Times, as well as
the HKExnews and the Company’s website, on 27 June
2008.
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On 22 August 2008, the notice of the first extraordinary general
meeting of 2008 was published in newspapers, HKExnews and
the Company's website and served on the shareholders of H
Shares by prepaid post. The extraordinary general meeting was
convened by the Board of Direcors and held at the Company's
registered office on 10 October 2008. Three shareholders
(including those represented by their proxies) attended the
meeting, representing a total number of 172,264,735 shares and
36.67% of the Company's total share capital. The meeting was
convened in compliance with the provisions of the Company Law
of the PRC, the Notice for Matters Concerned in respect of 1995
Annual General Meeting and Amendments to the Articles of
Association of the Overseas Listed Companies as well as the
Articles of Association. The meeting was chaired by Ms. Guo
Qin, the Chairman. The following ordinary resolutions were
passed at the meeting:

1. The actual amount incurred in 2007 under the 2006
Agreement, i.e. RMB96,730,000 being the purchase of
accessories, raw materials and packaging materials by
the Company from SXPGC was ratified, approved and
confirmed.

2. The revised caps in relation to the purchase of
accessories, raw materials and packaging materials by
the Company from SXPGC for each of the two years
ending 31 December 2009 being RMB200,000,000 and
RMB250,000,000 respectively were approved.

An announcement of the above resolutions was published in the
domestic newspaper, Securities Times, as well as the HKExnews
and the Company's website, on 13 October 2008.

On 5 November 2008, the notice of the second extraordinary
general meeting of 2008 was published in newspapers,
HKExnews and the Company's website and served on the
shareholders of H Shares by prepaid post. The extraordinary
general meeting was convened by the Board of Direcors and
held at the Company's registered office on 22 December 2008.
Three shareholders (including those represented by their proxies)
attended the meeting, representing a total number of 173,216,735
shares and 37.88% of the Company's total share capital. The
meeting was convened in compliance with the provisions of the
Company Law of the PRC, the Notice for Matters Concerned in
respect of 1995 Annual General Meeting and Amendments to
the Articles of Association of the Overseas Listed Companies
as well as the Articles of Association. The meeting was chaired
by Ms. Guo Qin, the Chairman. The following ordinary resolutions
were passed at the meeting:
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1. The agreement entered into between the Company and
L. Perrigo Company dated 7 October 2008 and the
proposed annual caps of RMB48,000,000,
RMB80,000,000 and RMB88,000,000 for 2008, 2009 and
2010 respectively for the transactions to be entered into
pursuant to such agreement were approved and confirmed
by the independent shareholders.

2. The agreement entered into between the Company and
Eastwest United Group, Inc. dated 9 October 2008 and
the proposed annual caps of RMB8,000,000 and
RMB12,000,000 for 2008 and 2009 respectively for the
transactions to be entered into pursuant to such
agreement approved and confirmed by the independent
shareholders.

3. The continuing connected transactions between the
Company and Perrigo Company in 2007 and 2008, and
between Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Import and
Export Company Limited and Perrigo Company in 2007
were ratified, approved and confirmed by the independent
shareholders.

4. Ms. Guo Qin, Mr. Ren Fulong and Mr. Zhao Songguo
were re-elected as executive Directors and Mr. Liu
Zhenwen and Mr. Li Tianzhong were re-elected as non-
executive Directors of the Company by cumulative voting.

5. Mr. Xu Guojun, Mr. Sun Minggao, Mr. Zhu Baoquan and
Mr. Kwong Chi Kit, Victor were re-elected or elected as
independent non-executive Directors of the Company by
cumulative voting.

6. Mr. Yu Gongfu, Mr. Gao Qinggang, Mr. Zhang Yueshun
and Mr. Tao Zhichao were re-elected as supervisors of
the Company.

An announcement of the above resolutions was published in the
PRC newspaper, Securities Times, as well as the HKExnews
and the Company's website, on 23 December 2008.

The election and replacement of the Directors and the
Supervisors are set out in the above section headed
“DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS, SENIOR OFFICERS AND
STAFF”.
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Dear shareholders,

| hereby present for your review the annual report of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2008.

Results and Dividends

In the fiscal year ended 31 December 2008, the operating income of
the Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”) prepared under PRC
accounting standards was RMB2,096,964,000, representing an increase
of 11.13% as compared with that of year 2007. The Group recorded its
profit attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB33,966,000, representing an increase of 3.80% as compared with
that of year 2007, earnings per share was RMBO0.074.

The Group’s sales prepared under HKGAAP were RMB2,077,753,000,
representing an increase of 11.37% as compared with that of year
2007. A profit attributable to shareholders of RMB30,064,000 was
recorded, representing an decrease of 5.51%. Earnings per share was
RMBO0.066.

The Board of Directors has proposed a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2008 of RMBO0.03 per share (approximately HK$0.034 per
share, including income tax. The proposed dividend is subject to approval
by the shareholders of the Company at the annual general meeting of
the Company for the year 2008.

Business Review

2008 was a special year in the Company’s development. In the past
year, through the implementation of practicable and effective measures,
the Company has taken active steps to mitigate the effect of such
issues as rising prices of raw materials, rising prices of energy and
power, pressure for environment protection management and the impact
of the international financial crisis on exports. Since our operational
objectives have been achieved satisfactorily, our scale of operation has
continued to expand and the quality of our economic operation has
further improved.

1. Intensification of corporate reform and innovation,
reinforcement of international cooperation and
enhancement of integrated corporate competitiveness.

In accordance with the Company’s needs, the Company initiated
procedures to convert three subsidiaries of the Company to
wholly owned-subsidiaries in 2008, in order to have a clear
ownership of the properties of the subsidiaries and standardise
management.
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Business Review (continued)

1.
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Intensification of corporate reform and innovation,
reinforcement of international cooperation and
enhancement of integrated corporate competitiveness.
(continued)

The Company has actively pursued internal management
innovation, by implementing a series of systems such as the
“staff performance appraisal method” to stimulate enthusiasm
among staff, and by implementing the reform in relation to the
delegation of more power and duties in the production workshops
so as to enhance efficiency and promote conservation which
has resulted in a reduction of maintenance costs.

Over the past two years of reform in the preparations sale
system, the management has been paying attention to the
construction of the sales team, strengthening the construction
of the terminal network, tendering investment and organising
channels, so that the Company has made significant progress
in the marketing of pharmaceutical products. The sales of
pharmaceutical products increased by 18.79% compared to that
of last year, representing an increase of 1.24% in the Group’s
sales turnover. The effects of structural adjustment to the Group’s
products have emerged.

The Group has made progress in its international cooperation.
The Company cooperated with Bayer Germany in the production
of two products, Redoxon and Saridon, which have entered
commercial production and become a new growth driver for the
Company. The Company’s quality control standards and corporate
image have been enhanced. In collaboration with a Japanese
company, trial production of the L-380 project was successfully
completed and test samples were sent to clients in Europe and
the US. Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Import and Export
Company Limited and Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
(Europe) GmbH are also keeping good development.
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Business Review (continued)

2.

Increased technological innovation of products to
sustain development

In 2008, the Company obtained certifications of production for
Nevirapine, Rabeprazole materials and Enteric-coated tablets
by the State Food and Drugs Administration of the PRC. By
means of international cooperation, approval of the overseas
application for new drug registration of the Class | prescription
new drug Tribendimidine has been obtained. This marked the
commencement of the Company’s partnership pilot schemes
with multi-national enterprises on innovative new drugs, creating
favourable conditions for the introduction of its new products to
overseas markets.

Having spared no effort in technological innovation as well as
energy saving and emission reduction, the Company achieved
savings of raw materials worth approximately RMB3,090,000
throughout the year while there has been a decrease in energy
consumption of RMB16,330,000, representing a decrease of
more than 10% for two consecutive years. During a special
inspection on energy saving and emission reduction by the
Shandong Provincial Government, the Company was credited
as the pioneer enterprise for energy saving, and was awarded
the title of Outstanding Enterprise in Energy Saving and
Consumption Reduction of Zibo city.

Through procedures including an application under the new
standards, expert review and public announcement, the Company
was included in the first batch of high and new technology
enterprises of Shandong Province.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)

Business Review (continued)

3.

Meticulous organisation of project construction to lay
the foundation for future development

With reform in the mode of innovative project management and
strengthened supervision and assessment, the 3,000 tonne
ibuprofen project was completed in merely 7 months through
meticulous arrangement and trial production commenced at the
end of 2008.

Due to the smooth production of pharmaceutical intermediates
including trioxin and chloropropionyl chloride, other projects for
pharmaceutical intermediates, including violuric acid, which
commenced in 2008, were in smooth progress. Accordingly,
Shouguang Park has taken shape as the Company’s supporting
production base for chemical materials and pharmaceutical
intermediates.

The smooth completion and commencement of production for
such technology renovation and supporting intermediates projects
will be conducive for the Company to increase its product market
share and take a step forward in terms of production.

Strengthened corporate management for higher
managerial quality

In light of the price increase of raw materials, the Company
adhered to bidding procurement on the basis of competitive
quality and price, thus bringing its advantages, such assaving
fund, into play. During 2008, the Company saved RMB7,670,000
in procurement costs compared with average prevailing market
prices.

By strengthening its fundamental management and continuously
improving quality management systems, the Company
successfully passed the renewal audit for ISO9001 quality
authentication in 2008, with eight pharmaceuticals and two tablet
products passing the GMP authentication review.

Process management was enhanced to bring operating risks
under control. The Company’s collection-to-sales ratio for 2008
exceeded 100%, and over RMB6,000,000 overdue receivables
were recovered. With no transaction going beyond the credit
term during the year, operational quality was further improved.
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Prospects

In 2009, the grim economic environment coupled with business difficulties
and uncertainties brought about by the aggravated worldwide financial
crisis, posed a challenge to the medicine market, especially the export
of pharmaceutical products. Persistently costly water, electricity and
gas, constant environmental pressure and the downward expectation
for medicine prices, as a result of the implementation of the basic
medicine system, are all negatives to the Company’s profit growth.

Since the fourth quarter of 2008, the Chinese government has launched
initiatives to “sustain growth, increase domestic demand and optimise
structure” as economic stimulus packages. Under the new healthcare
reform scheme, the basic healthcare security system is expected to
cover all urban and rural residents of China by 2011, with RMB850
billion set to be invested by governments of all levels in the coming
three years, which extends growth expectations for the pharmaceuticals
industry. The healthcare workstations which are emerging in both
countryside and urban communities, as well as the compilation of the
basic medicine catalogue, will pave the way for stimulating domestic
demand for medicines, and create new opportunities for pharmaceutical
enterprises, particularly those principally engaged in the production of
generic drugs. The increased export tax rebate rate is beneficial to the
expansion of China’s export of pharmaceutical products.

Facing the challenges and opportunities, the Company lays out its
major tasks for 2009 based on actual circumstances:

1. Further optimise structure to vitalise business

To achieve the goal “To be an expert of pharmaceutical raw
materials and a leading producer of pharmaceutical products”,
efforts will be taken to speed up the development of specialty
pharmaceutical products, so as to further develop the business
of the Company and to secure the advantageous position of the
Company in the production of raw pharmaceutical products.
Making the most of the opportunities from the new healthcare
reform to highlight the Company’s uniqueness, the Company will
improve its medicine production and increase the proportion of
sales of pharmaceutical products within the company’s portfolio
of products.
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Prospects (continued)

1.

R ERE R 5 H PR 2 7 Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Further optimise structure to vitalise business (continued)

Scientific planning and adjustment to the layout of the industrial
park and improvement to the positioning of various scientific
areas within the park will be carried out. According to the unified
requirement of Zibo Municipal Government, existing production
of certain products of the Company are included in the
Government relocation and adjustment plan. The Company will
actively study the relocation plan in a prudent and progressive
manner. Taking this opportunity, the Company will improve of the
projects in the new park and optimise the utilisation of the park
and improve the quality of the products.

Control operating risks and press ahead with product
sales

Controlling operational risks is of particular importance in times
of the contagion and aggravation of financial crisis across the
globe. In 2009, the Company will enhance control over operations
and continue to maintain a balance among the production, sales
and income return. Further, the sales-to-production ratio and
income return to-sales ratio are required to be at least 100%.
Measures including identifying targets, strengthening
performance assessment, and reducing accounts receivable will
also be adopted.

Based on the consolidated international pharmaceutical market,
the Company will proactively explore emerging international
pharmaceutical markets and maintain and build up long-term
co-operative partnerships with customers.

The Company will seize the opportunities resulting from China’s
moves to stimulate domestic demand, launch new healthcare
reform and expand basic healthcare investment. The Company
will also take initiatives to foster growth in bulk domestic sales
of raw pharmaceutical products in accordance with its market
position. Meanwhile, the marketing of pharmaceutical products
will push ahead based on improving infrastructures as a result
of marketing reform in the past two years, aiming at a
breakthrough in the sales of pharmaceutical products.
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Prospects (continued)

3.

Expedite technology innovation through research system
reform

Based on its actual situation, the Company will take steps to
launch the research system reform by carrying out diligent
investigation, injecting more research fund so as to achieve
better and more research results by the research staff.

According to the balanced long-term, mid-term and short-term
targets and market-oriented principles, the Company will co-
develop new medicine or selectively adopt clinically approved
medicine or those medicine of which the production has been
approved. The Company will also enhance its capability in
developing new medicine.

The Company will establish specialised technology task forces
by different innovative methods to tackle technological problems
in production process, energy saving and emission reduction,
thus accelerating the utilisation of advance technology.

Raise management standards to ensure sound
production and operation management

By promoting the program “Year of breakthroughs in technology
and quality” throughout the workforce, the Company will insist
upon tackling technological problems on a “one product, one
strategy” basis, making efforts to save raw materials and enhance
workmanship. To satisfy the requirements in relation to quality
authentications, on-site management will be improved to increase
the market competitiveness of products.

Based on sound project planning and risk prevention, the
Company will establish a scientific appraisal system for projects,
and speed up the progress of the ancillary material projects, and
strengthen workflow management so as to cut down project
costs.

The Company will continue to promote the application of “Four
new technologies” for energy saving and consumption reduction,
reducing energy consumption through management and
enhancing technology level.
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Prospects (continued)

4. Raise management standards to ensure sound
production and operation management (continued)

The Company will further improve its management system and
appraisal system and enhance strategic cooperation with major
suppliers to build up the best supply chain.

By addressing challenges and seizing the opportunities in 2009,
the Board believes that the Company will sustain a smooth
growth by detailed structuring, target achievement and the
enthusiastic cooperation and diligence of all its employees.

Guo Qin
Chairman

20 March 2009
Zibo, Shandong, PRC
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The Board of Directors sincerely submits to the shareholders the report
of the Board of Directors and the audited accounts of the Company and
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2008.

Management Discussion and Analysis

1.

The business scope and operating results of the
Company

The Group is mainly engaged in the development, production
and sale of pharmaceutical raw materials, preparations, chemical
products and other products. The profit of the Group is mainly
attributable to its principal operations.

Sales Analysis

Under PRC accounting standards, the Group had a operating
income of approximately RMB2,096,964,000 for the year ended
31 December 2008. Sales of bulk pharmaceuticals, sales of
preparations, medical logistics, chemical and other products
accounted for 58.31%, 19.28%, 19.69% and 2.72% respectively
of the total sales of the Group, representing a decrease of
3.32%, an increase of 1.24%, an increase of 2.05% and an
increase of 0.03% respectively as compared with that of 2007.

During the year 2008, the sales volume of the Group’s bulk
pharmaceuticals amounted to RMB1,222,713,000, representing
an increase of 5.13% over 2006. The rise was mainly attributable
to the Group’s active exploration of international markets and
domestic markets. The revenue from export was US$140,074,000,
representing an increase of 14.24% over 2007.

The sales volume of preparations was RMB404,290,000,
representing an increase of 18.79% over last year. The growth
was mainly because of the efficiency arising from the restructuring
of the preparation sales department during the year and the
enlargement in the sales as a result of active exploration of the
preparations market.

The sales volume of medical logistics amounted to
RMB412,894,000, representing an increase of 24.07% over 2007.
The growth was mainly because of the turnover of Shandong
Xinhua Pharmaceutical Import & Export Company Limited
representing an increase of 102.11% over 2007.
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Report of the Board of Directors (continued)

BEEEWRIRST &) Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
1. TEXBHEERELEERA (B 1. The business scope and operating results of the
Company (continued)
FESWN Results Analysis
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The Profit attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
prepared in accordance with PRC accounting standards was
approximately RMB33,966,000, representing an increase of
3.80% as compared to that of last year. The main reasons for
the increase were: the Company has taken active steps to
overcome the effect of such issues as rising prices of raw
materials, pressure for environment protection management and
the impact of the international financial crisis. We have maximized
profit through better management, reducing costs, opening new
client base and increasing the scale of operation.

The Group’s profit attributable to the equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2008 prepared in
accordance with HKGAAP was approximately RMB30,064,000,
representing a decrease of 5.51% as compared to that of last
year. The main reason for the decrease was: income tax expense
prepared in accordance with HKGAAP was increased.

FEESRERDETREFES Major products and the corresponding market share in the
PRC are set forth below:
ZEENE
HoZENE BATHEEE%)
HHEFTAIH(%) Market share in
As % of total the domestic
TEER Major Products sales in 2008 market in 2008
A LBREE A. Pharmaceutical raw materials
gk i Analgin 13.91 46
e Caffeine 12.30 31
SELLM Aminopyrine 4.20 65
] Hf T ok Aspirin 6.52 60
K dEIl: ob/N Hydrocortisone 1.63 18
M W% B Pipemidic acid 1.07 100
mg% Ibuprofen 3.80 48
Bz Theophylline 0.80 23
B. & B. Preparations
BLUREE Pipemidic acid tablets 2.31 67
BAHER Co-liquorice tablets 1.39 45
EEHT R Nimodipine tablets 0.96 23

R ERE R 5 H PR 2 7 Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

63 |




ExeRE (@)

Report of the Board of Directors (continued)

EETEHMSARS W (&)

FERFEERRERRR (H)

e BB EAIE BT - AT
B

R2008F12A31HAEBEBREEASA
R#2161,734F L - BFEVMARKE
2,263,193 F LiF > A R¥101,459F
JC - NiR4.48%  HEETREHNEZR
RERAFEAAHHESCRHEER
REETBE -

200812 A31 AEBN AR
HRE B ANREA,453,253T T » B4
AR #1,665,961F LD AR
212,708F T © T [812.77% + TFEH
FERAAAFERNAEHESHE
ERRBETR-

P2008F12 A1 B ANEE B FEEZE A
AR#674,736F L ° RFENARE
546,439 F LG N A R #128,297F
JU v R23.48%  EEMEBRAR
NEEREEAERESERE - (LR
TTERB THARITEREBEAE THS
RITERIEER  BREHERKEN
ZgRm o

2008 FEAREBMEREENBREE
RETMRERENFFELRAAR
#36,392F ;T ©+ AR#¥33,966F 7T -
DR EFRIKEEE -

2008 F FEAEKBERES MRS FEY
FRAOBEAEAREK16,166T L ' BE
PREEEMFHEEHNETERA
B AFEIRYHEKR  KERD
EXENReREFRIBAARE
163,771F 7T

| 64

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

1.

Business scope and operating results of the Company
(continued)

Financial and results analysis in accordance with PRC accounting
standards

Total assets of the Group as at 31 December 2008 decreased
by 4.48% or approximately RMB101,459,000 to approximately
RMB2,161,734,000, as compared with the figure at the beginning
of the year of approximately RMB2,263,193,000. The decrease
in total assets was mainly due to the decrease of fair value of
financial assets available for sale.

Total equity attributable to the shareholders of the company as
at 31 December 2008 decreased by approximately 12.77% or
RMB212,708,000 from approximately RMB1,665,961,000 at the
beginning of the year to approximately RMB1,453,253,000. This
decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease of fair value
of financial assets available for sale.

The total liabilities of the Group as at 31 December 2008 were
approximately RMB674,736,000, representing an increase of
approximately 23.48% or RMB128,297,000, as compared to
approximately RMB546,439,000 at the beginning of the year.
The increase was mainly attributable to loans and deposits for
the acceptance of bills of exchange obtained by the Group from
the bank to ensure the supply of funds, which increased the
short-term loans and notes payable.

Operating profit of the Group for 2008 and profit attributable to
the Company’s shareholders for 2008 amounted to approximately
RMB36,392,000 and approximately RMB33,966,000 respectively,
representing a slight increase when compared with that of the
previous year.

The Group’s net decrease in cash and cash equivalents for the
year 2008 was approximately RMB16,166,000. The changes in
cash and cash equivalents were mainly due to increasing
construction expenditure. The net decrease in cash flow from
investing activities for 2008 was approximately RMB163,771,000.
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Report of the Board of Directors (continued)

BEEERAFRARR @) Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
TEEBEEREEERR (B Business scope and operating results of the Company
(continued)
2008 HPEEHHENRHINSER Segmental information of the main products for 2008
HRMTF : prepared under PRC accounting standards is as follows:
TEEBBRA TERBREF EHE %
PORBSER By product or By section Turnover Cost of goods sold  Rate of gross margin
AREFT AREFT %
RMB’000 RMB’000
rERR Pharmaceutical raw materials 1,222,713 1,058,008 13.47
ST Preparations 404,290 295,129 27.00
HERR Medical Commercial Logistics 412,894 394,139 4.54
LIERREM Chemical & other products 18,849 18,264 3.10
At Total 2,058,746 1,765,540 14.24
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Analysis of the Group’s performance under HKGAAP

As at 31 December 2008, the current ratio and the quick ratio
of the Group were 134.73% and 88.32% respectively, and the
rate of accounts receivable turnover (being turnover/average
trade and bill receivables x 100%) and the rate of stock turnover
(being cost of goods sold/average inventories x 100%) were
726.75% and 601.69% respectively.

The Group’s demand for working capital did not show significant
seasonal fluctuation throughout the year.

The Group’s main source of funds were loans from financial
institutions. As at 31 December 2008, the total amount of
outstanding bank loans was approximately RMB284,474,000, of
which approximately RMB18,018,000 was secured. Of this
RMB17,638,000 were loans from the Dalian Branch of the
Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited with one-year Renminbi
fixed deposits equivalent to HK$20,000,000 as collateral; the
remaining RMB380,000 were loans from China Citic Bank with
accounts receivables from the international trade export of
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Import & Export Company
Limited as collateral. As at 31 December 2008, cash on hand
and in bank amounted to approximately RMB238,124,000
(including bank acceptance drafts and deposits from bank loans
of approximately RMB54,457,000).

The Group has stringent internal control systems for cash and
fund management to strengthen its financial management. The
Group maintained a good level of liquidity and had strong debt
repayment ability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

1.

Business scope and operating results of the Company
(continued)

Analysis of the Group’s performance under HKGAAP (continued)

During the financial year ended 31 December 2008, the Company
made a capital investment of RMB13,972,000 to purchase a
41.4375% equity interest in Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Shouguang)
Company Limited (formerly Shandong Dadi Xinhua Chemical &
Industrial Company Limited, “Shouguang Company”) held by
Shandong Dadi Stalinization Group Company Limited. After the
acquisition, the Company now holds 100% equity interest of
Shouguang Company. The Company invested an additional
RMB54,000,000 in cash in Shouguang Company, and thus the
paid up capital of Shouguang Company has increased to
RMB86,000,000 from RMB32,000,000. The Company’s
development prospect is good.

On 17 January 2008, the Company and Shandong Xinhua
Industry & Trade Company Limited (“SXIT”) entered into an
asset transfer agreement in relation to the acquisition of part of
SXIT’s realty and land use rights at a total consideration of
RMB9,500,000. The relevant transfer procedures are being
processed.

Apart from the above transactions, the Group did not have any
significant investment, takeovers or acquisitions or asset
disposals during this reporting period.

As at 31 December 2008, the number of staff employed by the
Group was 4,992, and the total amount for salaries and wages
for 2008 was approximately RMB125,320,000.

As at 31 December 2008, there was no charge on the Group’s

assets except the above charged assets.

The debt-to-capital ratio of the Group was 19.40% (debt-to-
capital ratio = total borrowings / share capital & total reserves
x 100%).

The bank balance of the Company will mainly be used as
working capital for production and research and development.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

1.

R ERE R 5 H PR 2 7 Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Business scope and operating results of the Company
(continued)

Analysis of the Group’s performance under HKGAAP (continued)

The assets and liabilities of the Group were mainly recorded in
Renminbi. For the year ended 31 December 2008, the revenue
from the Group’s exports was approximately US$140,074,000,
which may suffer from the risks associated with the fluctuation
of exchange rates. Therefore, the Group has taken the following
measures to lower the risks from the fluctuation of exchange
rates: (1) the Group has increased the price of its export products
to mitigate the risks from the fluctuation of exchange rates; (2)
the Group has made arrangements with overseas customers
when entering into significant export contracts that the risks
associated with the fluctuation in exchange rates shall be borne
by both parties if the fluctuation exceeds the range of exchange
rate fluctuation agreed by the parties; and (3) the Group has
entered into forward foreign exchange protocol with financial
institutions to fix exchange rates in order to avoid the risk of
exchange rate fluctuation.

Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company

(1) Total equity interest of Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo
Pharmaceutical Company Limited is US$6,000,000, in
which the Company holds 50.1% of the total equity
interest. This subsidiary is mainly engaged in producing
and selling Ibuprofen. As at 31 December 2008, the total
assets of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB66,080,000, equity attributable to shareholders of
the Company was approximately RMB58,414,000. In
2008, the operating income of and the profit after taxation
of the subsidiary were approximately RMB116,290,000
and RMB10,906,000 respectively, representing an
increase of 3.63% and an increase of 15.36% respectively
as compared with that of 2007, which were mainly due
to the continued expansion in the scale of the business.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

2.

Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company
(continued)

()

€

Total equity interest of Zibo Xinhua-Eastwest
Pharmaceutical Company Limited is US$1,500,000, in
which the Company holds 75% of the total equity interest.
This subsidiary is mainly engaged in producing and selling
calcium polycarbophil bulk pharmaceutical products. As
at 31 December 2008, the total assets of the subsidiary
were approximately RMB14,380,000, equity attributable
to shareholders of the Company was approximately
RMB13,735,000. In 2008, the operating income of and
the profit after taxation of the subsidiary were
approximately RMB6,545,000 and RMB72,000
respectively, the main reason for the drop was the sale
of calcium polycarbophil bulk pharmaceutical products
declined in 2008 due to the global financial crisis.

Total equity interest of Shandong Xinhua Medical Trade
Company Limited is RMB48,499,000, in which the
Company holds 98% of the total equity interest. This
subsidiary is mainly engaged in the business of biological
products, prepared herbal medicine for decoction,
traditional Chinese medicine, pharmaceutical raw
materials, preparations, antibiotic preparations
biochemical medicine, health food, medical appliances,
drugs and products for birth control and cosmetics etc..
As at 31 December 2008, the total assets of the subsidiary
were approximately RMB175,889,000, equity attributable
to shareholders of the parent was approximately
RMB48,344,000. In 2008, the operating income of the
subsidiary was approximately RMB779,336,000,
representing an increase of 18.31% as compared with
that of 2007, the profit after taxation of the subsidiary
was RMB325,000, the growth was mainly due to the
efficiency arising from the restructuring of the preparation
sales department during the year and the enlargement
in the sales as a result of active exploration of the
preparations market.
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Report of the Board of Directors (continued)

Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

2. Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company
(continued)

“4)

®)

Total equity interest of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Import and Export Company Limited is RMB3,000,000,
in which Shandong Xinhua Medical Trade Company
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company holds 98% of the
total equity interest. The joint venture is mainly engaged
in the import and export of goods and technologies,
marketing and re-export. As at 31 December 2008, the
total assets of the subsidiary were approximately
RMB9,183,000, equity attributable to shareholders of the
Company was approximately RMB6,915,000. In 2008,
the operating income and the profit after taxation of the
subsidiary were approximately RMB82,317,000 and
RMB2,120,000 respectively, representing an increase of
102.11% and an increase of 44.20% respectively as
compared with that of 2007, which were mainly due to
the expansion in the scale of the business.

Total paid-up capital of Xinhua Pharmaceutical
(Shouguang) Company Limited is RMB86,000,000, in
which the Company holds 100% of the total equity interest.
This subsidiary is mainly engaged in producing and selling
chemical products. As at 31 December 2008, the total
assets of the subsidiary were approximately
RMB86,448,000, equity attributable to shareholders of
the parent was approximately RMB82,913,000. In 2008,
the operating income of and the net loss of the subsidiary
were approximately RMB41,322,000 and RMB3,997,000
respectively. The operating income and the net profit of
the subsidiary all dropped as compared with that of
2007.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)

2.

Operations and Results of subsidiaries of the Company
(continued)
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Total equity interest of Zibo Xinhua Pharmacy Chain
Company Limited (“Xinhua Pharmacy”) is RMB2,000,000,
in which the Company holds 88% of the total equity
interest. The main operations of the subsidiary are the
sale of traditional Chinese medicine, prepared herbal
medicine for decoction, preparations, drugs for diagnosis,
drugs for birth control, medical devices, health foods and
cosmetics. As at 31 December 2008, the total assets of
the subsidiary were approximately RMB9,348,000, equity
attributable to shareholders of the parent was
approximately RMB2,769,000. In 2008, the operating
income of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB22,221,000, an increase of 20.88% as compared
with that of 2007. The main reason for the increase was
the expansion in the scale of the business. Net profit was
RMB633,000, representing the same profit over the same
period in 2007.

Total equity interest of Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical Design
Institute Company Limited is RMB2,000,000, in which
the Company holds 90% of the total equity interest. This
subsidiary is mainly engaged in the business of the
design of medical projects. As at 31 December 2008, the
total assets of the subsidiary were approximately
RMB2,882,000, equity attributable to shareholders of the
parent was approximately RMB494,000. In 2008, the
operating income was approximately RMB4,634,000,
representing an increase of 56.85% as compared with
that of 2007, the main reason for the increase was the
expansion in the scale of the business. The profit after
taxation of the subsidiary were approximately RMB16,000.

Total equity interest of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
(Europe) GmbH is EUR650,000, in which the Company
holds 76.9% of the total equity interest. This subsidiary
is mainly engaged in the business of bulk pharmaceutical
intermediates. As at 31 December 2008, the total assets
of the subsidiary were approximately RMB16,514,000,
equity attributable to shareholders of the Company was
approximately RMB2,939,000. In 2008, the operating
income of the subsidiary was approximately
RMB41,788,000, representing an increase of 217.81%
as compared with that of 2007, which was mainly due to
the continued expansion in the scale of the business. The
net profit of the subsidiary was RMB730,000.
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BEEEWRIRST &) Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
3. BESEEeERAER 3. Use of Proceeds
RARRZ-ZZTT—FNLA=BHEE On 3 September 2001, the Company raised an amount of
3,300& IRARL (2 B A ORI 3008 RMB370,517,000 from the issue and offer of 33,000,000
%) - BEESFEAARKES70517T A Shares (including the offer of 3,000,000 state-owned shares).
T BIEZZEENE+ A As at 31 December 2008, a total of approximately
=+—H HEFEAZEESARE RMB327,459,000 from the proceeds of the above issue of A
327,459F 7T - FZAMRATIER ¢ Shares had been used in the following projects:
ERHEe 20085 RRH R
BERENREAER BAHE ER#A RIREE REHLE fii i
Total Investment Accumulated % of the
Name of project investment in 2008 investment total investment Remark
AREFL AREFIL AREFIL
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000

BR QIR ORERR 74,500 7,403 17,526 23.52% N/A
State-level technical centre

SEIGMPREIEE 80,000 - 80,226 100.28% =T
Injection workshop GMP renovation Completed
M R AT ETE B 160,000 - 188,201 117.63% 71
Caffeine technical renovation Completed
L-350f fiTciEE B 29,980 — 23,442 78.19% 7T
L-350 technical renovation Completed
Z iR A (GMP) BUEHE B 39,800 - 46,265 116.24% =T
Analgin GMP renovation Completed
CEHI 384,280 7,403 355,660 - 28201 F LA
Total EREERA

RMB28,201,000
financed by the Company

Btat Note:

1. 2B H B (GMP)SREIER - 1. Analgin GMP renovation project, L-350 project, caffeine technical
L-3501E 8 - MMFAKMBEEREE - renovation project, and Injection GMP renovation project have finished
FEIGMP)IETBE B AR IWE and production has commenced.

EEEW -

2. B R AR BT O BUETE B B AEE AN 2. The renovation of the state-level technical center has been
THRREER - commenced.

BMARERNEEESTRIRIT - 81 The unused proceeds were deposited in banks and will be used

REGRIREBERER - in accordance with project commitments.
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EFeEIHERE Working Report of the Board
1. EAFERN  AATIESEHEHN 1. During the year, the Board of Directors passed resolutions on
N eight occasions:
RARRZZEZENFE—-A++ A. On 17 January 2008, the thirteenth meeting of the fifth
ALEEARERFREES Board was convened by way of written resolution, the
@%‘l'_//?%‘u% HEAER results of the meeting were published in Securities Times
ERZZEENF-ATNABR in the PRC, HKExnews and the Company’s website on
HCEHFRER) - BB 18 January 2008.
[ N /NG
RARRZZEZNFIOA+TN B. On 18 April 2008, the fourteenth meeting of the fifth
AERMIEREREES Board was convened at the Company’s registered office,
@%"l’@)’ﬂ%‘%ﬁ CHEAAET the results of the meeting were published in Securities
BR-ZEZENFMNA=-+—H Times in the PRC, HKExnews and on the Company’s
A b CFE i‘%ﬁ%#@) BB website on 21 April 2008.
WHEH - AR -
RARRZZEZENERA=R C. On 3 June 2008, the first extraordinary Board meeting of
L/{i@?‘i_t’jﬁrﬂ_q ZNFE 2008 was convened by way of written resolutions in
—REREEEEE B2 relation to the change the name of Shandong Xinhua
iEi@T R AR | L BT EE K it Dadi Chemical Company Limited and the increase in its
(LB R AR B R EEEB N capital. The resolutions were approved.
REFFAMERHZESR -
RATRZZEZENEF LA "H\ D. On 18 July 2008, the second extraordinary Board meeting
ANEFEAARER-Z of 2008 was convened by electronic means of
NFEE_NBEE $§"§ communication. The results of the meeting were published
- AEASEHERZ=ZZZN in the Securities Times in the PRC, HKExnews and on
FEATNABARM(EER the Company’s website on 19 July 2008.
) BEREZEES AR
BRGNS
RABRZZEENFLAZ+ E. On 25 July 2008, the fifteenth meeting of the fifth Board
FHEAREMEMEREE was convened at the Company’s registered office. The
EEETRHREE  HBERS results of the meeting were published in the Securities
FER=ZZZNFELA=FTN Times in the PRC, HKExnews and on the Company’s
AR (EHRR) - BB website on 28 July 2008.
FTiEfe 5 - ANA B, -
NN ZENEFTAZT F On 23 October 2008, the sixteenth meeting of the fifth
=H E TEFJT” FMEREE Board was convened at the Company’s registered office.
E2FTREE HEALS The results of the meeting were published in the Securities
HBER=ZZZTN\F+A=+N Times in the PRC, HKExnews and on the Company’s
AR (EHRR) - BB website on 24 October 2008.
FI#EE 5 « AN EHE
ARRRZTENEF A+ G. On 16 December 2008, the third extraordinary Board
N H J«KEEE ‘E’j H_ZZT N\ meeting of 2008 was convened by way of written resolution
FEEZRGBRHEFSSE in relation to the increase in investment to Xinhua
FRIRB T AR RIERE (S Pharmaceutical (Shouguang) Company Limited”. The
H) BRATEBIMNEERZES resolution was approved.
RABRZZEENF+ A= H. On 22 December 2008, the first meeting of the sixth

Board was convened at the Company’s registered office.
The results of the meeting were published in the Securities
Times in the PRC, HKExnews and on the Company’s
website on 23 December 2008.
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Working Report of the Board (continued)

2. Implementation of the Resolutions Passed at the General Meeting
by the Board

The dividend for 2007 of the Company was distributed in mid
August 2008.

Brief Introduction of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Officers

Brief introduction of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Officers are listed in
the above section headed “BRIEF INTRODUCTION OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR OFFICERS” under the section “DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS, SENIOR OFFICERS AND STAFF”.

Public Float

The Company has complied with the requirement in respect of the
minimum public float during this reporting period and up to the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this report.

Remuneration of Directors and Supervisors

Details of the remuneration of the Company’s Directors and Supervisors
are set out in note 12 to the Accounts prepared in accordance with
HKGAAP.

Individuals with the Highest Remuneration

The five individuals with the highest salaries paid by the Group during
the year 2008 were three directors and two senior officers. For details,
please refer to note 13 to the Accounts prepared in accordance with
the HKGAAP.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Rights to Acquire Shares

At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or
its fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable any of the
Directors, the Supervisors, or their spouses or children under 18 years
of age to take advantage by acquiring shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate.

Service Contracts of Directors and Supervisors

None of the Directors and Supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company.

None of the Directors and the Supervisors has a service contract with the

Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Interests in Contracts

Neither the Company, its holding company, its controlling shareholder
nor fellow subsidiaries have signed any contracts in relation to the
Company’s business in which any Directors or Supervisors had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

Accounts

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2008 and the
financial position of the Group and the Company as at 31 December
2008 prepared in accordance with HKGAAP and PRC accounting
standards are set out in section headed “ACCOUNTS PREPARED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH HONG KONG GENERALLY ACCEPTED
ACCOUNTING PRINCIPALS” and “ACCOUNTS PREPARED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH PRC ACCOUNTING STANDARDS”.

Financial Summary

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group prepared in
accordance with HKGAAP for the last five financial years and PRC accounting
standards for the last three financial years is set out in section headed
“SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL AND OPERATING RESULTS".

Profit Appropriation

In accordance with PRC accounting standards, the Group recorded a net
profit of approximately RMB33,966,000 for the year ended
31 December 2008, 10% of which was transferred to the statutory surplus
reserves amounting to approximately RMB3,052,000. The Board has
recommended to distribute a final dividend at RMBO0.3 per 10 shares
subject to the approval of the shareholders of the following 2008 annual
general meeting of the Company (equivalent to approximately HK$0.34,
tax inclusive) on 307,312,830 A Shares and 150,000,000 H Shares in
issue, which is aggregated to be approximately RMB13,719,000. The
above recommendation will be submitted to the 2008 Annual General
Meeting of the Company for approval.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The turnover of the Group and the Company in various geographical
locations is set out in note 5 to the Accounts prepared in accordance
with the HKGAAP.
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Changes in Share Capital and Shareholders

Changes in share capital and shareholders are set out in the above
section headed “CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL AND
SHAREHOLDERS”

Reserves

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year 2008 are set out in Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
to the Accounts prepared in accordance with the HKGAAP, and Statement
of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity prepared in accordance with PRC
accounting standards, respectively.

Fixed Assets

Details of the movement in the fixed assets of the Group and the
Company during year 2008 are set out in notes 15 to the Accounts
prepared in accordance with the HKGAAP, and note 8.10 to the Accounts
prepared in accordance with PRC accounting standards.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group and the
Company as at 31 December 2008 are set out in note 28 to the
Accounts prepared in accordance with the HKGAAP, and notes 8.15 to
the Accounts prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting
standards.

Interest Capitalised

During the year, no interest was capitalised in respect of loans borrowed
by the Group and the Company for financing its construction-in-progress.

Staff Quarters

The Group did not sell any staff quarters to its employees during the
year ended 31 December 2008 but was required to contribute 8% of
the basic wages of the Group’s staff to the accommodation scheme
managed by the Shandong Province Zibo Municipal Finance Bureau in
accordance with the relevant regulations implemented by the PRC
government authorities since 1 January 1998. For the year ended 31
December 2008, contributions to the accommodation scheme made by
the Group in this respect amounted to approximately RMB5,961,000.

Staff Basic Medical Insurance

Pursuant to the Plan for Implementation of Basic Medical Insurance
System for Urban Employees promulgated by the Shandong Provincial
Government and the Schedule for Establishment of Medical Insurance
System for Urban Employees implemented by Zibo Municipal
Government, the Company joined the above-mentioned Medical
Insurance System for Urban Employees in December 2004. For the year
ended 31 December 2008, the total contribution of the Group to the
staff basic medical insurance was approximately RMB7,711,000.
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Preferential Tax Treatment

According to the formal notice (Code Guo Ke Fa Huo No. (2009) 12)
issued by the Department of Science and Technology of Shandong
Province, Shandong Province Finance Bureau, National Taxation Bureau
of Shandong and Local Taxation Bureau of Shandong Province, stating
that the Company is recognised as a new and high technology enterprise,
the recognition will be valid for three years, from 2008 to 2010. According
to the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise Income Tax,
the income tax to be levied on the Company will be 15% from the award
of the recognition.

Designated Deposits

For the year ended 31 December 2008, the Group had neither placed
any deposits with any non-banking financial institutions, nor had it
placed any designated deposits. The Group does not have any overdue
time deposits.

Important Issues

Important issues of the Company for the year 2008 are set out in the
section headed “IMPORTANT ISSUES”.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The percentages of purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers and five largest customers were 18.87% and 19.94%
of the Group’s total purchases and total sales, respectively, for the year
ended 31 December 2008.

The percentages of purchases and sales attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier and largest customer were 4.83% and 7.57% of the
Group’s total purchases and total sales, respectively, for the year ended
31 December 2008.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors or any of their
associates (within the meaning of the Listing Rules), or those
shareholders which own more than 5% of the share capital of the
Company have an interest in any of the above customers or suppliers
of the Group during the year.

Purchase, Sale and Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2008, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries had redeemed, purchased or sold any of the
Company’s listed securities.

Pre-emptive Rights

According to the Company’s Articles of Association and the laws of the
PRC, there is no provision for pre-emptive rights.

IR E R %R /2 B PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Retirement Scheme Arrangements

The Group participates in the State Social Retirement Scheme (the
“Scheme”) and pays the insurance premium in accordance with the
particular regulation issued by the local municipal government whereby
it is required to make an annual contribution of 23% of the total salaries
and bonuses paid to staff. In turn, the local municipal government
undertakes to assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing
and future retirees of the Group. Contributions to the Scheme are
charged to the profit and loss account as and when they are incurred.
For the year ended 31 December 2008, the total contribution of the
Group to the Scheme was approximately RMB25,283,000.

REX S Connected Transactions
(1) AEBELIEERBEANETZEKR (1) Significant connected transactions carried out in the normal
BREEANTRGBENT - course of the Group’s business are summarsied as follows:
—ESN —TTL
2008 2007
AR®TFIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEEATIIRHEEEEE With immediate holding company Shandong
FRAFLTDREMEAR Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group Company
Limited (“SXPGC”) and its subsidiaries
—HEKEAREME — Sale of water, electricity,
steam and raw materials 12,870 14,036
— BRI R — Purchase of raw materials 132,098 96,730
-HRERE — Payment of annual trademark licence fee 1,100 1,100
—EEWE  BELZE — Purchase of property, plant and equipment 9,846 3,358
—-HE&WA — Rental income 361 952
—RETBHRA — Design fees income 24 10
-fHeE — Rental expenses 500 870
—XERBBITIE — Acquisition BANKCOMM equity interest — 648
—BEE T AERA — Transfer land use rights income 924 —
HEEQT With associates
—REBREM B — Purchase of raw materials 12,875 34,768
—RETBHRA — Design fees income 12 31
BOBRE With minority shareholders
—HELBRHERETRER — Sale of pharmaceutical raw materials and
chemical raw materials 162,161 175,989
—EBEIREEKESR — Purchase of chemical raw materials and
water, electricity, steam — 2,938
— RN D AIRE — Purchase of Shouguang Company
eqiuty interest 13,972 —

R ERE R 5 H PR 2 7 Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Connected Transactions (continued)

1

©)

(continued)

In the opinion of the Directors (including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors), the above transactions were carried out in
the ordinary and usual course of the Group’s business. The
aggregate amount of the above transactions for the year 2008
did not exceed the annual cap approved in the general meeting.
The aggregate amount of the above transactions for the year
2007 was RMB111,866,000, and exceeds the annual cap of
RMB96,320,000 approved in the general meeting by
RMB15,546,000. The actual amount incurred in 2007 was ratified,
approved and confirmed by the extraordinary general meeting
of the Company held on 10 October 2008.

In relation to the exceeding annual cap in 2007 and the ratification
of the amount incurred in 2007, the Company issued
announcements on 1 August 2008 and 10 October 2008.

On 17 January 2008, the Company and Shandong Xinhua
Industry and Trade Company Limited (“SXIT”) (a PRC joint stock
limited company of which 29.12% of its interests was held by
SXPGC) entered into a transfer agreement in relation to the
acquisition of some SXIT’s assets. The above assets were
valuated by Shandong Lusheng Land & Real Estate Assessment
and Consultation Company Limited, which issued valuation
reports of (Zibo) Lusheng Fangdichan, (2007) “Gu” issue No.
2538 and Zifangpinggu (2007) issue No. 195. on 27 December
2007. The above assets were valued at RMB10,263,300. After
negotiation by both parties, the consideration of the transfer
agreement was RMB9,500,000.

SXPGC held and owned 35.70% of the total issued share capital
of the Company and was the largest shareholder of the Company.
All directors of SXIT were appointed by SXPGC. Accordingly,
SXIT was an associate (as defined by the Stock Exchange) of
SXPGC and a connected person of the Company. Therefore the
transaction between SXIT and the Company constituted a
connected transaction.

In relation to the above connected transaction (as defined by the
Stock Exchange), the Company issued an announcement on 18
January 2008.

The Company and Shandong Dadi Stalinisation Group Company
Limited (“Dadi Stalinisation”) entered into a share transfer
agreement on 13 May 2008. The Company acquired the 41.4375%
shareholding of Shandong Dadi Xinhua Chemical & Industrial
Company Limited (“Dadi Xinhua”) (the Company’s subsidiary,
now named Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Shouguang) Company
Limited) held by Dadi Stalinisation. The consideration was
RMB13,972,368.

Dadi Xinhua was a subsidiary of the Company and Dadi
Stalinisation was a substantial shareholder of Dadi Xinhua.
Accordingly, Dadi Stalinisation was a connected person of the
Company and the transaction between Dadi Stalinisation and
the Company constituted a connected transaction.

IR E R %R /2 B PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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(continued)

In relation to the above connected transaction (defined by the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ), the Company issued
an announcement on 14 May 2008.

After the above acquisition of Dadi Xinhua’s shares by the
Company, (the “Acquisition”) Dadi Xinhua became a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company and Dadi Stalinisation was no longer
a connected person of the Company.

Prior to the Acquisition, Dadi Xinhua and Dadi Stalinisation
entered into continuing connected transactions in relation to
Dadi Xinhua purchasing chemical raw materials from Dadi
Stalinisation. The total consideration for the first half of 2008 was
RMB6,998,000.

Prior to the Acqusition, Weifang Wanyuan Chemical Company
Limited (“Weifang Wanyuan”) and Dadi Stalinisation entering
into continuing connected transactions with in relation to Weifang
Wanyuan purchasing chemical raw materials from Dadi
Stalinisation. The total consideration for the first half of 2008 was
RMB9,623,000.

Prior to the Acquisition, Weifang Wanyuan and Dadi Stalinisation
also entered into continuing connected transactions in relation
to Weifang Wanyuan selling chemical products to Dadi
Stalinisation. The total consideration for the first half of 2008 was
RMB20,749,000.

Weifang Wanyuan was a subsidiary of the Company and Dadi
Stalinisation was a substantial shareholder of Weifang Wanyuan.
Therefore, Dadi Stalinisation was a connected person of Weifang
Wanyuan and the transactions between them constituted
continuing connected transactions.

An announcement in relation to the above three continuing
connected transactions (defined by the Stock Exchange) was
published on 5 September 2008. However, after the Acquisition,
the above three series of transactions were no longer continuing
connected transactions as Dadi Stalinisation was not a connected
person to the Company or its subsidiaries.

On 7 October 2008, the Company and L. Perrigo Company (“L.
Perrigo”) entered into an agreement in relation to the Company
supplying pharmaceutical products to L. Perrigo and its affiliates
for a period of two years from 1 January 2008 to 31 December
2009 (“Perrigo Agreement”). The agreement was automatically
renewable for a term of one year unless terminated on six
months’ written notice.

The annual caps for the Perrigo Agreement are RMB48,000,000
for 2008, RMB80,000,000 for 2009 and RMB88,000,000 for
2010.

The actual amount incurred in 2008 in relation to the Perrigo
Agreement was RMB39,709,000.
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Connected Transactions (continued)

4)

(6)

@

(continued)

L. Perrigo was a subsidiary of Perrigo Company. Perrigo Company
was a connected person of the Company as it is the parent
company of Perrigo International, Inc., which was a substantial
shareholder of SINO-USA Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“Xinhua Perrigo”), which became a 50.1%
owned subsidiary of the Company on 1 January 2007.
Accordingly, L. Perrigo, being a subsidiary of Perrigo Company,
was also a connected person of the Company and the
transactions contemplated under the Perrigo Agreement
constituted continuing connected transactions.

In relation to the above continuing connected transactions
(defined by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the
Stock Exchange”)), the Company issued an announcement on
23 October 2008.

Prior to the entering to the Perrigo Agreement, the Company
entered into continuing connected transactions with Perrigo
Company, the parent company of L. Perrigo. The total consideration
for the first half of 2008 was RMB26,393,000. Such transactions
was subsequently covered by the Perrigo Agreement.

In relation to the above continuing connected transactions
(defined by the Stock Exchange), the Company issued an
announcement on 5 September 2008.

Before Perrigo Company, the parent company of L. Perrigo,
became a connected person of the Company on 1 January
2007, the then associated company of the Company, Xinhua
Perrigo, and Perrigo China Business Trust, a subsidiary of Perrigo
Company, entered into a written agreement dated 3 July 2006
for a period of 10 years. At that time, the transaction was not
a connected transaction.

The major term of the agreement was that Perrigo China Business
Trust agreed to purchase 100% of Xinhua Perrigo’s output of the
pharmaceutical product up to 1,500 metric tons per year.

After Perrigo Company became a connected person of the
Company on 1 January 2007, the above transactions constituted
continuing connected transactions. The total consideration for
the 2008 was RMB116,053,000.

In relation to the above continuing connected transactions
(defined by the Stock Exchange), the Company issued an
announcement on 5 September 2008.

On 9 October 2008, the Company and Eastwest United Group
(“Eastwest”), Inc. entered into an agreement in relation to the
Company supplying pharmaceutical products to Eastwest United
Group, Inc. for a period of two years from 1 January 2008 to 31
December 2009 (“Eastwest Agreement”).

IR E R %R /2 B PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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(continued)

The annual caps for the Eastwest Agreement are RMB8,000,000
for 2008 and RMB12,000,000 for 2009.

The actual amount incurred in 2008 in relation to the Eastwest
Agreement was RMB6,399,000.

Prior to the entering into the Eastwest Agreement, the Company
and Eastwest entered into various transactions. The total
consideration for the first half of 2008 was RMB2,160,000. Such
transactions were subsequently covered by the Eastwest
Agreement.

Eastwest was a substantial shareholder of Zibo Xinhua-Eastwest
Pharmaceutical Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.
Therefore Eastwest was a connected person of the Company.
Accordingly, the ongoing transactions between the Company
and Eastwest constituted continuing connected transactions.

In relation to the above continuing connected transaction (defined
by the Stock Exchange), the Company issued an announcement
on 23 October 2008.

The Board (including the independent non-executive Directors)
considered that all the above connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions had been negotiated on an
arm’s length basis and were on normal commercial terms and
in the ordinary course of business. They also considered the
transactions had been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements terms that were fair and reasonable, and the entering
into the transactions was in the best interests of the shareholders
as a whole.

The disclosed related party transactions with associates in the
auditors’ report were not continuing connected transactions or
connected transactions defined by Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. All the transactions mentioned in this section were
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
defined by Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Auditors

The accounts of the Company and the Group for the year 2008 prepared
in accordance with HKGAAP and PRC accounting standards have been
audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited and ShineWing, Certified
Public Accountant, PRC respectively.

The Company intends to re-appoint SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited and
ShineWing as international auditors and PRC auditors of the Company
respectively for the year 2009 at the annual general meeting for the year
2008 to be held in 2009.

EREEG M By order of the Board
nE Guo Qin
EFR Chairman
B L RO Zibo, Shandong, PRC

—EEAF=ZA=-1H 20 March 2009
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To All Shareholders,

In 2008, all the members of the supervisory committee of the Company
(the “Supervisory Committee”) actively performed their tasks in protecting
the interests of the Company and its shareholders in accordance with
the requirements of the Company Law of the PRC, the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles of Association”) and the relevant
PRC laws and regulations. The Supervisory Committee also performed
the various duties assigned to it by the Articles of Association in an
active, diligent and faithful manner.

The Supervisory Committee convened five meetings in 2008:

On 17 January 2008, the Twelfth meeting of the Fifth Supervisory
Committee was convened by way of written resolution, to approve the
proposed connected transaction of acquisition of assets of Shandong
Xinhua Technology & Trade Company Limited.

The Thirteenth meeting of the Fifth Supervisory Committee was convened
at the Company’s registered office on 18 April 2008, in which the

following resolutions were passed:

(1) To approve the report of the Supervisory Committee for the year
2007;

(2) To approve the annual report and announcement of results for
the year 2007;

(3) To approve the first quarterly report of 2008;

(4) To approve the audited accounts of the Company for the year
2007;

(5) To approve the resolution in respect of the provisions for
diminution in value of assets and treatment of related losses;

(6) To approve the proposal in respect of the estimate of continuing
connected transactions and the use of fudnding for the year
2007;

(7) To approve the report of self-evaluation of the Company’s internal
control for the year 2007;

(8) To approve the significant changes of accounting policies and
adjust the 2007 Balance Sheet.
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On 25 July 2008, the fourteenth meeting of the Fifth Supervisory
Committee was convened at the Company’s registered office, to approve
the 2008 interim report of the Company, and the connected transactions
for the first half of 2008.

On 23 October 2008, the fifteenth meeting of the Fifth Supervisory
Committee was convened at the Company’s registered office, to approve
the third quarter report and financial report of 2008 of the Company
and nominate the Supervisor candidates of the Sixth Supervisory
Committee.

On 22 December 2008, the first meeting of the Sixth Supervisory
Committee was convened at the Company’s registered office, to elect
Mr. Yu Gongfu as the Chairman of the Sixth Supervisory Committee of
the Company.

Members of the Supervisory Committee also attended the board
meetings of the Company and exercised effective supervision as to
whether business decisions made by the Board of Directors were in
compliance with the laws and regulations of the PRC and the Articles
of Association, and in line with the development of the Company and
also in the interests of the shareholders of the Company. The Supervisory
Committee considered that the Board of Directors exercised its powers
in accordance with the law.

In the opinion of the Supervisory Committee, the actual use of the
proceeds from the issue of new shares was in compliance with the
undertakings made by the Company and all the connected transactions
that took place during the year were fair and reasonable.

The Supervisory Committee has carried out its duties diligently. The
Supervisory Committee has carefully reviewed the accounts and the
Report of the Directors to be submitted by the Board of Directors to the
2008 Annual General Meeting and has not found anything contained
therein to be questionable. In the opinion of the Supervisory Committee,
the financial report for the year 2008 reflects the true financial position
and results of the Company.

The Company was not involved in any significant litigation during the
year.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Yu Gongfu
Chairman of Supervisory Committee

Zibo, Shandong, PRC
20 Mrach 2009
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The Group was not involved in any material litigation or arbitration
and no material litigation or arbitration is pending or threatened
or was made against the Group during the reporting period.

During the reporting period, there were no material acquisitions
and sales of assets, nor any material acquisitions and mergers.

In the reporting period, there was no trust, subcontract or lease
of assets between the Company and other companies.

During the reporting period of the annual report, there was no
other material guarantee provided by the Company nor had any
material guarantee provided by the Company not been fully
performed.

The Company did not appoint any custodian for the management
of funds.

None of the Company, the Directors and the Senior Officers has
been penalised by any PRC authorities during the year ended
31 December 2008.

The Company and its shareholders, holding more than 5% of
shares of the Company, have disclosed undertakings designated
by the CSRC:

(1) SXPGC has undertaken between the 36th month and
48th month since the listing of the non-tradable shares
of the Company that it shall not sell any of its A shares
of the Company on the SZSE at a price less than RMB4.8
per share, (such price will be on an ex-rights basis if
there is any declaration of dividends, bonus issues or
capitalisation of capital reserve during the period between
the day of implementation of the revised share reform of
the Company and sale of the shares by SXPGC) being
150% of the average of the closing prices of the listed
A shares as quoted on the SZSE in the thirty (30) trading
days prior to the issuance date of the relevant notice of
the shareholders' meeting. Should SXPGC breach any of
the provisions of this undertaking in the sale of its shares,
the proceeds resulting from such sale shall be owned by
the Company.

(2) SXPGC guaranteed not to use any funds of the Company
for non-business reasons starting from 1 January 2006.
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Important Issues (continued)

8. B8R SRR B s E AR 6 iR 8. The related party transactions are as set out in the Note 10 to
BT - the Accounts prepared in accordance with PRC accounting
standards.

9. RWEEBAR - RABRMBESRE 9. During the reporting period, the Company did not provide funds

B ARBEBEHMARBIRE to the connected parties, and the connected parties did not
BERHER provide funds to the Company.

10. X EKED 10.  Auditors
BEAZEM REFMERTRIARE The auditors of the Company and respective remuneration of
BWE R MM e] —& - auditors are set out in the section headed “Auditors’ remuneration”

disclosed in the “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT".

1. FHEAM EmAAREERERL (AR 11.  Information about holding other listed companies (RMB)
JT

)
BENmEE
LA gaen
NERELR i3 147 HEREE Change of
EHER Initial Proportion of Book value BENRE shareholder’s
EHRE Abbreviated investment equity interest of end of Profit/loss equity of
Stock Code Name amount in investee this period of this period this period
601601 FEAR 7,000,000.00 0.07% 55,600,000.00 —  (191,650,000.00)
China Pacific Insurance
601328 RBRT 14,225,318.00 0.02% 35,417,280.00 - (81,295,360.00)
BANKCOMM
600831 EEAL 463,655.00 0.01% 280,120.00 - (183,535.00)
BC & TV Network
600713 HREE 568,800.00 0.02% 269,550.00 - (299,250.00)
Nanjing Medical
aif 22,257,773.00 - 91,566,950.00 —  (273,428,145.00)
Total
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13.
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Important Issues (continued)

BRK

ERHHR

Reception time

idepit

Reception location

20085014218
21 January 2008

2008014236
23 January 2008
2008024208

20 February 2008

20084037120
12 March 2008

2008403 718H
18 March 2008

2008564 20H
20 June 2008

REfER
Office address
of the Company
REER
Office address
of the Company

NEER
Office address

of the Company
NEEF
Office address

of the Company
REfER
Office address

of the Company
NEEA
Office address

of the Company

12. Information of reception research, communication and interview
BRNETEARRRHMEH

&&#HA ERHg Main content of the discussion

Reception method  Reception objects and the information provided

B8 i Blf5 3 TRAGEERERR

Field study Guosen Securities Understand the production and
operation of the Company

iR PRERS TREBERU LAY E

Field study Boc International (China) Limited Understand the affect
to the Company from
macroeconomic policy

Bt i BEES TRBEAEEREN

Field study Industrial Securities Understand the information about
pharmaceutical companies

Bt FREED HHEES TERARERER

Field study First-Trust Fund, E Fund Understand development
of the Company

BB PERRSE TRLAGAERERN

Field study China Securities Understand the production and
operation of the Company

BB EEBES TRLARRER

Field study Qilu Securities Understand the development

prospects of the Company

REIF=FHRENEIER

13. Cash dividends of the Company in the past three years

AHERERRE
BREBLATE

R &HSFE
(RPEE R ERER)
Profit attributable

to the equity
shareholders of
parent company in

hEaftE=E
hEEEREBLAT
FRAEERHRE
(RPEERHERER)
:0) 4

As % of Profit
attributable to the
equity shareholders
of parent company

consolidated in consolidated

Bentien statements statements

(8#]) (prepared in (prepared in

Amounts accordance with accordance with

(including PRC accounting PRC accounting

income tax) standards) standards)

(ANR¥TT) (ANR¥TT) (%)

RMB RMB %

2007 13,719,384.90 32,723,034.60 41.93
2006 9,146,256.60 23,567,389.39 38.81
2005 22,865,641.50 3,640,382.90 628.11
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Independent Auditor’s Report

fa Kk A ()
1l b A A

H955%

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED

(a joint stock limited company established in the People’s Republic of
China with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shandong
Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred as the “Group”) set out on pages 89
to 165, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31st
December 2008, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, (whether due to fraud or error); selecting and applying
appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that
are reasonable in the circumstances.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
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Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31st December 2008
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Tam Kwok Ming, Banny

Practising Certificate Number: P03289

Hong Kong
20 March 2009
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

(REBEBLERA2ZTRAES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)

i Z2—EZEN\F+=H=1+—HIFE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

ZETNE e
2008 2007
ft et AREFT ARETFT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
e Turnover 5 2,077,753 1,865,568
$HE RN Cost of sales (1,776,658) (1,570,246)
EM Gross profit 301,095 295,322
HmEBBA Other operating income 5 45,920 49,736
HEER Selling expenses (118,507) (114,005)
ERER Administrative expenses (162,072) (169,096)
HEtxBER Other operating expenses (8,917) (8,041)
ik NI £ Share of results of associates 1,884 (4,369)
M%ER Finance costs 6 (17,956) (12,183)
W B4 A A Profit before taxation 41,447 37,364
st Income tax 7 (5,677) 400
AN A Profit for the year 8 35,770 37,764
He Attributable to :
NN R AR R FE A A Equity holders of the Company 30,064 31,818
DERE RS Minority interests 5,706 5,946
35,770 37,764
% 2 Dividends 9 13,719 9,146
TR — E AR Earnings per share — basic 10 AR%RMB0.066 A R RMB0.070

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(RIEEBLERMZETREES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
EZ\E+=-HA=+—H As at 31st December 2008

ZEEN\F ZTELF
2008 2007
liog= ARBTT AREF T
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
EREEE Non-current assets
Ry Technical know-how 14 792 1,922
M - WE LR Property, plant and equipment 15 959,882 857,040
HEIRE Construction in progress 16 88,206 71,180
THE AR Prepaid lease payments
TN HEERIE on land use rights 17 105,061 91,266
RA/NEIE Interests in associates 18 25,632 23,748
—H &z Available-for-sale investments 19 94,767 367,162
IEIEFT1S fRﬁ? Deferred tax assets 30 1,031 2,157
1,275,371 1,414,475
mEEE Current assets
VEN<Y Inventories 20 304,515 286,041
JiE M BR TR Trade and other
Fth i W TR IE receivables 21 289,995 281,801
THE A2 Prepaid lease payments
i‘ﬁﬁfﬁ%?ﬂ on land use rights 17 4,146 2,577
R E EER A Amount due from immediate
holding company 22 43,091 39,347
JFE U Bt 5 1 ) Amounts due from associates 23 1,482 7,558
U & Tax recoverable 2,700 146
PTESMTA Derivative financial instruments 24 — 15,897
B IRITFE R Pledged bank deposits 25 54,457 12,425
RITERRRSEH Bank balances and cash 26 183,667 199,833
884,053 845,625
mEaE Current liabilities
AR R Trade and other 27 361,818 269,807
A FE T R payables
FEATH & A A Amount due to an associate 23 1,805 125
ERXME Tax payable 462 =
TEeRMTA Derivative financial instruments 24 7,591 —
RARITER Short-term bank loans 28 284,474 206,819
656,150 476,751
mHEESRHE Net current assets 227,903 368,874
HEERTBAR Total assets less current liabilities 1,503,274 1,783,349

IWRFERERGBERDF Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

(A =7 © |1 R mEMRL A

Prepaired by Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
R-ZZZNF+=A=+—H As at 31st December 2008

ZEEZN\E —ETLF
2008 2007
et ARBTFIT AREFT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
BEX R R Capital and reserves
A& A< Share capital 29 457,313 457,313
ffE Reserves 995,502 1,212,214
R R EARR B Proposed final dividend 13,719 13,719
AN B AR SR G A A Equity attributable to
equity holders of the Company 1,466,534 1,683,246
DR ER Minority interests 33,746 50,793
HEs Total equity 1,500,280 1,734,039
ERBDAR Non-current liability
EEMIHAsE Deferred tax liabilities 30 2,994 49,310
1,503,274 1,783,349
TR A ISR A E8IBE EE1656 BN T T The consolidated financial statements on pages 89 to 165 were approved
NE=ZA-TRKEETSRERTEAMH - and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 20th March 2009
WHTIEEFRKREE and are signed on its behalf by :
nE HinE Guo Qin Zhao Songguo
EFE EE Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(REEBZERMK G RAFSH) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
BE-TZN\E+=-A=+—HIEE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

LEREER AR
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

&
Einid % hx ZH#E bH
2 R 4RE  EEEE  MERE ARERE  RBEE  ERES  REEN  RIEG a4t  RE#E #it
Available-
Asset for-sale
Share Share Capital  Reserve revaluation investment Other  Exchange  Retained  Dividend Minority
capital  premium reserve funds reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings reserve Total interests Total
AREFT AREFT ARETT ARKTr ARETr ARETT ARETT ARETr AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFr ARETT
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000

(itb) (itb) (itc) (itd)
(Note b) (Note )~ (Note ¢ (Note d)
RZFR+F-F-H
At 1st January 2007 457313 466,618 78,642 162,404 25,850 — — 648 168,523 9,146 1,369,144 3,343 1,372,487

BEBNEBELZEREE
Exchange difference arising on

translation of overseas

operation - - - - - - - 103 - - 103 31 134
MR EZ REND L ERY
Increase in fair value of

available-for-sale investments — — — — — 342,737 — — — — 342,737 — 342,737
i E 2 REMSIHM

BRAEHEE
Deferred tax asset arising

from available-for-sale

investments - - - - - (51,410) - - - - (51,410) - (51,410)

ERERETERNFRA
Net income recognised
directly in equity - - - - - 29137 - 103 - - 291,430 3 291,461
AERE
Profit for the year - — — — — — — = 31,818 = 31,818 5,946 37,764

TERERAL N AR
Total recognised
income and expenses
for the year - - - - - 291,37 - 103 31,818 - 323,248 5977 329,225

WEHELR
Acquisition of subsidiaries - — - - - - - — - - - 41,473 41,473
EBRBEN
Transfer from retained

earnings - — — 1,972 - - - - (1,972 - - - -
AE-FEARERE
2006 final dividend paid - — — — — — — —
“ERLERERERS
Proposed final 2007 dividend - - - - - - - - (13,719) 13,719 - - -

(9,146)  (9,146) - (9,148)

RZZ2F+E+ZA=1-H
At 31st December 2007 457,313 466,618 78,642 164,376 25,850 291,327 - 751 184,650 13,719 1,683,246 50,793 1,734,039
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Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity (continued)
( il BIR )
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Prepaired by Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
BE-TZN\F+=-A=+—HILSEE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

LEREER AR
Attributable to equity holders of the Company

&
K ¥ hx ZBE b
2 R 4Re  EEER  BERE SRERE  RBER  ERES  GEEN  RIRG #  RR#: it
Available-
Asset for-sale
Share Share Capital ~ Reserve revaluation investment Other Exchange  Retained  Dividend Minority
capital  premium reserve funds reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings reserve Total interests Total
ARBFT ARETT ARETT ARKTr ARETrT ARETT ARETT ARETr AREFT ARETT ARETr ARKTr AREfL
RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000
(itb) (itb) (i) (i)
(Note b) (Note b) ~ (Note ¢ (Note d)

BEBNEBEE ERER
Exchange difference

arising on translation

of overseas operation - — — — — —
AHEEZRENAAERD
Increase in fair value of

available-for-sale

investments — — — — —  (273428) — — —
HILE 2 REMSIHM

BEAGHEE
Deferred tax asset arising

from available-for-sale

investments — — — — — 41,044 — — —

(314) - (314) (63) @77)

(273,428) - (213428)

41,044 - 41,044

ERERETERNFRML
Net expense recognised
directly in equity - - - - —  (232,384)
REREH
Profit for the year - — — = = = = = 30,064 = 30,064 5,706 35,770

(314) =

(232,698) (63 (232,761)

Total recognised income
and expenses for the year - — — — —  (282,384) - (314) 30,064 —  (202,634) 5643  (196,991)

EMEBARRE
Acquisition of additional

interests in a subsidiary - - - - - - (359) - -
HEWBAR
Disposal of a subsidiary - — - - — — - - - -
BEREEN
Transfer from retained earnings - - - 3,052 - - - - (3,052) - - - -
P ERRRS
Dividends paid to minority

shareholders - - - - - - - - - -
AEZFRLRERE
2007 final dividend paid - — — — — — - -
ZEE\EHERERE
Proposed final 2008 dividend - - - - - - - - (13,719) 13,719 - — —

(359)  (13613)  (13,972)

8871) (8,871

(206) (206)

(13719 (13,719) — (13719

RZEENE+ZA=1-H
At 31st December 2008 457,313 466,618 78,642 167,428 25,850 58,943 (359) 437 197,943 13,719 1,466,534 33,746 1,500,280
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B aE: Notes :

(a) BRETEEEERRARTNDAEE ([AF) (a)
5i2]) BRREMERAT ZRFDIK -

(1) FRMEEE

2) REBRBREEFN0%EETRGBATE
& EAERRBABSSHETME
RNEI50% + A AREIZEL

(3) RRBEBRIERASRBZEIER

(4) RS TROR

REEEEBHAEE REAELAR S SRIE
ERPESMENRR FEEAERE ZBH
B FETE

(b) BmaEBEEREEARESD (b)

BADVRERABITRREAES - WO RS
TRRER - BEARNEE I EREARARE
B ERARIAD B AR A BB EF R
BERTROBRAZE - RETEEEER &
AR R R B R BE ARG AR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(RIEEBLERMZETREES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
L Z-ZTTN\F+-H=+—HLLFE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in The People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) and the Company’s Articles of Association (the “Articles”), profit after
taxation shall be appropriated in the following order :

(1) make up accumulated losses;

(2) transfer 10% of the profit after taxation to the statutory surplus
reserve. When the balance of the statutory surplus reserve reaches
50% of the registered capital, such transfers need not be made;

(3) transfer to the discretionary surplus reserve an amount approved by
the shareholders in general meetings; and

(4) distribute dividends to shareholders.

The amount transferred to the statutory surplus reserve shall be based on
the profit after taxation in the statutory accounts prepared in accordance with
the PRC accounting standards.

Share premium account and capital reserve

Share premium account arose from issues of shares net of issuing expenses.
Capital reserve comprises mainly surplus between the appraised value of
assets and value of shares issued when the Company was converted from
a state-owned enterprise to a joint stock limited company. According to the
relevant regulations in the PRC, capital reserve and share premium account
can only be used to increase share capital.

(c) HHEES (c) Reserve funds

EERER EERER
L& % 4 #Et

Statutory Discretionary

surplus surplus
reserve reserve Total

(3£ (i) (&L (ii))

(note (i) (note (ii))
ARKTFIT ARKEFT ARBEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R-_ZEZE+F—HF—H At 1st January 2007 100,858 61,546 162,404
BERBEF Transfer from retained earnings 1,972 — 1,972
R-_ZEE+F+_A=+—H At 31st December 2007 102,830 61,546 164,376
BERBEF Transfer from retained earnings 3,052 — 3,052
RZEENF+=-_A=+—H At 31st December 2008 105,882 61,546 167,428
— — —
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(c) HEES (8)

) EEBRBATES

AEBFRBPBUETERB 2BRFE
HHE10%EEERBATES - &
ERAAELEETMERDN50%
B - AILATNEIRE - S ATESATAR
TR E B ARAE o BT BB
BN EEREERTESE - HER
FEARPA 7 & AN #925% ©

(ii) TERBAES

EERHRAESNRE G FhIZEE
WWEERRETEA - AIBIERAE
BRIGHARA - (B FEERER (R A 7R AT
BERAGRZEBE - (EBREQR
SMALBRRERZBS ©

(d) H b e
Hitffis 8 D BRRIBHBRRFEEZ

ENREZAREREEZEEEZRAEZ
ZH e

Notes :

o A el 3L 4 =
GEEREER ()
Consolidated Statement of Changes In Equity (continued)

(4

iy : 1) BRAR

Prepaired by Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
BE-ZZ/\F+-A=+—HLFE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

Reserve funds (Continued)

(i) Statutory surplus reserve

The Group is required in each year to transfer 10% of the profit after
taxation as reported in the statutory accounts prepared in accordance
with the PRC accounting standards to the statutory surplus reserve
until the balance reaches 50% of the registered share capital. This
reserve can be used to make up any losses incurred or to increase
share capital. Except for the reduction of losses incurred, any other
usage should not result in this reserve balance falling below 25%
of the registered capital.

(ii) Discretionary surplus reserve

The discretionary surplus reserve was set up by means of
appropriation from the retained earnings. Subject to approval by
shareholders in general meetings, the reserve can be used to reduce
any losses incurred and to increase share capital. Any transfers to
the reserve also require the approval of shareholders in general
meetings.

Other reserve
Other reserves represent the difference between the fair value of the

consideration paid and the relevant share of carrying value of the subsidiaries’
net assets acquired from the minority shareholders.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

(RIEEBLERMZETREES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
i Z=ZZN\E+=A=+—HIFE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

ut- 17§ 3 S 2
2008 2007
AB®TT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RETH OPERATING ACTIVITIES
BB AR A Profit before taxation 41,447 37,364
RBE: Adjustments for:
T3fE AR B Amortisation of prepaid lease
ERIEEH payments on land use rights 3,020 2,461
R iir# Amortisation of technical know-how 1,130 1,130
il Depreciation 115,739 103,710
RITMEBA Bank interest income (3,617) (2,311)
AfHEE 2 RERSEA Dividend income from
an available-for-sale investment (4,022) (914)
BisE A Finance costs 17,956 12,183
HEIERFEE 2 BENS Gain on disposal of assets classified
as held for sale - (6,401)
TESBIANAE Decrease (increase) in fair value of
D () derivative financial instruments 23,488 (15,763)
A EE 2 REFSWA Interest income from an available-for-sale
investment = (1,647)
HEM B AR MR Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (685) —
HHEMBAREE Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary — 1,040
HEME  BEREHEER Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 5,688 4,360
& Tl Gain on disposal of land use rights (373) —
EEMERREE Share of results of associates (1,884) 4,369
EUR R RIERE B Allowance for bad and doubtful debts of
trade receivables 4,037 6,254
HitERFARERAE Allowance for bad and doubtful debts of
other receivables 146 6,646
HFEMR Allowance for inventories 1,749 3,026
EEEREHA Operating cash flow before
KeERene movements in working capital 203,819 155,507
FEEM Increase in inventories (35,713) (37,767)
FEUR TR R L FE U IR (Increase) decrease in trade and
(&) Ao other receivables (17,7117) 5,038
EREEERARIFE (Increase) decrease in amount due from
(&) Ao immediate holding company (13,590) 7,527
JE B & N R ZUB R Decrease in amounts due from associates 6,076 5,032
BT &Efﬁréﬁwﬁ Increase (decrease) in trade and
#EmCad) other payables 109,789 (29,885)
FERTHEE A B IR M Increase in amount due to an associate 1,680 125
REEE/ RS Cash generated from operations 254,344 105,577
BN EMER PRC income tax paid (11,915) (11,510)
BEEZDMEEZREPH NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 242,429 94,067
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Consolidated Cash FIow Statement (contlnued)
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Prepa/red by Shandong X/nhua Pharmaceutlcal Company le/ted
—EEN\E+=ZA=+—HILEE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

—EBETNE ZTTtE
2008 2007
fit &% AREEFT ARETFT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
REEH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
YHERIRHE Payment for construction in progress (202,425) (51,694)
BHEARITER (E M) WD (Increase) decrease in pledged
bank deposits (42,032) 16,976
BANE  BEREE Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (49,023) (60,650)
TR RARE Increase in prepaid lease
FRIESE N payments on land use rights (15,643) (7,481)
BEBEAR  WEMBAT  Investments in subsidiaries
and associates — (17,619)
EEF AR RE Acquisition of additional interests
in a subsidiary (4,770) —
W AR MY BE B B 12 ) Proceeds from acquisition/ deemed
PS5 acquisition of subsidiaries — 5,444
HERBARREFRL Net cash outflow from disposal of
a subsidiary 36 (70) —
BARHEHEZRE Purchase of available-for-sale
investments = (648)
WEA i E 2 R E A Repayment from available-for-sale
investment — 117,000
BUERAI R E 2 B & Dividend received from an
REBA available-for-sale investment 4,022 914
HESERLELEMER Proceeds from disposal of assets
classified as held for sale - 10,600
HEME  BERZE Proceeds from disposal of property,
FIE 3R plant and equipment 1,030 12,545
& L F AR IR Proceeds from disposal of
land use rights 925 —
BREBITHIS Bank interest received 3,617 2,311
BRmATHEE 2 RE Interest received from an
FIEMA available-for-sale investment - 1,647
REFHA () JZREBE  NET CASH (USED IN) FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES (304,369) 29,345
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

S = A=T|

A X

Pharmaceutical Company Limited
{E—ZEENE+=A=1+—HBILEE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

k-1 J] 2 e
2008 2007
Fitst AREFT ARETFT
NOTES RMB’000 RMB’000
MEEE FINANCING ACTIVITIES
HERITER New bank loans raised 439,409 299,237
ERRITER Repayment of bank loans (361,754) (327,652)
ERAE Interest paid (17,956) (12,183)
ERRE Dividends paid (13,719) (9,146)
XD ERERE Dividends paid to minority shareholders (206) —
BEISEREFE Repayment to a minority shareholder - (6,969)
MRAHAE (R ReRE NET CASH FROM (USED IN)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES 45,774 (56,713)
ReRBSERMEM NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH
(RY) B8 AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (16,166) 66,699
FMzBeRBEERY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALETNS
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 199,833 133,134
FRezBeR CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BesEY THE END OF THE YEAR,
BROIERRREEH represented by bank balances and cash 183,667 199,833
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IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Rz estRAI4RE]) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)

 ZE_Z2F)\E+=-HA=+—HIEE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

General

The Company is a joint stock limited company established in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) with limited liability. The
H shares of the Company were listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) in December 1996
and its A shares were listed at Shenzhen Stock Exchange in July
1997.

The directors of the Company regard Hualu Holdings Company
Limited, a state-owned limited liability company established in
the PRC, as the ultimate holding company and Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited (“SXPGC”), a wholly
state-owned limited liability company established in the PRC, as
the immediate holding company.

The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the “Company
Information” section to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the development, production and sales of bulk
pharmaceuticals, preparations, chemical products and other
products.
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(REEBLERM2ETREES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
Z2-ZZT)\F+=ZA=+—HILFE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

RRAMITRESITHEEM
BHE#A ((FEEMERS
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RAFE  ARBERABEE SR
RE ([BEGHEBAE]) MBRMB2E
AIRkRE(ETXSBRMERYE

SEAL - RFEMBEBRAR-FF
NE—R—BARMAIGZ &5
fa] o

ARG EREINNR R
%z%ﬂﬂ‘“i&%ﬁﬂ'l%ﬁﬁ CCHES)
HKAS 39 & HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

B ERMERERERZES) —2EF 1R

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11
BX (BEVBREREZES)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12

B (EARYBERERBZES) —REE 145

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

R E SR RIS AT
B RINEREHEE 2 ERBER 2T
FRIEBMEALE - FULBAELH
i -

REEN EIZF A TS RMER
Rz FER  ERT R o

BRS B wmE L] (BRTA)
HKFRSs (Amendments)
BRUBREERNE1R BERT)
HKFRS 1 (Revised)

BREMBHRE RS 7R
HKFRS 7

EE G EAE 1R EFT)

HKAS 1 (Revised)

BB G ERIE 235 (K EET)

HKAS 23 (Revised)
BEEGTERE 275 (KT

HKAS 27 (Revised)

BB G EAEIR2R REFE R (EBED
HKAS 32 and 1 (Amendments)

1100

2.

—REF125%

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments and interpretations (“new HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
which are or have become effective.

TREEZENH

Reclassification of Financial Assets

BRUBREERE  FEREFRNRS

HKFRS 2: Group and Treasury Share Transactions?

ARG RTIE & e

Service Concession Arrangements?®

EEGERNE19% —HREBRERNEE -
E*HE{’HHHE’JKE%IJG

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction®

REEEERR

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect on how
the results and financial position for the current or prior accounting
periods have been prepared and presented. Accordingly, no
prior period adjustment has been required.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, amendments or interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective.

BRI B REER 2 BUE

Improvements to HKFRSs!

BIRRNE B ISR

First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards?

ERIE: RE-SEARSRIANKE?

Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Improving
Disclosures about Financial Instruments?

BB HmR 2SN A2

Presentation of Financial Statements?

tEE A2

Borrowing Costs?

ire KB R RKRS

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements?®

BREAZIEESRTIAREE?

Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising
on Liquidation?

IR ERERBERAR Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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BRI B wEERE 25 (BT
HKFRS 2 (Amendment)
BRHBREEREIR (BEFT)
HKFRS 3 (Revised)
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

LIRRM 2T RAIFES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)

BZE-_ZTN\HF+-A=+—HBLLFE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

Application of New and Revised Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)

(continued)

BEBEIHIERS
Eligible Hedged Items?®

BB AR - HEEHEERNEE QR 2 REKAR?
Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Associate?
57 B 151 M AUR?
Share-based Payment — Vesting Conditions and Cancellations?
EBa o
Business Combinations?®
& Ek2
Operating Segments?

BRARITET A

Embedded Derivates*

RAZRFEEES

Customer Loyalty Programmes®

FEIER R

Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate?
HBINE TSR A R o

Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation®
R%EEADKIFR S EES

Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners?®
HEEBARE’

Transfer of Assets from Customer?”

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009
except the amendments to HKFRS 5, effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2009

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 October 2008

7 Effective for transfers of assets from customers received on or after
1 July 2009

The application of HKFRS 3 (Revised) may affect the accounting
for business combination for which the acquisition date is on or
after the beginning of the annual reporting period beginning on
or after July 1, 2009. HKAS 27 (Revised) will affect the accounting
treatment for changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the other new and revised standards, amendments or
interpretations will have no material effect on the results and the
financial position of the Group.
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(REEBLERM2ETREES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
BZE-_ZZTN\F+-A=+—HBILLFE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008
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Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for property, plant and equipment
and certain financial instruments, which are measured at revalued
amounts or fair values, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

(@

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern
the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to
the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with those used by other members of
the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated
subsidiaries are presented separately from the Group’s
equity therein. Minority interests in the net assets consist
of the amount of those interests at the date of the original
business combination and the minority’s share of changes
in equity since the date of the combination. Losses
applicable to the minority in excess of the minority’s
interest in the subsidiary’s equity are allocated against
the interests of the Group except to the extent that the
minority has a binding obligation and is able to make an
additional investment to cover the losses.
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(REBEBLERA2ETRAFES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
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(b)

(c)
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BZE-_ZTN\HF+-A=+—HBLLFE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(b)

(c)

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition is measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions
for recognition under HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”
are recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised as an asset
and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest
in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after
reassessment, the Group’s interest in the net fair value
of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceeds the cost of the business
combination, the excess is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The interest of minority shareholders in the acquiree is
initially measured at the minority’s proportion of the net
fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
recognised.

Transactions with minority interests

The Group regards the acquisition/disposal of partial
equity interest of subsidiaries from minority shareholders
without changes in control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. When additional equity interest in
a subsidiary is acquired, any difference between the
consideration paid and the relevant share of the carrying
value of the subsidiary’s net assets acquired is recorded
in equity (other reserve). When partial equity interest in
a subsidiary is disposed of to minority interest, any
difference between the proceeds received and the relevant
share of minority interest is also recorded in equity (other
reserve).
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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LZRRMN 22T RAIHS)) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
—EFNF+ZA=+—HIFE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(d)

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity
method, investments in associates are carried in the
consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-
acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the net assets
of the associates, less any identified impairment loss.
When the Group’s share of losses of an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An
additional share of losses is provided for and a liability
is recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(REBEBLERA2ETRAFES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(e)

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately and with finite useful
lives are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is provided on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives.
Alternatively, intangible assets with indefinite useful lives
are carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses (see the accounting policy in respect
of impairment losses below).

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset
and are recognised in the consolidated income statement
when the asset is derecognised.

Technical know-how

Expenditure on technical know-how acquired is capitalised
and amortised using straight-line method over their useful
lives, but not exceeding 20 years. Technical know-how is
not revaluated as there is no active market for these
assets.

Research and development expenditures

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the year in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development expenditure is recognised only if it is
anticipated that the development costs incurred on a
clearly-defined project will be recovered through future
commercial activity. The resultant asset is amortised on
a straight-line basis over its useful life, and carried at
cost less subsequent accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses.
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(e) Intangible assets (continued)

Research and development expenditures (continued)

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria. Where no internally-generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is charged to profit or loss in the period in

which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible asset is reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the
same basis as intangible assets acquired separately.

(f) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes (other than construction in
progress), are stated at their revalued amount, being the
fair value at the date of revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses. Revaluations are
performed with sufficient regularity such that the carrying
amount does not differ materially from that which would
be determined using fair values at the balance sheet

date.

Any revaluation increase arising on revaluation of property,
plant and equipment is credited to the revaluation reserve,
except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease
of the same asset previously recognised as an expense,
in which case the increase is credited to the consolidated
income statement to the extent of the decrease previously
charged. A decrease in net carrying amount arising on
revaluation of an asset is dealt with as an expense to the
extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset.
On the subsequent sale or retirement of a revalued asset,
the attributable revaluation surplus is transferred to

retained earnings.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

()

(9)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the fair value of items
of property, plant and equipment other than construction
in progress over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account of the 5% estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method.

Construction in progress includes land use rights and
buildings, plant and machinery in the course of
construction for production or for its own use purposes.
Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is
classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as
other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the income statement in the year in which the item is
derecognised.

Land use rights

Payment for obtaining land use right is considered as
operating lease payment. Land use rights are stated at
cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses. Amortisation is charged to income
statement over the period of the right using the straight-
line method.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
on the consolidated balance sheet when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable
to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the
two categories, including loans and receivables and
available-for-sale financial assets. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised
and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or where

appropriate, a shorter period.

Income is recognised on an effective basis for debt

instruments.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. At each balance sheet date
subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, amount due from
immediate holding company, amounts due from
associates, pledged bank deposits and bank balances
and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that
are either designated or not classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value. Changes in fair value are
recognised in equity, until the financial asset is disposed
of or is determined to be impaired, at which time, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity
is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss
(see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that
are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoted equity instruments, they are measured as cost
less any identified impairment losses at each balance
sheet date subsequent to initial recognition (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
(h) Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date.
Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets

have been impacted.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of

impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of

impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or

counterparty; or

. default or delinquency in interest or principal

payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
and other receivables and assets that are assessed not
to be impaired individually, are subsequently assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence
of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include
the Group’s past experience of collecting payments, an
increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the credit period, observable changes in
national or local economic conditions that correlate with

default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an
impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective interest

rate.
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—ZZTN\F+ZA=+—HILFE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h)

IWVRHFERNERGERA A Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade and other receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When a trade and other receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the
carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost
would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments
will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent periods.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss
is recognised directly in equity. For available-for-sale debt
investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed if an increase in the fair value of the investment
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified according to the substance of
the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting
all of its liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are
classified as other financial liabilities.
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3.

Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h) Financial instruments (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments through the expected life of the
financial liability, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest

basis.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other
payables, amount due to an associate and short-term
bank loans are subsequently measured at amortised

cost, using the effective interest rate method.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivatives financial instruments and hedging

The Group uses derivatives financial instruments such
as forward currency contracts to hedge its risks associated
with foreign currency fluctuations. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value at the
date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the balance
sheet date. Derivatives are carried as assets when the
fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value

is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are

recognised in profit or loss immediately.

The fair value of forward currency contracts is calculated
by reference to current forward exchange rates for

contracts with similar maturity profiles.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(h)

(M)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with the original
or modified terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract issued by the Group and not
designated as at FVTPL is recognised initially at its fair
value less transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) the
amount determined in accordance with HKAS 37
“Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”,
and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with HKAS 18 “Revenue”.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial
assets are transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised
directly in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net

realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

@

(k)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. In addition,
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment
annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another standard, in which case
the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another standard, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods sold in the normal course of business, net of
discounts and sales related taxes.

Revenue from sales of goods are recognised when goods
are delivered and title has passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount.
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3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(k)

U]

(m)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the relevant lease terms.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an
incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on
a straight-line basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet
date, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance
sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(m)

(n)

(0)

(p)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary items,
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included
in profit or loss for the period except for differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in
respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly
in equity, in which cases, the exchange differences are
also recognised directly in equity.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Renminbi) at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the balance sheet date, and their income
and expenses are translated at the average exchange
rates for the year. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised as a separate component of equity (the
exchange reserve). Such exchange differences are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the
foreign operation is disposed of.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income over the
periods necessary to match them with the related costs.
Grants related to depreciable assets are presented as
deferred income and are released to income over the
useful lives of the assets. Grants related to expenses
items are recognised in the same period as those
expenses are charged in the consolidated income
statement and are reported separately as “other operating
income”.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes
are charged as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised as and included in

finance costs in the consolidated income statement in
the period in which they are incurred.

IWRFERERGBERDF Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
—ZZTN\F+ZA=+—HILFE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

3. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(a)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in
the consolidated income statement because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and it further excludes items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax base used in the computation of taxable profit, and
is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are
not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to
profit or loss, except when it relates to items charged or
credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also dealt with in equity.
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"EN\E+=-A=+—HIEE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account
of their estimated residual value. The determination of the useful
lives and residual value involve management’s estimation. The
Group assesses annually the useful life of the property, plant
and equipment and if the expectation differs from the original
estimate, such a difference may impact the depreciation in the
year and the estimate will be changed in the future period.

Amortisation of technical know-how

Technical know-how are amortised on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The determination of the useful lives
involves management’s estimation. The Group re-assesses the
useful life of the technical know-how and if the expectation
differs from the original estimate, such a difference may impact
the amortisation in the year and the estimate will be changed
in the future period.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment,
construction in progress, land use rights and technical
know-how

Property, plant and equipment, construction in progress, land
use rights and technical know-how are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable
amounts have been determined based on value-in-use
calculations, taking into account latest market information and
past experience. These calculations and valuations require the
use of judgements and estimates.

IWRFERERGBERDF Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Rz estRA4RE]) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)

BE-TZN\F+=ZA=+—HILSEE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

Critical Accounting Judgements and Key
Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (continued)

Valuation of property, plant and equipment

The fair value of property, plant and equipment has been
determined by the management of the Group on a depreciated
replacement cost basis which approximates current acquisition
costs of major items, less the depreciation charge since
acquisition. In determining the fair value, the management has
utilised a method of valuation which involves certain estimates.
The management has exercised their judgement and is satisfied
that the method of valuation is reflective of the current market
conditions.

Allowances for bad and doubtful debts

The Group performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers
and adjusts credit limits based on payment history and the
customer’s current credit-worthiness, as determined by the review
of their current credit information. The Group continuously
monitors collections and payments from its customers and
maintains a provision for estimated credit losses based upon its
historical experience and any specific customer collection issues
that it has been identified. Credit losses have historically been
within the Group’s expectations and the Group will continue to
monitor the collections from customers and maintain an
appropriate level of estimated credit losses.

Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aging analysis at
each balance sheet date, and makes allowance for obsolete and
slow-moving inventory items identified that are no longer suitable
for use in production. The management estimates the net
realisable value for such finished goods based primarily on the
latest invoice prices and current market conditions. The Group
carries out an inventory review on a product-by-product basis
at each balance sheet date and makes allowance for obsolete
items.
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5. EXT WaERS5BEH 5. Turnover, Revenue and Segmental
Information

AEEFBRERE RERKEL
BRAE - HE (PR FoEs
&) AETREMER - AFCHERK

The Group principally engaged in the development, production
and sales of pharmaceutical products including bulk
pharmaceutical, preparations (e.g. tablets and injections),

AFIEAT chemicals and other products. Revenues recognised during the
year are as follows:
ZEETN\F ZTELF
2008 2007
ARSFIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEE-EmMEERA Turnover — Sales of goods 2,077,753 1,865,568
H b ZERUA Other operating income
|ITH WA Bank interest income 3,617 2,311
TEESMITEAREEN Increase in fair value of derivative
financial instruments — 15,763
AHEE ZIRERFBBA Interest income from an available-for-sale
investment —_ 1,647
AHEEZIRERBBA Dividend income from an available-for-sale
investment 4,022 914
HE WA Rental income 1,454 1,728
HEIMEFEE 2 EERKS Gain on disposal of assets classified
as held for sale — 6,401
MEeMmIAEER 2 la Realised gain on derivative
financial instruments 19,394 4,589
BT FR B (B aE) Government grants (Note) 15,762 5,479
& i AR e Gain on disposal of land use rights 373 —
BEN B AR Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 685 —
At Others 613 10,904
45,920 49,736
N Total revenue 2,123,673 1,915,304
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5. Turnover, Revenue and Segmental
Information (continued)

Analysis of the Group’s segment information for the year by

HERZ5IT business segment and geographical location of customers is set
out as follows:
(i) XESBEH 1) By business segment
t-1- 82 ZZELE
2008 2007
EREE it #it BERER Hify @it
Pharmaceutical Other Pharmaceutical Other
business operations Total business operations Total
ABBTT ARBTT ARBFT AREFT AREFT AREFL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ELON Segment revenue 2,119,651 4,022 2,123,673 1,912,743 2,561 1,915,304
PHEE Segment results 53,497 4,022 57,519 51,355 2,561 53,916
I I I I
JEIEHERAZE  Share of results of associates 1,884 (4,369)
HHBER Finance costs (17,956) (12,183)
BB Profit before taxation 41,447 37,364
e Income tax (5,677) 400
RERRH Profit for the year 35,770 37,764
I I
t-1- 82 ZZELE
2008 2007
EREE it it BEREK Hify @it
Pharmaceutical Other Pharmaceutical Other
business operations Total business operations Total
ARBTT ARBFT ABBFT AREFT AREFT AREFL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
HE ASSETS
PHEE Segment assets 1,797,170 94,767 1,891,937 1,654,629 367,162 2,021,791
A YN Interests in associates 25,632 23,748
KPEEE Unallocated corporate assets 241,855 214,561
GREEE Consolidated total assets 2,159,424 2,260,100
I I
-1 LIABILITIES
HHEE Segment liabilities (371,214) - (371,214) (269,932) - (269,932)
ROEEE Unallocated corporate liabilities (287,930) (256,129)
GRERE Consolidated total liabilities (659,144) (526,061)
RitEH OTHER INFORMATION
BARY Capital expenditure 261,294 — 261,294 119,825 = 119,825
FEREHE Depreciation and amortisation 119,889 - 119,889 107,301 - 107,301
HEME  BER Loss on disposal of property,
REEE (Wz)  plant and equipment 5,688 - 5,688 4,360 - 4,360
HET|EFLE  Gain on disposal of assets classified
AEWE as held for sale - - - (6,401) - (6,401)
FEMARE Allowance for inventories 1,749 — 1,749 3,026 = 3,026
MR Allowance for bad and doubtful debts of
AERRE trade receivables 4,037 - 4,037 6,254 - 6,254
Hth R Allowance for bad and doubtful debts of
AERRE other receivables 146 — 146 6,646 — 6,646

IR FTERZ R 155 PR A 8 Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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(REEBLERM2ETREES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
BE-TZN\E+=-A=+—HIEE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

5. EXT WaERS5BEH 5. Turnover, Revenue and Segmental
(&) Information (continued)
(i) BEEREHE (ii) By geographical location of customers
SEUWA
Segment revenues

k171§ 3 —ET+F

2008 2007

AR%TIT ARMFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

PE(BEER) PRC (including Hong Kong) 1,287,593 1,082,315

B M Europe 249,656 268,115

M Americas 284,019 378,945
ETES Others 302,405 185,929
2,123,673 1,915,304
NEEBIBHII% 2 & EH Over 99% of the Group’s assets are located in the PRC
RE - FILUR B 2IEEMNE and therefore the analysis of segment assets and capital

REAZ B R D EEE R expenditure is not presented.
6. HM¥EEHR 6. Finance Costs

k-3 71§ 3 T LF

2008 2007

AR%TiT ARBFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARAFABHEE Interest on bank loans wholly

RITERZFE repayable within five years 17,956 12,183

| 1 22 W R FTERZR 5 A PR A B Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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(REBEBLERA2ETRAFES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)

BZE-_ZTN\HF+-A=+—HBLLFE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

Frig# 7. Income Tax
—ETN\F —EELF
2008 2007
AR®TiT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
PR ERER PRC enterprise income tax
—"Hj — current 9,133 12,202
—URIEED (%) RHOTIA — under (over)-provision in prior years 690 (4,158)
9,823 8,044
EFERLIE (FY5£30) Deferred tax (Note 30)
— "8 — current (4,146) (9,613)
—MENENTE — attributable to a change in tax rate — 1,169
(4,146) (8,444)
5,677 (400)

(@)

(b)

REID RSN TR IE S BIAE
BOA R MOARIBBER B K5

H o
e

ARRIRBABMAE @ WRE
BEMBMEE  REERE
RBF - ARFBEFHR
MEXBER=FRN(—TZF
NFE_F—FF) BEX
15%M) B R U TS LAY
BUEBRE

RZEBEE+F+_A=1+—
B AARMEMESiET
B EMELXARRLCTIE -
RIFEBE R4 B[1994] B &
E1515 (AR SR Em
fAERR YW EERB R E AR
) - #£2002F RBHAITATEHR
FRE15%MBUR - WESEH
FRGEBPIHLTE © M 20044F#E -
AN B B 1 P A A T
BEBHEAE15% BRI
R EFTISE A K 533%
W EEE R IBPIER -

(a)

(b)

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

PRC enterprise income tax is calculated at the applicable
rates in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations
in the PRC.

In accordance with the relevant regulations, the Group
was accredited as a high-tech enterprise. The
accreditation is valid for three years. The Company is
entitled to the preferential tax rate of 15% for a three-year
period (2008-2010) after the high-teach enterprise
acceditation is awarded.

For the year ended 31st December 2007, the Company
was located in the high-technology economic zone of
Zibo City and was entitled to preferential PRC enterprise
income tax rate of 15% from year 2002 onwards, according
to [1994] Guo Shui Fa No. 151 “The notice of applying
favourable tax policies for the new and high technology
companies” issued by the State Administration of Taxation.
The Company had obtained the relevant approval from
the local tax bureau. From year 2004 onwards, the
operating results of the company derived from business
conducted in the high-technology economic zone was
subject to a preferential income tax rate of 15% while the
business conducted outside the high-technology economic
zone was subject to an income tax rate of 33%. This had
been filed with the local tax bureau as a record.
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/425

(A=)

RIEFBIRARBERG - AEE
BETRRAFREE ZHBA
A B B EEE ERR T E AR
FREHPBECEMSGSH - &
B=FRFAH - BE_ZEZT
NE+—_A=+—BLEFE
AEEETNHMRA R RLLRT
BEAMERE25% (ZEZ+
& 1 33%)

R-ZEZ+F=A+H &
BHREARLIMFEFE63HRERE
SRMFEEMESRE (TFH
SED) o BN R-ZTLFA
—ANHB - E%REHCER
BREEEEED ([T 56K
Bl]) o BIEFF A RE G
- BN NFE—HF—H
B EREZEERINERE
B RE —525% ° A&
m - LRI ERBREE M
A 530 F 5 AR B O T 75
RYREMSHREREREND
¥ME  SEAMSEHREATR
B EEAEHEALER 215
FRE I E25% ° EIEFTS
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BNEBRAE

7.

Income Tax (continued)

(d)

In accordance with the relevant regulations of the PRC,
two subsidiaries operating in the PRC are entitled to
exemption from PRC income tax in the first two years
from the first profit-making year, followed by a 50%
reduction of PRC income tax for the next three years.
Other companies within the Group are subject to income
tax rate at 25% on their taxable income for the year
ended 31st December 2008 (2007: 33%).

On 16th March 2007, the People’s Republic of China
promulgated the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Enterprise Income Tax (the “New Law”) by Order No.
63 of the President of the People’s Republic of China. On
6th December 2007, the State Council of the PRC issued
Implementation Regulations of the New Law. Pursuant to
the New Law and Implementation Regulations, the
Enterprise income tax for both domestic and foreign-
invested enterprises will be unified at 25% effective from
1st January 2008. There will be a transitional period for
PRC subsidiaries that currently entitled to preferential
tax treatments granted by the relevant tax authorities.
PRC subsidiaries currently subject to an enterprise income
tax rate lower than 25% will continue to enjoy the lower
tax rate and be gradually transitioned to the new unified
rate of 25% within five years after 1st January 2008. The
deferred tax balance has been adjusted to reflect the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the respective periods
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
as the Group’s income neither arised in, nor was derived
from, Hong Kong for both years.

IWRFERERGBERDF Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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7. FE#R % 7. Income Tax (continued)

(99 HFAZHMIEBAXZL R HiGE (g9)  The tax charge (credit) for the year can be reconciled to
B & A BR B AT & ) AR 40 the profit before taxation per the consolidated income
T s statement as follows:

—ETN\EF —EELF

2008 2007

AR®TFT AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

B B4 A Vg A Profit before taxation 41,447 37,364
LB E25% Tax at domestic income tax rate

(ZEZ L5 : 33%) of 25% (2007: 33%)

STEZHIA 10,362 12,330
RETRBE 8 Effect of preferential tax rate in the PRC (2,911) (5,329)
ERRZHIER R Effect on tax exemption granted to

MIBRENTE PRC subsidiaries (2,744) (3,945)
FEFERTMA Tax effect of income not taxable

for tax purpose (696) (629)
EI B Tax effect of expenses not deductible

for tax purposes 1,674 5,811
MEFNB S (B aE) Tax effect of additional allowance (Note) (1,463) —
KRR IAEE Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 948 362
ERANAAIFE Utilisation of tax losses previously

RERZBIIEER not recognized (183) —
MERENTE Effect on change in tax rate — 1,169
HAth Others — (6,011)
LARTEFE D (%) Under (over)-provision in prior years

R TIE 690 (4,158)
HiIE (Ee) Xt Tax charge (credit) for the year 5,677 (400)
Miet . WERMAAEEBHENER Note: The amount represents the tax effect of additional tax

Bl anHA 72 57 2% B A =2 H i AR allowance granted to the Group for the incurrence of the
AR E AR B S Gt expenses, such as research and development expenditure,
Bk o as stipulated in the relevant tax rules.

IR FERZ R 95 PR 2 F Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited 1 25 |
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8. *®FERF

RERHMEHE GEA) THIER

Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(REEBLERM2ETREES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
BZE-_ZZTN\F+-A=+—HBILLFE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

8. Profit for the Year

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

ZEETN\EF ZTELF
2008 2007
ARSFIT ARMFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEEREBEA Advertising and promotion expenses 14,040 10,095
JE W BR SR R R AR B 1 Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
of trade receivables 4,037 6,254
A FE U R IE R B BR BB Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
of other receivables 146 6,646
& & MUk Allowance for inventories 1,749 3,026
TR Amortisation of prepaid lease payments
TE 1 78 & FRIE 5 on land use rights 3,020 2,461
Bl 2 8 8H Amortisation of technical know-how 1,130 1,130
% BN B & Auditors’ remuneration 1,165 1,324
FERA Cost of inventories recognised as
an expense 1,776,658 1,570,246
e Depreciation 115,739 103,710
FESHMT B A R &S Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary — 1,040
BEVE  WELXREER Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 5,688 4,360
PEESMIEARE Decrease (increase) on fair value of
B (35 ) derivative financial instruments 23,488 (15,763)
b H B K Net exchange loss 12,606 13,558
THIREFLEHEE Operating lease rentals on land and buildings 1,006 1,211
HERREER Repairs and maintenance expenses 899 784
35 & A B A AR Research and development costs 19,470 14,371
JE A B & A R R IE Share of tax of associates
(BEEEGEE (included in share of results of associates)
NGIE SR 634 253
BIRKN(TBRIEESEK Staff costs (excluding directors’ and
EEME) (Hat11) supervisors’ emoluments) (Note 11) 184,694 176,801
9. KR 9. Dividends
ZEETN\EF ZTELF
2008 2007
ARBFIT ARMFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FRERIE2ZRE Dividends recognised as
REARR B, distribution during the year
TR ARY0.037T — Final dividend: RMB0.03
(ZZTZTLF: (2007: RMBO0.02) per shares
BRAR0.027T) 13,719 9,146
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(REBEBLERA2ETRAFES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)

BE=ZZEENF+=ZA=+—HLFE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

B2 (&) 9. Dividends (continued)
AR R EEZREFIZ307,312,830/% A The final dividend of RMBO0.03 (2007: RMBO0.03) per share
12150,000,000/%HA% + ## & R B % B (approximately HK$0.034 (2007: HK$0.033) per share, including
BRARK0.03T(ZZZ+F : AR income tax of A shares) on 307,312,830 A shares and
#0.03) (T & EH#0.034 T (ZTZ+ 150,000,000 H shares has been proposed by the directors of the
F ¢ B¥0.0337T) © ARER) o ZK Company and is subject to approval by shareholders at the
BEFRRARRBFERG FHAER Annual General Meeting and has been included as a dividend
BERERE M EHRERANIIER B REE - reserve in the consolidated financial statements.
SREF-EX 10. Earnings per Share — Basic
BRER N RBREARARRERE The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
AZEGBAEEBEEN AR Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the Company of
30,064,000 T (— T +F : ARK RMB30,064,000 (2007: RMB31,818,000) and based on the
31,818,0007T) RIZF AE TR (D weighted average of 457,312,830 (2007: 457,312,830) shares in
InfEF1520457,312,830/ (— T T+ issue during the year.
4 : 457,312,830/%) 5T & -
HREE_TEENFN T LF+ No diluted earnings per share have been presented for the two
—A=t+—BI-MEFEHEHE A years ended 31st December 2008 and 2007 as there were no
EREEEENEIE - MU IR A dilutive events existed during both years.
TRENEEERER
ETRZ FOEEERE 11. Staff Costs (Excluding Directors’ and
Eil€) Supervisors’ Emoluments)
—ETNE ZTELF
2008 2007
AR%TIT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MR TE Salaries and wages 125,320 110,117
B TfaA & H b 2Ah Staff welfare and other benefits 34,091 45,532
RRTE RS &I LK Retirement benefit scheme contributions
— REHNETE (B :F) — defined contribution plans (Note) 25,283 21,152
184,694 176,801

et

REBEL 8 HBRFRTRKTE - §F2
HEBABE—FALEENTREREZES - 1
A RERL ([BRAMAL) BFEH23% (ZTZT
F:23%) - BABAABBURAKERAAR
571370 (ZE T L5 : ARM4,9837T) ©
SHEERARGTEINBEARELRBME1ER
KPR -

1075 BT 5 & S R KA 8B BRI
PA RSB 2 BB RKF G HIR K
BEMBH - Wit - Br EXPTf Ay
O ARBYESEREE (R
RERR R EMRRERA - W EBOL
YA SR AT (AR PRI D R 2R 2 B A

K o

A

Note:

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the Group participates in a basic
defined contribution pension scheme organised by the local municipal
government, whereby it is required to pay contributions at the rate of 23%
(2007: 23%) on the total salaries, bonuses and allowances (the “relevant
income”) paid to the Group’s staff in the preceding year. The monthly relevant
income per head of a staff is subject to a cap of RMB5,713 (2007: RMB4,983).
Contributions to this retirement scheme are charged to the consolidated
income statement as and when incurred.

The local municipal government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of all existing and future retired
staff of the Group. Accordingly, the Group has no other material
obligation for payment of retirement and other post-retirement
benefits of employees other than the contribution described
above. No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the
contribution payable in the future years.
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(REEBLERM2ETREES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
BE-TZN\E+=-A=+—HIEE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

12. EEREFHL 12. Directors’ and Supervisors’ Emoluments
ENSEN TR (ZEEEF  + The emoluments paid or payable to each of the sixteen (2007:
R EEREEZME0T ! fifteen) directors and supervisors were as follows:
BE_SENFE+A=1+—HL For the year ended 31st December 2008
F£E

I8 74
2R B TRT
e H izl HEER #a
Salaries,
bonuses, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other scheme
Fees benefits contributions Total
ARETFT ARETFT  ARETT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HITEF Executive directors
B Bt Ms. Guo Qin — 482 16 498
iz LN G bt Mr. Zhao Songguo — 365 16 381
ERELE Mr. Ren Fulong — 465 16 481
HHTEFE Non-executive directors
FREEE (1) Mr.Li Tianzhong (Note 1) — 220 16 236
B E A Mr. Liu Zhenwen — 170 16 186
BUFRTEE Independent non-executive directors
BE®TE (#2) Mr. Dai Qingjun (Note 2) 60 - = 60
B Ea (7£3) Mr. Mok Chung Kwan,
Stephen (Note 3) 18 — — 18
HREBEE Mr. Xu Guojun 60 — — 60
FREEE Mr. Sun Minggao 60 — = 60
REREAE (74) Mr. Zhu Baoquan (Note 4) = = = —
BEREE (F4) Mr. Kwong Chi Kit (Note 4) — — — —
EZ Supervisors
®AELE Mr. Zhang Yueshun — 24 — 24
MEBEE Mr. Tao Zhichao — 24 — 24
SERLE Mr. Gao Qinggang — 130 16 146
RAREE Mr. Yu Gongfu — 272 16 288
2 wEE Mr. Liu Qiang — 66 16 82
BE Total 198 2,218 128 2,544
it Notes:
1. REZTZEN\FEXA=Z+-HEZE 1. Appointed on 22nd June 2008.
2. A ENE+ A+ - BEE 2. Retired on 22nd December 2008.
3. = N\FHA+NBETE 3. Resigned on 16th April 2008.
4. R—ZETNE+—_A -+ _AEZRE 4. Appointed on 22nd December 2008.
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(REBEBLERA2ETRAFES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
BE-TZN\F+=ZA=+—HILSEE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

12. EFEREEME @ 12.

Directors’ and Supervisors’ Emoluments

(continued)

BE_ETtF+-A=1+—HL For the year ended 31st December 2007

£E
I% 74
- 1191 B
e Hitigdl g (a3 -1
Salaries,
bonuses, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other scheme
Fees benefits contributions Total
AREFT AREFT ARETFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
HITEE Executive directors
#$ Bt Ms. Guo Qin — 200 14 214
L% A Mr. Zhao Songguo — 220 14 234
FRELE Mr. Ren Fulong — 300 14 314
HEHITEE Non-executive directors
B KEEGH) Mr. Ma Yong (Note 1) — 117 8 125
AR EHE Mr. Liu Zhenwen - 170 14 184
BUFHITEE Independent non-executive directors
BERAE Mr. Dai Qingjun 60 = = 60
RfBEE Mr. Mok Chung Kwan, Stephen 60 — — 60
HREFLLE Mr. Xu Guojun 60 — — 60
FHREE Mr. Sun Minggao 60 — — 60
EF Supervisors
BRERE (#2) Mr. Lu Zhongde (Note 2) = — = =
®AIELE Mr. Zhang Yueshun — 24 — 24
MEBEE Mr. Tao Zhichao - 24 — 24
SERLE Mr. Gao Qinggang — 130 14 144
RARELE Mr. Yu Gongfu — 200 14 214
2 WEA (7#3) Mr. Liu Qiang (Note 3) — 60 10 70
ok Total 240 1,445 102 1,787
it Notes:
1o R-ZZLF\A = H Rt 1. Passed away on 3rd August 2007.
2- R-ZZELFE - A - HEHME 2. Resigned on 2nd February 2007.
8o R-ZTTLF-_A-AEZE 3. Appointed on 2nd February 2007.

BE-TT/\FA_TTLF+=A
=+ —BIEMESE  REEERE
FHREANE - ARBL R ES
HEFLAHEMME - (ERBREMA
S5 10 A S B 2 SRR 1 2 B e

& -

No directors and supervisors waived any emoluments for the
two years ended 31st December 2008 and 2007. During the
year, no emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors
or supervisors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(REEBLERM2ETREES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
BE-TZN\E+=-A=+—HIEE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

13. EEEM& 13. Employees’ Emoluments
FRN AfuEaITMALTEE=(E Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group,
ECETEF  MUES) - EBS three (2007: two) were directors, whose emoluments are set out
HBHRHE12 - EHRL (ZTT in note 12 above. The emoluments of the remaining two (2007:
+F =) EERFMATZBEm three) highest paid individuals was as follows:
T
—ET)\F —EELF
2008 2007
AR%TIT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TE - fE4T - 2R Salaries, bonuses, allowances
Ko EL At 43 F) and other benefits 668 722
RIRTE R EH &I 3K Retirement benefit scheme contributions 32 32
700 754
HEME&BNFATEHE: Their emoluments were within the following band:
EE®A
Number of employees
—ET)\F —EELF
2008 2007
=T AR¥1,000,0007T Nil to RMB1,000,000 2 3
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(REBEBLERA2ETRAFES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
BE-TZN\F+=ZA=+—HILSEE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

B i 14. Technical Know-how
AE®T T
RMB’000
RE COST
R_ZEZLF—HF—H At 1st January 2007,
—EE+F+_A=+—HK 31st December 2007 and
—EENF+=A=+—H 31st December 2008 6,550
e AMORTISATION
N e At 1st January 2007 3,498
RNE#H Charge for the year 1,130
R-EE+F+_A=1+—"HEK At 31st December 2007 and
—EENF—-—H—H 1st January 2008 4,628
NE#H Charge for the year 1,130
RZEENF+-_A=+—H At 31st December 2008 5,758
REE CARRYING VALUES
RZZEENFF+_A=+—H At 31st December 2008 792
R-_EE+F+-_A=+—H At 31st December 2007 1,922

REBO XM BRAEABA © X4
RETMEAF A6 FHUE R LS
§H e

The Group’s technical know-how was acquired from third parties.
The technical know-how has a definite useful life and is amortised

on a straight-line basis over four to six years.

IR FTERZ R 155 PR A 8 Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(REEBLERM2ETREES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
BE-TZN\E+=-A=+—HIEE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

15. Property, Plant and Equipment

BE - #S
BEN R e RE it
Plant,
machinery Motor
Buildings and equipment vehicles Total
ARETFT ARETFT AREFL ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
EE{E VALUATION
—ET+E-A—H At 1st January 2007 418,765 964,563 12,938 1,396,266
EEELI&@)\ (Ht:E16) Transferred from construction
in progress (note 16) 23,103 46,906 3 70,012
ANE Additions 6,510 53,074 1,066 60,650
EEMNBLRES Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries 25,554 59,090 506 85,150
RE Disposals (7,189) (48,329) (1,634) (57,152)
“EZHEF-A=+—H At 31st December 2007 466,743 1,075,304 12,879 1,554,926
EEELI&@)\ (H1:E16) Transferred from construction
in progress (note 16) 48,799 133,307 — 182,106
ANE Additions 14,488 42,875 1,506 58,869
HE KB A A Disposal of a subsidiary (7,511) (16,950) — (24,461)
EE Disposals (5,802) (68,297) (1,626) (75,725)
RZZZNF+ZA=+—H At 31st December 2008 516,717 1,166,239 12,759 1,695,715
Rt & ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
RZEZ+E—-HA—H At 1st January 2007 140,312 469,301 7,337 616,950
AEEHE Charge for the year 18,078 84,083 1,549 103,710
BEMBARES Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries 3,970 13,287 216 17,473
REZHH Eliminated on disposals (4,583) (34,306) (1,358) (40,247)
“TT+F+-A=1—H At 31st December 2007 157,777 532,365 7,744 697,886
;KEE%E% Depreciation for the year 19,220 95,108 1,411 115,739
HERE AR Disposal of a subsidiary (1,745) (7,040) — (8,785)
REZHH Eliminated on disposals (4,060) (63,365) (1,582) (69,007)
ZZZN\F+ZA=+—H At 31st December 2008 171,192 557,068 7,573 735,833
IEE{E CARRYING VALUES
“ZEZ)\F+-A=+—H At 31st December 2008 345,525 609,171 5,186 959,882
RZTZ+F+-A=1+—H At 31st December 2007 308,966 542,939 5,135 857,040
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(REBEBLERA2ETRAFES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)

15. Y% - BBER®RME &)

(@)

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

AEERBREMNTE -

R_ZEENF+=_RA=+—
B RNEBHAEREANNE
BZEEVEMFEOARE
84,684,000 (— T :
AR#18,737,0007T) ° &R
RIESERAE  AEEEHREE
MEETSEAENZETEE
Wz EXErBREMED o KA
RIEBNEE  ZSREDE
2 IER AT A REAS P I & B
BRPAREHE -

AYEER DT IR R BT
£ ARRNME  BER
RERPREMEEMLRS
TR B ATIRITEEE KA
HEEEGE - EBARTHY
¥ BMERRERBIGE
B — S BEHEITT AR A AR
AEMEENGHE - MEZER
REFREHEE-_ZSTN\F
+—A=+—BItEEE NN
WEERH A AR 409,0007T
(ZEZ+F : AR¥449,000
JL) °

HAEEZ YR - BFE MRE

URAERREITEARR %
FEEZREESDRORS

BZE-_ZTN\HF+-A=+—HBLLFE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

15. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

(@)

All the buildings of the Group are located in the PRC.

As at 31st December 2008, the carrying values of the
buildings for which the Group had not been granted
formal title amounted to approximately RMB84,684,000
(2007: RMB18,737,000). In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, the absence of formal title to these
buildings does not impair the value of the relevant buildings
to the Group. The directors of the Company also believe
that formal title to these buildings will be granted to the
Group in due course.

In the preparation of the listing of the Company’s shares
on the Stock Exchange, the Company’s property, plant
and equipment were firstly revalued by Shandong Certified
Public Accountants, a firm of valuers registered in the
PRC on a depreciated replacement cost basis as part of
its restructuring. Another separate revaluation was carried
out on the Company’s property, plant and equipment by
Chesterton Petty Limited, an independent valuer, on an
open market value basis. The adoption of the above two
revaluations in the accounts has resulted in an additional
depreciation charge of RMB409,000 (2007: RMB449,000)
in respect of the year ended 31st December 2008.

Had the property, plant and equipment of the Group been
carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, the carrying
value of such property, plant and equipment in the
accounts would have been approximately:

ZETNE ZTELF

2008 2007

ARBFIT AR FIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

EEY Buildings 316,730 307,139
E - HeE kA Plant, machinery and equipment 634,500 541,284
RE Motor vehicles 4,624 4,647
955,854 853,070
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(REBBZERM ST RAGRH)

(Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
Z2-ZZT)\F+=ZA=+—HILFE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

15. Y%  BWEREM (@) 15. Property, Plant and Equipment (continued)

(d) RZZEZNF+_A=+— (d) At 31st December 2008, all property, plant and equipment
A RXEBZREYME  BE of the Group were revalued by the directors of the
MEREHRARRESRITE Company on a depreciated replacement cost basis. Since
iﬁﬁf@$ﬁi§{’ﬁ1ﬁﬁ HRE there are no material differences between the revalued
HEER -_ZEN\F+_A= amount and the carrying values at 31st December 2008,
T-HZEEETESERE the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
2 ARRESRRYE & carrying values of property, plant and equipment at 31st
EREER=ZZEZNF+A December 2008 fairly reflected their recoverable amount
=Tt—HAZEREBEDEATH at that time.

RELERE B 2 AR EEE o

(e) Y% BERREBEZTERE (e)  The above items of property, plant and equipment are
BOEETR o M - BB KRB depreciated on a straight-line basis. The estimated useful
BRI EAFEHNAT lives of the property, plant and equipment are as follows:
EEY 204 Buildings 20 years
ME - e REE 5208 Plant, machinery and equipment 5-20 years
P 54 Motor vehicles 5 years

16. EEBIRE 16. Construction in Progress
—ET)\F ZETLF
2008 2007
AR%TiT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

w—A—H At 1st January 71,180 85,922

# Additions 202,425 51,694

HAME - KRB Transfer to property,

K& (MaE15) plant and equipment (note 15) (182,106) (70,012)

HEATHERAES Transfer to prepaid lease payments

TERTHE & RRIE on land use rights (3,293) —

BEWBA Tﬁé 5 Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries — 3,576

W+=—A=+—H At 31st December 88,206 71,180

ERIRER _ZEENF+ A=+
— A EAEREN M AR IRENREY
BB KRR AN -

R_ZTZ+F+_A=+—8 &
TREFEEEMITRFEILRENE
Mt ERREZITEARE
1,940,0007T ° & FEAEMRBIETT

BEATHFERAE 2 FENBEERE -

REBEE_TZEN\R_ZFTLF+_A
=+ RLEMEFERNTLEBNE
BIREMER -

| 134

Construction in progress comprises expenditures incurred on
buildings, plants and machinery not yet completed at 31st
December 2008.

As at 31st December 2007, included in construction in progress,
an amount of RMB1,940,000 represented prepayment for
purchase of land use rights in Zibo, Shandong, the PRC. The
amount was transferred to prepaid lease payment on land use
rights in 2008 when the relevant construction works was
completed.

For the two years ended 31st December 2008 and 2007, no
loans were borrowed for financing construction in progress.

IR ERERBERAR Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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ISR (F

Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(REBEBLERA2ETRAFES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)

BE-FZENF+=-HA=1+—HISE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

TiEREZRFEHEREA 17. Prepaid Lease Payments on Land Use
Rights
—ETNE ZTELF
2008 2007
ARBFIT ARMFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
AEEBNHEERIBEE ! The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise:
PR ZHEE LM - Leasehold land in PRC:
FRHR Medium-term lease 107,837 92,316
%2 81 Short-term lease 1,370 1,527
109,207 93,843
HBEMEL 2HMAOT ¢ Analysed for reporting purposes as:
MENEE Current asset 4,146 2,577
ERBEE Non-current asset 105,061 91,266
109,207 93,843

AEBMERSHRE 2z L FERE - I
BRI FEEEF - AEEB I
ZEBEREBZARESRE  MALE
TS FERBRTHERE TZE i
FREFTEEEXREE - R _ZZT
NE+-—A=+—8  KNEBEHKE
BRERTAE Y T ERBFEERELD
A AR¥51,038,0007T (ZEEHF ¢
#) AN R#35,468,0007T) ° ANFIES
RE - NEFEBELMEREEET
SRRERRZSE L MER 2 EXFT
BREMBML - KRREFINARE @ &%
SR FAARENEE R
MRFAEE -

The Group has acquired land use rights in the PRC and has
erected buildings thereon. While the Group has paid substantially
the full consideration of the purchase consideration, the relevant
government authorities have not granted formal title to certain
of these land use rights to the Group. As at 31st December
2008, the carrying values of the land use rights for which the
Group had not been granted formal title amounted to
approximately RMB51,038,000 (2007: RMB35,468,000). In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the absence of formal
title to these land use rights does not impair the value of the
relevant land use rights to the Group. The directors of the
Company also believe that formal title to these land use rights
will be granted to the Group in due course.

BEATFES 18. Interests in Associates
ZEET)\F —TTEF
2008 2007
ARBFIT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
e o N Cost of investment
& Z KA in associates, unlisted 27,879 27,879
JEMR#IRE R REER 2 Share of post-acquisition
FELRHE results and reserves (2,247) (4,131)
25,632 23,748
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(REFBLERMN 2T RAEH)

BE-TZN\E+=-A=+—HIEE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

BELAFES ® 18.
R-FENF+_A=t—HZHEZ

) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)

Interests in Associates (continued)

The details of the associates as at 31st December 2008 are as

NAElFEET follows:
AL EREX KB
goRaE LFRE BRREEMA BRER 31 EREE TEXBREZHR
Place of Nominal Percentage
Form of incorporation value of of equity
business and Class of registered attributable
Name of associate structure operations shares held capital to the Group  Principal activities
ARETFTT
RMB’000

IR BT E R =8 HE BARE 26,929 20% RPELEEYLRBEMR
BRAR([3E])

Shandong Zibo Xincat Incorporated  PRC Contributed capital 26,929 20%  Production of medicine
Pharmaceutical and medical products
Company Limited in the PRC
(“Xincat”)

IWRFERECIARAR  ZE HE BARE 25,000 40% RTEEEREECIER

Shandong Xinhua Longxin Incorporated  PRC Contributed capital 25,000 40%  Manufacture and sales
Chemical Co., Ltd. of chemical products

in the PRC

WRHMERE(LT ] HE BARE 22,000 3% RPEAERHELT
REFRAF HfEREH

Shandong Xinhua Incorporated  PRC Contributed capital 22,000 35%  Production and sale of

ChangXing Chemical
Equipment Co, Ltd.

chemical equipments
and spare parts
in the PRC

REE-ZZ+F+-_F=+—Hit
FEBENENELANARY
236,000 LT :EE BIEEANEEEM
44

B8 N R W o
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During the year ended 31 December 2007, a discount on
acquisition of RMB236,000 arising on acquisition of Xincat has
been included as income in the determination of the Group’s

share of results of associates.
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(REBEBLERA2ETRAFES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
BZE-_ZTN\HF+-A=+—HBLLFE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

18. BELFHESR & 18. Interests in Associates (continued)
REBEBEE N T 2 RSB BER The summarised unaudited financial information in respect of
MEZ251T - the Group’s associates is set out below:
—ETNE ZETLF
2008 2007
AR®TIT ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEBE Total assets 239,697 164,210
BEER Total liabilities (159,546) (92,587)
BEFE Net assets 80,151 71,623
REBEMRBERTZ Group’s share of net assets
BEEFE of associates 25,632 23,748
S Turnover 295,358 345,665
FREF (EiE) Profit (loss) for the year 15,466 (19,194)
AEBREMLBE AT Z Group’s share of results of associates
FRNERE for the year 1,884 (4,369)
19. AItHEZRE 19. Available-for-sale Investments
—EENE —ETLF
2008 2007
AR®TIT AR FT
RMB’000 RMB’000
RAFHZE Equity securities:
— kW ARME (HiFa) — listed, at fair value (note a) 91,567 363,962
—3E LT - A (Bfatb) — unlisted, at cost (note b) 33,200 33,200
o DRERURERE (FfiEb)  Less: Impairment loss recognised (note b) (30,000) (30,000)
a5t Total 94,767 367,162
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(REBBZERM ST RAGRH)

(Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
BE-TZN\E+=-A=+—HIEE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

19. AtHEZRE @) 19. Available-for-sale Investments (continued)

Bfat - Notes:

(a) REZZEZNF+=-A=1+—80 " ERQ (a) At 31st December 2008, the fair value of the listed equity investment
AEFHEN ETRABEFRENDR is by reference to the price of the listed shares quoted in the stock
BERELERETISHREBETH - exchange and the change of fair value has been charged to reserve.
R ENEBHE T AHE

(b) IS ERENPEREDERITHIE (b) The amount represents investments in unlisted equity securities
ETRARE - REABARERFT issued by private entities incorporated in the PRC. They are measured
ﬁg%J’%Zﬁ’“I%?lEE PiN/N at cost less impairment at each balance sheet date because the
REERAREAEMEEE AR range of reasonable fair value estimates is so wide that the directors
(= Eﬁllﬁt%ﬁ%?ﬁﬁﬁ@%@%ﬁ&&ﬂi of the Company are of the opinion that their fair values cannot be
HERETI - measured reliably.

75"_ EENFE+_A=1+— As at 31st December 2008, the equity securities included
RERYIBR B AR AN 5 4% an investment in an unlisted securities trading company,
ﬁﬁP—%?FtﬁE’ﬁE%‘?Qﬁ Tian Tong Securities Company Limited with a cost of
ﬁ%’é%’?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ&'@ﬁjz&ﬁ RMB30,000,000. The securities trading company was
Ve K KREANRE facing financial difficulties and an impairment loss of
30, ooo 0007C (B + 4 : RMB 30,000,000 (2007: RMB30,000,000) had been
AR #30,000,0007T) ° ZA recognised in the prior year. The directors of the Company
AIFERMEEHE  EiEE are of the opinion that the impairment made is based on
AR E g8 A K #30,000,000 their best estimation with reference to the market situation
T(ZZTEZELF : ARK and circumstances of the securities trading company.
30,000,0007T) - AARES
n/upj ’ Mﬂfﬁﬂfﬂi %ﬁt%
R R E 25 R EERER
Tfﬁi\ﬁ*&ﬁﬁﬁﬁf’ﬁﬂj 2
20. &8 20. Inventories
—ET)\F —EELF
2008 2007
AR®TFT ARBTFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

R Raw materials 38,267 46,678

£ 8 Work-in-progress 82,641 51,528

E MK Finished goods 170,332 174,881

A Consumables 13,275 12,954

304,515 286,041

LAR] B IR ESIER 2 A @Fﬁzuﬂum
BRMEEA £ AR20,619,0007T (=

TAF

1138

A FR#9,209,0007T) °

Included in the above were finished goods of approximately
RMB20,619,000 (2007: RMB9,209,000) carried at net realisable

value.
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(REBEBLERA2ETRAFES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
BZE-_ZTN\HF+-A=+—HBLLFE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

21. BURH R H thERHRIE 21. Trade and Other Receivables
—ETN\F ZETLF
2008 2007
AR®TiT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EUWERE R R EE Trade and bills receivables 261,590 261,506
W R AR SRR B AR BB Less: Allowance for bad and
doubtful debts of trade receivables (11,498) (14,185)
250,092 247,321
EH fth fE M RIE Other receivables, deposits
e MIER IR and prepayments 47,339 42,046
R R KUK IE Less: Allowance for bad and
RIBIRE B doubtful debts of other receivables (7,436) (7,566)
39,903 34,480
289,995 281,801
REE 2 HAEEHAERB AT The Group’s turnover from export sales is on letter of credit or
REFNET  HREHAREROE documents against payment. The credit period is agreed upon
BIREARR - RELEEPHEEEANK in the sales contract. Except for some particular customers
Hh - REBOPBERANEEL TER where payment in advance is normally required, the Group
KRR A30K - B4 TERS allows an average credit period of 30 days to its local trade
MRIREAA90K o KEPH A B MR (& customers and 90 days for local hospital customers. Majority of
WEBERFOS B REBNESL - the trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have
no default payment history.
FEUAR R R =15 (B FBR FE U AR SR An aged analysis of the trade receivables net of allowance for
BB MR O T ¢ bad and doubtful debts of trade receivables as at the balance

sheet date, based on invoice date, is as follows:

—EETNEF —EELF
2008 2007
ARBFIT ARKEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F LR Within one year 246,965 240,537
ZR—FEIRMF More than one year but
less than two years 2,264 3,530
ZRMFRIR=F More than two years but
less than three years 588 2,688
ZHR=F Over three years 275 566
250,092 247,321
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(REEBLERM2ETREES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
BZE-_ZZTN\F+-A=+—HBILLFE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

21. BYRRREMEKRRIE 21. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)
(&)
$E@ZF’EH&9§* BIEE@EE B LA Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
E.d'ﬁ%uﬂmﬂﬁ—%{%ﬁ’]ﬂﬁ? with aggregate carrying amount of RMB4,186,000 (2007:
/\E’ﬁﬂ 186,000 (—TE 5 ¢ RMB16,975,000) which were past due at the reporting date and
AR #16,975,0007T) ° for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss.
HERER O ¢ Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired:
—ET)\F —EELF
2008 2007
AR%TIT ARMFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F R Within one year 1,814 11,368
ZR—FEIRME More than one year but
less than two years 1,705 3,249
ZRMERIR=F More than two years but
less than three years 392 1,792
ZN=F More than three years 275 566
a5 Total 4,186 16,975
E@EE IR B 1E R E 2 FEUAR K Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
/\%r'iyiﬂﬁ‘ﬁﬂz BFEEM - BEB number of independent customers that have a good track record
TR BEEERE EZ%@%%E)EEE with the Group. Based on past experience, management believes
ﬁﬁ’ﬂn,\,ﬁé M BRBZERE that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
AEEE - /xﬁmﬁf’ﬁﬂfﬁﬁﬁ balances as there has not been a significant change in credit
HRE®m R - AEBERBHEA quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
B o The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.
ERERRIZEBRENFPE I Movements in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts of trade

15 : receivables in aggregate during the year are as follows:

—EE)\F —FELF

2008 2007

AR®FT AER#T T

RMB’000 RMB’000

FHIHE Balance at beginning of the year 14,185 12,691
JFE LS B 30 R 42 AR A 38 0 Increase in allowance for bad and

doubtful debts of trade receivables 4,037 6,254

F M S R BE U Bl 2 FRI1B Amounts written off as uncollectible (6,724) (4,760)

FIERER Balance at end of the year 11,498 14,185
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (contlnued)
(REBEBLERA2ETRAFES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
BZE-_ZTN\HF+-A=+—HBLLFE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

& W R % B Bt B s R IR 21. Trade and Other Receivables (continued)
/Z )
Htn W RSN RZRBBEFINED Movements in the allowance for bad and doubtful debts of other
3 receivables in aggregate during the year are as follow:
—EENEF ZETLF
2008 2007
AR®TiT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FHIHE Balance at beginning of the year 7,566 2,776
H o fE W AR SRR IR Increase in allowance for bad and
R 32 AN doubtful debts of other receivables 146 6,646
FAMEE R BENL Bl 2 5RIB Amounts written off as uncollectible (276) (1,856)
FIERER Balance at end of the year 7,436 7,566
BEREEEERATREA 22. Amount due from Immediate Holding Company
F%“HSZET%T SEER £ The amount due from immediate holding company is unsecured,
B /,\EAEFJZE%EE &tii’(lﬁi’,ﬂ% interest-free, repayable on demand and are trading in nature.
BEH5NIE - EEERARIAGEERER The immediate holding company has undertaken to settle and
R U B fE U K FE A ) 4R BT /a8 & B 3R receive all amounts due to and due from the fellow subsidiaries.
IHeRZE 7/\¢+ A=+—8" As at 31st December 2008, the amount due from immediate
JE 5 B R AR B SR IE T E M K PR A holding company represents the net balance due from and to
BEEERA 7 &H BB AT 2 F the immediate holding company and the fellow subsidiaries.
o
W () BRE B RIA 23. Amounts due from (to) Associates
—ETNE T LF
2008 2007
ARFT AR FIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JE Bt 8 X B 3R I8 Amounts due from associates 1,482 7,558
JE <1 Bt & R B RRIE Amount due to an associate (1,805) (125)
FEUS () Bf & A B FIE AR - & Amounts due from (to) associates are unsecured, interest-free
BRARERFER - and repayable on demand.
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(REEBLERM2ETREES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
BE-TZN\E+=-A=+—HIEE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

24, TE€MIR 24. Derivative Financial Instruments
—EINE S S
2008 2007
gE fafR BE BE
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
ARBFT ARBFT ARKEFTL AREFTT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
FTETATBERE Derivative not under hedge accounting:
INEERRENMARE Fair value of foreign currency
forward contracts — (7,591) 15,897 —

7 The derivatives are measured at fair value at the balance sheet
H - BERArhBENEASEIARReH dates, determined based on the quoted prices from financial
WEMKRTEERE - institutions for equivalent instruments.
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T
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(REBEBLERA2ETRAFES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
BE-TZN\F+=ZA=+—HILSEE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

24. Derivative Financial Instruments (continued)

The Group had entered into forward contracts denominated in
USD. The major terms of the foreign currency forward contracts
outstanding at 31st December 2008 are as follows:

BB
Maturity date

B
Exchange rates

i E7,000,0003 7T
Sell USD7,000,000
i &2,000,0003 7T
Sell USD2,000,000
JH 5,000,000 7T
Sell USD5,000,000
i E7,000,0003 7T
Sell USD7,000,000
i 3,000,000 7T
Sell USD3,000,000
& £3,000,0003 7T
Sell USD3,000,000
i & 3,000,000 7T
Sell USD3,000,000
i 3,000,000 7T
Sell USD3,000,000
& £3,000,0003 7T
Sell USD3,000,000
i E400,0003 7T
Sell USD400,000
i &300,0003 7T
Sell USD300,000
YH€400,000% 7T
Sell USD400,000
i £200,0003 7T
Sell USD200,000
S £400,0003 7T
Sell USD400,000
h 200,000 7T
Sell USD200,000
s E400,0003 7T
Sell USD400,000
S E400,0003 7T
Sell USD400,000
JH 400,000 7T
Sell USD400,000

20094F1 A7H

7th January 2009
20092 A9H

9th February 2009
20092 H9H

9th February 2009
20093 A9H

9th March 2009
20094 14H
14th April 2009
200958 14H
14th May 2009
20096 H12H
12th June 2009
2009 7H14H
14th July 2009
20098 F14H
14th August 2009
200941 H2H

2nd January 2009
200941 H20H
20th January 2009
20095 2H2H

2nd February 2009
20092H13H
13th February 2009
20093 H13H
13th March 2009
20093 F20H
20th March 2009
20094 A5 13H
13th April 2009
200954 13H
13th May 2009
20096 H522H
22nd June 2009

0.1519E TH1IARE
USDO0.1519 to RMB1
0.1527E TH1IARE
USDO0.1527 to RMB1
0.1526E T i1 AR
USDO0.1526 to RMB1
0.1526E TR 1ARE
USDO0.1526 to RMB1
0.1476E TH1IARE
USDO0.1476 to RMB1
0.1479FE T HRAIA R
USDO0.1479 to RMB1
0.1482E TH1IARE
USDO0.1482 to RMB1
0.1486E TR 1IARE
USDO0.1486 to RMB1
0.1490E T 1A R
USDO0.1490 to RMB1
0.1476E TH1IARE
USDO0.1476 to RMB1
0.1468E TR 1ARE
USDO0.1468 to RMB1
0.1480E T 1A R
USDO0.1480 to RMB1
0.1471ETHIARE
USDO0.1471 to RMB1
0.1473ETHIARE
USDO0.1473 to RMB1
0.1472E T HRAA R
USDO0.1472 to RMB1
0.1476E TH1IARE
USDO0.1476 to RMB1
0.1480E TH1IARE
USDO0.1480 to RMB1
0.1480E T 1A R
USDO0.1480 to RMB1
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(REEBLERM2ETREES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
BZE-_ZZTN\F+-A=+—HBILLFE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

EBEHRITER 25. Pledged Bank Deposits
EEMRITFRREERTRITESR The amount represents deposits pledged to bank to secure
RN EIF A SRIT AT R 15 B M M R banking facilities granted to the Group in respect of bills and
HEeERzRES  INERIEAREZ letter of credit facilities, foreign currency forward contracts and
SMERRITERHORES - BLFIR short-term bank loans. As these banking facilities are short-
TREARES Rt ERRITE term, the deposits are classified as current assets. The deposits
HOBRRDEE - ZEFFAETE carry fixed interest rate from 0.72% to 4.14% (2007: 0.72% to
MR EFER0T2%E4.14% (ZZTF 2.67%) per annum. The pledged bank deposits will be released
+F : 0.72%ZE2.67%) 5T E - BIEH upon the settlement of relevant facilities.
RITF R PNEERITEREERR
@ o
R-ZEZNF+_A=+—8  B& As at 31st December 2008, the pledged bank deposit included
HERITIFREEABEENFIE deposits denominated in Hong Kong dollar of HK$20,000,000
#20,000,0007C (ZTZT+F : ) - (2007: Nil).
RITERRAER 26. Bank Balances and Cash
RITTFREBRSESBRERITTR Bank balances and cash comprise bank balances and cash held
R AR =B A A TAYEHATER - by the Group, short-term bank deposits with maturity of three
HARITFHRE £ AR®2,000,0007T months or less. The short-term bank deposits of RMB2,000,000
(ZZ2Z+F : AR%57,046,0007T) (2007: RMB57,046,000) carry fixed interest rates at 1.71% (2007:
NBEEEREA71% (Z T 4F 1.71% to 2.88%) per annum. The remaining balance of bank
1.71%%2.88%) 51 8 ° HERIRITIFH deposits are subject to prevailing market rates.
RMIGFETE °
RITRBRRSEF - BFEIH LA Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts
e EHEEHE denominated in foreign currencies other than the functional
currency of the group entity to which they relate:
k1Y 18- 3 ZETtF
2008 2007
AR%TIT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BT EUR 1,988 3,912
ST USD 68,082 50,915
BT HKD 27 19
Ht Japanese Yen 27 6
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(REBEBLERA2ETRAFES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
BZE-_ZTN\HF+-A=+—HBLLFE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

Trade and Other Payables

The following is an aged analysis of accounts payable at the

balance sheet date:

ZETNE ZTELF
2008 2007
ARBFIT AR®EFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—F LR Within one year 242,426 156,140
ZR—FEIRMF More than one year but
less than two years 2,151 6,528
ZRMFRIR=F More than two years but
less than three years 966 9,233
BE=F Over three years 5,085 4,455
250,628 176,356
EMENRIERETER Other payables and accrued charges 111,190 93,451
361,818 269,807

REEmNRZ FHEER /X -
AEBERETREREEBRR - A
RETA BN FRIEMEERANEE

R-BEE+E+-_A=+—0 " Hib
ENFBEREFERERSEK I
f% B A R #10,646,0007T * It
R _ZEZENF+_A=1+—HEK

The average credit period for payment of purchases of goods
is 45 days. The Group has financial risk management policies
in place to ensure that all payables are settled within the credit

timeframe.

As at 31st December 2007, other payables and accrued charges
included an amount of RMB10,646,000 receipt in advance from
a minority shareholder of a subsidiary. The amount has been

released as at 31 December 2008.

BRIE o
28. HMHBTER 28. Short-term Bank Loans

—EEN\E —ETF
2008 2007
AR¥FTT AREF T
RMB’000 RMB’000

RITEFRR —FANEIE : Bank loans due within one year:
E:3 i Unsecured 266,456 206,819
A Secured 18,018 =
284,474 206,819
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
(REEBLERM2ETREES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
BZE-_ZZTN\F+-A=+—HBILLFE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

AHRMITER ) 28. Short-term Bank Loans (continued)

AEENRITERFER : The Group’s bank loans are interest-bearing as follow:
—ETNE ZETLF
2008 2007
AR#FIT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
TE HAFI| & Fixed rate 140,000 160,000
F B A Variable rate 144,474 46,819
284,474 206,819

| EERS - AR%50,000,0007C
(ZZZLF B HARFNEEE
AE A% IR HE(R - A R ¥80,000,000
T(ZZEZ+F : AR% 80,000,000
JL) AR B R S AR PR AR SR IR L4
R e

REBENFENERITEFATER
TTREFR SN X IR B SR EHE
ARBRITEEEHRMKRGE - FNEE
B==t_EAEHMHE -

A48 4R 1 K0 B M D (B
ARFME) T :

Included in the unsecured bank loans, RMB50,000,000 (NIL)
was guaranteed by the immediate holding of the Company and
RMB80,000,000 (2007:RMB80,000,000) was guaranteed by the
ultimate holding company of the Company.

The Group’s variable rate loans carry interest at a margin over
HIBOR or prevailing rate quoted by the PBOC. Interest is repriced
every three to twelve months.

The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal to
contracted interest rates) on the Group’s bank loans are as
follows:

ZET)\F T E

2008 2007

TE HA F & Fixed rate 5.02% to 5.216% to
7.47% 7.290%

FEF R Variable rate 4.51% to 4.46% to
5.31% 4.65%

AEBNBEBERLQRZIERER
SIRZEEMT

The Group’s bank loans that are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the relevant group entities
are set out below:

—ET)\F —EELF

2008 2007

’000 ’000

ks Hong Kong Dollars 50,000 50,000
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(REBEBLERA2ETRAFES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
BE-TZN\F+=ZA=+—HILSEE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

28. MHIBITER @ 28. Short-term Bank Loans (continued)
RZZEZENF+ZA=+—08 ' && During the year ended 31st December 2008, the Group obtained
EESHEERSEAARY new loans in the amount of approximately RMB439,409,000
439,409,0007T (ZZFZ+F : AR (2007: RMB299,237,000). These loans carry interest at prevailing
299,237,0007T) ° BEFILTISF EET market rates and will be repayable within one year.

EYWAR—FRAZHEE -

29. K& 29. Share Capital
-1 1% “TTtE
2008 2007
g RTRELES T ARBTT Fig ARBEFT
Number of Number of

Registered and fully paid: shares '000 RMB’000 shares ‘000 RMB’000
BEROHSREEARRIT State-owned shares of RMB 1 each

W—A—-BR+-BR=+—H At 1st January and 31st December 163,259 163,259 163,259 163,259

BREARBREEBARMIT Promoters’ shares of RMB 1 each

w—A—H At 1st January - - 16,720 16,720
BEEEAREAR Transfer to A shares - - (16,720) (16,720)
R+ZA=+-A At 31st December - - — —
EARSREEAR®IT PRC legal person shares of RMB 1 each
W-A-BRkt+=-A=1+-A8 At 1st January and 31st December 24,527 24,527 24,527 24,527
BRERERR Restricted senior management
SREEARRIT shares of RMB 1 each
iz At 1st January 31 31 39 39
BELHERDEERTRD Net decrease as a result of shares
sold from senior management (8) (8) (8) (8)
R+ZA=+-A At 31st December 23 23 31 31
ARWBEER (TARK]) RMB ordinary shares
SREEAERIT (A Shares) of RMB 1 each
R—R—H At 1st January 119,496 119,496 102,768 102,768
REREEEARRREEA Transfer from promoter and
senior management 8 8 16,728 16,728
“+=-A=1+—H At 31st December 119,504 119,504 119,496 119,496
JohEmEOSMER (THRR)) Overseas listed foreign invested shares
SREAEBAERIT (H Shares) of RMB 1 each
W—A—BR+-R=+—H At 1st January and 31st December 150,000 150,000 150,000 150,000
457,313 457,313 457,313 457,313

IR FERZ R 95 PR 2 F Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited 1 47 |




ISR (&

(REFBLERMN 2T RAEH)

30. EEMRR(BE) AR

RAFEMBEFEERZERRIT
BB (BE) BEMEEHHEIINT :

Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
BE-TZN\E+=-A=+—HIEE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

30. Deferred Tax (Asset) Liabilities

The followings are the major deferred tax (asset) liabilities
recognised and movements thereon during the current and prior

year:
BRHER BEIRLAREZEH Htt it
Change in fair value of
Accounting provisions financial instruments Others Total
—SENE —_TTHF ZEBBNE _TTHF ZBENE _TTHHF ZBBNE _ITTLF
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
ARBTRE AEETT ARBTT ARETT ARBTET ARETT ARBTT ARETT
RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000
R—A—AH
At 1st January (6,950) 3,361 53,795 = 308 826 47,153 4,187
REEREGIA) Mk
(Credit) charge to equity for the year — — (41,044) 51,410 — — (41,044) 51,410
FEEGRBRRGIA) 1k
(Credit) charge to consolidated
income statement for the year (561) (11,850) (3,492) 2,385 (93) (148) (4,146) (9,613)
T%AEE@
Effect of change in tax rate — 1,539 — — — (370) — 1,169
i s I
At 31st December (7,511) (6,950) 9,259 53,795 215 308 1,963 47,153
—EENF —ETHF
2008 2007
AE®TiT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEBBERERN Net deferred tax assets recognised
FIREFTISTHEE on the balance sheet (1,031) (2,157)
REEBBERERD Net deferred tax liabilities recognised
FRLEMEHAaE on the balance sheet 2,994 49,310
1,963 47,153
RZZFENF+ZA=+—08 &% As at 31st December 2008, the Group has unused tax losses

B R A RN R AR IS E 12
HANRH2976,000 (—ETLF
AEM1w7mmﬂ R R R SR FI)E
B TEEMTE - RIS B HERELR
%%E%EL% SHEE - m%%ﬁ
AABBEFERL  ERRAFE
FRATHRAD o
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of approximately RMB 2,976,000 (2007: RMB1,097,000) available
for offsetting against future profits. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of these tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses can be
carried forward for five years from the year in which the respective

loss arose.
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Deferred Tax (Asset) Liabilities (continued)

At 31st December 2008, the Group had a deductible temporary
difference of approximately RMB1,182,000 (2007:Nil). No
deferred tax asset had been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary difference as it was not probable that the
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences can be utilised.

Banking Facilities
The Group’s banking facilities included:

— RMB91,000,000 (2007: RMB200,000,000) which was
guaranteed by the immediate holding company. As at
31st December 2008, the Group utilised RMB50,000,000
(2007: NIL) in respect of the short-term bank loans and
RMB41,000,000 (2007:RMB27,184,000) in respect of bills
payables issued to suppliers; and

— RMB80,000,000 (2007:RMB80,000,000) which was
guaranteed by the ultimate holding company. As at 31st
December 2008, the Group utilised RMB80,000,000
(2007:RMB80,000,000) in respect of short-term bank
loans.

Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the bank loans disclosed in note 28, cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company,
comprising issued share capital, reserves and retained earnings.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the associated risks and take
appropriate actions to adjust the Group’s capital structure. The
overall strategy of the Group remained unchanged from prior
year.
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MEIR Financial Instruments
MEBEIRBSE Categories of financial instruments
—EE)\F —EELF
2008 2007
AR®FT AR T T
RMB’000 RMB’000
HBEEE Financial assets
B R EWERR Loans and receivables
(BiERE AR EEY) (including cash and cash equivalent) 549,055 519,529
A ETEEE Available-for-sale financial assets 94,767 367,162
BARBEFAERZ Fair value through profit or loss
MREE-—ITESREE — Derivative financial assets — 15,897
HBEBAR Financial liabilities
RN AGTER Financial liabilities measured
MBar at amortised cost 605,627 437,025
BRARERABRZ Fair value through profit or loss
MBaE-TEemas — Derivative financial liabilities 7,591 —

MERREEERRKE

AEBENTIEVBTABREAHLE
ZIRE - ORI N B A R RIR -
FEM B IR AR - U E A )
oo BHEMRTER  TEERT
BRI BRI R RN
K ENEERRRRBITER - %
SMBTANFBERERBBME
A e TXEFERZEM BT ARG/
R Rl R EZERROBRE - &
BEEEMERZFRAR - AHERRE
i R B R RBUE E M 1E

B LB

ARABETETHBRRBINEHE
R FARERIIINERR - B
TRESNERR - ARBERBERR
EIRHR R TAF R AL IR 2 E T
BRI ERAL -

AREBEETRKIRR - RITHEBRIIR
T BNERRBITERTIAARK
AN EHEEHE -

1150

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-
sale investments, trade and other receivables, amount due from
immediate holding company, amounts due from associates,
pledged bank deposits, derivative financial instruments, bank
balances and cash, trade and other payables, amount due to an
associate and bank loans. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. In order to mitigate the foreign currency risk, foreign currency
forward contracts are entered into in respect of highly probable
USD forecast sales in accordance with the Group’s risk
management policies.

Certain trade receivables, bank balances and cash, trade

payables and bank loans of the Group are denominated in a
currency other than RMB.
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33.

BE=ZZEENF+=ZA=+—HLFE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

Financial Instruments (continued)
Currency risk (continued)

The following table shows the Group’s exposure at the balance
sheet date to currency risk arising from transactions or recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the
function currency of the entity to which they relate.

RZZZNE+ZB=1+-H
As at 31st December 2008

R-BELF+-A=1-F
As at 31st December 2007

BT ETTT BTFIT BT Fir ETTT BLFL
United United
States  Hong Kong States  Hong Kong
Euro Dollars Dollars Euro Dollars Dollars
(“EURO”) '000 (“USD”) '000 (“HKD”) 000 (“EURO’) ‘000 (“USD") '000 (“HKD”) '000
BE Assets 1,676 26,885 31 531 22,721 21
BE Liabilities 1,405 103 44,095 363 82 50,000

AEBZRETRABRERIINEELRS
KILAR SN E R o SNEER BRI S K90
ABEENIAR —B o EERIRET - A
KEAREBAREHIRZRTHER
VEBE X (RAMHE24) -

HBES R

AEBEFEZIINETERET -
KT °

ey

NRFFMAFIARAB MBS ERERR
F—BUIERTASEEZEINELA
RIS E R H)5%H) Al BE & 2 EE B B
B o BURE D ITEBIEASNEETHER
REHEHIRE - YREHZEE BB
KEERNS%E B FHBEIME o

The Group requires its group entity to use foreign currency
forward contracts to minimise the currency exposures. The foreign
currency forward contracts must be in the same currency as the
hedged item. On this basis, the Group has entered into USD
forward contracts in relation to the highly probable USD forecast
sales (see Note 24 for details).

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the currencies of EURO, USD
and HKD.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 5% increase
and decrease in RMB against the relevant foreign currencies.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the
year end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates.
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33. MBIR #® 33. Financial Instruments (continued)
B BT BT
Euro usb HKD
ZBEN\E _—TTtF ZBEN\Ff C"TTHF ZBE\E C"ITTLF
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
ABBTT ARETT ARBTT AREFT ARBTT ARET:I
RMB’000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000
REFE Increase (decrease) in
profit for the year
—-BAREH — if RMB weakens against
MNEEME foreign currencies 11 90 7,779 8,292 (1,652) (2,340)
- BEAREY — if RMB strengthens against
HNEFE foreign currencies (111) (90) (7,779) (8,292) 1,652 2,340

SN H i AN REER 5% Z B H s
MEMERBOILEEATE - &F
BERR - ARFRZERIL ARk
RAFEAZER - REREDHTAL
A—EARKREBINVERR -

IR

AEBERTESRITEFAZDAER
K@k o (RAHE28%6 B E G
18) - AKE B AR A F R EPEEK
A EEEHNEAREMES
EREHMREHRENRR  $&€2F
BRI L BERTITE

AEETFEFBRITEFARBDR
M EER o (RAME28F @R E K
F1B) - ARBANBEREMRE BIRTT
EFUR DR RAMERE -

REBBIBABEERIOTERERA
BRAKZERBE AR —HKE -
AEENRSMEEBREBZEPRA
SENARBERELNTEARR
TTEEEFN XN RE AR EEER
EENTERITRERS N KR
3 o
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A change of 5% in exchange rate of each foreign currency
against RMB does not have a significant impact on other
components of equity. In management’s opinion, the sensitivity
analysis is not necessarily of the inherent foreign exchange risk
as the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during
the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation
to fixed-rate bank borrowings (see note 28 for details of these
borrowings). The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider other necessary actions when
significant interest rate exposure is anticipated.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank borrowings (see note 28 for details
of these borrowings). It is the Group’s policy to keep its borrowings
at floating rate of interests so as to minimise the fair value
interest rate risk.

The Group’s exposure to interest rates on financial liabilities is
detailed in the liquidity risk management section of this note.
The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated
on the fluctuation of the HIBOR or prevailing rate quoted by the
PBOC arising from the Group’s variable-rate bank loans.
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33.

BE-TZN\F+=ZA=+—HILSEE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

Financial Instruments (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at
the balance sheet date. For variable-rate bank borrowings, the
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding
at the balance sheet date was outstanding for the whole year.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/ lower and all
other variables were held constant, the Group’s profit for the
year ended 31st December 2008 would decrease/ increase by
approximately RMB614,000 (2007: RMB234,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its
variable-rate bank borrowings.

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is not
necessarily of the inherent interest rate risk as the year end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Other price risk

The Group’s other price risk is mainly concentrated on available-
for-sale investments quoted in the stock exchange of the PRC.
The management monitors the price risk exposure and will take
appropriate measures should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
the exposure to other price risks at the balance sheet date.

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale investments had
been 5% higher/lower:

—EETNEF T HF
2008 2007
AR¥TIT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000

FE#EmIEMORD) Increase (decrease) in equity for the year:
—ARAFHEE LT — as a result of increase in equity price 3,891 18,198
—ARAREHER B — as a result of decrease in equity price (3,891) (18,198)
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33.

Financial Instruments (continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of bank loans and ensures compliance
with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-derivatives financial
liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on
which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.

HEE DR RE Liquidity risk tables
e F i) ®»+=H
ReRER Sar=[3]
BHAE PR—F ZEEE
Total
undiscounted
Effective cash flows Carrying
interest less than amount at
rate 1 year 31 December
ARETFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
2008 2008
FTERBERRA Non-derivative financial liabilities
JE R 30R H A JE Y 3R0E Trade and other payables 319,348 319,348

JEfT R & R RIFR

Amount due to an associate 1,805 1,805

BHBRITER Short-term bank loans 451% - 7.47% 300,308 284,474
621,461 605,627

2007 2007

FTERBERRA Non-derivative financial liabilities

FE A BRI L A JE T SRIR Trade and other payables 269,807 269,807

JERT & R RIFR
RHRITERR

Amount due to an associate 125 125
Short-term bank loans

4.46% - 7.29% 213,185 206,819

483,117 476,751
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BZE-_ZTN\HF+-A=+—HBLLFE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

33. Financial Instruments (continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2008, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties provided
by the Group is arising from the guarantee given and the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated balance sheet.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination of
credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at each balance sheet date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.
In this regard, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

The Group has no concentration risk, with exposure spreading
over a number of counterparties and customers.

c. Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

. the fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded in active liquid markets are determined
with reference to quoted market bid prices and
ask prices respectively; and

. the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis using prices or
rates from observable current market transactions
and dealer quotes for similar instruments as input.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.
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34. Acquisition of Subsidiaries

There was no acquisition of subsidiaries for the year ended 31st
December 2008.

Details of acquisition of subsidiaries during the year ended 31st
December 2007 are as follows:

a) At 1st January 2007, the Group purchased of 0.1%
Xinhua-Perrigo interests at a cost of US$6,000 (Around
RMB46,000). Before this, Xinhua-Perrigo was an 50%
equity-owned associates of the Group. The acquisition is
accounted for using the purchase method.

There are no significant differences between the fair
value of identifiable assets and liabilities of acquired
subsidiaries and its book value.

Frifg 8 EME - Net assets acquired:
ARMFIT
RMB’000
M - HEREE Property, plant and equipment 43,987
JEWBE A N b fEUFXTE  Trade and other receivables 2,742
& Inventories 10,365
RITFERER® Bank balances and cash 4,731
JER RN R EMEZXIE  Trade and other payables (9,517)
JE TR SRR IA Shareholder payables (14,240)
38,068
D ERR R Minority interests (18,996)
BRE Total considerations 19,072
BRIATARZA - Satisfied by:
Re Cash 46
iR l/NS Interests in associates 19,026
19,072
E U E 8 Net cash inflow arising
ReMAFE - from acquisition:
ENRERE Cash consideration paid (46)
Fri g iR1TAA 82 ) 3R©  Bank balances and cash acquired 4,731
4,685
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BE-TZN\F+=ZA=+—HILSEE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

Acquisition of Subsidiaries (continued)

a)

(continued)

During the year 1st January 2007 (acquisition date) to
31st December 2007 (also the Group’s financial year),
the contribution of turnover and profit to the Group by
Xinhua-Perrigo was RMB111,902,000 and RMB9,454,000
respectively.

On 30th November 2007, the Company increased its
investment cost of RMB6,000,000 in an associate,
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical (Shouguang) Company
Limited (“Xinhua Shouguang”) (formerly known as
Shandong Dadi Xinhua Chemical Company Limited). The
capital injection was not in proportion to the existing
shareholding in Xinhua Shouguang, as a result, the
Company’s interest held in Xinhua Shouguang increased
from 49% to 58.56%. The Group also controlled the
financial and operating policies of Xinhua Shouguang
and was therefore classified as a deemed acquisition of
a subsidiary (“deemed acquisition”). The deemed
acquisition has been accounted for using the purchase
method.

The fair values of the net assets acquired approximate
to their carrying amounts.
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34. BB AT (&) 34. Acquisition of Subsidiaries (continued)
(b) (&) b) (continued)

Fri g & E(E - Net assets acquired:

ARS T

RMB’000

M - HEREE Property, plant and equipment 23,690

fFEIRE Construction in progress 3,576

JEUBR R N b fEUCFIE  Trade and other receivables 14,891

FE Inventories 16,579

RITIFR RIS Bank balances and cash 6,759

EMEBRR M HMbfERZXE  Trade and other payables (23,962)

41,533

DERREE Minority interests (22,477)

BRE Total consideration 19,056

BRIATARZA - Satisfied by:
BE Cash 6,000
N T RE RS Interests in associates 13,056

1158

19,056

B W 2 A Y Net cash inflow arising
ReMAFE - from acquisition:
ERNReRE Cash consideration paid (6,000)
FriiE MR 174582 3R €&  Bank balances and cash acquired 6,759
759

MESRNURIBAREERY
REEHEEB RGN WIRE
BEXEM -

HWR—FTLF—A— B
17 WBHAREZEEER
FREMILEERZE - B2
BERTDEH2ZE - MARDEER
NMAKBEEER _TTLF—
A—HREZK AEEREZE
B2 WA RMEERE - TR IF
BERIREELE -

Xinhua Shouguang had no significant contribution to the
Group’s revenue and profit before tax for the period
between the date of acquisition and the balance sheet
date.

If the acquisition had been completed on 1st January
2007, there would have been no significant impact on the
Group’s turnover and profit for the year. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1st
January 2007, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.
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36.

— T

BE-FZENF+=-HA=1+—HISE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

35. Acquisition of Additional Interest in

Subsidiaries

During the year ended 31st December 2008, the Group acquired
additional interests of 41.44% in Xinhua Shouguang at a
consideration of RMB13,972,000. After the acquisition has been
completed, Xinhua Shouguang becomes the wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group.

The amount of RMB359,000 being the difference between the
consideration paid to minority shareholders and the net assets
of Xinhua Shouguang acquired are recorded in “Other Reserve”.

36. Disposal of Subsidiaries

During the year ended 31st December 2008, the Group disposed
of the entire interests of a subsidiary held by the Group —
Weifang Wanyuan Chemical Company Limited, at a consideration
of RMB9,202,000.

FrtEFEEM Net assets disposed:
ARBFIT
RMB’000
Mz - HE REE Property, plant and equipment 15,676
JE U5 B R K L A E W R IR Trade and other receivables 3,930
& Inventories 15,490
RITERERE Bank balances and cash 70
JIE < BR 3K e L b FE Y SRR Trade and other payables (17,778)
FEE Net asset 17,388
B DBURRE RS Less: Minority interests (8,871)
HEMNFEE Net asset disposed 8,517
HEN B AR Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 685
BRE Total consideration 9,202
BATAHRXZAN Satisfied by:
ORI IR E S Consideration payable for the acquisition of
LERENRE (f17737) additional interests in Xinhua Shouguang (Note 37) 9,202
AHEEENRSRAERE Net cash outflow arising from disposal of a subsidiary:
FIHEMRITESR KRR S Bank balances and cash disposed (70)

RE-TT/\F+-A=+—HI%
PO 2 B 2 W A 2
HREEREEAVE -

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

As of 31st December 2008, there is no significant impact on the
Group’s turnover and performance with the disposal of the
subsidiary.
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Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

REE

LZRRMN 22T RAIHS)) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)

BZE=ZZENF+=ZA=+—HL5FE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

FEREXH

HE_ZZN\F+_A=+—HIHF
E - AEBEMMBRTHES N
HRR B ETERE - EBEARKE
13,972,0007T ° Ith4h - AEEEER
BHH BRI THR AR RFTAREE
T AL - BB AR 9,202,000
(Ki7E36) @ BB AEANEE U E
SR EMEIEK -

HE_ZZ)\F+_A=+—HIHF
B NREBEELERATAR - E
RENME  BEREEHRAHEEE
METS A A RH9,846,0005T ° Lt
AN HEMIEEIRHEAEER
AR #1,033,0007T &S °

i

(a) CE X%

HFRIERYE  BEKRE
e

REHER  AEEXIENEH
BEYMAERBHEZTRE
KBEVE  BELRREBZK

37.

38.

Non-cash Transactions

As of the year ended 31st December, 2008, the Group acquired
all the remaining equity interests in a non-wholly owned
subsidiary, Xinhua Shouguang, from its minority shareholders at
a consideration of RMB13,972,000. In addition, the Group
disposed of all the interests in Weifang Wanyuan Chemical
Company Limited to the minority shareholders at a price of
RMB9,202,000 (Note 36). This amount was satisfied by offsetting
part of the consideration payable for the acquisition of Xinhua
Shouguang.

During the year ended 31st December 2008, the immediate
holding company of the Group settled their debts due to the
Group of RMB9,846,000 by the land use rights and property,
plant and equipment. Certain debtors settled their debts of
RMB1,033,000 by the available-for-sale investments.

Commitments

(a) Capital commitments

Commitments for construction in progress and property,
plant and equipment

At the balance sheet date, the Group had the following
capital commitments principally related to construction in
progress, purchase of land use rights and purchase of

BBE AR EAENT property, plant and equipment in respect of buildings and
production facilities which were not provided for in the
consolidated financial statements.

k-1 1§ 3 —EFELF

2008 2007

AR®FT AREF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

BERAEREE Contracted but not provided 78,943 26,511
EHEERZL Authorised but not contracted for 167,435 235,380
246,378 261,891
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(REBEBLERA2ETRAFES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)

(43 )
(A5 )

g

EEHARIE
AEBEREAMA

REBERBEEHENLZHEE
HETZERE - KHEEZEY
ENBEOzFHH—FER
FoRREEEXRGE -

REHEB - REBRETATHE
HEEROR THEIEE 2 &
REEEN TS AIEDT ¢

BE=ZZEENF+=ZA=+—HLFE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

Commitments (continued)

(b)

Commitments under operating leases
The Group as lessee

The Group leases certain of its retail shops under
operating lease arrangements. Lease for properties are
negotiated for a term ranging from one to five years and
rentals are under fixed rate.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

—ETN\F ZETLF
2008 2007
AR%TT ARBFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
—FR" Within one year 459 545
F_EERF In the second to fifth year inclusive 259 553
718 1,098
KEEERHHEAA The Group as lessor

AEERBLEMOHBITD
VI - ZEMERMBL Z K5
BERE—FELF -

REFER - REBEREAATH
HEERAONTIIZIEA 28
R EREESAEDT

The Group leases certain of its properties under operating
lease arrangements. Lease for properties are negotiated
for a term ranging from one to five years.

As at balance sheet date, The Group’s non-cancellable
operating leases in accordance with the following
expiration date of the future minimum rental commitment
receivable is as follows:

—ET)\F ZETLF

2008 2007

AR¥FTT AR T

RMB’000 RMB’000

—FR" Within one year 750 796
EF_EZFERF In the second to fifth year inclusive 2,580 3,080
3,330 3,876

H i % i

RZZEZELF+_A=+—
H - AEEEBEMNEERHT
ESAHNEIAEERENNE
AAEYE A AR16,100,000
TC o IBE NN EEREES
EZENF+-_A=+—HItF
SR ©

(c)

Other Commitments

As at 31st December 2007, the Group had capital
commitment authorised but not contracted for totaling
RMB16,100,000 in respect of the additional capital injection
in Xinhua Shouguang. The additional investment has been
completed during the year ended 31st December 2008.
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(REEBLERM2ETREES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
BE-TZN\E+=-A=+—HIEE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

RAEAR

RE-TTN\F+-A=+—HI#F
g ARERERARMRE -

BHE-_ZT+HF+_-_A=1+—RHIt&E
E - AREBERITIREMBERT —
RBIYLE=H AR BERARITEAR
BEELTARRETN—RHNBARE
H AR#14,000,0007T ° ZARFHEAH
RITASIEZ @ - AAREBEREIR
THRANEZEZEHEERERME
By EBAFEEERX - R
ZZ+F+_A=+—8  FB1EH
B AR#7,000,000TEE - MigERH
ME S5 AEAREB,500,0007T °

FREALES

(@) BRREAMBRERMABEIN - &K
SEEHMERXGHRENE
TZERFHEALRSZRE

39.

40.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2008, the Group did not have contingent
liabilities.

For the year ended 31st December 2007, the Group provided
financial guarantee to a bank in respect of bills of exchange
amounting to RMB14,000,000 granted to an independent third
party. The bills of exchange would be issued to a subsidiary of
the Company. The Group is only liable for the difference between
the face value of bills of exchange issued by the bank and the
amounts on bill of lading. As at 31st December 2007, bills of
exchange amounting to RMB7,000,000 and bill of lading
amounting to RMB6,500,000 have been issued by the bank.

Related Party Transactions

(a) Except as disclosed in elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, the other significant related party
transactions, which were carried out in the normal course

1162

UM of the Group’s business are as follows:
k-1 J 82 e
2008 2007
ARBFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
wEREE: SXPGC:
—YHFUAEEE — Payment of annual trademark
(FraE1) licence fee (Note 1) 1,100 1,100
-Hexd — Rental expense 500 500
RAEMELR : Fellow subsidiaries:
—HEKEAREME — Sale of water, electricity, steam
and raw materials 12,870 14,036
—HERMH — Purchase of raw materials 132,098 96,730
-k ON — Rental income 361 952
-Hex — Rental expense — 370
— R BKRA — Design fee income 24 10
-BENE BER — Purchase of property plant and
FERTIHERE equipment and land use rights 9,846 3,358
-EETmFEAE — Income from transfer of land use rights 924 =
BELAR: Associates:
—HERMH — Purchase of raw materials 12,875 34,768
— R BIRA — Design fee income 12 31
PHER : Minority shareholder:
—HELBRMER — Sale of bulk pharmaceuticals and
T R# chemical raw materials 162,161 175,989
- RBLETIRERBMEKER — Purchase of chemical raw materials,
water, electricity and steam — 2,938
—EEEHE (B)) RiE — Acquisition of additional interests in
Xinhua Shouguang 13,972 —

IR ERERBERAR Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Z2-ZZT\F+=ZA=+—HIFE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

Related Party Transactions (continued)

(continued)

Notes:

1.

On 7th December 1996, the Group was granted the exclusive
right to use the trademark “Xinhua” (“Trademark”) by SXPGC
for its existing and future products in and outside the PRC
at an initial annual fee of RMB600,000 increasing at the rate
of an extra RMB100,000 per year until the annual fee reaches
the cap amount of RMB1,100,000, which shall stay as such
until the agreement is terminated. The terms of the agreement
shall continue to have effect during the validity period of the
Trademark, being 28th February 2013, subject to further
renewal of the registration of the Trademark. During the year
ended 31st December 2008, the annual fee paid by the
Group amounting RMB1,100,000 (2007: RMB1,100,000).

The Group operates in an economic environment
predominated by enterprises directly or indirectly owned or
controlled by the PRC government through its numerous
authorities, affiliates or other organisations (collectively
“State-owned Enterprises”). During the year ended 31st
December 2008, the Group had transactions with State-
owned Enterprises including, but not limited to, sales of
pharmaceutical products and purchases of raw materials.
The directors of the Company consider that transactions
with other State-owned Enterprises are activities in the
ordinary course of business, and that dealings of the Group
have not been significantly controlled or owned by the PRC
government. The Group has also established pricing policies
for products and such pricing policies do not depend on
whether or not the customers are State-owned Enterprises.
Having due regard to the substance of the relationships, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that none of
these transactions is a material related party transaction
that requires separate disclosure.

At 31st December 2008, the ultimate holding company
provides guarantee in respect of bank loans of the Group
amounted to RMB80,000,000 (2007: RMB80,000,000).
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(REEBLERM2ETREES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)
BZE-_ZZTN\F+-A=+—HBILLFE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

40. FRAEALXEZH &) Related Party Transactions (continued)

(c) FEEBRAB Z R (c) Compensation of key management personnel
REFEERHMEZEERA The remuneration of directors and other members of key
BZHMIIBRMT management during the year was as follows:

—EENEF —EELF
2008 2007
ARETFIT ARETF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EERA Short-term benefits 3,331 2,491
EEHERIREE & Post-employment benefits 190 172
3,521 2,663
EENTEEEAB ZFHMA The remuneration of directors and key executives is
THRERNEHNE 8 2 R1E @ determined by the remuneration committee having regard
AR ETISBEETE to the performance of individuals and market trends.
41. MELT 41. Subsidiaries

R_EZNEFE+_A=+—HZKB Details of Company’s subsidiaries as at 31st December 2008

N (N are as follows:

MELAERHE BEMBIERREERM BEMEFEE ERBAHRE IERBREZHE

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation and paid share capital/ Effective  Principal activities

Name of subsidiary

kind of legal entity

registered capital interest held  and place of operation

WRHERE BM) ERAT
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
(Europe) GmbH

WRHEREEHERAA
Shandong Xinhua Medical
Trading Company Limited

HEBHMEXEE (25) BRAF
Zibo Xinhua Pharmacy (Chain)
Company Limited

EEHERERRARAR
Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical Design
Institute Company Limited

EEHETAREEREELA
Zibo Xinhua-Eastwest
Pharmaceutical Company Limited

=8 BREEAT

Germany, limited company

B EREAAR
PRC, limited company

HE - EREALH
PRC, limited company

TE - BREAAT
PRC, limited company

hE - EREEAA
PRC, limited company

B170650,0007C 76.90% HRENSEENREERRES
EUR650,000 76.90%  Trading of medicine and
medical products in Europe
AR 48,498,900 99.76% RPBEEEYREERARES
RMB48,498,900 99.76%  Trading of medicine and
medical products in the PRC
AR #2,000,0007C 88% RPEASEENRBERRTE
RMB2,000,000 88%  Retail sales of medicine and
medical products in the PRC
AK#2,000,0007C 90%  WRESLBETIRNE:
RMB2,000,000 90%  Design of medical production
projects in the PRC
%711,500,0007C 75% @ RPBLEREEERRESRHE
US$1,500,000 75%  Production and sale of calcium

polycarbophil materials
in the PRC

| 164

IR E R %R /2 B PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited




41.

42,

ISR EE (&)

Notes to consolidated Financial Statements (continued)

(REBEBLERA2ETRAFES) (Prepared Under Hong Kong Generally Accepted Accounting Principles)

BE-FZENF+=-HA=1+—HISE For The Year Ended 31st December 2008

MELAT (&) 41. Subsidiaries (continued)
MELAERE BEMBIERREERM EMEFERE ERBARE IERBREEHE

Place of Issued and fully

incorporation and paid share capital/ Effective  Principal activities
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity registered capital interest held  and place of operation
WRHEREE R OERERAR nE - BREARA AR 3,000,007 9952%  REERLOERREMRI
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical PRC, limited company RMB3,000,000 99.52%  Import and export of chemical

Import & Export Company Limited

HERE-BNRREEREALA  PH BREAAF

SINO-USA Zibo Xinhua PRC, limited company

— Perrigo Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

HERE (B) ERATA E - BREEAHF

(RBLRARHELSERAA)

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical PRC, limited company

(Shouguang) Company Limited
(formerly known as Shandong
Dadi Xinhua Chemical
Company Limited)

products and pharmaceutical
technical know-how in the PRC

% 716,000,000 50.10% RHBEAEERMLEERR
USD6,000,000 50.10%  Production of medicine and

medical products in the PRC

AR 80,000,000 100% RPBEERBEELIER
RMB80,000,000 100%  Production and sales of

chemical products in the PRC

I B A RN F 48 BB ERER

4 3 k]

R-FBFELF+-_A=+—HLF
B REBBREAEHEDR - UER
AFERZIITEER

42,

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.

Comparative Figures

Certain comparative amounts for the year ended 31st December
2007 have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s
presentation.

IR FERZ R 95 PR 2 F Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited 1 65 |
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PRC Auditor’s Report

IWRHERERGARLFZEER :

BMET TR AILRITERER B ERA
AIATEBIERAR]) AH AR AMER
% BIE2008F12A31EHMEERER
2008FEMFEER - Baensk WEEDS
BERETIEREWE -

THERHMERENRE

BREXEAEINRERHIMERREE
NREBENEMT EREEERE : ()R
At~ B HE NN 4 R ER B 7 R A 1R AR R O O D
2 AR BRI T FERNEFR R
MEMWEBAER : QPERTERRENE
TSR - Q)R AEMEEHART
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JER TR RAT 8 &5 | KA A +86(010)65542288

ys : ERFIEHIFRESFE | LRTA _
-‘f%’ g& »ga STt A RE O 2 telephone: +86(010)65542288
é;hf,%zy v 9th Floor, Block A, Fu Hua Mansion
ine Ln? ShineWi No.8, Chao Yang Men Bei Da Jie, f6E:  +86(010)6554 7190
inewing Dong Cheng District, facsimile: +86(010)6554 7190
certified public accountants Beijing, 100027, P.R.China

ALL SHAREHOLDERS OF
SHANDONG XINHUA PHARMACEUTICAL COMPANY LIMITED:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements (consolidated
and company) of Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 Dec. 2008,
and the income statement, and cash flow statement, and statement of
changes in shareholder’s equity for the year then ended, and notes to
the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

The Company’s management is responsible for the preparation of these
financial statements in accordance with the Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises issued by the Ministry of Finance of the People’s
Republic of China. This responsibility includes: designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

IWRFERERGBERDF Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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PRC Auditor’s Report (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with China’s
Auditing Standards for the Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements comply with the requirements
of the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises issued by the
Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China and present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of the Company as at 31
Dec.2008, and the results of operations and cash flows of the Company
for the year then ended.

ShineWing Certified Public Accountants

Certified Public Accountant, PRC Lang Zheng

Certified Public Accountant, PRC Zhang Xinwei

Beijing, PRC
20 March 2009
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EHREARIEERER
Consolidated and the Parent Company’s Balance Sheet

(Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

A B4R
Consolidated Parent Company
2008%12R 318 2007127310 2008%12R 318 20074127310
31 December 2008 31 December 2007 31 December 2008 31 December 2007
End. Balance Beg. Balance End. Balance Beg. Balance
BE k3 AR¥T ARET AERT ARET
Assets Notes RMB RMB RMB RMB
RHEE Current assets
gBEe Cash 8.1 238,124,321.03 212,257,860.96 195,090,080.99 171,473,812.44
Rt HEE Held-for-trade financial assets 8.2 - 15,896,732.85 - 15,896,732.85
EUZEE Notes receivable 8.3 82,743,811.99 71,965,993.53 75,160,033.26 54,105,664.07
JEUEE Accounts receivable 8.4 206,778,423.86 221,089,889.52 256,925,926.86 215,346,436.72
BRZE Advance to suppliers 8.5 35,865,418.65 21,437,818.42 14,756,272.43 20,260,313.40
EFIS Interest receivable = = = -
FEM AR Dividend receivable = = = =
Eft el Other receivable 8.6 15,623,193.15 20,581,451.30 24,483,887.80 28,127,733.96
B Inventories 8.7 304,514,308.52 286,041,091.79 201,914,101.83 187,002,774.30
—ER5Hm Non-current assets due
FRBEE within one year = - - _
EtinBEE Other current assets = — - _
nOHEESH Sub-total of current assets 883,649,477.20 849,270,838.37 768,330,303.17 692,213,467.74
FRDEE: Non-current assets
MRHELRHEE Avaiable-for-sale financial assets 8.8 94,766,950.00 367,162,640.00 94,497,400.00 367,162,640.00
FEZIHRE Held-to-maturity investment - = = -
RAEYH Long-term receivable - - = =
RERER Long-term equity investment 8.9 27,489,044.33 23,512,190.33 201,914,628.68 131,823,478.19
REREHE Investment property = = = =
BHrdE Fixed assets 8.10 955,853,848.53 853,263,386.97 862,059,705.23 746,249,488.38
EEIR Construction in progress 8.1 88,205,679.79 71,180,403.06 57,425,955.46 70,537,755.07
I#ME Construction materials = = = =
ETEERE Disposal of fixed assets = = = =
EEMENAE Biological assets = = = =
BREE Oil and nature gas - - = =
BVEE Intangible assets 8.12 110,738,399.27 96,647,338.77 103,732,638.48 95,463,885.48
RETH Research & Development cost - = - =
EG Gooduwil - = = =
ROGHER Long-term prepaymnets = = = =
BEFMEHAE Deferred tax assets 8.13 1,030,919.57 2,156,578.21 - -
A ERHEE Other non-current assets = = = =
ERDEESH Sub-total of non-current assets 1,278,084,841.49 1,413,922,537.34 1,319,630,327.85 1,411,237,247.12
HEAH Total of Assets 2,161,734,318.69 2,263,193,375.71 2,087,960,631.02 2,103,450,714.86
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Consolidated and the Parent Company’s Balance Sheet (continued)

(Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

aft B4R
Consolidated Parent Company
2008%12A31A 2007F12A318 2008%12A 31A 2007F12A31H
31 December 2008 31 December 2007 31 December 2008 31 December 2007
End. Balance Beg. Balance End. Balance Beg. Balance
ARENRRER firz ARBT ARER ARBT ARER
Liabilities & Shareholdes’ equity Notes RMB RMB RMB RMB
bod -1 Current liabilities
REBER Short-term loans 8.15 284,474,500.00 206,819,000.00 284,094,500.00 166,819,000.00
oA R held-for-trade financial liablities 8.16 7,591,083.73 — 7,379,442.43 —
EfzE notes payable 847 121,265,800.00 30,184,200.00 121,265,800.00 27,184,200.00
R Accounts payable 8.18 133,824,183.65 154,100,269.89 100,429,192.00 112,608,591.46
BB Deposit payable 8.19 6,935,628.53 22,385,801.00 2,837,038.09 3,218,722.41
ERBIEH Employee benefits payable 820 32,196,663.53 39,725,806.31 31,279,033.45 38,954,024.91
ExHE Tax payable 821 453,194.93 (2,698,407.78) 1,191,765.24 (5,606,583.11)
RIS Interest payable = = = =
FER R Dividends payable 8.22 5,325,136.26 5,506,871.72 5,325,136.26 5,268,267.14
EfERR Other payable 823 78,458,661.40 40,580,775.84 71,808,474.75 31,666,915.52
—ER3Hm Non-current liabilities due
¥nBafk within one year = — - _
AnEaE Other current liabilities = - - _
HHARAH Sub-total of current liabilities 670,524,872.03 496,604,316.98 625,610,382.22 380,113,138.33
FRBARK: Non-current liabilities
REER Long-term borrowings = - - _
EfES Bonds payable = = = =
REERT Long-term payables = = = =
EREMR Specific payables = = = =
BiaE Provisions - = = =
ELEFMERAR Deferred tax liabilities 8.24 650,100.07 46,273,502.80 650,100.07 46,273,502.80
AERHER Other non-current liabilities 3,561,500.00 3,561,500.00 3,561,500.00 3,561,500.00
kRBARAH Sub-total of non-current liabilities 4,211,600.07 49,835,002.80 4,211,600.07 49,835,002.80
ffRas Total liabilities 674,736,472.10 546,439,319.78 629,821,982.29 429,948,141.13
BRES : Shareholders’ equity
BA Capital 8.25 457,312,830.00 457,312,830.00 457,312,830.00 457,312,830.00
EADE Capital surplus 8.26 617,502,733.62 850,245,800.85 618,086,240.10 850,245,800.85
B BER Less:Treasury stock = - - _
BRAR Surplus reserve 8.27 167,309,492.08 164,257,990.01 166,646,950.77 163,595,448.70
KARHE Undistributed profits 8.28 210,690,983.71 193,496,393.27 216,092,627.86 202,348,494.18
MERENEER Foreign currency statemnts
translation difference 436,951.95 647,937.91 - —
GENEAT Sub-total of shareholders’ equity
REEHAH attributable to the parent company 1,453,252,991.36 1,665,960,952.04 1,458,138,648.73 1,673,502,573.73
DUREER Minoriy Interest 829 33,744,855.23 50,793,103.89 - -
REERSH Total shareholders’ equity 1,486,997,846.59 1,716,754,055.93 1,458,138,648.73 1,673,502,573.73
ARNREREAH Total liabilities & shareholders’ equity 2,161,734,318.69 2,263,193,375.71 2,087,960,631.02 2,103,450,714.86
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B RERAARER

Consolidated and the Parent Company’s Income Statement

(Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

Consolidated

Parent Company

20085 K 20075 20085 0075
2008 2007 2008 2007
Current year Last year Current year Last year
cumulatives cumulatives cumulatives cumulatives
b fiit AERT ARET ABRT AR¥T
ltem Notes RMB RMB RMB RMB
- EREKL Total Operating Income 2,096,963,709.91 1886,978,951.19 1,501,371,154.25 1,441,720,515.03
Ho: gEHA Operating Income 8.30 2,096,963,709.91 1,886,978,951.19 1,501,371,154.25 1,441,720,515.03
Z. ERER% Total Operating Costs 2,043,732,734.51 1,866,268,973.70 1,456,666,012.19 1,425,273,318.69
A BERE Operating Costs 830 1,804,214,578.65 1,602,416,724.99 1,312,006,980.07 1,234,939,353.52
BERE LI Taxes and surcharges 8,31 9,656,432.59 11,914,325 8,452,551.39 11,303,831.39
HEER Selling and distribution
expenses 99,500,079.47 86,788,904.20 26,893,227.17 37,911,493.16
EEER General and administrative
expenses 117,404,414.35 129,003,027.18 98,312,577.56 117,570,489.74
HBER Finanical expenses 8.32 8,464,601.59 20,220,553.65 7,497,096.10 19,103,870.58
BERERK Impairment loss of assets 8.3 4,492,627.86 15,925,441.13 3,503,579.90 4,444,280.30
m: RrEEEHNE A Gain or Loss from
changes in fair value 8.34 (23,487,816.58) 15,763,060.17 (23,276,175.28) 15,763,060.17
REkH Investment gain or loss ~ 8.35 6,649,200.78 (1,019,598.87) 6,756,827.30 (5,256,422.87)
e HRELEA Including:  Investment gain or loss
BELERENE from joint ventures and
associates 2,118,782.49 (3,580,329.93) 2,118,782.49 (7,817,153.93)
B i i Exchange gain or loss
= BRNE Operating profit 36,392,359.60 35,453,438.79 28,185,794.08 26,953,833.64
e BEMIA Add:  Non-operating income 836 20,194,290.81 18,728,400.05 15,483,018.53 18,607,416.95
W BERRH Less:  Non-operating Cost 837 10,546,464.19 7671,345.36 9,967,306.40 10,069,092.28
Ed ERHEEREBL Including: Disposal gain or loss on
non-current assets 7,012,331.52 3,989,901.88 6,979,566.18 7,220,276.92
M. fREH Income before tax 46,040,186.22 46,510,493.48 33,702,406.21 35,492,158.31
W FEHER Less: Income tax expense 8.38 6,368,585.79 8,366,209.04 3,187,385.56 6,251,405.76
1 A Net profit 39,671,600.43 38,144,284.44 30,515,020.65 29,240,752.55
BENSLARREFAE  Atributable to: Equity holder of
the parent company 33,965,477.41 32,723,034.60 - -
YERFER Minority interests 5,706,123.02 5,421,49.84 - =
N BRRE Earnings per share
(=) ExgR4aE Basic 0.07 007 0.07 006
(0 wESRYE Diluted 0.07 007 0.07 006
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EHRBATBRERER

Consolidated and the Parent Company s Cash FIow Statement

Consolidated

BAR

(Prepared in Accordance with PRC Account/ng Standards)

Parent Company

20085 K 007FE 20085 K 0075F
2008 2007 2008 2007
Current year Last year Current year Last year
cumulatives cumulatives cumulatives cumulatives
Wizt ABBT ARET ABBT ARET
ltem Notes RMB RMB RMB RMB
. BEEDELR CASH FLOW FROM
RekE: OPERATING ACTIVITIES
HERWS RUEAK  Cash receipts from the sale of
lhedfiopes goods or rendering of services 1,518,111,744.43 1510,043,727.20 1,097,353,218.72 1,211,918,357.42
WEmBERE Receipts of taxes refunds 7,610,585.97 14,318,790.15 3,105,906.23 6,799,749.67
WEIEREL2ES  Other cash receipts ralating to
BERES operating activities 8.39 26,434,855.66 31,513,639.69 43,531,435.35 43,944,198.13
BEEHRERXA DG SUB-TOTAL OF CASH INFLOWS 1,552,157,186.06 1,555,876,157.04 1,143,990,560.30 1,262,662,305.22
BEBER ET4HK  Cash payments for goods purchased
RS and services received 1,021,793,233.55 1,066,992,350.69 714,108,387.41 853,057,825.71
THABTMRART  Cash paid to and on behalf of employees 188,246,534.16 171,799,738.27 164,450,024.74 147,097,161.79
FULEE
INHEERE Payments of all types of taxes 94,862,865.66 65,875,083.72 78,248,749.97 57,302,971.04
SAEBELZES  Other cahs payments relating to
BERES operating activites 8.39 143,775,192.91 130,617,960.52 131,533,832.08 96,449,919.41
EEEHRERM NG SUB-TOTAL OF CASH OUTFLOWS 1,448,677,826.28 1,435,285,113.20 1,088,340,994.20 1,153,907,877.95
BEFDELY NET CASH FLOWS FROM
SRERH OPERATING ACTIVITIES 103,479,359.78 120,591,043.84 55,649,566.10 108,754,427.27
. REEDEEN CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
RefE: ACTIVITIES
WEREREGHE  Cash receipts from disposals and
return of investments 6,500,000.00 117,000,000.00 - 117,000,000.00
DER AR MEIRES Cash receipts from returns on investments 4,048,099.29 4,109,096.06 4,638,044.81 4,109,096.06
REETEE EFEE Net cash receiptsfrom disposals of fixed
REMEHEEREY  assets, intangible assets and other
ReFE long-term assets 1,978,823.00 16,638,246.39 1,978,823.00 16,632,050.40
RETREREM Net cash receipts form disposals of
S EEl subsidiaries and other business units - = = =
ReEE
WEIEREREED  Other cash receipts relating to
bk investing activties - - = =
REEBHETA MG SUB-TOTAL OF CASH INFLOWS 12,526,922.29 137,747,342.45 6,616,867.81 137,741,146.46
BRETLE  EFEE Cash payments to acquire and construct
NEfREEE fived assets, intangible assets and
RS other long-term assets 162,326,024.71 87,742,491.69 101,035,819.87 85,498,993.95
REZRNES Cash payments to acquire investment 13,972,368.00 9,158,170.60 67,972,368.00 20,298,170.60
BEFAARER Net cash payments for acquisitions of
EXBUIAN subsidiaries and other busingss units - - = =
ReEE
THEGEREED  Other cash payments relating to
EBnRS investing activities - = - =
REFHRERM s SUB-TOTAL OF CASH OUTFLOWS 176,298,392.71 96,900,662.29 169,008,187.87 105,797,164.55
REZDELY NET CASH FLOWS FROM
ReRRSH INVESTING ACTIVITIES (163,771,470.42) 40,846,680.16 (162,391,320.06) 31,943,981.91
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(Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

Consolidated and the Parent Company’s Cash Flow Statement (continued)

At BAR
Consolidated Parent Company
20085 K 20075 20085 K 0075
2008 2007 2008 2007
Current year Last year Current year Last year
cumulatives cumulatives cumulatives cumulatives
| fiit AERT ARET ABRT AR¥T
ltem Notes RMB RMB RMB RMB
Z EREDEEH CASH FLOWS FROM
HaNE: FINANCING ACTIVITES
WARKEMEHES  Cash receipts from investors in making
investment in the enterprise - - - -
Ed e FREARMOE  Including: Cash receipts from the
BEEARGINES  subsidiaries by abdorbing the
minorities’ equity investment - - - —
DEEANINES  Cash recsipts fom borrowings 439,408,667.35 260,620,782.00 417,539,000.00 260,620,782.00
WHEBEEELES  Other cash recelpts relating to
EBnRS financing activities - = - =
EZEHRERA NS SUB-TOTAL OF CASH INFLOWS 439,408,667.35 260,620,782.00 417,539,000.00 260,620,782.00
[BEEBIMHEL  Cash repayments of amounts borrowed 358,902,617.40 331,767,039.70 297,539,000.00 320,220,063.00
AERH - FER Cash payments for distribution of
ERFBXMANES  duidends or profits, or cash payments
for interest expenses 31,634,797.24 19,601,928.40 31,428,379.96 19,199,157.71
Ed FREZHHE  Including: Cash payments by the
TRRMBRH - 1 subsidiaries to the minority shareholders 206,417.28 = - =
SHEGSEEED  Other cash payments relating
ok ok tofinancing activities - - = =
EEZHRARXM M SUB-TOTAL OF CASH OUTFLOWS 390,537,414.64 351,368,968.10 328,967,379.96 339,419,220.71
EREDEEN NET CASH FLOWS FROM
ReRESE FINANCING ACTIVITIES 48,871,252.71 (90,748,186.10) 88,571,620.04 (78,798,438.71)
M EXEBHALR EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE
BeSEWNYE  RATE CHANGES ON CASH (4,745,032.69) (3,991,370.85) (4,516,02094) (3,194,953.69)
I REeRRSEEN NET INCREASE OF CASH AND
BRME CASH EQUIVALENT (16,165,890.62) 66,698,167.05 (22,686,154.86 ) 58,705,016.78
n: BIRER Add: Beginning balance of cash
Re2ENsE and cash equivalents 199,832,528.24 133,134,361.19 163,318,552.44 104,613,535.66
A BFERER CASH EQUIVALENT 183,666,637.62 199,832,528.24 140,632,397.58 163,318,552.44
ReSRNRE
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REREZZER

Statement of Changes in Shareholder's Equity

(Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

2008 FEEHERESEE R

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity in 2008

1 BERBLARELNE DHREEE  BEAGAH
Item Total of

Minority  Shareholder's

Equity attributable to the parent company Interest Equity
k% FEIN ] W HER ERLE  -RERER KAENE if
Share Capital Less: Surplus General risk  Undistributed
capital surplus ~ Treasury stock reserves provision profit Others
ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET AEBT
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
- LEEXBE Edning banlance of last year 457,312,830.00  850,245,800.85 —  164,257,990.01 —  193,496,393.27 647937.91  50,793,103.89 1,716,754,055.93
0 EHEREE Add: Effects of the changes of accounting policies - - - - - - - - -
AMEEEL Effects of the changes of prior accounting errors - - - - - - - - -
. REEDRE Beginning balance of the year 457,312,830.00  850,245,800.85 —  164,257,990.01 —  193,496,393.27 647,937.91  50,793,103.89 1,716,754,055.93
S FERAEDEAROUI)REN) Increase/decreased in the year
(decrease is presented in brackef) — (282,743,067.23) - 3051,502.07 — 1719459044 (210,985.96)  (17,048,248.66) (229,756,209.34)
(=) FHE | Net profit - - - - - 33,985477.41 —  5706,123.02  39,671,600.43
(2) BEAARRERDAGNER Il Gain o loss directly included
in shareholders equiy — (232743067.23) = = = — (M09 (6337808) (23301743128
1. Afke a. Net changes in fair value of
EEEDFE avaivable-fot-sale financial assets — (273,428,145.00) = - - - - —  (273,428,145.00)
2 ERETRRABNLEL b, Effcts of the changes of other
RegsRanys sharehodlers' equity of the
investees under equity method - - - - - - - - -
3 EFARRESERAEN ¢ Effects of income tax related to
i sharefolder's equity — 410414675 - - - - - — 4104414675
4 Ef d. Others = (359,068.98) = = = = (210,985.96) (63,378.09) (633,433.03)
HRORE) N Subtotal o | & I —  (282,743,067.29) - - — S3965ATIAT (210985.96) 564274498  (193,345,830.85)
) BRRAMESEA Il Shareholder's devoted capital and
decreased capital - - - - - - —  (2484576.31) (22,484576.31)
1. BRRAER a. Sharehider's devoted capital - - - - - - —  (2484576.31) (22.484576.31)
2 RAEHHARRERNEE b.  Paid in shares included in
shareholders' equity - - - - - - - - -
3 Ef ¢ Others - - - = - - - - -
(m) HHAR IV Profit distribution - - - 3,051,502.07 - (16,770,886.97) - (206,417.28)  (13,925,802.18)
1. REB4LE a. Withdrawal of surplus reserves - - — 308150207 — (3,081,50207) - - -
2 HRENAR b, Distributions to shareholders = = = = —  (13,719,384.90) - (206,417.28)  (13,925,802.18)
3 RR-RERER ¢. Withdrawal of general risk provision - - - - - - - - -
4 d. Others - - - - - - - - -
@) R V- Carrying forward internal sharholders' equity - - - - - - - - -
1. ERDESLEAGHR) a. Capital surplus conversed to capial
(Share capital) - - - - - - - - -
2 BRAREAEAGRE) b, Surplus reserves conversed to capial
(Share capital) - - - - - - - - -
3. ERNEERER ¢. Remedying loss with surplus reserves - - - - - - - - -
4 E d. Others - - - - - - - - -
B FEERBE Ending banlance of the year 457,312,830.00  617,502,733.62 —  167,309,492.08 - 210,690,983.71 436,951.95  33,744,855.23 1,486,997,846.59
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Statement of Changes in Shareholder's Equity (continued)

(Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

2007 FEEHBRESEIE

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity in 2007

1 BERBLARAZEE JHRERE  BEAGAH
Item Total of

Minority  Shareholder's

Equity attributable to the parent company Interest Equity
k% FEIN ] W HER EBOR  -RERER KAENE i
Share Capital Less: Surplus General risk  Undistributed
capital surplus ~ Treasury stock reserves provision profit Others
AEBT AEBT AEBT ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET ARET
RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB RMB
- LEERBE Ending banlance of last year 457,312,830.00  558,919,077.15 —  162,285,764.68 —  171,891,840.60 708,115.79  3,260,950.06 1,354,398,578.28
: GHRREE Add: Effects of the changes of accounting policies - - - - - - - _ _
HEMEEEL Effects of the changes of prior accounting errors - - - - - - - - -
Z FEEORE Beginning balance of the year 457,312,830.00  558,919,077.15 —  162,285,764.68 — 171,891,84060 70811579 3,280,950.06 1,354,398,578.28
S FERREDEN RN REN) Increase/decreased in the year
(decrease is presented in bracket) - 291,326,723.70 = 1,072,225.33 —  21,604,552.67 (60,177.88)  47512,153.83  362,355,477.65
(=) $H@ I Net prof - - - - — 372303460 — 542124084 3814428444
(2) BEAARRERDAGNER 11 Gain or loss directl included in
shareholders' equity —  291,326,723.70 - - - - (60,177.88) (854,325.41)  290,412,220.41
1. a. Net changes in fair value of
avaivable-fot-sale financial assets - 342,787,322.00 = = = = = - 342,737.322.00
2 b, Effects of the changes of other
3 Es Bl sharehodlers' equity of the
investees under equity method - - - - - - - - -
3 EHARRERRREEN ¢ Effects of income tax related to
it shareholder's equity —  (51410,598.30) = = = - - —  (51,410,598.30)
d. Others = = = = = — (6017788)  (843%541)  (914503.29)
Sub-total of | & Il - 291,326,723.70 - - —  32,723,034.60 (60,177.88)  4,566,02443  328,556,504.85
(2) BRRAMBS A IIl Shareholder's devoted capital and

decreased capital - = = - — _

4294520940 4294522940

1. BEEAER a. Sharehider's devoted capital = = = = = = — DS940 4294520940
2 RBRMHARRERHLE b, Paid in shares included in
shareholders' equity - - - - = = = - -
5 Ef ¢ Others - = = - - - - - _
(m) HEAR V" Proft distrbution - - - 19722538 — (1,118,481.93) - - (8,146.25660)
1. RREHLE a. Withdrawal of surplus reserves - - - 192253 - (1972205.3) - - -
2 HREAAR b. Distributions to shareholders - - - - - (9,146256.60) - - (9,146,256.60)
3 RO-RERER ¢ Withdrawal of general risk provision - - - - - - - - _
4 Efp d. Others = - = - = _ - - _
(B) RREEAHES V' Carying forward internal sharholders' equity - = = = - - - - _
1. ERDEELEA(ARE) a. Capltal surplus conversed to capital
(Share capital) - - = = = - - - _
2 BAREEEER(GRE) b, Surplus reserves conversed to capital
(Share capital) - - — — = = = — _
3 BHDERHER ¢ Remedying loss with surplus reserves - - = = = = - - _
4 Bt d. Others - = = - - - - - _
B FEEXBE Ending banlance of the year 457,312,830.00  850,245,800.85 — 164,257,990.01 —  193,496,393.27 647,937.91  50,793,103.89 1,716,754,055.93
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BRERERBER (&

Statement of Changes in Shareholder's Equity (continued)

(Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standarrds)
2008 FEBAFIRRESED R

The Parent Company’s Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity in 2008

By ARKTT
Unit: RMB Yuan

RE k* RELH W EER BROR  -RERER FREHE i RR#E&SH
Total
Share Capital Less: Surplus  General risk  Undistributed sahrholders’
Item capital surplus  treasury stock reserves provision profit Others equity
- LEEXRE Edning banlance of last year 457,312,830.00  850,245,800.85 —  163,595448.70 —  202,348,494.18 — 1,673,502,573.73
n: eHEREE Add: Effects of the changes of accounting policies - - - - - - - -
HHZEEL Effects of the changes of prior accounting errors - - - - - - - -
. FEEDBA Beginning balance of the year 457,312,830.00  850,245,800.85 — 163,595,448.70 —  202,348,494.18 — 1,673,502,573.73
I SERREBOWEIU)RAT) Increaseldecreased in the year (decrease
is presented in bracket) — (282,159,560.75) = 3,051,502.07 — 1374413368 — (215,363,925.00)
(=) #HE I Net profit - - - - — 30,515,020 — 3051502085
(2) ERAARRERHHEARL Il Gain or loss directly included
in shareholders’ equity —  (232,159,560.75) - - - - —  (232,159,560.75)
1. AfHELREE a Net changes in fair value of
MrEERDIE avaivable-ot-sale financial assets —  (273,128,895.00) - - - - — (273,128895.00)
2 BEETHRABMENRR b, Effects of the changes of
RREINYE other sharehodlers’ equity of

the investees under equity method - - - = = = — -
3. ESARREZEAEBOAERZE ¢ Effects of income tax related to

shareholder's equity —  40,969,334.25 - - - - —  40,969,334.25
4 Ef d. Others - = = - — - - _
Hi(=)R(E) Nt Sub-total of | & I —  (282,159,560.75) - - — 3051502065 — (201,644,540.10)
(2) RERAAROER Il Shareholder's devoted capital and decreased capital - - - - > - _ _
1. RREABR a.  Sharehider's devoted capital - - - - - — — _
2. BRRNHARRERNLE b. Paid in shares included in shareholders’ equity - - - - - — h _
2. BBMHARRERNEE ¢ Others = = - = - - - _
(m) FEAR IV Profit distribution - - — 3,051,502.07 —  (16,770,886.97) —  (13,719,384.90)
1. RRERLR a Withdrawal of surplus reserves - - - 3,051,502.07 —  (3,051,502.07) - -
2. HREOSE b Distributions to shareholders - - - - —  (18,719,384.90) —  (13,719,384.90)
3. RE-HEREE ¢ With drawal of general risk provision - - - - - — — _
4 At d. Others = - = - — - — _
(1) RREandeE V- Carrying forward internal sharholders’ equity - - - - - — - _
1. ERRREEAA(FRE) a. Capital surplus conversed to capital

(Share capital) - - = = = — — —

2. BROEEHEAR(ERE) b, Surplus reserves conversed to capital
(Share capital) — = = = — — _ _
3. BBLEBHESR ¢ Remedying loss with surplus reserves - = = = = - _ _
4 At d. Others = - = - — - — _
B, FEERBE Edning banlance of the year 457,312,830.00  618,086,240.10 —  166,646,950.77 —  216,092,627.86 — 1458,138,648.73
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RERERBER (&

Statement of Changes in Shareholder's Equity (continued)

(Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

2007 FEEBAFIRRESEH R
The Parent Company’s Statement of Changes in Shareholder’s Equity in 2007

By ARKT
Unit: RMB Yuan

%A (2 RELH W AR BBOE  -RERER E L] it RR#E&SH
Total
Share Capital Less: Surplus ~ General risk  Undistributed sahrholders’
Item capital surplus  treasury stock reserves provision profit Others equity
- LEEXRE Edning banlance of last year 457,312,830.00  558,919,077.15 —  162,011,233.56 — 183,838,213.37 — 1,362,081,354.08
n: eHB%EE Add: Effects of the changes of accounting policies - - - - - - - -
MBEEELE Effects of the changes of prior accounting errors - - - - - - - -
Z. FEEDRE Beginning balance of the year 457,312,830.00  558,919,077.15 — 162,011,233.56 — 183,838,213.37 — 1,362,081,354.08
S FEREEBEWEOUI)RAT Increase/decreased in the year (decrease is
presented in bracket) —  291,326,723.70 - 1,584,215.14 —  18,510,280.81 —  311,421,219.65
I Net profit 29,240,752.55 29,240,752.55
Il Gain or loss directly included in shareholders’ equity —  291,326,723.70 = = = = —  291,326,723.70
a. Net changes in fair value of
avaivable-fot-sale financial assets —  342,737,322.00 = = = = —  342,787,322.00
b, Effects of the changes of
L3 Dok other sharehodlers’ equity of

the investees under equity method - - - - = = — —
3. EXARFESEREEN ¢ Effects of income tax related to

i shareholder's equity - (51410598.30) - - - - - (51410598.30)

4 Ef d. Others - - - - — — — _

LR Nt Sub-total of | & I —  291,326,723.70 - - — 294075255 — 32056747625

(2) RREAHRSER Il Sharefolder's devoted capital and decreased capital - - - - - — _ _

1. BERARK a.  Sharehiders devoted capital - = = = - - - _

2 RXMHARRERNEE b. Paid in shares included in shareholders’ equity - - = = = = - -

3. A ¢ Others - - - - - — - _

(m) HHAR V' Profit distrbution = = — 15821514 —  (10730471.74) —  (9,146.256.60)

1. RBERLR a. Withdrawal of surplus reserves - - — 158421544 - (1584215.14) - -

2. HRRHSHE b.  Distributions to shareholders - - - - — (9,146,256.60) — (9,146,256.60)

3. RE-RERER ¢ Withdrawal of general risk provision - - - - - — - _

4 Ef d. Others - - - - - — - _

(1) RREGATES V' Carrying forward internal sharholders’ equity - = = = - - - _
1. BRDRELER(GRE) a. Capital surplus conversed to capital

(Share capital) — = = = — — _ _
2. BHLEERER(SRE) b.  Surplus reserves conversed to capital

(Share capital) = = — — _ _ _ _

3. BRLHEREAR ¢ Remedying loss with surplus reserves - - - - - — - _
4 Ef d. Others - - - = - — - _
B FEERBE Edning banlance of the year 457,312,830.00  850,245,800.85 —  163,595,448.70 —  202,348,494.18 — 1,673,502,573.78
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Notes to the Financial Statements

(ANBF 3 SRR MR BR S BIEE RSN » IAAR#E T HI/R) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)

LFHEFER

IR ERER AR AT (THE[A
ANAE]]) 19934 1L B T EE BB R L
HIFRSL © 1996 F 12 A KA RIAE B A
LB ARABEITREARKLEH
HAZ I ZE © 19977 A AR R BILAFYIA
By AFAEITHREARLNER
AMRRZ - 1998411 AR EE A R
MBI INE 5B S ESRIER - &
BIINEHIRERMD AR AT ° 200169
B A A 1S 3 ARS 3B AR 22 3,0008
f% » [F8% JRh 35 B A A% 300 & % ©

HZE2008F12A318 » ARQ AR
BREANREEL57,313F T © A&
BT

(RIEPEF2ERILRS]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

Background of the Company

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited (hereafter
referred to the “Company”) was established in 1993, which
dating from the reorganization of Shandong Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Factory. The Company issued its H Shares at
Hong Kong Stock Exchange in December 1996 and its A Shares
been on Shenzhen Stock Exchange in July 1997. The Company
became to a foreign invested joint stock company in November
1998, when approved by the Ministry of Foreign Trade and
Economic Cooperation of P.R. China. The Company issued
additional 30 million ordinary A shares as well as decreased 3
million state-held shares in September 2001.

The company’s registered capital ending in 31st December 2008
is RMB457.313 million, its share capital configuration as follow:

BB BE&H [:4:]

Shares Amount Ratio

Bl % Bk State-held shares 163,259 163,259 35.70%

HEEAR Legal-person shares 24,527 24,527 5.36%
RESER Senior management-held

sale prohibited shares 23 23 0.01%

He R ZHE Publicly-held H shares 150,000 150,000 32.80%

HeRRARK Publicly-held A shares 119,504 119,504 26.13%

CE Total 457,313 457,313 100%

ARRIEBRERE - REMBPEL
BRH%E HERETER -

BIEILEERE2RME - |LRE MK
B IWRERERBER  WEEH
HIEBE R = F[2009]1257 X Ayt
B ARBRHERESH ML -

AR M L RE S IE T 2%
MEXRERLETRE -

MESRNIREER

ZNb ST E I NNCIES T S-S

The Company is mainly engaged in developing, manufacturing,
selling bulk pharmaceuticals, preparations and chemicals
products.

According to the approved Luke [2009] No.12 document approval
from Science &Technology office of Shandong Province,
Shandong Department of Finance, Shandong National Revenue
Department, and the Inland Revenue Department of Shandong
province, the Company has been recognized as a high-tech
enterprise.

The Company’s registered its address at Chemical Area of Zibo
New and High Technology Industrial Development Zone,
Shandong Province.

Basis of the Preparation for Financial
Statements

The financial statements shall be prepared on the basis of
hypothesis continual operating.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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(A B 5 3R R MR BRAS BIRE BRSO - I BLA R F LHI/R) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

The Statement will go compiling with the
ASBEs

The company ensures the financial statements have been
prepared compiling with the requirements of the ASBEs, and
which will be revealed fairly in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company, the operations results as well as the
cash flows of the Company.

Accounting Policies, alteration of
Accounting Estimates and rectification for
significant errors of last year.

The company has no change in accounting polices, alteration

of accounting estimated and rectification for significant errors of
last year during 2008.

Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates
and Basis of Presentation for Consolidation

1. Accounting Period

The fiscal period of the Company is from January 1 to
December 31 of each calendar year.

2. Reporting currency

The Company’s reporting currency is Rimingbi (“‘RMB”).

3. Measurement Basis and its Changes in the Period

The company is based on the accrual basis for accounting
foundation, and except of held-for tread financial assets,
available-for-sale financial assets at fair value, others
accounting are based on the historical cost pricing
principle.

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The cash in the Cash Flow Statement refers to the cash-
on-hand and deposits, those which are available for
payment at any time. The cash equivalents refer to short-
term (due within 3 months since the date of purchase)
and highly liquid investments, those which are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of change in value.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(REPEIZT2EALFS) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)
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5.

Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates
and Basis of Presentation for Consolidation

(continued)

5.

Foreign Currency Transactions

5.1

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Foreign Currency Transactions

Foreign currency transactions shall be exchanged
into RMB according with the spot exchange rate
on the first day of the month, in which the
transactions occurred. Foreign currency monetary
items shall be exchanged using the spot exchange
rate on the balance sheet date, exchange
differences arising from the differences between
the spot exchange rate be prevailing at the balance
sheet date and those spot rates used on initial
recognition or at the previous balance sheet date
been recognized in profit or loss for the current
period, except for those difference related to the
principal and interest on a specific-purpose
borrowing denominated in foreign currency for
acquisitions, constructions or production of the
qualified assets, which will be capitalized as cost
of the assets. Foreign currency non-momentary
items measured in fair value shall be translated
using the spot exchange rate at the date when the
fair value was determined. Exchange differences
arising from the differences of exchange rate are
recognized as changes in fair value in profit or
loss for the current period. Foreign currency non-
monetary items measured in historic cost shall
still be translated using the spot exchange rate
when the transaction occurred.
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Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates
and Basis of Presentation for Consolidation

(continued)

5.

Foreign Currency Transactions (continued)

5.2

Translation of Financial Statements Denominated
in Foreign Currency

The Company shall translate the financial
statements of a foreign operation as follows: assets
and liabilities on the balance sheet will be
translated at the spot rate prevailing at the balance
sheet date, while the equity items except for
undistributed profits on the balance sheet will be
translated at the spot exchange rate when they
occurred. Income and expenses on the income
statement will be translated at the spot exchange
rate at the date of the transactions. Differences
arising from the above translations shall be
presented as a separated component of
shareholders’ equity on the balance sheet.
Exchange differences of the foreign currency
items, which are substantively net investment to
a foreign operation, arising from the change of
the exchange rate shall be presented as a
separated component of shareholders’ equity on
the balance sheet as well when the Company
prepare the combined financial statements.
Exchange differences related with the disposed
foreign operation shall be transferred to profit or
loss as the proportionate share in which the
disposal occurs

Cash flow dominated in foreign currency or from
the foreign subsidiaries shall be translated at the
spot rate when occurs. Effects arising from change
of exchange rate of cash shall be presented
separated in cash flow statement.

IWRFERERGBERDF Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(REPEIZT2EALFS) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates
and Basis of Presentation for Consolidation

(continued)
6. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
a) Classification of financial assets

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

The Company classified the financial assets as
held-for-trading financial assets, available-for-sale
financial assets, receivables and held-to-maturity
investments by the purpose and substance of
investments.

Accounting in fair value changes and its
change reckoning in the current profit and
loss financial assets refers to financial
assets with the purpose of sale in short
term, and on-balance sheet list in held-for
tread financial assets.

Available-for-sale financial assets refer to
initial recognition and it was designated as
available-for-sale of non-derivative financial
assets and is not divided into other
categories of financial assets.

Accounting receivables refers to
receivables are not in an active market
quotation, recycling fixed or determinable
amount of non-derivative financial assets,
including notes receivable, accounts
receivable, interest receivable, dividends
receivable and other receivables, etc
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5.

Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates
and Basis of Presentation for Consolidation

(continued)

6. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
(continued)
a) Classification of financial assets (continued)

b)

iv. Held-to-maturity investments refer to non-
derivative financial assets with a fixed
maturity date, the amount of recycling fixed
or determinable, and the management has
a clear intention, even they getting an ability
to hold to maturity.

Recognition and measurement of financial assets

The financial asset shall be originally measured
at its fair value. Transaction cost arising from
acquisitions of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss shall be charged to the profit or loss
for the current period. For other financial assets,
the transaction costs shall be included in their
initial recognition amounts. The Company shall
derecognize a financial asset if the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or all the risks and rewards belonging to
the ownership of a financial asset have been
substantively transferred to the transferee.

After initial recognition, the Company shall
measure the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and available-for-sale financial assets
at their fair values, while investment in equity
instruments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured shall be measured
at cost. Receivables and held-to-maturity
investments shall be measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method.

IWRFERERGBERDF Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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5.

Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates
and Basis of Presentation for Consolidation

(continued)

6.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
(continued)

b)

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Recognition and measurement of financial assets
(continued)

Gain or loss arising from changes in fair value of
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
shall be recognized in current profit or loss.
Interests or dividends achieved during the holding
period shall be recognized as investment income.
Difference between fair value and initial recognized
amount arising from the disposal shall be
recognized as investment income and presented
in current profit or loss.

Gain or loss arising from changes in fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets shall be
recognized in shareholders’ equity; Interests
calculated using the effective interest method
achieved during the holding period shall be
recognized as investment income; Dividends on
an available-for-sale equity instruments shall be
recognized as investment income when the
investee declares the dividends. Difference
between the considerations of disposal and the
carrying amount of financial assets deducted with
any accumulative gain or loss that had been
directly recognized in shareholders’ equity shall
be recognized in profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates
and Basis of Presentation for Consolidation

(continued)

6.

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
(continued)

c)

Impairment of financial assets

The Company shall assess the carrying amount
of financial assets other than those at fair value
through profit or loss at the balance sheet date.
If there is objective evidence that the financial
asset is impaired, the Company shall determine
the amount of any impairment loss. When an
available-for-sale financial asset is impaired
substantially or perpetually, the cumulative loss
arising from decline in fair value that had been
recognised directly in owner’s equity shall be
removed from owner’s equity and recognised in
profit or loss. If, after an impairment loss has been
recognised on an available-for-sale debt
instrument, the fair value of the debt instrument
increases in a subsequent period and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised, the
impairment loss shall be reversed, with the amount
of the reversal recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment losses recognised for an investment
in an equity instrument classified as available-for-
sale shall be reversed through owner’s equity if
the fair value increases in a subsequent period
and the increase can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised. The impairment loss on an investment
in unquoted equity instrument without a quoted
price in an active market whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured shall not be reversed.

IWRFERERGBERDF Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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5.

Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates
and Basis of Presentation for Consolidation

(continued)

6. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
(continued)

d)

Financial liabilities

The Company’s liabilities were initially split into
fair value changes where its change count towards
current profit and loss under current liabilities and
other financial liabilities.

Fair value changes where its change count towards
current losses or gains under current liabilities
includes transactional financial liabilities and fair
value changes that are initially designated as
financial liabilities. These financial liabilities must
be audited in accordance with follow-up
measurements of fair value changes. Profit and
loss due to fair value changes and expenditures
including interests and dividends in relation to
financial debts are included under current profit
and loss.

Other financial liabilities are calculated in
accordance with the actual interest method where
follow up measurements are calculated by
distributing profit throughout the year.

7. Accounting for bad debts loss

71

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

On the balance sheet date, the Company inspects
the book value of account receivables and matters
including the existence of debt revocation,
bankruptcy, insolvency, serious shortage of cash
flow, occurrence of natural disasters, other debts
that as foreseen are not repaid in accordance to
plan, other overdue debt obligations where
receivables cannot be recovered. If any of the
above occurs, the Company will make provision
for bad debts.
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Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates
and Basis of Presentation for Consolidation

(continued)

7.

Accounting for bad debts loss (continued)

7.2

7.3

Of bad debts losses, for those will be possible to
happen, the company adopts allowance method
accounting, at the ending of balance, in
accordance with the method of analysis provision
for bed debts, gain or loss reckoning into the
current period. Receivables, if there are indeed
evidence proving them as to uncollectible
receivables, in accordance with the policies setting
out by procedures, the company should list them
as bad debts losses as well as written off bad
debts extract preparation. Receivables in the
company’s dealings with related party, provision
for bad debts are usually not prepared.

Receivables which over 500 million shall be regard
as the individual significant accounts receivables
by the company, while if there are any objective
evidence indicating that the receivables cannot
be recovered in accordance with the basis terms,
according to the margins between book value of
cash flow in the future lower than its book value,
the company should individual has an individual
impairment test, then provision for bad debts.

Receivables belong to non-significant receivable,
the company will put them together with
unimpaired significant receivables which was been
individual test, assembling them in accordance
with similar accounting age, on the basis of former
years actually ratio of losses, considering the
current circs, making sure the ratio of each items
provision for bad debts during this accounting
year, according to all above, the company
calculates the provision for bad debts of this term.

IWRFERERGBERDF Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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EEEsIHE - Frtfhstin

Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates

EHMBEBRENDERSE and Basis of Presentation for Consolidation
(%) (continued)
7. BRFREREREARERE 7. Accounting for bad debts loss (continued)
(&)
73 (&) 7.3  (continued)
JRE LSRR IE 55 AR E S T Provision for bad debts loss shall be made as
REOIA follows:
IR HE 374k
Aging Bad Debts Percentage
—FLR Less than 1 year 0.5%
—ZS=FF 1-2 years 20%
—E=F 2-3 years 60%
=FMUE Over 3 years 100%
8. FROBESE 8. Inventories
8.1 FESH: a) Classifying the sort of inventories
GFEFXTEZRERM Inventories mainly include raw materials, work-in-
B pEYy - KES process, finished products, goods in stock, low-
Fm - EEm - EKX value consumables and packaging materials.
mAMEFE® o
8.2 HFEEHEHERE : b) Accounting method for procuring inventories
BARME LA E &M Raw materials including purchase price plus
Ey o £ RBRE freight, lording, unloading charges as well as
BERERBHREA insurance premiums are stated at the cost; the
B 2 B m M E B cost of self-made semi-products and finished
NREMEEREF products including various expenditures actually
BAEMNZEERH incurred during production.
EREBRMKA o
8.3 HFETMAGETERZE : c) Accounting method for delivering inventories
ERTEERME The valuation of raw materials, self-made semi-
B 2 5 o 1 E K products and finished products adopt a weighted-
A N #EE R = average basis when they are shipped and sold.
8.4 (RKESEMERBENE d) Low-value-consumables and packaging materials

BRAK —REHFTA
DN

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

are expensed as incurred.
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Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates
and Basis of Presentation for Consolidation

(continued)

8.

Inventories (continued)

e)

f)

Accounting principal for inventories at the ending
of balance, affirming standard and distilling method
for provision impairment of inventories: Accounting
method for inventories at the ending of balance
reckons in accordance with the cost and
recoverable net value, which is lower which is
better. At the ending of the balance, on the basis
of inspecting inventories, if the cost of inventories
is higher than their recoverable amount as a result
of been damaged, completely or partially
obsolescent, or with a selling price lower than
their cost, the company will calculate the part
which will never been recovered and make a
provision for inventories. The provisions for finished
goods and large-amount raw materials are distilled
on the basis of margins between signal inventories
higher than their net receivable values .Other raw
materials with great of quantities, lower unit price,
those shall be distilled the provisions for
impairment of inventories by categories.

Affirming method for inventories changing to net
realizable value

Net realizable value of goods-in-stock, work-in-
progress or held-for-sale raw materials shall be
determined by their estimated sales misusing the
related selling expenses and taxes. Net realisable
for held-for-production raw materials shall be
determined by the estimated selling price of the
finished goods misusing the estimated cost until
completion, selling expenses and taxes. Net
realisable value of inventories held-for-contracts
shall be determined by the carrying amount of the
contracts. Net realisable value of inventories over
the order of contracts shall be determined by the
selling price.
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Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates
and Basis of Presentation for Consolidation

(continued)

9.

Accounting method for Long-term Investments

a)

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Initial Measurement

The initial investment cost of a long-term equity
investment acquired through a business
combination involving an enterprise under common
control shall be the absorbing party’s share of the
owners’ equity of the party which being absorbed
at the combination date, while the investment
cost acquired through a business combination but
not involving an enterprise under common control
shall be the combination cost which contain assets
given, liabilities incurred or assumed and equity
securities issued as consideration of business
combination on the acquisition date.

The initial investment cost of a long-term equity
investment acquired otherwise than through a
business combination shall be determined as
follows: (a). for a long-term equity investment
acquired by paying cash, the initial investment
cost shall be the actual purchase price has been
paid, that includes those costs, taxes and other
necessary expenditures directly attributable to the
acquisition of the long-term equity investment;
(b). for a long-term equity investment acquired by
the issue of equity securities, the initial investment
cost shall be the fair value of the securities issued;
(c). for a long-term equity investment contributed
by an investor, the initial investment cost shall be
the value stipulated in the investment contract or
agreement, except where the value stipulated in
the contract or agreement is not fair; (d). for a
long-term equity investment acquired through an
exchange of non-monetary assets or debt
restricting transaction, the initial investment cost
shall be determined in accordance with related
standards in ASBEs.
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5.

Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates
and Basis of Presentation for Consolidation

(continued)

9. Accounting method for Long-term Investments
(continued)
b) Subsequent Measurement

Long-term equity investment to subsidiaries shall
be accounted using the cost method and be
adjusted when the Company prepares the
consolidated financial statements. Long-term
equity investment to joint ventures and associates
shall be accounted for using the equity method;
Long-term equity, which the Company does not
have control, joint control or significant influence
over the investee, the investment being not quoted
in an active market even its fair value not having
been reliably measured, all of them shall be
accounted for using the cost method; long-term
equity investment for which the Company does
not have control, joint control or significant
influence, without an investment which quoted in
an active market or its fair value has not been
reliably measured, shall be accounted as available-
for-sale financial assets.

When the company adopts the cost method, long-
term equity will be accounted in the initial cost,
the invested income arising from current period
just limiting the gains which getting from the
distribution quota of its accumulative net profit
after the investee receiving the investment; the
profit or cash dividends exceeds all above details
which getting from investee’s distribution, of them
will be recalled back, then deducting the face
value of investment.
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Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates
and Basis of Presentation for Consolidation

(continued)

9. Accounting method for Long-term Investments
(continued)
b) Subsequent Measurement (continued)

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

When the company adopts the beneficial method,
the current investment gain or loss referring to the
net gain or loss distributed quota which the
investee should be on the responsibility of sharing
or taking in current period .When the company
affirms the net profit quota getting from investee,
it should base on the investee’s assets
identification in fair value, then according to the
company’s accounting policies and accounting
period, counteracting the parts the inner related
dealings gain or loss in the light of holding shares
quota arising from combine company and
associated company, at last affirming the net profit
of investee after adjusting.

When the company affirms the investee’s net loss,
it based on the limitation to misusing to zero for
face value of long-term equity investment and
others which virtually composing the investee’s
long term equity. Moreover, if the company has
the obligation to taking the investee’s extra loss,
it will affirm the provision liabilities according to
the obligation and reckoning in current gain or
loss. The net profit getting from the others period
for investee, after the company sharing the quota
for recuperating, it will renew the income quota.
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Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates
and Basis of Presentation for Consolidation

(continued)

10.

Fixed Assets

a)

b)

Affirming condition for fixed assets

Fixed assets refer to those tangible assets with
useful lives of more than one accounting year,
which are held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services, for rental to others, or for
administrative purposes. The fixed asset shall
simultaneously meet conditions as, firstly it is
probable that economic benefits associated with
the assets will flow to the Company; and secondly
the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Classifying sorts for fixed assets

Fixed assets include housing and buildings,
machinery and equipment, vehicles and electronic
apparatus.

Accounting method for fixed assets

Fixed assets shall be initially measured at cost.
The cost of a purchased fixed asset comprises
the purchase price, related taxes and any directly
attributable expenditure for bringing the assets to
working condition for its intended use. The cost of
self-constructed fixed asset comprises those
expenditures necessarily incurred for bringing the
asset to working condition for its intended use.
The cost of a fixed asset contributed by an investor
shall be determined in accordance with the value
stipulated in the investment contract or agreement,
except where the value stipulated in the contract
or agreement is not fair. The cost of a fixed assets
acquired by finance lease shall be the lower of the
fair value of the leased asset and the present
value of the minimum lease payments at the
commencement of the lease term.
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5.

Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates

EHMBEBRENDERSE and Basis of Presentation for Consolidation
(%) (continued)
10. EBEE&EE (&) 10.  Fixed Assets (continued)

104 BETEEHERZE - d) Depreciation method for fixed assets
REREBIEMES Fixed assets (excluding those fully depreciated
FRAMNEEEE - &~ yet still used in operation) are depreciated on a
ANRAEMEEEEE straight-line basis with the estimated net residual
ETIRITE o SR E value at 5%. Depreciation of a fixed asset shall
RERAFREHE - be provided for monthly and, depending on the
LA B IE T & K% A 5 purpose for which the fixed asset is used, shall
g WRERES 5 either be included as part of the cost of the relayed
AR EER A assets or recognised in profit or loss for the current
HEHER - AAQF period. The life and rate of depreciation for different
BEE&EENFEE classes of fixed assets are as follows:

E5% o HtFEE

= -HEFRRFR

ERmMT :

Y & ER (F) FMEE(%)
Items Useful lives Annual Depreciation rate
FEREY 205 4.75
House & Buildings 20 Years

HERE 105 9.50
Machinery & equipment 10 Years

Ela 1 5 19.00
Electronic apparatus 5 Years

MRREREHTLA 5% 19.00
Office equipment and vehicles 5 Years

10.5 BElIEBEEFESZHNE e) Subsequent payout dealing for fixed assets
IE
MEFTEERBHNIEL The subsequent expenditures of a fixed asset,
BYH - BREBEX which are mainly arising from repairs, improvement

Ho EEE X
F NABEEEER
RAIRMEE - S ABEE
BERAE  HREH
BmeEs - RIEFER
HEmEE: T946
B E & E R IEMF
B REERTAE
HiRaR -

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

and fitments, shall be included in the cost of the
fixed asset if the economic benefits associated
with the expenditures can flow to the Company.
While if not, the expenditures shall be recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.
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5.

Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates
and Basis of Presentation for Consolidation
(continued)

10.

11.

Fixed Assets (continued)

f) The company shall make a review and proper
adjustments of the estimated useful life, estimated
net residual value, and the depreciation method
of the fixed assets at the end of each year. Any
change shall be disclosed as changes of
accounting estimates.

Construction-in-progress
a) Accounting method for construction-in-progress

The cost of construction-in-progress is determined
according to expenditures actually incurred. The
cost of construction work undertaken by the
Company itself is determined according to direct
materials cost, direct labour cost, and direct
construction expenses; the cost of construction
work undertaken by third parties is determined
according to amount paid to the contractor; and
the cost of equipment installation construction is
determined according to the cost of equipment,
installation charges and test run expenses.
Capitalised borrowing costs and exchange profit
or loss should also be included in the related cost
of construction-in-progress.

b) The time spot for construction-in-progress turning
in fixed assets

Construction-in-progress is transferred to fixed
assets at the date of reaching its usable condition
at an estimated amount based on the budget
price, the amount paid to the contractor or actual
cost of construction. The asset will depreciate
from the second month after it is put into use. The
estimated value of the asset and its accumulated
depreciation is adjusted after going through the
procedures for the final accounts of project
completion.
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5.

Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates
and Basis of Presentation for Consolidation
(continued)

12.

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Borrowing Cost

Borrowing cost includes borrowing interests, amortising
of discount and overflow, assistant expenditures as well
as differences margin from exchange. The capitalisation
of borrowing costs can commence only when all of the
following conditions are satisfied; expenditures for the
asset are being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities relating to the acquisition,
construction or production of the asset that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale have
commenced. Capitalisation of borrowing costs shall be
suspended during periods in which the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset is
interrupted abnormally, when the interruption is for a
continuous period of more than 3 months. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs shall cease when the qualifying asset
being acquired, constructed or produced becomes ready
for its intended use or sale.

The Company shall determine the capitalised amount of
interest as follows: where funds are borrowed under a
specific-purpose borrowing for the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying assets, the
amount of interest to be capitalised shall be the actual
interest expense incurred on that borrowing for the period
less any bank interest earned from depositing the
borrowed funds before being used on the asset or any
investment income on the temporary investment of those
funds; where funds are borrowed under general-purpose
borrowings and are utilised for the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset, the Company shall
determine the amount of interest to be capitalised on
such borrowings by applying a capitalisation rate to the
weighted average of the excess amounts of cumulative
expenditures on the asset over and above the specific-
purpose borrowings.

The assets which accordant the condition of capitalisation
refers to the acts of construction and manufacture of
fixed assets getting to sale, invested estate as well as
inventories becoming used, which will take a long
time(more than one year).

If capitalised assets are interrupted in the process of
construction or manufacture, if the time is over three
months, it will stop capitalising, until the construction and
manufacture is renewed.
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Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates
and Basis of Presentation for Consolidation

(continued)

13.

Intangible Assets

a)

b)

Accounting method for intangible assets:

The Company’s intangible assets mainly contain
land use right, software use right, non-patented
technology, etc. The cost of a purchased intangible
asset shall be determined by the expenditures
actually incurred and other related costs. The cost
of a intangible asset contributed by an investor
shall be determined in accordance with the value
stipulated in the investment contract or agreement,
except where the value stipulated in the contract
or agreement is not fair

Amortising method and the limitation for intangible
assets:

The cost of land use right is amortised evenly
over the whole period of the right. The cost of
software use right and non-patented technology
of the Company is amortised evenly over the
amortisation period not longer than the shortest
of the expected useful life, the beneficial period
as specified in the contract or the useful life
specified in the law, which is five years in the
Company. The amortisation charge shall be
recognised as the cost of an intangible asset or
profit or loss for the current period by the object
of benefit derived from the assets

IR ERERBERAR Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates
and Basis of Presentation for Consolidation
(continued)

13.

14.

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Intangible Assets (continued)

c) For an intangible asset with a finite useful life, the
Company shall review the useful life and
amortisation method at least at each financial
year-end. If the expected useful life of the asset
or the amortisation method differs significantly
from previous assessments, the amortisation
period or amortisation method shall be changed
accordingly. For an intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life, the Company shall reassess
the useful life of the asset in each accounting
period. If there is evidence indicating that the
useful life of that intangible asset is finite, the
Company shall estimate the useful life of that
asset and amortised accordingly.

Research and Development

According to the nature of expenditures and uncertainty
of the achievement, expenditure on an internal research
and development project shall be classified into
expenditure on the research phase and expenditure on
the development phase.

Expenditure on the research phase of an internal research
and development project shall be recognised in the profit
or loss for the period in which it is incurred. While
expenditure on the development phase of that shall be
recognised as an intangible asset when all the conditions
could be satisfied as following: (a). the technical feasibility
of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available
for use or sale; (b). the intention to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it; (c). there is a market for the
output of the intangible asset or the intangible asset
itself; (d). the availability of adequate technical, financial
and other resources to complete the development and
the ability to use or sell the intangible asset; (e). its ability
to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development phase.

Expenditure in the development phase which fails to meet all
the conditions above should be included in the profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. The expenditure in the
development phase which has been included in the profit or
loss in the prior period could not be recognised as intangible
asset. The capitalised expenditure in the development phase
shall be recognised as an intangible asset when the asset gets
ready for its intended use.
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5.

Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates
and Basis of Presentation for Consolidation
(continued)

15.

Impairment for Non-financial Assets

The Company shall assess at each balance sheet date
whether there is any indication that the following assets
may be impaired, as long-term equity investment on
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, fixed assets,
construction-in-progress, intangible assets of finite useful
life, etc. Goodwill and an intangible asset with an indefinite
useful life shall be tested for impairment annually,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that the
asset may be impaired. If it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the
Company shall determine the recoverable amount of the
asset group or set of asset group to which the asset
belongs.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its
carrying amount, the difference shall be recognised as
an impairment loss. Once the impairment loss is
recognised, it shall not be reversed in a subsequent
period. Recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of
its fair value less costs to sell and the present value of
the future cash flow expected to be derived from the
asset.

The following are indications that an asset may be
impaired: (a) during the period, asset’s market value has
declined significantly more than would be expected as a
result of the passage of time or normal use; (b) significant
changes with an adverse effect on the Company have
taken place during the period, or will take place in the
near future, in the technological, economic or legal
environment etc. in which the Company operates or in
the market to which an asset is dedicated; (c) market
interest rates or other market rates of return on
investments have increased during the period, and those
increase are likely to affect the discount rate used in
calculating the present value of an asset’s expected future
cash flows and decrease the assets recoverable amount
materially; (d) evidence is available of obsolescence or
physical damage of an asset; (e) an asset has become
or is becoming idle, the Company discontinues using an
asset or plans to dispose of an asset before the previously
expected date; (f) evidence is available from internal
reporting that indicates that the economic performance
of an asset is, or will be, worse than expected, for example,
the net cash flows generated or operating profit realized
(or operating loss arising) from the asset are much less
(or more) than the budgeted amounts.; (g) other factors
that indicate an asset may be impaired.

IWRFERERGBERDF Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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5.

Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates
and Basis of Presentation for Consolidation
(continued)

16.

17.

18.

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Goodwill

Goodwill refers to the difference at the acquisition date
or purchasing date, which comes from the investment
cost or cost of business combination not involving
enterprises under common control, exceeds the acquirer’s
interest in the fair value of the investees’ or acquirer’s
identifiable net assets.

Goodwill related with subsidiaries shall be separately
presented in consolidated financial statements, while
goodwill related with joint ventures and associates shall
be included in carrying amount of long-term equity
investment.

Employee Benefits

In the accounting period in which an employee has
rendered service to the Company, the Company shall
recognise the employee benefits payable as a liability
and, except for compensation for termination of the
employment relationship with employees be included in
the profit or loss in the current period. Employee benefits
shall be accounted as cost of related assets or charged
to profit or loss for the current period according to the
benefits derived from the employee service.

Employee benefits mainly include wages or salaries,
bonuses, allowances and subsidies, social security
contributions, housing funds, union running costs,
employee education costs, and other expenditures
incurred in exchange for service rendered by employees.

Provision
a) Affirming principals for provision

An obligation related to a contingency, such as
guarantees provided to outsiders, pending
litigations or arbitrations, product warranties,
redundancy plan, onerous contract, reconstructing,
expected disposal of fixed assets, and etc. shall
be recognised as a provision when all of the
following conditions are satisfied: (a) the obligation
is a present obligation of the Company; (b) it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation; (c) the amount
of the obligation can be measured reliably.
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5.

Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates
and Basis of Presentation for Consolidation
(continued)

18.

19.

Provision
b) Measurement method for provision

A provision shall be initially measured at the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
related present obligation. Factors pertaining to a
contingency such as risk, uncertainties, and time
value of money shall be taken into account as a
whole in reaching the best estimate. Where the
effect of the time value of money is material, the
best estimate shall be determined by discounting
the related future cash outflows. The Company
will review the carrying amount of a provision at
the balance sheet date. Where there is clear
evidence that the carrying amount of a provision
does not reflect the current best estimate, the
carrying amount shall be adjusted to the current
best estimate.

Revenue

The Company’s revenue is mainly from sale of goods,
rendering of services and use by others of enterprise
assets. Revenue could only be recognised as the following
conditions could be satisfied, that is the amount of revenue
can be measured reliably and the associated economic
benefit will flow into the Company, and for more details
as follows:

a) Affirming method for income from sale:

Revenue from the sale of goods shall be
recognised only when all of the following conditions
are satisfied: (a) the Company has transferred to
the buyer the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods; (b) the Company retains
neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold; (c) the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably; (d)
it is probable that the associated economic benefits
will flow into the Company; and (e) the associated
costs incurred or to be incurred can be measured
reliably.

IWRFERERGBERDF Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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5.

Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates
and Basis of Presentation for Consolidation

(continued)

19.

20.

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Revenue (continued)

b) Affirming method for income from service:

Revenue from the rendering of services shall be
recognised only when all of the following conditions
are satisfied: the amount of revenue and costs
incurred or to be incurred for the transaction
involving the rendering of services can be
measured reliably; the associated economic
benefits can flow into the Company; and the stage
of completion of the transaction can be measured
reliably. When the transaction commenced and
ended in one year, the revenue shall be recognised
at the completion; when they are not in one year,
the revenue shall be recognised in percentage of
completion method at the balance sheet date if
the outcome of the transaction can be estimated
reliably. The percentage of completion shall be
determined by the cost incurred and the estimated
whole cost.

c) Affirming method for income from releasing assets
using right:

Revenue from use by others of enterprise assets
shall be recognised only when the associated
economic benefit can flow into the Company, and
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Subsidies of government

Government subsidy at the Company be able to meet its
attached conditions, and can be confirmed when received.
Government grants for monetary assets, in accordance
with the measurement of the amount actually received,
according to a fixed quota for the allocation of the grant
criteria, in accordance with the amount of accounts
receivable measurement; government subsidies for non-
monetary assets, in accordance with the fair value, fair
value should not reliably achieved, in accordance with
the notional amount (1 Yuan) measurement.
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5.

Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates
and Basis of Presentation for Consolidation
(continued)

20.

21.

Subsidies of government (continued)

Asset-related government grants recognized as deferred
income, and average life of related assets included in the
current profit and loss distribution. With the proceeds of
the relevant government subsidies to compensate for the
period after the relevant costs or losses recognized as
deferred income and, while recognizing the associated
costs included in current period profit and loss; for
compensation related costs that have occurred or loss,
directly gains and losses included in the current period.

Deferred Tax Assets and Deferred Tax Liabilities

A deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability shall be
determined by a difference (temporary difference)
between the carrying amount of an asset or liability and
its tax base. The deferred tax asset shall be recognised
for the carry forward of unused deductible losses and tax
credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible losses
and tax credits can be utilised. At the balance sheet date,
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities shall be
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to
the period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled.

The Company shall recognise the corresponding deferred
tax asset for deductible temporary differences as no
higher than the taxable profits that will be available in the
future, against which the temporary difference can be
utilised. The Company shall reduce the carrying amount
of a deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available in
future periods to allow the benefit of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Any such reduction in amount shall
be reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available.

IWRFERERGBERDF Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates
and Basis of Presentation for Consolidation
(continued)

22.

23.

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Income Tax

The Company accounted the income tax in a method of
debit in balance sheet. The income tax expenses include
income tax in the current period and deferred income tax.
The income tax associated with the events and
transactions directly included in the owners’ equity shall
be included in the owners’ equity; and the deferred income
tax derived from business combination shall be included
in the carrying amount of goodwill, except for that above,
the income tax expense shall be included in the profit or
loss in the current period.

The income tax expense in the current period refers to
the tax payable, which is calculated according to the tax
laws on the events and transactions incurred in the current
period. The deferred income tax refers to the difference
between the carrying amount and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities at the year-end recognised in
the method of debit in the balance sheet.

Business Combination

Business combination refers to the event or transaction
that the Company combines two or more separate
enterprises as one reporting entity. The Company shall
recognise the assets and liabilities derived from business
combination at the combination date or acquisition date.
A combination date or acquisition date is the date on
which the Company effectively obtains control of the
company being absorbed.

a) The assets and liabilities acquired through a
business combination involving an enterprise
under common control shall be measured by the
acquirer according to the carrying amount
recorded by the acquirer’'s at the combination
date. The difference between the consideration of
combination and the carrying amount of the
acquired net assets shall be included in capital
surplus, or it shall be included in retained earnings
continuously if the capital surplus is not sufficient.

203




IR (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

h. EESHREEK - gt 5.
SHMEBRRNBRSE

(4=
(8 )

23. Df¥AH (&)

232 FEE-—EZEHTLEA
Bt AR AAEE
FEBERARSGYE
W B 5 MR R
NHWEE « B4
AERNE BN R
MEZEEENDAR
BE - AHAAAR
AHFMENEEE
FAHRFEEDR
BEMNENZE
REBEE  AHKAE
NG PR ES R 3
BEHAUHRFEE
DAEBEMDEN &
BRERE AR

24, SMTRALAREMHERE

FHEAREMSNERMTE -
RBRTS TS REETEH
DAEE - TFEREMSN
TERT A RAGEXMNHEE
HAREE - HERTEES
ERBIBNALBBRRZETT
BETM ISR SR ERD
Eif - 2REE LHERNEM
TREENENAAEER R
EREBITTEAMBIEE ERE
F o RAMGERME - FA8k
ZEATMS2H  TMEAARE
B ERBENSH -

25. ESHMBEBROERAE

251 GHEHEMNETERA
ARRBHEEERE
i ¥ B F A A R R BR
BRI ERBMAAS G
EHKREBE -

1204

(A B 5 3R R MR BRAS BIRE BRSO - I BLA R F LHI/R) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(REPEGTEARS) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates
and Basis of Presentation for Consolidation
(continued)

23.

24,

25.

Business Combination (continued)

b) The cost of business combinations not involving
an enterprise under common control is the
aggregate of the fair value, at the acquisition
date, of the assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity securities issued by the
acquirer, in exchange for control of the acquiree.
When the costs of business combinations exceed
the acquirer’s identifiable net assets, the difference
shall be recognised as goodwill, if not, the
differences shall be included in the profit or loss
in the current period.

Affirming of financial tool in fair value

Financial tool, which have being activity in the market will
recognize its fair value in using quoted price from the
market. If any does not belong to above, it will be affirmed
at estimate Tec. Estimate Tec includes: the price getting
from both dealing sides recently trading price; consulting
the similar financial assets’ fair in value, cash flaw
discounted and model of option evaluation and so on.
When the company adopts the estimate Tec, it is better
for them to use market parameter than the company’s
related parameter.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements

a) Recognized principals of consolidated areas: The
Company shall put subsidiaries which it controlling
totally, main body with special purpose into
consolidated financial statements.

IWRFERERGBERDF Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Significant Accounting Policies, Estimates
and Basis of Presentation for Consolidation

(continued)

25. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements

b)

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Accounting method for Consolidated Financial
Statements: Consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with the ASBEs
No. 33-Consolidated Financial Statements and
relevant supplementary regulations. All significant
transactions and balances between the Company
and its subsidiaries are eliminated for the purpose
of consolidation. The equity of subsidiaries not
held by the parent company shall be presented
separately as minority shareholders’ equity in
consolidated shareholders’ equity.

Any difference arising from the inconformity of
accounting year or accounting policies between
the subsidiaries and the Company shall be
adjusted in the consolidated financial statements.

When preparing the consolidated financial
statements, if the Company acquired the
subsidiary through business combination not
involving under common control, the separate
financial statements shall be adjusted based on
the fair value of identifiable net assets at the
acquisition date. If the subsidiary is acquired
through business combination involving common
control, the consolidated financial statements shall
include the carrying amount of assets, liabilities,
operating result and cash flow of the subsidiary
at the beginning of the current period.
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Taxes

Major taxes and tax rates applicable to the Company are as
follows:

1. Income tax

The company is a high-tech corporation, according to
enterprise income tax law of China, after the company
becomes a high-tech corporation, the company will receive
favorable policies in the next three years, and be subject
to an income tax rate of 15%

The other subsidiaries of the Company are subject to
25% income tax except for Sino-USA Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo
Pharmaceutical Company Limited and Zibo Xinhua-East
west Pharmaceutical Company Limited which are in the
tax-free term.

2. Value added tax

The Company is subject to value added tax for its sales
revenues at a VAT rate of 17% or 13% for domestic sales
and 0% for export sales.

In purchasing raw materials, the input VAT is deductible
against output VAT at the rate of 17%.

The VAT payable for the period is the amount of output
VAT less input VAT.

3. Business tax

Business tax is based on the design revenue, at a rate
of 5%.

4. Urban maintenance & construction tax and
educational surcharges

Urban maintenance & construction tax and educational
surcharges are based on the sum of VAT payable and
sales tax payable, at the rates of 7%, 3% and 1%
respectively.

5. Property tax

Property tax is levied based on 70% of the original cost
of the building property of the Company at a rate of 1.2%.
The Company is subject to a 12% tax rate for rental
income from leasing its building property.

IWRFERERGBERDF Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(REPEIZT2EALFS) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

Financial Statements

Business Combination and Consolidated

1. FATFER 1. Information about Subsidiaries
Rk Rl
i EmEs RuER BH% B
IR Registered Registered ~ #EEEE Initial Holding  Voting
Company name address capital Business Scope Investment Ratio Ratio
WRFEBERFERAT UREMEET  484980BTARE  ZR#E 4152898 TARK 99.76 9.76
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical ~ Zibo, Shandong RMB48,498,900  Drug sales RMB47,528,900 99.76 99.76
Trade Company Limited
WRFERBELOEREAAT  UREHER NBETARE  UFEN KiELAA 0ETARE 99.52 99.52
REUEES EOE5
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical ~ Zibo, Shandong RMB3,000,000 Exporting & Importing of goods RMB3,000,000 99.52 99.52
Export & Import Company Limited and technology, entrepot &
counter trade
HENERERARARLA RS NETARE  BEIRH: 180ETARS ) )
Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical Design  Zibo, Shandong RMB2,000,000  Pharmaceuticals RMB1,800,000 90 90
Institute Company Limited project design
HENEAEEERERAA WREMED WETARE  ZRZE 1T6ETARS 88 88
Zibo Xinhua Drug Store Chain Zibo, Shandong RMB2,000,000 Pharmaceutical retail RMB1,760,000 88 88
Company Limited
WRHEHE (BH) BRAR EEEET EET  HEBERHRDEE 50EET 769 769
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical ~ Hamburg, Germany ~ EUR0650,000  Sales of bulk pharmaceuticals EUR0500,000 76.9 76.9
(European) GmbH and etc.
HENE — PEREAREMAAD LREEED 1508%n 4B HERFRFERHE 11258%7 75 75
Zibo Xinhua-Eastwest Zibo, Shandong USD1,500,000 Producing & sales of Calcium USD1,125,000 75 75
Pharmaceutica Polycarbophil materials
Company Limited
RENE-RNRRERRELND LREERD B0EXT  AE HEMAKRHE 3006E%T 50.1 50.1
Sino-USA Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo Zibo, Shandong USDS,000,000 Producing & sales of USD3,006,000 50.1 50.1
Pharmaceutical Company Ibuprofen materials
Limited
HERE (B ERAT WRESED BOOETARE  EERECIRBREN 8671 4ETARK 100 100
Shandong Dadi Xinhua Shouguang, RMB80,000,000  Production and sales of RMB86,712,400 100 100
Chemical & Industrial Shandong chemical products

Company Limited

(excluded dangerous chemical)

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
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T ERARRABINAE
o RE MR B
4,262.89& 7T + IEH
EREFFEHAFRA
AR e A AL MNH
#87.008 T * #H1%
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2) IR EREE S OF
RELAE AT ERE
[Erassge O ) gz i
20065 H15H * A&
NSRBI
EEEEFR AR
B EHRE  EME
KAE300E TTARE -
& & AR B D
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ERFBE]) KR
2002F 37 ' AANAR]
MUREHEEEEF
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LHE EMEARA
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BERBRELDD R A
90%7+110% °
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Business Combination and Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

Uo

Information about Subsidiaries (continued)

a)

With a registered capital of RMB5 million,
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Trade Company
Limited (hereafter referred to as “Pharm. Trade”)
was established on 30 August 2004 by the
Company and Zibo Xinhua Drug Store Chain
Company Limited (a majority-owned subsidiary of
the Company), which hold 98% and 2% of the
registered capital, respectively. In March 2005,
the registered capital increased by 43,498,900,
among which, 42,628,900 was contributed by the
Company in tangible assets, and 870,000 was
contributed by Zibo Xinhua Drug Store Chain
Company Limited in cash. The share of equity
interest held by each shareholder remains
unchanged.

With a registered capital of RMB3 million,
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Export & Import
Company Limited (hereafter referred to as “Xinhua
Export& Import”) was established on 15 July 2006
by Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Trade
Company Limited and Zibo Xinhua Drug Store
Chain Company Limited, which hold 98% and 2%
of the equity interests respectively, the principle
operation of Xinhua Export& Import is exporting
& importing of goods and technology, enter pot &
counter trade.

With a registered capital of RMB2, 000,000, Zibo
Xinhua Pharmaceutical Design Institute (hereafter
referred to as the “Design Institute”) was formed
in March 2002 by the Company and Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited, which
hold 90% and 10% of the registered capital,
respectively.

IWRFERERGBERDF Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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255 |) I 1999F 7
A BAXRMLUE
FEEEEEARE
FRAIEREER
2 RaEMEAAEA
R #1008 7T,20024F9
ARRAMEAEE
B200B T ARE - K
& &AL B 5 R
£88%M12% °

IR =R (BOM) B
RAR (AT
ZRONQE]) KIR
2003F11825H » |
QB M EE A
HABELIPENGE A4 +
RHEHE  FME
A100ERUT * HEX
R B DR B
70%7%130% ° 3% A @
FE i UE A B E R
m » REERAALE BB
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T BB REL
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7. Business Combination and Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

1. Information about Subsidiaries (continued)

d)

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Zibo Xinhua Drug Store Chain Company Limited
(the name was changed from Zibo Xinhua Drug
Store Company Limited in December 2003,
hereafter referred to the “Zibo Drug Store”) was
incorporated in July, 1999 with the registered
capital contributed by the Company and Xinhua
Pharmaceutical Group Company Limited, which
hold 88% and 12% of the equity interests,
respectively. The original registered capital was
RMB1, 000,000 and it was increased to RMB2,
000,000 in September 2002.

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical (European)
GmbH (hereafter referred to the “Xinhua
European”) was established on 25 November
20083. It was jointly invested by the Company and
Mr. LI PENG from Germany. The registered capital
was Euro 1 million. The Company holds 70% of
the equity interests, while Mr. LIPENG owns 30%.
This company was incorporated in Hamburg,
Germany. This company’s reporting currency is
the Euro. In July 2006, the registered capital of
the Company was changed to EURO650, 000
according to the resolution of the Board of
Directors’ meeting, and the share of equity interest
held by the Company and Mr. LI PENG was
changed to 76.90% and 23.10% respectively.
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Business Combination and Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

Uo

Information about Subsidiaries (continued)

f)

With a registered capital of USD 1.5 million, Zibo
Xinhua-East west Pharmaceutical Company
Limited (hereafter referred to as “Xinhua-East
west”) was established on 15 November 2005 by
the Company and East west United Group, Inc.,
which hold 75% and 25% of the equity interests
respectively, the principle operation of Zibo Xinhua-
East west Pharmaceutical Company Limited is
producing and sales of Calcium Polycarbophil
materials. On 26 June 2006, the Company and
East west United Group, Inc. injected USD 1.125
million and USD 0.375 million in cash respectively.

Sino-USA Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (hereafter referred to the
“Xinhua-Perrigo”) was established by the Company
and Perrigo International Inc. on 11 September
2003, a foreign invested joint company. With a
registered capital of USD 6 million, each party
holds 50% of equity interests. On 3 April 2006,
Perrigo International Inc. transferred 0.1% shares
of Xinhua-Perrigo to the Company with a
consideration of USD6, 000 according to the
Mending Agreement of Joint Venture. The
transaction was approved by Bureau of Economic
Development in Zibo New & high-tech Industrial
Development Zone. The Company held 50.1%
shares of Xinhua-Perrigo as at the end of 31
December 2008.

IWRFERERGBERDF Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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7. Business Combination and Consolidated
Financial Statements (continued)

1. Information about Subsidiaries (continued)

h)

Shandong Xinhua Phar (Shouguang) Company
Limited, previously named Shandong Dadi Xinhua
chemical & industrial company (hereafter referred
to the Xinhua Shouguang) was established with
the registered capital of RMB26,000,000 by the
Company and Shandong Dadi Salt Chemical
Group Company Limited on 12 September 2006.
The Company contributes RMB12,740,000,
accounting for 49% of the registered capital. The
Company injected RMB6,000,000 more to Dadi
Xinhua and increased its capital to
RMB32,000,000 in November 2007.The Company
held 58.56% of its shares. In 2008, the company
purchased the whole shares from Shandong Dadi
salt group, the total value worth RMB13,972,368,
and changed Dadi Xinhua’s name to Xinhua Phar
(Shouguang) company limited, moreover, the
company increased the capital of RMB48,000,000
to Xinhua Shouguang. After increasing the capital,
the registered capital of Xinhua Shouguang is
worth of RMB80,000,000, and it becomes the
company’s total subsidiary company. In December
2008, the company planned to increase the capital
by of RMB50,000,000 and at the end of 2008, the
company has paid an increasing capital of
RMB6,000,000, the total paid-up capital of Xinhua
Shouguang is worth RMB86,000,000. The main
business of Dadi Xinhua includes production and
sale of chemical products (excluded dangerous
and poisonous chemical).

2. Changes of the Scope of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
cut off Dongying store, which previously belonged to
Zibo Xinhua store, was been cancelled in 2008, while the
consolidated financial statement reducing the Weifang
Wanyuan chemical industry company in 2008, which
previously belonged to Xinhua Shouguang, the whole
shares for which were transferred.

IWVRHFERNERGERA A Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(A B 5 3R R MR BRAS BIRE BRSO - I BLA R F LHI/R) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

IN. EHUIBEEEEREEE 8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements
1. "¥ER 1. Cash & Cash equivalents
2008 12A31H 20075124318
2008.12.31 2007.12.31
FE% HHEE FAAR% F¥  WEEX HEAREK
Original Exchange Translated Original  Exchange Translated
HE ltem Currency Rate into RMB  Currency Rate into RMB
EERE Cash on Hand - - 168 — — 149
He: & Including: USD 5 6.8346 37 2 7.3046 11
BT EURO 4 9.6590 4 4 10.6669 39
ok HKD 31 0.8819 27 21 0.9364 19
= JPY 351 0.075650 27 91 0.064064 6
BIIRR Cash in Bank — — 178,119 — — 142,637
He: & Including: USD 9,956 6.8346 68,045 6,795 7.3046 49,634
BT EURO 202 9.6590 1,948 363 10.6669 3,873
HnE® &S Other Fund — — 59,837 — — 69,472
Hi: X1 Including: USD — 6.8346 — 174 7.3046 1,270
Bt Total 238,124 212,258

2008F 12 A31HEMEE SR
SRENIRITEALEZRES
F3734,120F JT + AJRaERF S BY
838 AT1E 2,000 F 7T - 3= Ef
HEIERES2,538F ¢ 7
R & 3,379F T * BEFRRE

©17,800F 7T ©

2. XHEEMEE

At the end of 2008, other funds included bank acceptance
deposit of RMB34, 120,000, freely-drawn notifying deposit
of RMB2, 000, 000, letter of credit deposit of RMB2,
538,000, deposit for investment of RMB3,379,000 and
deposit for loans of RMB17,800,000.

Held-for-sale Financial Assets

2008%12A31H 2007%F12A31H

LAREE RREE

Fair Value on Fair Value on

5H Item 2008.12.31 2007.12.31
HEEMEE Derivate Financial Instruments — 15,897

ARARGUEHEERED
EBEEESH  TEANY
AERERBE - HIREZR

THEEERNRE -

1212

Held-for-trading financial assets referred to the United
States Dollar forward contracts. The Company entered
into forward contracts denominated in USD for the
settlement of exchange of exportation. There is no
significant restriction on the returns of investment.
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IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

EHMERRETEHEEE 8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial
(&) Statements (continued)
3. Bl=RE 3. Notes Receivable
2008%12A31H 200712 A31H
REER 2008.12.31 2007.12.31
RITAEES Bank acceptance 82,744 71,966
a) & 1-2008F12A31H a) At the end of 2008, the company has endorsed
AAREBEEEN a transferring bank acceptance of
KRE AR IRITE N E RMB234,111,000 from 1 January 2009 to 22 June
F234111F T - I 20009.
HAZ2009F1 818 %
2009F 6 H22H -
b) & 1-2008F12A31H b) At the end of 2008, the company had
/NG o RMB8,120,000 of bank acceptances endorsed but
R R TR EE not matured.
8,120 F Jt °
4, U B 3% 4, Accounts Receivable
(1) YRR G5 #E a) Risk Classification of Accounts Receivable
2008%12A 310 2007128318
2008.12.31 2007.12.31
HRER BERERE
&f Itfl% Bad debts tHE %  Bad debts
HE Amount Ratio %  Provision Amount Ratio %  Provision
BESBEA  Individually significant
KR accounts receivable 72,54 33.23 179 63,318 26.91 317
EWEESE  Individually non-significant
TEAR accounts receivable
MR 145,735 66.77 11,319 171,956 73.09 13,867
Ch Total 218,276 100.00 11,498 235,274 100.00 14,184
BHSEBEANER Individually significant accounts receivable referred
AR FX BB IA5008 T A to as individual accounts receivable with an
EREUER R - & amount over RMB5,000,000. The provision for
BEHSHEBEARNNER bad debts has been made on aging basis as no

impairment of individually significant accounts
receivable was found after the assessing.

213




IR (&)

. SHMBERREIEREHER

(42
{7

&)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(A B 5 3R R MR BRAS BIRE BRSO - I BLA R F LHI/R) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

4, BUWER (&) 4. Accounts Receivable (continued)
(2) EWERFER B b) Aging Analysis
2008%12B 318 2007%12A318
2008.12.31 2007.12.31
BIRER BREE
&8 lfl% Bad debts &8 f0f%  Bad debts
%E Amount Ratio%  Provision Amount Ratio% Provision
—ER Less than 1 year 176,043 80.65 874 176,555 75.04 868
=A== 1to 2 years 7,244 3.32 547 21,729 9.24 849
“E=f 2 to 3 years 17,148 7.86 1,485 27,707 11.78 3,750
=EpE Over 3 years 17,841 8.17 8,592 9,283 3.94 8,717
i Total 218,276 100.00 11,498 235,274 100.00 14,184
(38) EREEHIRTEAR c) The provision system for bad debts can be seen
LBl MR - 7o above Notes 5.7. The Company recovered of
NEFF U B LARTFE RMB1,440,000 of the previous written-off accounts
B % 8 K FE IER K receivable in 2008.
1,440F JT °
(4) REELBANTIZEE d) RMB of 61,290,000 of accounts receivable aged
RHBRZET 2 over 3 years has been written off in 2008 according
= F U ERE AR to the Company’s accounting policy.
6,129F T °
(5) 2008F12A31HEW e) In the ending balance, there is no account
ERPAER/FALQA receivable due from shareholders who hold 5% or
5% (£5%) bA_E &R 4E more of the Company’s voting capital.
NN R VAN
oo
(6) 2008F12HA31HEU f) The balance of accounts receivable due from the
IR AR E top five debtors is RMB77, 118,000, accounting
W R e EE for 35.33% of the total balance of accounts
77,118F T~ LI A receivable.
35.33% °
(7) 2008512 A 31 H &% 9) The balance of accounts receivables due from the

eI R S SRIEA
£189,432F ¢ - bl
518.07% °

1214

related parties is RMB39, 432,000, accounting for
18.07% of the total balance of accounts receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(REPEIZT2EALFS) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

IN. EHHHIBBRERETEREER 8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial
(&) Statements (continued)
4, B (&) 4, Accounts Receivable (continued)
(8)  FEURBRFRABIELA TN h) The ending balance of accounts receivable
B EREE - expressed in the foreign currency is as follows:
2008128 310 2007%F12A318
2008.12.31 2007.12.31
R% HHEEE HEARW RE&  HEEEX  HeARE
Original ~ Exchange Translated Original  Exchange  Translated
R Item Currency Rate  into RMB  Currency Rate  into RMB
e usb 16,924 6.8346 115,671 15,821 7.3046 115,570
BT EURO 1,373 9.6590 13,263 89 10.6669 952
At Total 128,934 116,522
5 FIRE 5. Advances to Suppliers
2008F12A31H 20074 12A31H
2008.12.31 2007.12.31
&F L B% ok L 1%
HE Item Amount Ratio % Amount Ratio %
1FE AR Less than 1 year 34,878 97.25 20,905 97.51
1-2F 1 to 2 years 987 2.75 14 0.07
2-3% 2 to 3 years — — 290 1.35
3EP L Over 3 years — — 229 1.07
CE Total 35,865 100.00 21,438 100.00
(1) 2008512 A31HIE(TS a) Aging system of the ending balance of advances
RRBRERTFNEE to suppliers in 2008 was logically increasing a lot,
XK - EXxZ2RHA which mainly due to advance for land of
B EMT A i RMB1,500,000.Advance payments aged over one
#15,000F T ° Bk year yet still not recovered are mainly payments
HB1FONTEMNERRE for materials pending settlement.
ERHMARBENER
MR
(2) TEANKEEEEN b) The significant company of advance to supplier
BENTFRE REME
EMEE The relationship RBEE REREFH Character of
Item to the company Amount Term the account
SHTEHEER R i 15,000 1FAR SEL N biiE N
Shouguang Houzhen No 15,000 Less than one year Payment for land

project areas

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

H o & R E 1T R
E o ORNE B RBED
R BIRARE A
TRIEAR A o
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5. RRIEA (&) 5. Advances to Suppliers (continued)
(8) 2008F12A31HTES c) At the end of 2008, the advances the top five
BRREBRERAIRAER suppliers are RMB30,403,000, accounting for
B (IR 530,403 F 84.77% of advances to suppliers.
T RTENERERRRE
#184.77% °
(4)  2008F12A31HTESN d) The ending balance of advance payments does
RIBRTERFARF not have any advance payment due from
5% (55%) bA_EFR#E shareholders who hold 5% or more of the
& 7 B9 A% | B 7 3K Company’s voting capital.
5 o
6. H fth FE g =% 6. Other Receivable
(1) EmERERSHE a) Risk Classification of Other Receivable
2008%12B 310 2007F12A31H
2008.12.31 2007.12.31
BIRER ERER
&8 lfl% Bad debts £ f0fl%  Bad debts
| Amount Ratio %  Provision Amount Ratio %  Provision
BIESEEAN  Individually significant
EMEWE  other receivable 6,196 26.87 6,196 6,196 22,01 6,196
EHEELE  Individually
OEVN: non-significant
At MR other receivable 16,863 73.13 1,240 21,951 77.99 1,370
At Total 23,059 100.00 7,436 28,147 100.00 7,566
FIHEEERNEAM Individually significant other receivable referred
JFE WK % BB TE5008, 7T to as individual other receivable with an amount
LA b & H i FE R over RMB5,000,000. The provision for bad debts
KEBHESEEAN has been made on aging basis as no impairment

of individually significant other receivable was
found after the assessing.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(&) Statements (continued)
6. HthEWlR (&) 6. Other Receivable (continued)
(2)  AmpERERE b) Aging Analysis
2008%12B 318 2007F12A31H
2008.12.31 2007.12.31
BRER EREE
&F lfl% Bad debts 28 [tfl%  Bad debts
HE Amount Ratio %  Provision Amount Ratio %  Provision
—EBR Less than 1 year 14,600 63.32 42 16,986 55.73 28
—FZ 110 2 years 1,075 4,66 74 1,139 4.05 30
—E=F 2 to 3 years 177 0.77 113 2,954 10.49 450
=ZENE Over 3 years 7,207 31.25 7,207 7,068 29.73 7,058
ast Total 23,059 100.00 7,436 28,147 100.00 7,566

(3) EREENFHEL AR c) The provision system for bad debts can be seen
B2 B A ER.7 o above Notes 5.7.

(4) AFEERBRAARER d) RMB871,000 of other receivable aged over three
REHBRRZHET & years has been written off in 2008 according to
REZFLA EaE A fE the Company’s accounting policy.

Wx871F T ©

(5) 2008F12H31HEA e) The ending balance of other receivable include
JEW KRR B ER deductable input VAT, output VAT for exporting
HFEMEEBER - HO before applying to customs. No bad debts provision
WMEAS AR TR A is made on these items.

TR I E R E ARG
REER%ERH -

(6) 2008F12A31HEAb f) In the ending balance, there is no other receivable
ERHFANERFAR due from shareholders who hold 5%or more of
A15% (55%) A ERR the Company’s voting capital.

TR 7 B9 AR 3R B8 i /)
oo

(7) 2008512 A31H H M 9) The balance of other receivable due from the top
JE WL GRS RE BT L B five debtors is RMB15, 636,000, accounting for
Bl e mast 67.82% of the total balance of other receivable.
15,636 T 7T * LBl &

67.82% °
(8) 2008F12A31H#%E h) The balance of other receivable due from the

R R T R A
HoT o HUR
0.04% ©

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

relayed parties is RMB9, 000, accounting for 0.04%
of the total balance of other receivable.
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BRI (&)
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(REFEMRMERRBRITERS - HUARYET THIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

IN. EHMEBERREFEREER 8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(&) Statements (continued)
6. HthEWR (&) 6. Other Receivable (continued)
(9)  EMEURFFBRENAT i) The ending balance of other receivable expressed
INEEBRTE ¢ in foreign currency is as follows:
2008%12B 310 2007F12A31H
2008.12.31 2007.12.31
R% HEEE HAARW F%  FEEX HEARE
Original ~ Exchange Translated Original  Exchange  Translated
b £ Item Currency Rate  into RMB  Currency Rate into RMB
BT EURO 97 9.6590 933 75 10,6669 804
e FRARBRER 7. Inventories
TR a) Classification of Inventories and Provisions
2008 12A31H 2007%F12A31H
2008.12.31 2007.12.31
FRBEER FEGBER
EH 8% Provision for #%  Provision for
Balance impairment Balance impairment
Bbtt Raw material 38,515 248 46,678 —
EEM Work-in-progress 83,415 774 51,528 —
EFES Goods-in-stock 177,531 8,562 183,477 8,596
KES#EH  Low-value consumables 13,274 — 11,357 —
FfEGEYE  Special materials
for Government 1,363 — 1,597 —
At Total 314,098 9,584 294,637 8,596
FEBEEENGR b) Provision system for impairment of inventories
FESRAHER.S shall be seen above Notes 5.8
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)

N. EHMBERREEREER

Vg1
(A5

=)
s )

8. HHESMEE

(REPEIZT2EALFS) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)
8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

8. Available-for-sale Financial Assets

2008F12831H 2007512 A318

HE Item 2008.12.31 2007.12.31
InfE B8 R Equity of Ruiheng Pharmaceutical &
KRENRIRE Technology Investment
Company Limited 3,200 3,200
RBRITEAR Legal-person share of Bank
of Communications 35,417 116,713
AEFREEAR Legal-person share of Pacific
Insurance Company Limited 55,600 247,250
A R & 7 R Equity of Tiantong Securities
Company Limited 30,000 30,000
PRAREEAREE ShanXi media communication
R BR R ERRE Company Limited 280 —
AREERMNABERLARE  Nanjing Mediations Company Limited 270 —
CE Total 124,767 397,163

AL ESREERE

- REBEHFRIERE

ARLESREEFE

Impairment of available-for-sale
financial assets 30,000 30,000
Including: Impairment on Equity of
Tiantong Securities

Company Limited 30,000 30,000
Net value of available-for-sale
financial assets 94,767 367,163

200812 A31R AL EES
FEERBEREHRA - £R
A2 REERIT - KFERR
X Z 200812 A31H AR B
B FHPRIETE o

The ending balance of available-for-sale financial assets
has declined greatly, mainly due to the market price of
shares of Bank of Communications and Pacific Insurance
Company Limited in fair value reducing more compared
with the beginning of 2008.

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited 2 1 9 |




BRI (&)
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(A B 5 3R R MR BRAS BIRE BRSO - I BLA R F LHI/R) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

IN. SHBRERRTEHHEE 8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(&) Statements (continued)
9. REBRRERSE 9. Long-term Equity Investment
(1) RERERE a. Long-term Equity Investment
20085 12A31H 200712 A31H
HH ltem 2008.12.31 2007.12.31
BRARERE Accounted in cost method = =
REBRERE
BEmE%E Accounted in equity method 27,489 23,512
REBRERE
REIRIERE SR Total long-term equity investment 27,489 23,512

B REIRERE Less: Impairment of Long-term

HEERE equity investment = =
RAREREFE Net value of Long-term

equity investment 27,489 23,512

(2) 1HEmZE b) Accounted in Equity Method

EF 3 EE08

L BI% FNRa FXBRE Redd

BRiLA%  Voting #WHE&E Balance Balance Dividends

HEEEMER Holding right Original in 2007. &Fi HEM&ED in 2008. received

Name of investee Ratio% ration% Cost 12.31  Addition Deduction 12.31  in 2008

ERERE

Accounted in equity method
1. WRHEEELIERARA
Shandong Xinhua Longxin
Chemical & Industrial
Company Limited 40 40 10,000 10,364 (521) - 9,843 -
2. WRHERECIRBERATA
Shandong Xinhua Changxing
Chemical Equipment

Company Limited 35 35 7,700 5,749 (2,213) — 3,536 —
3. WRHEEHEHERRAA
Shandong Zibo XinCat
Pharmaceutical
Company Limited 20 20 10,179 7,399 6,711 — 14,110 —
At
Total 23,512 3,977 — 27,489 —

| 220 IR E R %R /2 B PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited




ISR EE (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPEF2ERAILRS]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

IN. EHHMEEREREERAER 8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial
(&) Statements (continued)
9. REBERE (&) 9. Long-term Equity Investment (continued)

(3)  RAIREREREERE c) Impairment on Long-term Equity Investment
RRBREKRERE
REERERBE - x
SRR ERHIR G R ELE
=

No provision for impairment is made and no
evidence indicates any impairment of long-term
equity investment at the end of the period.

4) ARERPRESRER d)
EARZEIEARHE -

There is no significant restriction on the Company
to dispose the long-term equity investments.

10. EBEE&EE 10.  Fixed Assets
(1) BEEEEFHAX a) Details of fixed assets
REREY BBRM EWRE a1
Houses & Machinery & REft  Electronic it
Buildings Equipment Vehicles Apparatus Total
[R{E2007%12R 318  Original cost at beginning of year 526,174 1,201,089 17,966 34,328 1,779,557
m: REEN Add: Increases in the yr. 61,652 171,648 1,506 3,121 237,927
HbEERTEEN  Including: Construction-in-progress
transferred in 48,799 133,206 — 101 182,106
B AERD Less:  Decreases in the yr. 12,997 77,068 1,626 8,495 100,186
2008%12A31H Cost at the end of year 574,829 1,295,669 17,846 28,954 1,917,298
ZHIE Accumulated depreciation
2007%12R 318 at beginning of year 219,441 669,694 13,393 23,765 926,293
me AREE Add: Increases in the yr. 18,737 90,542 1,410 2,238 112,927
B AERS Less:  Decrease in the yr. 5,804 66,103 1,582 4,286 77,775
RHHAE Accumulated depreciation
2008%12R 318 at the end of year 232,374 694,133 13,221 21,717 961,445
HEEE Provision for impairment
200745127318 at beginning of year 0 0 0 0 0
me AREE Add: Increases in the yr. 0 0 0 0 0
EER Reversed in the yr. 0 0 0 0 0
B AHEMED  Less:  Other decrease in the yr. 0 0 0 0 0
HEEE Provision for impairment
2008F 124318 at the end of year 0 0 0 0 0
BE
2007512A318 Net value at 2007.12.31 306,733 531,395 4,573 10,563 853,264
2008512318 Net value at 2008.12.31 342,455 601,536 4,625 7,237 955,853

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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IR (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(A B 5 3R R MR BRAS BIRE BRSO - I BLA R F LHI/R) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

. SHMBERREIEREHER

=3
(4

10.

202

)
/

BE®E (&)

(1)

8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)
10. Fixed Assets (continued)
BEE B EHMAF (&) a) Details of fixed assets (continued)
200812 431 H EE The end balance of fixed assets has increased
BEBRBEEHRAK - significantly, mainly due to the L380 project and
EFfZRARZ : AR BULUOFEN project transferring to fixed assets.
AL ZENE®
(L380)#13,000T, 4
MESIREEARTE
KRR NI EEEER b) As at the end of 2008, the certificates of property
EFEEHEZH right were out of acquirement as follows:
RE BE
BERB Name Original Cost Net value
L3800 e % B M E Workhouse of L380 dopa 8,500 8,466
3,000 1% 25 i 5 Workhouse of BULUOFEN 24,750 24,750
HEE AR Workhouse of cephalothin 2,462 2,453
SRR E Warehouse of cephalothin 34 32
HER S Xinhua Plaza 9,500 9,387
BELNARE Warehouse of Pharm. Trade 1,500 1,425
BERARE Warehouse of Pharm. Trade 1,802 1,801
BERARE Warehouse of Pharm. Trade 12,976 11,230
BRRRIFEERE Workhouse of calcium
polycarbophil 1,784 1,784
BHREREKEE Workhouse of package and
workhouse of compounding 18,628 14,584
=HE SRAEER Workhouse of Sanjiaquan
ZREERE 9,380 8,772
A&t Total 91,316 84,684

20085 12A31HEE
BESRBETKLEEE
HHOEERER
18,940F T - #1ME
13,767F T °

c) At the end of 2008, fixed assets included RMB18,
940,000 of original cost and RMB13, 767,000 of
net value of housing & buildings used for
operational rent.
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BRI T (&)
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE)) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

IN. EHHMERFXTEHHIERE 8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(&) Statements (continued)
11. #EBIE 11.  Construction-in-progress
(1) HEBIEHAX a. Detailed list of construction in progress
B
2007% 2008% RELA
12A310 *HEE  KttEY  12A31A  EEKE  Investment
1848 I#%E Beginning  FEEM Transfer to Other Ending  Source accounts
Projects Budget balance  Addition fixed assets  deduction balance  of fund for the budget
HE(BR)ERIEE BE
Xinhua (West) Intel’ building — 8,952 — — 3,293 5659  Own —
#E(RE) BB IR BE
Xinhua ( East) Intel building — 854 31 — — 885  Own —
057 R Bk R IR Ui BE
2005 highconcentration waste
water treatment shop
renovation project 6,000 4,322 5,074 9,396 — —  Own 156.60%
ERRHFEIR BE
Calcium Polycarbophil project — 188 — 188 — —  Own —
MERREAZS BE
Xinhua(East) Park water
supply system — 10 — 10 — — Own —
EEMFSL GEBREANE) BE
R&D centre in West Park 95,000 2,213 — — 2,213 —  Own 2.33%
K% BHER (L380) B5
1380 Dopa 30,000 18,323 14,677 33,000 — —  Own 110.00%
3000T/EMES TR B5
BULUNFEN Projects 98,000 — 90,000 90,000 — —  Own —
EIFTE — HEAE BE
Innovation park-Xinhua Building 71,400 — 8,088 — — 8,088 Own 11.33%
B3R — firig BE
Innovation Park-annexed 14,800 - 2,732 - - 2,732 Own 18.46%
EIFTE — RAATR L4 BE
Innovation Park-scientific
research center 1# 13,200 — 3,605 — — 3,605 Own 27.31%
EIHE — ML BE
Innovation Park-scientific
research center 2# 15,700 - 3,703 - - 3,703 Own 23.59%
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BRI (&)
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(KB FERRMTERRIFRIZE BRI - PUARME T THIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

IN. SHBRERRTEHHEE 8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(&) Statements (continued)
11. #ERIRZ B 11.  Construction-in-progress
(1) HEEIEHHEE) a. Detailed list of construction in progress
"L
2007% 20085 RELA
12A31A FY8E  KfteY 12831 EREF  Investment
1848 I#EHE Beginning XN Transfer to Other Ending  Source accounts
Projects Budget balance  Addition fixed assets  deduction balance  of fund for the budget
MESK-BREIXATR 85
Xinhua Shouguan east
industry zone third project 46,854 0 30,613 — — 30,613  Own 65.34%
Efh
Others — 36318 46115 49512 - R - -
Ch
Total 71,180 204,638 182,106 5,506 88206 — -
Eh: BRERENMEE
include: Capitalized borrowing
expense 0 0 0 0 0
(2) ARFE2008%12A31 b. No provision for impairment is made and no evidence
BERIRIAFER indicates any impairment of construction-in-progress at
BB @ ReTiRER the end of the period.

TiRREERE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(REPEIZT2EALFS) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

SHMEBERREEREERE 8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(&)

12.

Statements (continued)

EREE 12.  Intangible Assets
(1) #BELE a. Details of Intangible Assets
FEF R
tiERE  ReERE Non-

HAE Land Software patented ]
ltem use right use right  technology Total
R\ Original cost

2007F12A31H at beginning of year 113,418 2,690 6,558 122,666
o AHEE Add: Increases in the yr. 18,637 502 — 19,139
B REE D Less: Decreases in the yr. 658 — — 658
2008%F12A31H Cost at the end of year 131,397 3,192 6,558 141,147
REt#S Accumulated amortisation

2007%12A31H at beginning of year 19,575 1,808 4,636 26,019
m: AEEHE Add: Increases in the yr. 3,021 347 1,130 4,498
B AR D Less: Decrease in the yr. 108 — — 108
2008 12H31H Accumulated amortisation

at the end of year 22,488 2,155 5,766 30,409

LEEE
20074 12A31H Net value at 2007.12.31 93,843 882 1,922 96,647
2008F12A31H Net value at 2008.12.31 108,909 1,037 792 110,738

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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BRI (&)
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(KB FERRMTERRIFRIZE BRI - PUARME T THIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

IN. SHBRERRTEHHEE 8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(&) Statements (continued)
12. EREE (&) 12.  Intangible Assets (continued)
(2) /N I Tl bR s b. As at the end of 2008, the certificates of land use
BEFEHE2H : right were out of acquirement as follows:
TR E
THfEE Address Net value
W L3 Land for Engine Branch 1,872
LiEZE LT Land for L-dopa(L380) 3,758
SEFRRE T Land for cephalothin 825
FRRERFETER (BE) T iE R Land in West Park of Xinhua 23,512
FERNETIER (RE) Db ARk Land in East Park of Xinhua,
Development Zone, Zibo 6,277
3,000WE 0 /%2538 B £ BULUOFEN 7,723
MiEHE — BARREERET AR A Land for Xinhua-Perrigo 5,196
ESKAR - ZH1H Land for Xinhua ShouGuang
the 1&2 term 1,876
A&t Total 51,039
(3)  A7A7]2008F 12 A 31 c. No provision for impairment is made and no
AEEETNFER evidence indicates any impairment of intangible
BIFFE  RERER assets at the end of the period.

BERELEE -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(REPEIZT2EALFS) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

SHMBERREIEREER

(&)

13. EBEFRSREE

(1)

@)

8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

13. Deferred Tax Assets

BB A E a. Recognised deferred tax assets
HE 20085128 31H 2007F12A31H
ltem 2008.12.31 2007.12.31
AENEREER Deferred Tax Assets from

ZHEREE deductable temporary difference 1,031 2,157
HR B R BT 15 b). Deductable temporary difference of deferred tax
BENEHMEER assets at the ending balance
H
AEMERYE Items of deductable 20085128 31RH 20074 12A31H
£R1EH temporary difference 2008.12.31 2007.12.31
FRRAZAEHE Provision for impairment

CREERMERRL of available-for-sale

financial assets 299 =
FREZERER Provision for impairment
of receivables 3,488 8,378

FREAZEE Provision for impairment

BEER of inventories 336 248
SEr Total 4,123 8,626
RS Tax rate 25% 25%
WAELMSHEE Deferred Tax Assets 1,031 2,157

RB(ESFERE
fi%(2008)) K &K - i
EAMISTHAERE « BLE
FisfafENiKE®Z
BFEY R - WEH
2007412 831 HIELE
FSHEE - BIEM
SHABGEETENR
it o

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

According to the Accounting policies explains for
enterprise of 2008, deferred tax assets and
deferred liabilities net value should be listed after
counteracting, and the deferred tax and deferred
liabilities of 2007 should be retold.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(KB FERRMTERRIFRIZE BRI - PUARME T THIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

IN. SHBRERRTEHHEE 8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(&) Statements (continued)
14. HEREEHFEHAE 14.  Prepared impairment of assets list
FHEMA FHROE
Increasing Declining
B
HEEEHES
BIRE R
20075 Recoveting EftiEH 2008
128318 FHHRE  of other Bo Others  12A31H
RH 31 The term term’s Turning turning 31
Item Dec 2007 packing off  written-off back out  Dec 2008
BRAEER Prepared for impairment
of bad debts 21,750 2,744 1,440 - 7,000 18,934
FERERER Prepared for impairment
of inventories 8,596 1,749 — - 761 9,584
e Prepared for impairment
EERBER of held-for trade
financial assets 30,000 — — — — 30,000
At Total 60,346 4,493 1,440 — 7,761 58,518
15. FERAMER 15.  Short-term Loans
(1) REESTR (1) Listing in the sort of current system
2008%F12A31H 2007%F 12731
®E Item 2008.12.31 2007.12.31
AR RMB 240,380 160,000
ke HK 44,095 46,819
ast Total 284,475 206,819
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(REPEIZT2EALFS) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

SHMEBERREEREERE 8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(&) Statements (continued)

15. ERAE® (&) 15.  Short-term Loans (continued)

(2)  IHEREFEIR (2)  Listing in the condition of loans
2008 12A31H 200712 A31H

ERER Item 2008.12.31 2007.12.31
ERER Credit borrowing 136,457 126,819
REBER Secured borrowing 130,000 80,000
HRER Impawned borrowing 18,018 —
&5t Total 284,475 206,819

4)

20084512 A 31 H 5 &f
fERRBEBEA
BHEEMATEER
A ©

REBERD BB AR
IWRHMEBEEERSF
REERABMERAA
ZERBIRERER
SEBERARREMHE
®FREIN (D)4
BBEROA)EXE
] e

BMERP17,638T

TLREFRERITA
BOITER  BERY

BERIRES17,800
Tor o H64380F 0B
RZIRITHER - &7
Y AFTERE L O ER
BRFX o

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

At the end of 2008, the short-term loans are
increasing greatly, mainly due to the company
enlarging the operating investments, which will
need more capital.

The secured borrowing was secured by Shandong
Xinhua Phar group and Shandong Hualu holding
Group Company, the details can be seen on notes
9, 2&4.

The impawned borrowing of RMB17,638,000
mostly comes from the Commercial Bank of Nan
yang, the impawned matter is borrowing securities
which were worth RMB17,800,000.The others
bank loans come from The China Citic Bank,
which were worth RMB380,000, the impawned
matter is accounts receivables of Xinhua imports
and exports company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(A B 5 3R R MR BRAS BIRE BRSO - I BLA R F LHI/R) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

IN. SHBRERRTEHHEE 8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(&) Statements (continued)
16. XHHEEMAR 16.  Held-for trade financial liabilities
20085 12A31H 2007%12A31H
LREE AREE
HE Item 2008.12.31 2007.12.31
NEesREE Derived financial liabilities 7,591 —

ARARSUEEHABERED
ILBEESH  TEANE
AERERBE - HIREZR
THEEERNRE -

Held-for-trading financial liabilities referred to the United
States Dollar forward contracts. The Company entered
into forward contracts denominated in USD for the
settlement of exchange of exportation. There is no
significant restriction on the returns of investment.

17. BEFRRE 17.  Notes Payable
2008128 31H 2007412 A31H
REESR Item 2008.12.31 2007.12.31
BITHENES Bank acceptance 121,266 30,184

200812 A31 HENZEH
HEHRA HFXBFEREL
KA F2008F EEHZHIRAR
BEEHA -

JET ZIR 2 HI B A200952 A
14H-200945 201 -

At the end of 2008, the balance of notes payables
increased greatly; mainly due to the company adopting
bank acceptance for settlement during this term.

The maturity date of notes payable is from 14 February
2009 to 20 May 2009.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)

N. EHMBERREEREER

(REHE

8. Notes

B ERI4RE) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

to the Consolidated Financial

(&) Statements (continued)
18. FEfTIERR 18.  Accounts Payable
2008%E12831H 2007128318
Item 2008.12.31 2007.12.31
FERTER 3R Accounts payable 133,824 154,100
Hep c1FEpE More than one year 8,201 10,542
(1)  2008F12A31HET a) The ending balance of accounts payable does not
BERATNERAAF have any amount due to the shareholders who
5% (85%) A L& ki hold 5% or more of the Company’s voting capital.
& 1 8 AR R B i K
7 o
(2) ERECHBBIFHENMNE b) Accounts payable aged over one year were
KA R A B MR unsettled payments for raw materials.
o
(3) EREBRRBBEFEATIN c) The ending balance of accounts payable
B EREE - expressed in foreign currency is as follows:
2008128310 2007%12A317
2008.12.31 2007.12.31
R% HHEEE HAARW R¥  FEEX HEARE
Original  Exchange Translated Original ~ Exchange  Translated
ER -4 Item Currency Rate  into RMB  Curency Rate  into RMB
T usb - 6.8346 - 82 7.3046 599
BT EURO 1,373 9.6590 13,266 357 10.6669 3,805
CE Total 13,266 4,404

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(A B 5 3R R MR BRAS BIRE BRSO - I BLA R F LHI/R) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(REPEGTEARS) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

. SHMBERREIEREHER

8.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(&) Statements (continued)
19. FBHIE 19. Advances from Customers
20085 12A31H 2007%12A31H
Item 2008.12.31 2007.12.31
T8 U BR 3K Advances from customers 6,936 22,386
Hep 1FE Within One Year 1,481 1,680

(1)  2008%12A31HIEU
ERBREZHRKA
HFZRAR : AR
A]2008F [E & ff #1 [E

(2) 20084 12A31HIEU
RPN ZHARA
5% (55%) bA_EFRHE
B 15 &9 R R B L 3K
I8 o

(3) ERECERB1FMTEU
BEFXERHRBEEN
TERK

@)  TEWEREREIEL T

The ending balance of advances from customers
has declined significantly, mainly due to the
enlargement combination areas of 2008.

The ending balance of advances from customers
does not have any amount due to the shareholders
who hold 5% or more of the Company’s voting
capital.

The advance from customers aged over one year
was unsettled petty expense.

The ending balance of advances from customers

1232

BEBREE expressed in foreign currency is as follows
2008.12.31 2007.12.31
2008128310 2007F12A31H
R% HHEE HEARW [R% EEZ HAARE
Original ~ Exchange Translated Original  Exchange  Translated
SRR Item Currency Rate  into RMB  Curmency Rate into RMB
X usb 77 6.8346 529 — — —
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SHMBERREIEREER 8.

(&)

20.

ISR EE (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(REPEIZT2EALFS) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

Statements (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial

FE {3 B T %7 BM 20. Employee Benefits Payable
2007%12A31H FHEm#A FHZ ¥ 2008128318
EH Item 2007.12.31 Additions Payment 2008.12.31
T4 (%%  28AHAE)  Salaries(including bonuses,
allowance and subsidies) 0 124,175 124,175 0
BIBNE Staff welfare 5,595 31 5,626
HeRRE Social securities 0 37,061 37,061 0
Hep: Including:
1. BERRE 1. Medical insurance 0 7,711 7,711 0
2. EXEERRE 2. Pension insurance 0 25,283 25,283 0
3. KERRE 3. Unemployment insurance 0 2,215 2,215 0
4. TERRE 4. Work injury insurance 0 1,087 1,087 0
5 £ERRE 5. Maternity insurance 0 765 765 0
FEAES Housing funds 864 16,616 16,407 1,073
TeRENBIHELE Union running costs and
employee education costs 13,629 4,637 3,749 14,517
ETEERREAEMS Directors’ and Supervisors’
remuneration 2,020 1,605 3,165 460
Hit Other 17,618 1,028 2,499 16,147
He: NReHEEN Including: Stock-based payment
B1p settled in cash 0 0 0 0
CH Total 39,726 185,153 192,682 32,197

Hit EBRHARERNBIRE
ERE RARBEROFH -

target-bonus and unpaid annual salaries.

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

At the end of 2008, other mainly included unpaid committing-
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. SHMBERREIEREHER

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(7= B 7% R R M REBRAS BIRE BRSO - B9 AARMEF THIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(&) Statements (continued)
21. EXRE 21.  Tax Payables
ERARE
Applicable 2008.12.31 2007.12.31
nE Item tax rates 2008%12A31H 2007%12831H
BEDR Value added tax — (645) (8,707)
EER Business tax 3%, 5% 39 46
W MR Urban maintenance
& construction tax 7% 272 504
TEMEH Income tax 15%, 25% (2,238) (146)
BAFTEHR Payroll tax — 89 177
BEM Property tax 1.2% 987 20
e AR Land VAT — 1,640 1
ENTER Stamp tax — 154 150
E &M M Educational surcharges 3%, 1% 155 257
At Total 453 (2,698)
22, FEfTERF 22.  Dividends Payable
2008%F12A31H 2007F12A31H
RHE Item 2008.12.31 2007.12.31
R AME{LEBEHBRAR  Shandong Dadi Salt Chemical Group
Company Limited — 122
TER Ms. Ren Aiging - 117
HAh Others 5,325 5,268
A&t Total 5,325 5,507

1234
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)

(REPEIZT2EALFS) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

SHMEBERREEREERE 8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial
(&) Statements (continued)
23. HMEMSR 23.  Other Payable
20084128310 20074 12A318
Item 2008.12.31 2007.12.31
Hth T 50 Other payable 78,459 40,581
Hep t1FE Within one year 8,246 8,084

(1)

()

®)

2008512 A31H EAth
BNRBRELERRE
THIRERRK &
FAREEHRE -

2008512431 H HA
ENRBEREHR
R EFTERREA
2 ARNDEHREN
TREFENEK -

2008412 A31H H 1ty
ENREREHFELR
A15% (&5%) LA E&RR
T B 19 #9 IR 3R B8 i1 3%
I8 o

FREQHERE — FH R MR
NREBEHARGE
B T2 e

a. At the end of 2008, other payables mainly include
the payment of constructions, housing funds, etc.

b. At the end of 2008, other payables increased
greatly, which mainly due to the company
increasing the unpaid payment of constructions.

C. At the end of 2008, other payables do not have
any amount due to the shareholders who hold 5%
or more of the Company’s voting capital.

d. Other payables aged over one year in the ending
balance was mainly unsettled payment of
constructions.
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. SHMBERREIEREHER

()

23. HMEFRK(E)

(6) HIRABEMENK

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(KB FERRMTE BRI RIS YUARYE T THIR)

(Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)

8.

(RIEPHEZHERLE]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

23. Other Payable (continued)

e. Individually significant other payables in the ending
balance is as follows:

HE RREH [ HEEAE
Name Amount Ages Content
HETERMHAA 1-24F TR
Xinhua Industrial & 2,647 More than 1 year Construction
Trading Company Limited
MEMERE(CIREBEERA 1F AR TR
Zibo Xinhua Changxing 1,784 Less than 1 year Construction
Chemical company Limited
ILWREBRE pE YN 1FLARA IEH®
Shangdong Wanxmg 1,441 Less than 1 year Construction
construction Company Limited
BIEENANERREEFRAR 1F AR TER
Jingjiang Shaideli pharmacial 1,176 Less than 1 year Construction
engine Company Limited
HERERNHBRA 1FE AR EERANE
ZiBo thermoelectric Company limited 1,486 Less than 1 year Power
At
Total 8,534
(6)  HMERZRFEIEAT f. The ending balance of other payables expressed
SMNEBRREE ¢ in foreign currency is as follows:
2008.12.31 2007.12.31
R% HEEE HIARR R¥  HEEEZ HAARE
Original  Exchange  Translated Original ~ Exchange  Translated
b4 Item Currency Rate  into RMB  Curency Rate into RMB
e usb 26 6.8346 176 - 7.3046 -
BT EURO 32 9.6590 309 6 10.6669 65
At TOTAL 485 85
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(REPEIZT2EALFS) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

I\. EHHHMEERRFTERBAEE 8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(&) Statements (continued)
24. EBEFBHRAR 24. Deferred Tax Liabilities
(1) EHEREEFREFHEE a. Recognised deferred tax liabilities

2008%12A31H 2007412 A431H

HH Item 2008.12.31 2007.12.31
EARERHEEE Income tax from taxable

2P BE temporary difference 650 46,274

(2) HIREHZRELA{ZH b. Deductible temporary difference of deferred tax
BEMERtEREE liabilities at the ending balance
H
2008f£12A 31A 2007124317

FEHRREBEERER  ltems of taxable temporary difference 2008.12.31 2007.12.31
ARHECHEE Change of fair value of Held-for

PREEES trade financial assets 69,608 342,737
BRARZXSMER Change of fair value of parent company

BEAABEZY advisable for sale financial assets = 15,897
NE Subtotal 69,608 358,634

AEMEREEREE  Detaining temporary difference items
BRRZR SIS Change of fair value of parent company

BEAABEZY advisable for sale financial assets 7,379 =
BARZAHHE Prepared impairment of held-for sale

SRAEREERS financial assets for parent company 30,000 30,000
BRRBRER Prepared for bad debts balance of

EEHE parent company 15,277 12,373
BARZBMREE Prepared for impairment of inventories

KEEEHRT balance of parent company 8,297 7,771
BARZBE RS Associated corporation Investment

RkEBX loss of the parent company 4,321 =
gt Subtotal 65,274 50,144

ERHEREERE The net value after counteracting for
2

AEMEREER rate paying temperate difference to

EERFE detaining temperate difference 4,334 308,490
HE Tax rate 15% 15%
BRELEMEHARE Deferred tax liabilities 650 46,274
JEMF TR E R R The retails for deferred tax liabilities can been in
AT E R notes 8.13.

WELFEE R -
RARKIFEIN ~ 18] ©

IR FERZ R 95 PR 2 F Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited 237 |




BRI (&)
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(KB FERRMTERRIFRIZE BRI - PUARME T THIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

. SHMBERREIEREHER 8.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(&) Statements (continued)
25. B{*x 25. Share Capital
el 5580 FREH
Accounts at the beginning of the term Changes in this term Accounts at the ending of the term
LREBR
BITHE & Accumulated
&f LR (%) Issuing Sending  capitals tum Hft it &f L (%)
RE4H /8 Item Amounts  Ratio (%)  new share share to share Others Subtotal  Amounts Ratio (%)
ARERKRR Conditional tradable shares
AR HER State-held shares 163,259 35.70% — = — — = 163,259 35.70%
BEEARR State-owned legal-person
held shares - - - - - - - - -
EtphERR Domestic-funded-held shares 24,558 5.37% - - - ® ® 24,550 5.37%
EdEREARR  Including:Domestic
legal-person
held shares 24,527 5.36% — — — — — 24,527 5.36%
BREAAGR Domestic natural
person held shares 31 0.01% - - - 8) [t] 2 0.01%
SERR Foreign-funded-held shares - - = = = = = = -
EdEEARR  Including:Foreign legal-person
held shares - - - — - - — — -
EhaRARR Foreign natural person
held shares - - - - - - - - -
BREKERRAR  Subotal 187,817 4.07% - - - ® ® 187,809 4.07%
ERERARR Unconditional tradable shares
ARBERR Domestically listed
RMB A shares 119,496 26.13% - - - 8 8 119,504 26.13%
SR ETER Domestically listed foreign
invested shares - - - — - - — — -
S ETANER Overseas isted foreign
invested H shares 150,000 32.80% - - - - 150,000 32.80%
£t Others = = - - - _ _ _
EREKERAAT  Sub-otal 269,496 58.93% - - 8 8 269,504 58.93%
k2% Total stock 457,313 100.00% = = = - 457,313 100.00%
I I I I
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(REPEIZT2EALFS) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

EHMBERRETIERAGE 8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial
(&) Statements (continued)
26. BEXLE® 26. Capital Surplus
20074 20085
12A31H FEEm FE®Y 12A31A8
HH ltem 2007.12.31  Additions Deductions 2008.12.31
BEESMERE Upward revaluation
of assets 60,910 — — 60,910
B B Premium of stock 496,851 — 359 496,492
BEXREE Receipt of donation 1,158 — — 1,158
HinEARRTE Others 291,327 (232,384) — 58,943
&t Total 850,246 (232,384) 359 617,503
(1) EmEARQEZETH 1, Others capital surplus mainly accounting for the

HESMEERRA change in fair value of available-for-sale financial
RIT/EARMA T F assets, which were legal-person held shares of
REEANBRO QR E Bank of Communications and Pacific Insurance
BEE - Company Limited.

(2) 2008F12A31HER 2. The ending balance of capital surplus has declined
NEHRBEHRK much, mainly due to the fair in value of Bank of
BEFrZRAZ : i@ Communications and Pacific Insurance Company
BT KFEFRR Limited declining in 2008.
2008F12H31HAR
BELFENKNET
[Z o

27. EHEBLEW 27.  Surplus Reserves
2007F 20085
12A31H FEEmM FE®Y 12A31A8

HE ltem 2007.12.31  Additions Deductions 2008.12.31

EERBAE Statutory surplus

reserves 99,461 3,052 — 102,513

FERBRE Discretionary

surplus reserve 64,797 — — 64,797
CE Total 164,258 3,052 — 167,310

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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. SHMBERREIEREHER

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(A B 5 3R R MR BRAS BIRE BRSO - I BLA R F LHI/R) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(&) Statements (continued)
28. XoEFA 28.  Undistributed Profits
(1)  FUES B a) Distribution Proportion
RH SERER 20084 2007F [
Item Distributed base 2008 2007
ROBHOES 3 M E
Appropriation of statutory Net profit 10% 10%
surplus reserve
(2 FIESER b) Profit Distribution Statement
2008F B 2007F [
HE Item 2008 2007
HIAR 5 B M E Undistributed profit at beginning

e MRS E
FEHEH

e AREFENE
B RBBHAER

7 Be & BRI
HIRAR D BN
Hep: o BB S RA

of the year 193,497 171,892
Add: adjustment to the

undistributed profit

at beginning of the year — —

Add: Net profit of the year 33,965 32,723
Less: Appropriation of statutory
surplus reserve 3,052 1,972
Dividends payable
on common stock 13,719 9,146
Undistributed profit at the end
of the year 210,691 193,497
Including: dividend in cash
to be distributed 13,719 18,719

200846 926H © AR
RAI2007F EAFRE
AEi@BAEB2007F
EMBEIREAFR £
RE10%HEE &%
NEEE  AARAK
457,312,830 A&
o mMEERERE
RETFERARE
0.037T (&) °

240

The General Meeting for 2007 held on 26 June
2008 passed the resolution on the proposal for
2007 profit distribution. Under the resolution, the
shareholders will be allocated cash dividend of
RMBO0.03 per share (before tax) based on the
total number of 457,312,830 shares after providing
for 10% statutory surplus reserve.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(REPEIZT2EALFS) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

EHMBERREIERAGEE 8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial
(&) Statements (continued)
28. koETNEBEE) 28.  Undistributed Profits (continued)

(2) FEDEE(E) b) Profit Distribution Statement (continued)
2009F3H20H + AR According to the resolution on the preliminary
AENEEEEFE - proposal for 2008 profit distribution passed at the
RE#EBAE #2008 6th Meeting of the 2nd Board of Directors on 20
FEMNEOREER - March 2008, the Company allocated cash dividend
ERI10%MEE A of RMBO0.03 per share (before tax) based on the
MAERE  NER total number of 457,312,830 shares after providing
7K457,312,830/% &% for 10% statutory surplus reserve. The resolution
H MERBRRIRE should be approved by shareholders at the annual
REAFNERARE general meeting.
0.03T (M) &
2008F EF B KR
RHHEERERGH
A e

29. DBEFRES 29 Minority Interest
DB LL G
Ratio of
equity 2008% 128310 20074128318
PBERRE Name interests 2008.12.31 2007.12.31
IR EEEEE Shandong Xinhua
EREEDA Pharmaceutical Group
Company Limited 10% 49 49
IR EE R E Shandong Xinhua
BREEAT Pharmaceutical Group
Company Limited 12% 332 256
LI PENG LI PENG 23.1% 790 684
Eastwest United Eastwest United
Group, INC Group, INC 25% 3,434 3,622
B S TMER Perrigo Asia
ERAA Holding Company 49.9% 29,140 23,698
IR A b B AL Shandong Dadi Salt
EEERAF & Industrial
Company Limited 41.4375% — 13,613
TEHF Ms. Ren aiqgin 49% — 8,871
CE Total 33,745 50,793

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(A B 5 3R R MR BRAS BIRE BRSO - I BLA R F LHI/R) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

. SHMBERREIEREHER

(&

30.

242

)
/

BRENA  BEEF

(1)

@)

8.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements (continued)

30. Operating Income and Cost
ERKA - ERERK a) Operating Income and Cost
20085 & 20074 &
HH ltem 2008 2007
FEEBRA Income from main operation 2,058,746 1,845,036
HpZEHWA Income from other operation 38,218 41,943
EEWARG Sub-total 2,096,964 1,886,979
ISR EPIHERE Sales to top 5 customers 410,612 259,029
HEEZEBWALLH  Accounting of the total sales 19.94% 14.04%
FEEBRA Cost from main operation 1,765,540 1,557,883
H SRR AN Cost from other operation 38,675 44,534
BENAEF Sub-total 1,804,215 1,602,417
FERBFIWRALAR-17 b. Income and Cost from Main Operation-Listed by
2R Products
2008 K 20074 &
2008 2007
KA 5% 3 WA B
EmER ltem Income Cost Income Cost
R Bulk Pharmaceuticals 1,222,713 1,058,008 1,163,054 982,289
Hep: RREHA Including: Export sales 877,910 786,712 852,098 743,843
U Preparations 404,290 295,129 340,345 262,239
[EEdib Commerce circulations 412,894 394,139 332,795 308,973
b T REAM Chemical and others 18,849 18,264 8,842 4,382
B Total 2,058,746 1,765,540 1,845,036 1,557,883
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ISR EE (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE)) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

31. EXWReRMM 31.  Taxes and Surcharges
HE {:4:) 20084 2007F &
HE ltem Tax rate 2008 2007
EER Business tax 5% 279 179
IR T M R R AR Urban maintenance &
construction tax 7% 5,967 7,536
HEEM M Educational surcharges 3%, 1% 3,410 4,199
&t Total 9,656 11,914
32. MBEA 32.  Financial Expenses
2008 2007F &
HE ltem 2008 2007
FEZH Interest expenses 17,956 12,183
o FBIRA Less: interest income 3,616 2,311
e EREK Add: exchange loss (6,755) 8,969
m: Hb i Add: others 880 1,380
&t Total 8,465 20,221
33. HERERX 33. Impairment Loss of Assets
20085 2007F &
EHH Item 2008 2007
TERIER Impairment loss of bad debts 2,744 12,900
FEBBIEXLX Impairment loss of inventories 1,749 1,866
IRMERERRE Impairment loss of
constructing materials — 1,159
BEF Total 4,493 15,925

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(A B 5 3R R MR BRAS BIRE BRSO - I BLA R F LHI/R) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

IN. SHBRERRTEHHEE 8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(&) Statements (continued)
34. LQAEEREHKS 34.  Gain or Loss from changes in fair value
20085 20074 £
HH Item 2007 2006
RoteHEE Gain or loss from changes in fair value
LR BEEDKE of held-for-trading financial assets (23,488) 15,763
35. HBEAKS 35. Investment Gain or Loss
20085 20074 £
EERBRBHRE Sources of Investment gain or loss 2008 2007
B ERENRE Long-term equity investment income
M1 & e accounting in beneficial method 2,119 (3,581)
REHEESRHEE The income gaining from the term holding
HBRE MR E W the held-for trade financial assets 4,022 914
RERIBREREESE The income getting from treating the
#1& & W s held-to maturity investment 479 =
REHEEIHRENSG The income getting from treating the
B E s held-to maturity investment — 1,647
HAth Others 29
&t Total 6,649 (1,020)
REEREW =GN - X2 At the end of 2008, the investment gain increased greatly, mainly
REAEZ © RAF2008F W Z due to the company getting more dividends from Bank of
RIBIRITIE AR F R B Communication and The Pacific Insurance.
EANBRDAL ©
KA EEE W= KU E N FEE There is no significant restriction on the returns of investment

ERREH - income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)

N. EHMBERREEREER 8.

(REPEIZT2EALFS) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(&) Statements (continued)
36. EEIMEA 36. Non-operating Income
(1)  EZZIMRABEH a. Detailed list of non-operating income
20085 & 20075 F
HH ltem 2008 2007
FERBEEREFS  Proceeds from disposal of
non-current assets 1,324 6,031
Hep - EEEE Including: Proceeds from disposal
BREMG fixed assets 1,324 6,031
B B Government Subsidies 15,762 5,479
BRER Income from penalties — 3,869
HA Others 3,108 3,349
&FF Total 20,194 18,728
(2)  HITHEEIERA - b. Details of Government subsidies
wyEs 2008 & 200746 HLESR
Item 2008 2007  Circular No.
HHZEFEES MR AR E M %
EERZEGTHE
Supporting funds from government 15,497 4,479  From Management Committee
of Zibo New & High-tech
Industrial Development Zone
EREXRREFEESHAY & 81 3#45[2008]1305%
Information development funds 200 —  Lu Cai Jian [2008] No. 130
egmpd) &5 {2 75[2008]755%
Export incentives 65 —  Lu Cai Qi [2008] No. 75
BRI ERREERSE e B 2[2007]975%
Compensation on experiment in
ecological environment near
Xiaoging River — 600 Zi Cai Qi [2007] No. 97
R 0 BY 8 B84 [2007]265%
BB 12[2007]695%
Subsidies on R&D — 400  Zi Zheng Fa [2007] No.26;
Lu Cai Qi [2007] No. 69
At
Total 15,762 5,479

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(KB FERRMTERRIFRIZE BRI - PUARME T THIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

IN. SHBRERRTEHHEE 8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(&) Statements (continued)
37. EBEIZH 37. Non-operating Expense
2008 2007F [
RHE Item 2008 2007
FRBEERBERX Loss from disposal of
non-current assets 7,012 3,990
HEh EEBEREBRX Including: loss from disposal
fixed assets 7,012 3,990
HOMER Donations for commonweal 426 44
TR RAHE T H Overdue fines and penalties 468 1,820
HAh Others 2,640 1,817
& Total 10,546 7,671
38. MMTEREH 38. Income Tax Expenses
2008 2007F [
RHE Item 2008 2007
BHMEHER Income tax expenses in
current period 9,822 8,044
EEFEHER Deferred income tax expenses (3,453) 322
A&t Total 6,369 8,366
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)

SHMBERREIEREER

(&)

39. BaRER

(REPEIZT2EALFS) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements (continued)

39. Cash Flow Statement

(1)  JIRERBEZwEXRAH a) Cash and its equivalents presented in cash flow
e MBE2EEYH statement
7 -
20085 2007F £
KHE ltem 2008 2007
Be Cash 183,667 199,833
Ho: ERES Including: Cash in hand 2,115 149
T BER AR X A Bank deposit available for
HRITER payment at any moment 176,173 142,638
AR AR S T Other funds available for
HE® LS payment at any moment 5,379 57,046
BeZEM Cash equivalents = =
He o Z{AAREEH Including: debt investment with
MEERE a maturity of 3 months - =
BRREMREEENHE Ending balance of cash and equivalents 183,667 199,833
He: BRAHEER Including: cash and equivalents
FRAFEH restricted to use by parent
RBHMESR company or subsidiaries
BeZEM in the Group. = =
(2)  WEEHTHAE EAE b) Other Cash Received/Paid Relating to Operating
EEBEANRE Activities
1) LK B & H A 2R i Other Cash Received Relating to Operating
KREEDEM Activities
HIRE
20085 2007F [
HE Item 2008 2007
B UWA Interest income 2,958 1,814
EELON Subsidies income 16,062 5,479
R Fund transactions 3,803 =
RITFEGLESRRES  Bank acceptance deposit — 16,976
HEBHE Allowance on R&D - 3,760
Hit Other 3,612 3,485
&FF Total 26,435 31,514
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BRI (&)
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(KB FERRMTERRIFRIZE BRI - PUARME T THIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

IN. SHBRERRTEHHEE 8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(&) Statements (continued)
39. BeRER (B 39. Cash Flow Statement (continued)
(2)  WEFEE M EAE b) Other Cash Received/Paid Relating to Operating
EEBBEHENE 2 Activities (continued)
(&)
2) 1T 89 H i 82 i Other Cash Paid Relating to Operating
HEEBH R Activities
#3# 2
20085 & 2007F [
HH Iltem 2008 2007
N = Office expenses 4,061 4,861
ERE Travel expenses 2,438 1,479
tHFEE - EHFE - Annual listing fee, audit fee
E=g® and Board’s fee 5,424 7,240
HTE Sewage discharge fees 3,329 7,929
BE - mHRAEE Advertising and marketing
expenses 22,773 25,363
BB Freight charges 36,150 28,924
E¥BREE Entertainment expenses 3,213 2,920
BMAZEE Research and development
expenses 9,087 11,330
FRRK Funds transactions — 16,274
RITELES - Bank acceptance bills of
BERETRRELS exchange 46,302 =
HAh Others 10,998 24,298
At Total 143,775 130,618
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SHMEBERREEREERE
(%)
39. HeaRER(E)

(3) AHHELREXRBILE

ISR EE (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(REPEIZT2EALFS) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

Statements (continued)

39. Cash Flow Statement (continued)

c) Supplementary Information to Consolidated Cash

Flow Statement

20085 & 20075 F
HE ltem 2008 2007
1. RBEHERGS 1. Reconciliation of net income
REZHRARE to cash flows from
operating activities
) Net profit 39,671 38,144
m: BERELEE Add: Provisions for assets
impairment 4,493 15,925
BTEENE Depreciation of
fixed assets 112,927 101,088
B EEEH Amortisation of
intangible assets 4,498 4,044
EEETEE Losses on disposal of
BREEMEM fixed assets, intangible
REEEMBER assets and other
(Wezs A T— 1HE31) long-term assets
(or deduct: gains) 5,688 (2,041)
NAEBEEHER Profit or loss from
(U AT — ISR 4E5) changes in fair value
(or deduct: gains) 23,488 (15,763)
BB ER Financial expense
Wz AT — 1HE31) (or deduct: gains) 13,646 12,172
REBX Investment loss
(WA T — 1B 51)) (or deduct: gains) (6,649) 1,020
BEEREHEERNRD Decrease in deferred
(LA — 13E51) tax assets
(or deduct: increase) 1,126 (2,063)
EEFT1S T B ERIIE N Increase in deferred
ORA AT —14E71)) tax liabilities
(or deduct: decrease) (45,624) 583,795
FERR D (B INIA Decrease in inventories
[—14E7) (or deduct: increase) (19,461) (63,145)
R FEIOE B R Decrease in operating
(G ANBAT— 1HE31) receivables
(or deduct: increase) (83,975) 8,819
L ERTIE B RIS N Increase in operating
CR A BAT— 14E31)) payables
(or deduct: decrease) 53,651 (31,404)
REEREEED Net cash flows from
RemEFH operating activities 103,479 120,591
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BRI (&)
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(A B 5 3R R MR BRAS BIRE BRSO - I BLA R F LHI/R) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

IN. SHBRERRTEHHEE 8. Notes to the Consolidated Financial

(&) Statements (continued)
39. HaREx (&) 39. Cash Flow Statement (continued)
(3) EHHEeREXRHAE c) Supplementary Information to Consolidated Cash
# (&) Flow Statement (continued)
2008 2007F
HH ltem 2008 2007
2. FERAGWIH 2. Significant investing and
EXREMEGID : financing activities not
involving cash receipt
or payment:
RRERENR Conversion of a debts to capital - =
—F RN Convertible bonds due
AERARE within one year = —
REMAETEE Financial lease-in fixed assets - =
3. BeRACFERYD 3. Changes in cash and
BEEER cash equivalents:
REMEIRBE Ending balance of cash 183,667 199,832
W RenHRE Less: beginning balance
of cash 199,833 133,134
m: ReFEY Add: ending balance of
B R B cash equivalents = =
W ReEEY Less: beginning balance
BB ¥ ERER of cash equivalents - =
RekREEED Net increase of cash and
R INEE cash equivalents (16,166) 66,698

| 250 IR E R %R /2 B PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited




BRI T (&)
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(REPEIZT2EALFS) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

h. BAFIMBHREFEERAE 9. Notes to the Financial Statements of the
= Parent Company
1. FE Mz AR 2R 1) Accounts Receivable
(1) FERERERERSE a) Risk Classification of Accounts Receivable
2008%12R 318 2007127318
2008.12.31 2007.12.31
BREGH ZRER
& Itf  Bad debts Ex 5l Bad debts
EH Amount Ratio Provision Amount Ratio Provision
% %
BESEEAN  Individually significant
YR accounts receivable 72,541 27.34 179 63,318 28.52 317
EhEESE Individually non-significant
TEAMEUES  accounts receivable 192,794 72.66 8,230 158,723 7148 6,378
At Total 265,335 100.00 8,409 222,041 100.00 6,695
BHSEBEANER Individually significant accounts receivable referred
AR X BB IA5008 T A to as individual accounts receivable with an
BRI - & amount over RMB5,000,000. The provision for
BEHEHEBEARNNER bad debts has been made on an aging basis as
BRRETRE - RE no impairment of individually significant accounts
BRETR - #KA receivable was found after the assessment.
BRER AT IR BER £
& -
(2) FERERRERES b) Aging Analysis
2008E12A 318 2007F 124318
2008.12.31 2007.12.31
BREGR ZERER
& Itf  Bad debts Ex [t Bad debts
EH Amount Ratio  Provision Amount Ratio Provision
% %
1ENA Less than 1 year 227,916 85.90 659 175,207 78.91 692
126 110 2 years 5,646 213 228 18,818 8.48 294
2-3F 2 o0 3 years 15,495 5.84 494 23,864 10.75 1,558
3EL £ Over 3 years 16,278 6.13 7,028 4,152 1.87 4,151
At Total 265,335 100.00 8,409 222,041 100.00 6,695
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IR (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(A B 5 3R R MR BRAS BIRE BRSO - I BLA R F LHI/R) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

h. BAFMBEBERERRAH

o

252

9. Notes to the Financial Statements of the

(&) Parent Company (continued)
BUWER (&) 1) Accounts Receivable (continued)
(8) EEREEMEIRAER c) The provision system for bad debts can be seen
LEfI 2 RARKER above Notes 5.7. The Company recovered RMB5,
7 o IR E S LART AR 000 of the previous written-off accounts receivable
JE B2 IHH R U BR X5 of 2008.
FiT o
(4) FEEZRBRREERZ d) RMB815,000 of accounts receivable aged over 3
HBERHETEER years has been written off in 2008 according to
= F LA E AR K the Company’s accounting policy.
815F T °
(5) 2008F12A31HEW e) In the ending balance, there is no account
BEHRATER/FARA receivable due from shareholders who hold 5% or
5% (55%) LA A% more of the Company’s voting capital.
[Nzl = VAN
(6) 2008F12HA31HEU f) The balance of accounts receivable due from the
AR EE AT L& B top five debtors is RMB77, 118,000 accounting
W BR R & A for 29.06% of the total balance of accounts
77,118F T LIl A receivable.
29.06% °
(7) 20081231 H# % 9) The balance of accounts receivables due from the
W RE UL RA B T SIS related parties is RMB39, 432,000, accounting for
5189,432F 7t - tL Al 14.86% of the total balance of accounts receivable.
%14.86% ©
(8)  FEWERFRHRBIFEATIN h). The ending balance of accounts receivable
BEBREE expressed in the foreign currency is as follows:
2008 12A31H 2007F12A317
2008.12.31 2007.12.31
R% HHEEE HAARW R FEEX  FAARE
Original ~ Exchange  Translated Original ~ Exchange Translated into
b1 Item Currency Rate  into RMB  Currency Rate RMB
e usb 15,904 6.8346 108,695 15,073 7.3046 110,101
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h. BAFMBEBERERRAH 9.

ISR EE (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(REPEIZT2EALFS) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

Notes to the Financial Statements of the

- NE] Parent Company (continued)
2. H 1t BE U &% 2). Other Receivable
(1)  HibEkskER 8 a). Risk Classification of Other Receivable
2008%12R 318 2007127318
2008.12.31 2007.12.31
BRER BRER
& Itf  Bad debts Ex 5l Bad debts
RE Amount Ratio  Provision Amount Ratio Provision
% %
BESEEAN  Individually significant
EEs other receivable 6,196 19.76 6,196 6,196 17.94 6,196
EhEESE Individually non-significant
TERH other receivable 25,156 80.24 672 28,347 82.06 219
RN
a5 Total 31,352 100.00 6,868 34,543 100.00 6,415
BHeHEEANHAM Individually significant other receivable referred
JE W 3K A BB IE5008 7T to as individual other receivable with an amount
LA & H b fE UK - over RMB5,000,000. The provision for bad debts

RUEERTBEAN
H o & W 3R 1T R
E o ORBERBED
R BERAKREE
TESRARZE o

has been made on aging basis as no impairment
of individually significant other receivable was
found after the assessing.

(2)  HtbmEUEERE b) Aging Analysis
2008F12A 318 2007F 124318

2008.12.31 2007.12.31
BREGH ZRER
& It Bad debts Ex ftfl Bad debts
EH Amount Ratio Provision Amount Ratio Provision

% %
E Less than 1 year 12,011 38.31 2 25,074 72.59 4
128 110 2 years 9,810 31.29 7 989 2.86 0
2-3% 2 0 3 years 752 240 16 908 2.63 139
3ENE Over 3 years 8,779 28.00 6,843 7572 21.92 6,272
At Total 31,352 100.00 6,868 34,543 100.00 6,415
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IR (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(A B 5 3R R MR BRAS BIRE BRSO - I BLA R F LHI/R) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)

(RIEPHEZHERLE]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

BAFRIMEHREEREE 9.

Notes to the Financial Statements of the

(&) Parent Company (continued)
2. HthEWR (&) 2).  Other Receivable (continued)

(8) EEREEMEIRAER c) The provision system for bad debts can be seen
Lpl 2 RARKHFER - above Notes 5.7.
7 o

(4)  2008F12H31HEAM d) The ending balance of other receivable includes
BB ERBEEH output VAT for exporting before applying to
i O 3R B8 HE O AT E IR customs. No bad debts provision is made on these
IR EERE items.
RETIRIBREWH -

(5) 2008F12H31HEA e) In the ending balance, there is no other receivable
EWHRATEREAR due from shareholders who hold 5%or more of
F15% (55%) A &R the Company’s voting capital.
TR B IR R B R

(6) 2008F12H31HEA f) The balance of other receivable due from the top
JE WK BR BB AT LA Y five debtors is RMB11, 703,000, accounting for
Hi e BEAE 37.33% of the total balance of other receivable.
11,703F 7T » 15 HAtb
B W R BB
37.33% °

(7) 2008512 A 31H &% h) The balance of other receivable due from the

o H b fE AR B B R
HAEF T HEAM
JEW 4B EERI0.00% ©

relayed parties is RMB1, 000 accounting for 0.00%
of the total balance of other receivable.

3. REBRRERSE 3). Long-term Equity Investment
(1) FKHRERSE a). Long-term Equity Investment

2008%12A 318 20075128318
EH ltem 2008.12.31 2007.12.31
ERAREGZERSRERE  Accounted in cost method 176,284 108,311
BESARERBEREE  Accounted in equity method 25,631 23512
RERERE A Total 201,915 131,823
B RSREREREEE  Less: Impairment of Long-term equity investment - -
RBRERETE Net value of Long-term equity investment 201,915 131,823
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ISR EE (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE)) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

h. BLFMBEBREREEREHE 9. Notes to the Financial Statements of the
- NG Parent Company (continued)
3. REBRERSE (&) 3). Long-term Equity Investment(continued)
(2) AL - EwmE b) Accounted in Equity Method and Cost Method
Bl
RaiH
RREA RAEUA  DHEE  ENBE AR FERD  EXBE  Dividends
HRERAER Holding Voting  Original Balancein  Addition Deduction Balance in  received
Name of investee Ratio  right ratio Cost  2007.12.31 in 2008 in 2008  2008.12.31 in 2008
% %
RAERE
Accounted in cost method
1 LRFERERHARAA
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Trade Company Limited 98% 98% 47,529 47,529 - — 47,529 -
2. HBHERERIRARLA
Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical
Design Institute Company Limited 90% 90% 1,800 1,800 = = 1,800 =
3. MENEAEEEHERAA
Zibo Xinhua Drug Store Chain
Company Limited 88% 88% 1,760 1,760 — — 1,760 —
4 WEHEHEEH ERAA
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
(European) GmbH 76.90% 76.90% 4,597 4,597 — — 4,597 —
5. MENE-"RREERALAT
Zibo Xinhua-Eastwest Pharmaceutical
Company Limited 75% 75% 9,008 9,008 = = 9,008 619
6. HBHE-RHRREERALLA
Sino-USA Zibo Xinhua-Perrigo
Pharmaceutical Company Limited 50.10% 50.10% 24,871 24,877 = = 24,877 =
7. HEHE(ER)ARAT
Shandong Dadi Xinhua Chemical &
Industrial Company Limited 100% 100% 86,713 18,740 67,973 — 86,713 =
st
Sub-total 108,311 67,973 — 176,284 619
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BRI (&)
Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(KB FERRMTERRIFRIZE BRI - PUARME T THIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

N BLFMERREIEHRHE 9. Notes to the Financial Statements of the

- NG )) Parent Company (continued)
3. REKRERE (&) 3). Long-term Equity Investment(continued)
(2)  HRERAE - ERE (B b) Accounted in Equity Method and Cost Method
(continued)
A8
Red#
BRUA ERELA  WREE ENBE  FE@M FERY  FXBE  Dividends
HRERMER Holding Voting  Original Balancein  Addition Deduction Balance in  received
Name of investee Ratio  right ratio Cost  2007.12.31 in 2008 in 2008  2008.12.31 in 2008
% %
ERiEGE
Accounted in equity method
1. WEHEEENIERAR
Shandong Xinhua Longxin Chemical &
Industrial Company Limited 40% 40% 10,000 10,364 (521) - 9,843 -
2. URFERENIZEERAA
Shandong Xinhua Changxing Chemical
Equipment Company Limited 35% 35% 7,700 5,749 (2,214) — 3,535 -
3 LREEHEREARAR
Shandong Zibo XinCat Pharmaceutical
Company Limited 20% 20% 10,179 7,399 4,854 - 12,253 -
NGt
Sub-total 23,512 2,119 - 25,631 -
At
Total 131,823 70,092 - 201,915 619
(38) RHEIRERERMELERE c) Impairment on Long-term Equity Investment
RARREAKRERE No provision for impairment is made and no
TFERBEEBE - K evidence indicates any impairment of long-term
FriRREIRE R E%E equity investment at the end of the period.
& o
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h. BAFMBEBERERRAH

ISR EE (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(REPEIZT2EALFS) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

9. Notes to the Financial Statements of the

- NG Parent Company (continued)
4, BERA BEXRF 4).  Operating Income and Cost
(1) ZEWRA - EFEKAE a).  Operating Income and Cost
2008 2007F [
EH Item 2008 2007
TEEBRKA Income from main operation 1,448,188 1,378,898
HibZEHBA Income from other operation 53,183 62,823
EXRAGH Sub-total 1,501,371 1,441,721
RSB FHER Sales to top 5 customers 258,070 259,029
EEEEBRALS Accounting of the total sales 17.82% 18.79%
FEEBHA Cost from main operation
HEhEBRKA Cost from other operation 1,256,908 1,168,317
EXREER Sub-total 55,099 66,622
1,312,007 1,234,939
2) TR AR —i% b). Income and Cost from Main Operation-Products
EmafE Segment
20085 20074 &
2008 2007
KA & ON A
ERER Item Income Cost Income Cost
[k g Bulk Pharmaceuticals 1,101,191 952,749 1,051,152 888,254
Hev: BRERO Including: Export sales 756,387 681,453 740,196 649,807
27| Preparations 346,807 303,969 324,747 277,277
BERR Commerce circulations — — 1,024 1,883
I REM Chemical and others 190 190 1,975 903
At Total 1,448,188 1,256,908 1,378,898 1,168,317
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IR (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements

(continued)

(KB FERRMTERRIFRIZE BRI - PUARME T THIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

. BAFMBEREREIERAF 9. Notes to the Financial Statements of the
- NG )) Parent Company (continued)
5. BEKS 5). Investment Gain or Loss
20085 2007F £
EERBREHRE Sources of Investment income 2008 2007
S ERENREREREKE  Gain or loss from long-term equity
accounting in beneficial method 2,119 (7,817)
BEAMHLESHEERH Gain or loss from held-for
BEHOTRE S trade financial assets 4,018 914
RERAZIHRE Gain or loss from treating held-to
BERRE KRS maturity investment = 1,647
FRANE Dividends from subsidiary company 620 —
At Total 6,757 (5,256)
RARIEE Wz B NMFEE There is no significant restriction on the returns of investment
RBR I ° income.
+. ABRAFREREXS 10. Related Party Relationship and Transaction
(—) BHWARE 1) Related Party Relationship
TSI RS F 2 B 5F R Detailed subsidiaries under a control relationship shall
Tt BEEMHREHYTE®R be seen in Notes 7. Business Combination and
= e Consolidated Financial Statements.
1. TSI R E b a).  Related Parties under a control relationship
4
JF
RHAER AREARE  Efed HENTRE BEREA
Related Code of Place of TERE Relation with ~ #&E#E Legal
Party Name Organization registration Main operations the Company Nature  Representative
LWRHEZEEE 164132472 WREERTRER RERBETRMRG ARAZBRR  EHEE HES
BREMLRA B-E145 FHERE EHE
Shandong Xinhua No. 14, East 1st Road,  Investment in Parent company ~ State-owned Guo Qin
Pharmaceutical Group Zhangdian Dist., Zibo, the design of construction projects,  of the Company
Company Limited Shandong Province. property development and food
and beverage, efc.
ERLREEARAT 771039712 WRaEETEHEIR IR ALEERE BRAZERER  EREE ZRE
Shandong Hualu Holding No. 1, Bangpeng Street,  Investment and management in The ultimate ~ State-owned Li Tongdao

Group Company Limited

Jinan, Shandong
Province.

fertilizer and petrochemicals, etc. holding company
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ISR EE (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(REPEIZT2EALFS) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

10. Related Party Relationship and Transaction

(continued)

(=) EBARE (&) 1) Related Party Relationship (continued)
2. TR HI R 8 H A R b). Registered capital and changes of related parties
Bt B A AN R K under a control relationship
it
2007F € EERM FERD 2008 &
REEER Related Party Name 2007.12.31 Addition  Deduction  2008.12.31
LR EREEE Shandong Xinhua
BREEAR Pharmaceutical Group
Company Limited 298,500 0 0 298,500
EEZBREIERAAF  Shandong Hualu Holding
Group Company Limited 800,000 0 0 800,000

FAEEHIBR A H AR c). Share holdings and changes of related parties
BRI ERG KA under a control relationship
21t

Amount of shares Ratio

BReH HELH

2008 20075 2008% 20075
ElobE 2008 2007 2008 2007
LWRHEREEE Shandong Xinhua

BREMFAH Pharmaceutical Group
Company Limited 163,259 163,259 35.70% 35.70%
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IR (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(A B 5 3R R MR BRAS BIRE BRSO - I BLA R F LHI/R) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

ABARERREZS (@)

(=) FmBHRE (&)

4.

260

N A2 I B R O R RgE
7

L bE]

Related Party Name

10.

Related Party Relationship and Transaction

(continued)

1) Related Party Relationship (continued)

d). Nature of related parties under no control
relationships

BRI

Relationship

HELATRRRARE

Related Transactions with the Company

WRHETERHERAT

Shandong Xinhua Industry & Trade
Company Limited

WRHERBCIEREEAT

Shandong Xinhua Bobang Chemical &
Industrial Company Limited

WRFESBLIERAF

Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Chemical &
Industrial Company Limited

WRHERECIARAR

Shandong Xinhua Longxin Chemical &
Industrial Company Limited

LRHERBCIREERAT

Shandong Xinhua Changxing Chemical
Equipment Company Limited

RSB EREERAT

Shandong Zibo Xincat Pharmaceutical
Company Limited

FHEHBHERRAA"
Shandong Zibo Xinhua-DSM
Pharmaceutical Company Limited

RE-BARE

Under the common control of
parent company

ZR-BATLH

Under the common control of
parent company

ZA-§271

Under the common control of
parent company

LUNGE AT

Joint venture

ARABERE
Joint venture

XR-SRATEHHLRAT

Under the common control of
parent company and partially
held by the Company

BREAZZRAA

Partially held by parent company

BEPNRZE  RBRIH

Sale of power and waste materials,
and purchase of raw materials

TREERATR

Purchase of materials

RERMH

Purchase of materials

RBRAH

Purchase of materials

RERE EEM: BRI

Sale of equipments, work-in-progress
and technology

WEDN  LHREE

Sale of power and housing renting.

HEBNRRBERH

Sale of power and Purchase of materials

* RILERE 3% —
BE¥REERA
A © 20085 &
BRI R R
HERRAT -

*

Zibo Xinhua-DSM, the former name of it was
Shandong Zibo Xinhua-Chemferm Pharmaceutical
Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(REPEIZT2EALFS) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

+. FRABRAFREREXS (@) 10. Related Party Relationship and Transaction
(continued)
(Z) BmES 2). Related Transactions
1. EEBUR a). Pricing Policy

RRARHE R TT
B EE an A M e R B T
BERMENERR

The Company sells products and purchases the
materials to related parties at the market price.

MEEERTEEE
B o
KEmE b) Purchase of materials
20085 & 20075
2008 2007
W5 a8 XAkE & :4:0) gk £ 1%
Amount Rate Amount Rate

WRHETERABERAA RHERICERE
Shandong Xinhua Industry & Raw materials and

Trade Company Limited chemical reagent 5,756 0.76% 5,710 0.68%
WRHFZEBEIBRAA FRirH
Shandong Xinhua Wanbo

Chemical & Industrial

Company Limited Raw materials 52,595 7.03% 40,667 4.83%
WRHFZERACIEREL AT R
Shandong Xinhua Bobang

Chemical & Industrial

Company Limited Raw materials 25,941 3.61% 18,271 2.17%
FHEMBHERRAT Rk
Shandong Zibo Xinhua-Chemferm

Pharmaceutical Company Limited ~ Raw materials 47,807 6.34% 32,082 3.81%
WRHEEELTIARAA R
Shandong Xinhua Longxin

Chemical & Industrial

Company Limited Raw materials 7,458 0.99% 2,989 0.35%
WRHERECIREERAR ERBRERE
Shandong Xinhua Changxing

Chemical Equipment

Company Limited Daubed glass retorts 5,417 — 442 0.05%
WRAHECEBRAT iz}
Shandong Dadi Xinhua

Chemical & Industrial

Company Limited* Raw materials - - 31,337 3.72%
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+. BEAREREXS @

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

10. Related Party Relationship and Transaction

(continued)
(Z) WwxEH (&) 2).  Related Transactions (continued)
3. HEEY c) Sale of merchandise
20085 & 20075
2008 2007
L bE ZAkE &8 LeBI% kx| L A%
Amount Rate Amount Rate

UFHETERAARAR HEDNR=R
Shandong Xinhua Industry & Sale of power and

Trade Company Limited waste materials 2,117 4.00% 3,641 7.54%
WRHEBELIERARA HEBNR=E
Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Sale of power and

Chemical & Industrial waste materials

Company Limited 4,918 5.18% 4,326 8.95%
FHEHBHERRAA HEHN
Shandong Zibo Xinhua-Chemferm Sale of power

Pharmaceutical Company Limited 4,302 17.47% 4,483 19.74%
RSB ERERRA HEHY
Shandong Zibo XinCat Sale of power

Pharmaceutical Company Limited 1,533 6.23% 1,586 6.98%

4. BEBR

AR @R IT S
BHTHEIEREAS
/50,000 F ST E X
Tﬁluéﬂt ’ ,\/TQ\/HHFHEI
2008 10A24H &
2009%10H23H © H
[SE/NCIIIIE g i3 7
EEABERET AR
HIER -

AAFEPRE RO
BITEEDTTHRAE
A4 480,000 F T
MEXRHZE  EXRH
fE/52008F12 4B &
2009¢12H4E| &t

NRIZIERBRER
%H&%@ﬁﬁﬁ Giki=
PR o
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Guaranty secured

The Company entered a facility contract of RMB50,
000,000 with China Bank of Communication. The
facility is available from 24 Oct 2008 to 23 Oct
2009. Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Group
Company Limited, the parent company, provided
guaranty for the facility.

The Company entered a loan contract with Branch
of Qingdao China Import & Export Bank a
contracted amount of RMB80,000,000 and for a
period from 4 Dec 2008 to 4 Dec 2009. Shandong
Hualu Holding Group Company Limited, the
ultimate shareholders, provided guarantee for the
liabilities of the Company under the above
borrowing contract.

IR ERERBERAR Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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ISR EE (&)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)

(REPESHEREH)

(Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

Related Party Relationship and Transaction

(continued)

2).

Related Transactions (continued)

e). Purchase of Assets

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Purchasing the land and property from
Shandong Xinhua Industry & Tread
Company limited

On the 17 January 2008, the company
entered an asset transferring agreement
with Shandong Xinhua Industry & Tread
Company Limited and purchased a
workhouse with a total construction area
of 3764.83 square meters and a land use
right which occupied an area of 1719.54
square meters in NO.31 Xinhua road,
Zhangdian area, Zibo city. The
consideration of the transaction including
RMB2,448,600 of land and RMB7, 814,
700 of property, which was based on the
appraisal report of the land ((Zibo) Lusheng
Property (2007) (gu) No. 2538 and tap
appraisal report of the property (Zibo
Pinggu [2007] No. 195) which were both
issued by Shandong Lusheng Appraisal &
Advisory Company Limited. Both sides
agreed to the evaluated price, and
transferred the assets at the price of
RMB9,500,000.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(A B 5 3R R MR BRAS BIRE BRSO - I BLA R F LHI/R) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(REPEGTEARS) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)
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10.

Related Party Relationship and Transaction

(continued)

2).

Related Transactions (continued)

e).

Purchase of Assets (continued)

Purchasing the equipment from Shandong
Xinxat Pharmaceutical Company Limited

On the 9 July 2008, the company entered
an asset transferring agreement with Zibo
Xincat Pharmaceutical Company Limited
and purchased inner equipment of
cephalosporin of Xincat. Both sides
consulted the net value of the assets and
transferred it at a price of RMB345,000.

Transferring the land to DSM Zibo Phar
Company limited

On the 3 Apr 2008, the company entered
a land use right transferring agreement
and contract supplementary agreement
with DSM Zibo Pharmaceutical Company
Limited. The company transferred Zi Guo
(2006) NO.F00181 land which with a total
construction area of 3,001.1 square meters
to DSM company, the transferring term
dating from 3 Apr 2008 to 27 Dec 2030,
the total transferring price was 924,300.

IWRFERERGBERDF Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(B R SRR MR RR A B EE RS » I BLARM F HI7R) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE)) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

10. Related Party Relationship and Transaction
(continued)
RS (&) 2). Related Transactions (continued)
6. BEME f) Lease of Assets
(1) EELEHR i. Lease-out assets
ELbEL ZAtE ZARH 2008 20075
Name of related party Transaction contents  Effective period 2008 2007
WEEEEREERAR FELE 2%
Shandong Zibo Xincat
Pharmaceutical Company Limited Lease-out of house whole year 361 952
(2 EEMBEA i. Lease-in assets
ELbEL ZAtE ZARH 2008 20075
Name of related party Transaction contents  Effective period 2008 2007
WRHEBEEEERRERT BARE 2%
Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical
group Company Limited Lease-in of house whole year 500 500
WRHEIERHERAA BARE
Shandong industry & tread
company limited Lease-in of house — - 370
7. EhR5 9) Other Transactionsion.
(1) BERERE i. Trademark Using Fee
loyEt HARXARNE 2008 200746 %
Name of Related Party Transaction contents 2008 2007
LWRHEBEEEERAEANA HEERE
Shandong Zibo Xinhua Pharmaceutical
group Company Limited Trademark using fee 1,100 1,000

IR FTERZ R 155 PR A 8 Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(A B 5 3R R MR BRAS BIRE BRSO - I BLA R F LHI/R) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

Related Party Relationship and Transaction

(continued)
2). Related Transactions (continued)
9) Other Transactionsion (continued)

Trademark Using Fee (continued)

Pursuant to the Trademark Licensee
Agreement signed by the holding company
and the Company on 7 December 1996,
the Company was granted the exclusive
right to use the trademark “Xinhua”
(“Trademark”) by the holding company for
its existing and future products in and
outside the PRC at an initial annual fee of
RMB600,000 increasing at an extra
RMB400,000 per year until the annual fee
reaches the cap amount of RMB1,100,000,
which shall remain at 1,100,000, until the
agreement is terminated

IR ERERBERAR Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(B R SRR MR RR A B EE RS » I BLARM F HI7R) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE)) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

+. FRABRAFREREXS (@) 10. Related Party Relationship and Transaction
(continued)
(Z) BEw%zH (E) 2). Related Transactions (continued)
7. HithR 5 (&) 9) Other Transactionsion (continued)
(2) IEHEEB i. Offering Service
AR T 2T LR IS 20085 & 2007F £
Name of Related Party Transaction contents 2008 2007
B ENEURERAR TR RH
Shandong Zibo Xinhua-Chemferm
Pharmaceutical Company Limited Design 12 10
LWRFERECTREERAF TERE RS
Shandong Xinhua Changxing Chemical
Equipment Company Limited Design 12 26
WRAMHECRERAR" TERG RS
Shandong Dadi Xinhua Chemical &
Industrial Company Limited Design — 5
WRHFEBRCIERAA TERE RS
Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Chemical &
Industrial Company Limited Design 12 —

* A EE
N
EE A
REER
EEER
BB R
2.

IR FTERZ R 155 PR A 8 Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Dadi Xinhua put into consolidated joint
ventures, as happened before the scope
of related party transactions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
(A B 5 3R R MR BRAS BIRE BRSO - I BLA R F LHI/R) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(REPEGTEARS) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

+. RBRAFREREXS (@) 10. Related Party Relationship and Transaction
(continued)
() WA ERERHE 3). Related Party Current Account Balances
2008F12A31H 2007F12A31H

RELTER Name of Related Party 2008.12.31 2007.12.31
e B 2 Accounts receivable
LWRFETERNBRDA Shandong Xinhua Industry &

Trade Company Limited 36,714 40,776
RSB EREER AR Shandong Zibo XinCat

Pharmaceutical Company Limited 2,718 4,958
AER Advances to Suppliers
LWERNEEECIERAA Shandong Xinhua Wanbo

Chemical & Industrial Company Limited 10,748 8,258
WERHAERECIERAH Shandong Xinhua Longxin

Chemical & Industrial Company Limited 1,481 2,600
H fth 18 gt 3 Other Receivable
LWRHETERNEBRAF Shandong Xinhua Industry &

Trade Company Limited 8 8
WHRHEREMILEEMRALET  Shandong Xinhua Changxing Chemical

Equipment Company Limited 1 380
B R Accounts Payable
LWEHFETERMERDA Shandong Xinhua Industry & Trade

Company Limited 1,182 1,545
LWERNEEECIERAA Shandong Xinhua Wanbo Chemical &

Industrial Company Limited 660 1,109
LWEHMEGHIHREMAA  Shandong Xinhua Bobang Chemical &

Industrial Company Limited 1,585 1,458
SN EREERAF Shandong Zibo Xinhua-Chemferm

Pharmaceutical Company Limited 2,890 3,311
WRHEREMILEEMRALE  Shandong Xinhua Changxing Chemical

Equipment Company Limited 76 505
LR EER A Shandong Zibo XinCat Pharmaceutical

Company Limited 116 —
Hth 8 £ &% Other Payable
LWEMETERMERDA Shandong Xinhua Industry & Trade

Company Limited 2,648 2,271
LR EERAF Shandong Zibo XinCat Pharmaceutical

Company Limited 1 —
WERHERETREERADLE  Shandong Xinhua Changxing Chemical

Equipment Company Limited 1,784 —
WERHEBATHRETALE  Shandong Xinhua Bobang Chemical &

Industrial Company Limited — 1

| 268 1L R T EE R % A% 19 4 PR 22 B Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)

BRI 11.

#H 1F2008F12 A31H » AR AEHAM
ERKEERE -

(RIEPHEZHERLE)) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

Contingencies

The company has no significant contingencies besides the above
to be disclosed on 31 December 2008.

2008F12HA31H * AA R4
HiEREHESZE -

. EEABRA&ENR 13.

ARREFRENEREEAGR/RKHA
BRERE -

. HMEERIR 14.

#H 1F2008F12 A31H » KA BEZH
BEMHMEZEIE -

. REEFIH 12. Commitment

1. EHTHEERERETH a) Large-Sum Agreed-Upon Contractual

XEREER Disbursements
eRA&H KfteHE

HE&HE Items Contractual Amount Amount Unpaid
gIFEEE Innovation Zone 53,360 40,293
LB Em(L380)IHE  L-380 Projects 5,050 933
HE R Linkage line 3,450 345
B e e Auto package 325 228
3,000MF / F MR B IEE BULUOFEN 39,734 19,803
o Others 18,997 7,351
At Total 120,916 68,953

2. MRiFfE Dt eES=IEsN - B IE b).  The Company has no other capital commitments signed

except for the above-mentioned on 31 December 2008.

Post Balance Sheet Date Events

The Company has no significant subsequent events to be
disclosed.

Other Important Events

The Company has no significant other events to be disclosed
on 31 December 2008.

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited 269 |
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Notes to the Financial Statements

tTi #wREEH

1. FEEHRESR

HE

(continued)

(REFEMRMERRBRITERS - HUARYET THIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)
(RIEPHEZHERLE]) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

15. Supplementary Information

1) Non-Routine Profit or Loss

20085 & 2007
ltem 2008 2007

(S FRBEEERERS -
BREHREEREERR
D

(D) FAEHBRAOMTHEL -
BRAFLRELEBTY
A FREXRRAE
ER-TRETBNTEE
REZXOBARHERID

S RRAAAERREER
RANERERREXRBI
HERGUeREE
RHEERABELN
RABEEDEL  AREE
RHUCHEE  RHM
ERABNTRLECHEE
BGHRE W

() 2B &R E s -

() B LB BB A
BRIMRATIZ

AN E
FREHFBERAR

b BERERAKRE

Profit or loss from disposal of
non-current assets

(5,688) 2,041
Government subsidies in the current
profit or loss
15,761 5,479
Gain or loss from treating held-for
tread financial assets & held-for
tread financial liabilities in fair
value, excepting hedging
(19,436) 18,324
Gain or loss from treating long-term
equity investment 479 —
Income from disposal of
held-to-maturity investment (426) 3,537
Sub-total (9,310) 29,381
Income tax (1,685) 6,518
Total net non-routine profit or loss (7,625) 22,863
Including: attributable to the
parent company (9,484) 22,930

BRIB(RFRBEITEEN QARG
BB A EE15E--FEE
HIEIB 5 (2008)) By M REE AR
T HIELEHBENLEEE
BRBHREMNERETH

o

i
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According to the relative policies of “NO.1 Disclosing
Announcement Explanations for the Public Issuance
Securities Company’s Information—Non Regularity Gain
or Loss 2008”, it should account the relative information
for non regularity gain or loss in new policies.

IR ERERBERAR Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(ABF 3§ 3R R MR BR S BIEE RS - ILAR#EF HIR) (Unless otherwise indicated, all figures are stated in RMB’000)

t+i. w#EEH @)

2.

BPHENRERSRKE

RRPEFES(ARAETHE
H RN RS B B AR R RIS
FE—F B E W BRI E AR
AHFTEREREINER - K
NRZEEENINE T HHE
BB E WX R ERmEN
T s

(1) 20084 &

BEHHHE

(REPEIZT2EALFS) (Prepared in Accordance with PRC Accounting Standards)

15. Supplementary Information (continued)

2)

Rate of Return on Equity (ROE) and Earnings per
Share (EPS)

According to the requirements of “Rule 9 on the
Information Disclosure and Presentation of Companies
That Issue Securities to the Public - Calculation and
Disclosure of Rate of Return on Equity and Earnings per
Share” issued by China Securities Regulatory
Commission, the fully diluted and weighted average rate
of return on equity and earnings per share of the Company
are as follows:

a). In 2008
BREKRE SRikE
ROE EPS
2 mEEYy EFERKE HESRKE

Full Weighted

diluted average Basic Diluted

FENGRARRNFNE

Net profit attributed to
the parent company 2.34% 2.03% 0.07 0.07

BBRELARE - Net profit attributed to
MR IR BB R the parent company
FME after deductions of
extraordinary gains
or losses 2.99% 2.59% 0.10 0.10
(2) 2007FE b). In 2007
BREKRE 100
ROE EPS
2EEE miEFy EFISREE BESREE
Full Weighted
wEHIA diluted average Basic Diluted
HBREARRENFFE Net profit attributed to

&
FENTARMRRE - Mk
LR MERENFME

the parent company 1.96% 2.40% 0.07 0.07
Net profit attributed to

the parent company

after deductions of

extraordinary gains

or losses

0.59% 0.72% 0.02 0.02

8. MEHEdE

REFFE R E 7 2009F3 5 20H AR
RIZEESH AR -

IWRFERERBFRD T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

16. Approval of Financial Statements

The Financial Statements have been approved to report on 20
March 2009 by the Board of Directors.
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I BEXH

Documents Available for Inspection

(i) BEEER  MBAEA FBEER (i) Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008
FRWEEN G WE o signed by the Chairman of the Board, the financial controller of
the Company and appropriate accounting staff.

(ii) A ERAEE - fMestam (ii) Financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008
BRWEENETRERMY - signed by the Certified Public Accountants both from domestic
and international auditors with their respective company seals.

(i) WEMRNEFREFESEERELAD (i) All original copies of the Company’s announcement and

FEBNAME R XN EARRRD Company’s documents made in newspapers designated by the
HEHRT CSRC in the reporting period.
(iv) ARaE (RAER) (iv)  The Articles of Association of the Company.

| 272 IR E R %R /2 B PR A T Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited
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fehk RS HETRAETERRREETE
iR - 255005

WL ; B6-533-216 6666

A : B6-533-228 7508

1k : htipwww. xhzy.com

Shandong Xinhua Pharmaceutical Company Limited

Address: Chemical Industry Area of Zibo Hi-tech Industry Development Zone, Zibo City, Shandong Province, PRC
Postal Code: 255005

Tel : B6-533-216 6666

Fax : B6-533-228 7508

Wabsile : hitp:iiwww.xhzy.com
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